
I City of Port Colborne 

-----~~------Po R. T COLBOR.NE 

Regular Meeting of Committee of the Whole 06~19 
Monday, February 11, 2019 - 6:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 66 Charlotte Street 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order: Mayor William C. Steele 

2. National Anthem: 

3. Introduction of Addendum and Delegation Items: 

4. Confirmation of Agenda: 

5. Disclosures of Interest: 

6. Adoption of Minutes: 
(a) Regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 04-19, held on January 28, 2019. 

7. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

8. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

9. Presentations: 
(a) Recognition of Larry Olm and Jack O'Neil Re Community Christmas Dinner 

(b) Nick Rosati, CET, Traffic Systems Program Manager and Petar Vujic, Supervisor 
Corridor Safety, Region of Niagara Re Providing information about PXOs in Niagara 
and the Port Colborne Pedestrian Crossover (Page No. 7) 

(c) Brad Whitelaw, Program Manager, Policy & Planning, Region of Niagara - Waste 
Management Re Proposed Collection Options for the next Waste Collection Contract 
(Page No. 19) Note: 5 - 10 extra minutes is required for presentation 

10. Delegations (10 Minutes Maximum): 
(a) Chris Comfort Re Drainage and Ditching in the Ward 4 Area (Page No. 37) 

11. Mayor's Report: 

12. Regional Councillor's Report: 

13. Councillors' Items: 
(a) Councillors' Issues/Enquiries 
(b) Staff Responses to Previous Councillors' Enquiries 

14. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

1



Committee of the Whole Agenda February 11 , 2019 

15. Notice of Motion: 

16. Adjournment: 

Upcoming Committee of the Whole and Council Meetings 

Monday, February 25, 2019 Committee of the Whole/Council - 6:30 P.M. 

Monday, March 11 , 2019 

Monday, March 25, 2019 

Monday,AprilB,2019 

Tuesday,April23,2019 

Committee of the Whole/Council - 6:30 P.M. 

Committee of the Whole/Council - 6:30 P.M. 

Committee of the Whole/Council- 6:30 P.M. 

Committee of the Whole/Council - 6:30 P.M. 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

2



Notes 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

Committee of the Whole Agenda February 11, 2019 

Committee Items: 

Item Description I Recommendation 

MB EB 1. Motion by Councillor Desmarais Re: Affordable Housing Strategy 

GB FD Whereas access to adequate housing is a fundamental human right 

DK HW 
(paragraph 25(1) of the United Nations Universal Declaration of Human 
Rights, and Ontario Human Rights Commission - Human Rights 
Perspective on Housing Supply, January 2019); and 

Whereas Port Colborne is fast approaching a housing crisis with 
alarming occupancy rates, soaring housing costs and stagnating 
incomes (Ontario Association of Food Banks, Quarterly Report, 
September 2018, Port Colborne Primary Rental Market Statistics, 
2016, Key Housing Indicators for Port Colborne, July 5, 2017 and 
Where Will We Live - Ontario's Rental Housing Crisis, May 2018); and 

Whereas the Senior Citizens Advisory Committee and the Social 
Determinants of Health Committee, both being committees of this 
council have each placed housing as a priority to their mandate; and 
Whereas designing and implementing a poverty reduction strategy has 
been included in the Port Colborne Strategic Plan (CAO Report 
No. :2015-47); and 

Whereas adequate and affordable housing has been directly linked to 
poverty reduction (Wellesley Institute, Poverty Is a Health Issue: It's 
time to address housing and homelessness, Oct 10, 2013) 

Therefore be it resolved that The Corporation of the City of Port 
Colborne does acknowledge that housing is a human right and that 
municipal government has a role to play in the gradual realization of 
this right for all residents of Port Colborne; and 

That staff be directed to engage with stakeholders to create a 
coordinated municipal affordable housing strategy for the city of Port 
Colborne with the goal to establish a definition for the term "affordable 
housing" and to create affordable housing options across the housing 
continuum, with a report due back to this council to include a high-level 
view of timelines and targets on or before May 27, 2019. 

Note: Notice of Motion was given at the Meeting of January 14, 
2019. 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

Page 

53 

3



Committee of the Whole Agenda February 11, 2019 

wcs MB EB 2. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, 

RB GB FD 
Report 2019-15, Subject: Information Report on the Proposed 
Regional Niagara Waste Collection Services Contract 

AD DK HW That Council receive Engineering and Operations Department Report 
2019-15 for information. 

wcs MB EB 3. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, 
Report 2019-12, Subject: Amendment to the Zavitz Municipal 

RB GB FD Drain Sherkston North Branch East & West Trail Branch Drains 

AD DK HW 
Report 

That staff be directed to prepare a by-law appointing Paul Marsh P. 
Eng. of EWA Engineering Inc. to comply with Section 8, Chapter D. 17 
of the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990, as such a by-law will allow us to fulfill 
the requirement of Section 58(4), Chapter D. 17 of the Drainage Act 
R.S.O. 1990, as recommended by the Tribunal Coordinator; and 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be directed to execute the appropriate 
by-law. 

wcs MB EB 4. Planning and Development Department, By-law Enforcement 

RB GB FD 
Division, Report 2019-13, Subject: Encroachment request 104 
Fraser Street 

AD DK HW That Council approve the encroachment application and authorize 
entering into a License Agreement with the applicant and owner Yvon 
Mousseau for 104 Fraser Street. 

-
Miscellaneous Correspondence 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

wcs 

RB 

AD 

MB EB 5. Region of Niagara Re: Approval of Interim Levy Dates and 

GB FD 
Amounts {Re~ort CSD 6-2019} 

DK HW 
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re: 
Approval of Interim Levy Dates and Amounts, be received for 
information. 

MB EB 6. Region of Niagara Re: Vacancy Program Revisions to Ministry of 

GB FD 
Finance {Report CSD 3-2019} 

DK HW 
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re: 
Vacancy Program Revisions to Ministry of Finance, be received for 
information. 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

95 

205 

311 

319 

325 

4



Committee of the Whole Agenda February 11 , 2019 

Outside Resolutions - Requests for Endorsement 

wcs MB EB 7. Town of Lincoln, Town of Pelham Re: Support for Ontario Wine 

RB GB FD 
and Beer in Retail Stores as Part of Modernizing Alcohol Sales 

That the resolutions received from the Town of Lincoln and Town of 
AD DK HW Pelham Re: Support for Ontario Wine and Beer in Retail Stores as 

Part of Modernizing Alcohol Sales, be received for information. 

Responses to City of Port Colborne Resolutions 
'- ,· 

Nil. 

Note: If not otherwise attached to the staff report, by-laws are published and available for review under 
the "Consideration of By-laws" section of the Council agenda. 

353 

5



Tl~ s 02ge intentionally left blank. 

6



Nick Rosati, CET 
Traffic Systems Program Manager 

PetarVujic 
Supervisor Corridor Safety 

Port Colborne City Council 
February 11, 2019 

STOP FOR 
PEDESTRIANS 

Niagara 

v 
HERE ~ 

~1\ 1 

05/02/ 2019 

1 

7



FIGURE 1 

Black Figure & Border Yellow Retro-Ren. Background 

f60x75) cm 

! 
• 

• ; 

Ladder 

c .......... v 
V"tt1ld to 

Pcdiutr~n• Lin• 

>Om 
No Passing 

Zoo>. 

05/02/2019 

10 

19 

6 

30 

16.5 

(60x60)cm 
(30) 

Niagara 

2 

8



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I~ 
1.l! 
I~ 
I~ 
I 
I 
I 
I 

kubil IP9,MPS or n.n Yo•==== ll'ICJTMIOOk 12 

I Sb IS ~candid* llw JI 
I ~~FION 

I ""'*""'-'..., I 

L---------------- ---- - ---- -- 1 

··- ·-· -·- ...... ....... - ...... -u -- rt.~ ..,_ ._, ·- ··- ..,.... ,.,....; 
\j;:'.~ ·- ...... -··- ""'"' ..... ..-

.. _ ._. ·- '"'"' .. , .. -· ·-· ·-· ·- - """" ·- .. , .... "'"° 
\;;:' ~ 

....... ..... 
:\ IW -;;:.;;-- ..... , ..... ...., -;;;;;;;;;-
.,_ ...... - ·-· ..... ...... '~'°° ,_ ..... 

C=::l ...... "' c=J """• c:::::J~fl c:::=> Tts-• ~--_......._ ......... __ .. __ ..._ 

·-· ._., ·-· -· _.,. -· 'c::' ·-· ·-· _ ... -· ._. ·-· ·-· -· -·· -· ........ -· ._, .,...,.. ·-· -· .... ,_, ·-· -· ._ .. ·-· =.: ·-· ·-· -" -· 
,..__.,._. ___ ,.. ___ ,,.__.., _ _ _ • _____ _.._:aa •. - un-
---.-- .• qr; .. ---0--1--w-. .....__.,""-·--.... --- - "- • ......... ·----...-..·----·----.. -... .---..--~--...... .--..---·---.. --.... ·'-t..-lt""'-•"'---a•- -..-- - -
==~~..::-...=.::._-- .. -·----,.,.-·--·----~-

05/ 02/ 2019 

3 

9



05/02/2019 

Niagara "JJ Region 

4 

10



05/ 02/2019 

5 

11



Q@tit!!D6!.L# 
~.t"""tt"'•.w •ooroa 

• "ll'•l tt.t•<lft,..MOttl . \UIU.,•OllMI to .... 
li'N~--J«M 

~®~ 
. ... ~ndln)..., •lk 

11'.,_~,_ . .... • .,.'Wta..,...,.,..,...._ ................... ..,.,,... 
.,,,j .. ff'.#bli•~ 

(!)MM#• 
+ li' P.,..,..tt9_,,, .... ... -... 
·~~""" ,...., ... 
. .... ,.,...eN_..., 
""'~'-'""' 

. ............ .Jal,#\ 

=;i::.o,..... 
" 

05/02/2019 

Niagara 7 /Region 

6 

12



05/ 02/2019 

LEVEL2Type LEVEL2Type 

Niagara ZI~ 

7 

13



05/02/2019 

8 

14



05/02/2019 

9 

15



05/02/2019 

J Region 

10 

16



~:~i ~;;:.;.·.;. .:.· "='j 
:~ if:f~-~:==; I 
' ~ 

.[ . , ._ I .. 

,j 
' 

" I 

' ' b 

-1--... -~-

.ft .... 

·'' *--. ,. ~ 
. lIIIlI • =-

' .... . 1 ....... 
I. 

05/02/2019 

. ...,. 

11 

17



05/02/2019 

Niagara f ReiJQn 

12 

18



Proposed Collection Options for 
Niagara Region's Next Contract 

-City of Port Colborne Council Meeting 
February 11, 2019 

Background 
• Niagara Region's next waste collection contract (garbage, recycling and organics) set to 

begin by 2021 

• Input received from various stakeholders on proposed collection options being 
considered for the next contract, through targeted and broad-based community 
consultation 

• Local Area Municipalities (LAMs) comments are requested on proposed base changes 
and confirmation of enhanced services by February 1, 2019 (extended to Feb. 20) 

• Letter with project report sent to LAM Clerks for inclusion on the Council agenda on May 
4, 2018 and to Public Works Officials (PWOs) on June 6, 2018, along with presentations 
and engagement with PW Os at their June 11, Oct. 16 and Dec. 11, 2018 meetings 

• Report submitted to Niagara Region 's Public Works Committee (PWC) on January 8, 
2019 

• Report with recomm.endations on colfecUon options wm be sultm1,itted in March 
2019 

19



I • Proposed collection options forr the Region's next contract are being 
considered for the following reasons: 

o Increase participation in Region's diversion programs 

o Potential cost avoidance 

o Results of curbside audits, whi,ch reflect actual service usage 

o Best practices of Niagara's 13 municipal comparators 

o Improve program communication to residents and businesses 

o Standardize garbage container (bag/can) limits for all Industrial, 
Comme11dal1 and !Institutional (l'C&l1

) and Mixed-Use (MU) properties as a 
base service 

!Proposed Base Collection Service Option,s 
1) Every-other-week (EOW) garbage collection for the residential sector and those 

IC&t and MU pt'operties located outside DBAs, as a base service: 
• Weekly collection of recycling and organics to continue 
• Garbage container limit for all properties would double 
• Garbage limit exemptions - children's diaper (home and daycare), medical and 

group homes, plus special set-out service to continue 
and/or 

Mandatory use of clear bags for garbage, with the option of allowing an opaque 
privacy bag to be placed inside the clear bag: 

• The clear bag program will be for atl sectors {both inside and outside DBAs), 
as a base service 

• Niagara Region PWC amended the January 8, 2019 staff recommendation to 
not include clear bag in the RFP and now it will remain as an option for 
consideration 

20



1 

Key Drivers - EOW Garbage and Clear Bags 
• extend existing landfill site 

capacity; 

• contract cost avoidance (EOW 
garbage collection); 

• increase participation and capture 
rates in diversion programs: 
o Nearly 50% of low density 

residential garbage is organic 
waste and only 48% use the 
residential Green Bin program 

o IC&/ and MU audits show 
diversion programs underutilized 

I 20IS-2016 Waste Collection 

0 
Organic 
Materials~ 

non-recyclable, 
non-compomble 
mare rials 

Recyclable 
/ Materials 

~--------~---~ 

Other Municipality Benefits of Implementing 
EOW Garbage and/or Clear Bags 
• Other municipalities, which implemented EOW garbage and/or clear bags, 

have realized the folilowing benefits: 

1) Increased Waste Oi,version: 
• Range between 6% (Peel) and 16% (Durham), depending on whether 

they introduced other diversion programs (i.e. organics) at the same 
time as EOW garbage. 

• Markham's diversion rate increased by 35% with the introduction of 
EOW garbage and weekly organics collection. It increased by an 
additional 6%, as a result of implementing dear bags. 

2) Contract Savings: 
• Range between $200k (Barrie) and $12M (Peel) per year, depending 

on size of contract and other contract changes implemented (i.e. 
EOW, carrts, etc.) 

21



1 Proposed Base Collection Service Options 
3) Establishment of a 4 item limit per residential unit, per collection, for large 

item collection at llDR properties, as a base service. 

4) Discontinuation of appliances and scrap metal collection at LOR properties. 
•Niagara Region PWC amended the January 8, 2019 staff recommendation 
to discontinue collection and instead i1nclude pricing for this option in the 
next contract. 

Key dri,vers: Contract cost avoidance for services with limited usage. 
• 93% of properties using the large item service set out 4 items or less and 

92% of the total bookings were for 4 or less items 
• Appliances and scrap metal: 

- Tonnages have decreased by 94% since 2007 
- Items can be recycled, at no cost, at the Region's Drop-off Depots, or by 

scrap metal haulers/dealers 
- On/ 5% of ro erties are usin the service 

Other Municipality Benefits of Limiting Large Item 
Coll.ection and Discontinuation of Appliance Collection 
• Other municipalities, which implemented limits on large item collection and/or 

eliminated appliance collection, have realized the following benefits: 

1) Municipal Best Practices: 

• The average large item limit is 3 per residential unit for those municipalities 
with weekly collection, and 4 per residential unit with EOW collection . 

• Approximately half of municipal comparators (Barrie, Hamilton, London, 
Ottawa, Peel and Windsor) do not provide appliance collection service. 

2)' Contract Savings: 

• Municipalities that implemented collection limits on the number of large items 
reported contract savings. 

• Municipalities that eliminated appliance collection realized a contract 
savings. In Peel, this was a net annual savings of $1 OOK. 

22



Proposed Base Collection Service Options 
5) Change weekly garbag.e container limits for IC&I and MU properties 

located inside Designated Business Areas (DBAs) from 7 containers to 4 
containers per property, as a base service. 

6) Change weekly garbage container limit for MU properties located outside 
DBAs from 6 containers to 4 containers per property, as a base service. 

Key Drivers: Standardize base garbage collection limits across similar 
sectors to improve service delivery and program communication, increase 
participation and capture rates in diversion programs, potentially avoid 
contract costs for a service l'evel which is not needed. 

•Average number of garbage containers placed out per week: 
- JC&/ and MU properties inside the OBA is 2 
- MU properties outside the OBA is less than 2 

Port C'olborne Downtown OBA - Base Collection 
Area 

~~--~ ,;; 

,;; __ -......, 
-0 

DI ., 
_; ~ 

... ;.... - .. : .... ~1 ·:~- .-
' -·1 I :i ·!.I •.,. 
,..:~ 1-11 1 -:=1 110~0 

j 
J F- •St 

-~· 

,;; 
! 
0 .... 

-- ~ - -- ' I ~~"'~.\ ~ ___: 
-~- ~~---

23



Port Colborne Main Street OBA - Base Collection 
Area 

MoinSt. e J 

Port Cotborne Audit Results - IC&I Inside DBAs (Base) 

2018 Weekly Average Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties Inside the Port 
Colborne DBAs ~Base Collection Area) 

Note: 

Collection 
Service 

Averrage % of Partidpating 
l·C&I Properties Using 
Regional! CoHecUon 

Servi·ce Inside DBAs (1l 

88% 

Average 
Number of 

Containers Per 
Set-Out 

0.6 

Average % of IC&I 
Properties 

Exceeding Garbage 
Container limit (2) 

3% 
N/A 
N/A 

1) In 2018, there were a total of 121 IC&I properties audited inside the two Port Colborne OBA base collection areas. Of 
this total, an average of 72 IC&I properties participated in a Regional collection service. 
Although an average of 3% of IC&I properties exceeded their total weekly set-out limit of 7 garbage containers, there 
were 3 individual properties that had exceeded the 7 garbage container limit, at least once during the 2 day audit period. 

24



Port Colborne Audit Results - MU Inside DBAs (Base) 
2016 Weekl,y Average Containers Set Out by MU Properties Inside the Port 
Colborne DBAs (Base Collection Area) 

CoHecUon Average % of Participating 
Service MU Properties Using 

Regional CoHection Service 
Inside DBAs(1) 

92% 

68% 

Average 
Number of 

2.2 

Average % of MU 
Properties 

Exceeding Garbage 
Container Umirt (2) 

1% 

N/A 
N/A 

In 2016, there were a total of 64 MU properties audited inside the two Port Colborne OBA base collection areas. Of this total, an 
average of 53 MU properties participated in a Regional collection service. 
Although an average of 1 % of MU properties exceeded their total weekly set-out limit o f 7 garbage containers, there were 5 
individual properties that exceeded the 7 garbage container limit, at least once during the 4 day audit period. 

Port Colborne Audit Results - MU Outside DBAs Base 
2014 Week•y Average Containers Set Out by MU Properti'es Outside the Port 
Colborne DBAs (Base Collection) 

Collection 
Service 

Note: 

Average % of MU 
Properties Using Regi'onal 
CoHectiron Service Outside 

DBAs (1l 

86% 

66% 

Averc~ge 

Number of 
Containers Per 

Set-Out 

1.0 

Average % of MU 
Properties Exceedin g 

Garbage Container 
limit (2) 

0% 

N/A 

N/A 

1) In 2014, there were 58 MU properties audited outside the two Port Colborne DBAs with base collection. 
2) There were no mixed-use properties that exceeded their total weekly set-out limit of 6 garbage containers 

25



·Enhanced Collection Servi,ces 

• Enhanced collection services (i.e. additional garbage container limits, 
increased garbage or recycling collection frequency, street litter, front-end 
garbage, etc.), provided at the request of each LAM. 

• Each LAM directly pays for the cost associated with their enhanced 
collection services. 

• The City of Port Colborne's 2018 total enhanced service cost of 
approximately $13,343 for enhanced collection approximately 0.76% of its 
total annual waste management charge of $1 .75 million. 

Enhanced CoHection Services - Port Colborne 
Enhanced Collection Service 

Street Litter Bins - City Facilities (i.e. Parks, Arenas, 
Beaches Twice- er-week 
Enhanced Waste Disposal Cost 

Organics Cart Collection - Designated Business Area 
(Once-per-week) 

Public Spaces Recycling - City Facilities (i.e. Parks, 
Arenas, Beaches) (Twice-per-week) 

2018 Cost Total No. of 
Containers 
Serviced 

$720 8 

$143 n/a 

$11,761 57(est.) 

$720 8 

26



Stakeholder Consultation/Engagement 
• local Area MunidpaHties (May/18 - Feb/19) 

- May and June 2018 - letters sent to LAM Clerks (May 4) and Public 
Works Officials (June 6) advising of proposed options and requesting 
LAM comments by February 1, 2019 (extended to Feb.20) 

- June 11, Oct. 16 and Dec. 11, 2018 - Presentations made to Public 
Works Officials at their meetings 

Stakeholder Consultation/Engagement 
• Orgaini1za~hons RepirresenOng Businesses (Aug - Nov/18) 

- Jufy 2018 - Email providing information on proposed options. 
• Port Co/borne Downtown BIA (July 5); Port Co/borne Main Street BIA(Ju/y 5); Port 

Co/borne!Wainfleet Chamber of Commerce (July 19) 

- August and September 2~>118 - meetings held with Business Improvement 
Associations (BIAs), Chambers of Commerce, Tourism Agencies and Niagara Industrial 
Association. 
• Port Co/borne Downtown BIA (Aug 24); Port Co/borne Main Street BIA (Aug 24); 

Port Colborne!Wainfleet Chamber of Commerce (Aug. 22) 

- October and November 20118 -two follow-up emails and formal letter with proposed 
options, link to on-line survey, open house/community booth information and invitation to 
contact Region 

- Novembe·r 30, 20'18 (deadline for formal input) 
• Submissions received from Grimsby Downtown Improvement Association, Victoria 

Centre and Queen Street BIAs (Niagara Falls), Pelham Business Association, St. 
Catharines Downtown BIA, and Port Dalhousie BIA 

27



Stakeholder Consultation/Engagement 
• Residents and Businesses: 

- October and November 2018 - Promotion and outreach through project 
webpage, social media, newspaper print and on-line ads, media coverage 
and post cards 
- October 2018 - Letters sent to businesses and multi-residential properties 
(i.e. 7 or more resi1dential units) that use Regional curbside garbage, with 
the proposed options, link to on-liine survey, open house/community booth 
info and invitation to contact Region 
- late October and November 2018 - Public open houses and community 
booths held in all 12 municipalities 

• 12 open houses - approx. 70 attendees 
• 12 community booths - approx. 450 visitors 

Stakeholder Consultation/Engagement 
• Surveys: 

- On fine Survey Resp·onses (closed November 30, 2018) 
• low Density Residential (LOR): approximately 6,600 completed 
• Multi-Residential (MIR): 38 completed 
• lndustrial1, Commercial and Institutional and Mixed Use: 160 completed 

- Random Tel'ephone Survey (completed December 7, 2018) 
• LDR only: 1,250 completed 

• Comments also received through IR.eg:ion's Facebook advertisement 
(1' ,476), Waste Info-Line calls, emails, web submissions, emai1ls, phone 
calls and in-person feedback (65} 

28



Making a Choice on Clear Bags and EOW Garbage 

PreUminary Survey Results for Niaaara Reaion 
LOR MR IC&f and MU 

Outside DBAs 

Telephone On-tine On-line On-line 
(1 ,253 responses) (6,639- responses) (38 responses) (166 responses) 

Clear Bag 33% 17% 29% 36% 

EOW Garbage 27% 33% 13% 15% 

Both Clear Bag and 
21 % 12% 18% 7% 

EOW Garbaqe 

Neither1 19% 38% 40% 42% 

11n the telephone survey, LOR households could not see the option of 'neither' and the interviewer worked to obtain a choice, 
which is why this option has a much lower response than in the on-line surveys. 

Making a Choice on Clear Bags and EOW Garbage 

Preliminary Survey Results for Port Colborne 

LOR 

Telephone On-l'ine 
(75 responses) (318 responses) 

Clear Bag 40% 20% 

EOW Garbage 21'% 33% 

Both Clear Bag and EOW 24% 12% 
Neither1 15% 35% 

11n the telephone survey, LOR households could not see the option of 'neither ' and the interviewer worked to obtain a choice 

29



Prelimina Surve Results 
Proposed Options Preliminary Survey Results 

EOW garbage • Residents were split between those stating it would have: 
collection •a big or some impact (48% telephone, 58% on-line) 

• little to no impact (45% telephone, 33% on-line) 
• Businesses outside DBAs expressed perceived need to continue 

weekly collection, although not fully utilizing diversion programs. 

Mandatory use of 
clear garbage bags 

• Telephone survey support was split: 48% would support,52% would 
not support. 

• On-line response was more divided: 27% would support,73% would 
not support. 

4 item limit for large • Largely supported by survey respondents. The majority of residents 
item collection responded that it would have little to no impact on their household 

(89% telephone, 72% online) 

Elimination of scrap • Program is not widely used and respondents indicated there would be 
metal collection little to no impact on their households (84% telephone, 78% on-line) 

Prelim1inary Survey Results 
Proposed Options 

Reduction of container limits 
for businesses inside DBAs 
from seven (7) to four (4) 
garbage bags/cans weekly 

Reduction of enhanced 
collection frequency for 
businesses inside DBAs 

Preliminary Survey Results 

• Slight majority could manage a reduction to four ( 4) garbage 
bags/containers (58%) 

• Less than half feel there would be a significant impact on their 
business/property 

• Small survey sample, but they were largely in agreement 
• Reducing the frequency of collection by one day per week 

would be a challenge for these businesses 

30



Preliminary Survey Results 
Proposed Options Preliminary Survey Results 

Reduction of container limits • Only one-third could manage reducing from six (6) to four (4) 
for mixed-use properties • 60% feel there would be an impact on their business 
outside DBAs from six (6) to 
four ( 4) garbage bags/cans 
weekly. 

Additional Potential Collection Contract 
Changes 

1. Additional four weeks of dedicated leaf and yard waste and brush 
collection in tlile spring and fall seasons, in the urban areas only. 

2. Elimination of the curre·nt restriction on Regional curbside garbage 
coMection for IC&I properties outside DBAs with private garbage 
collection. These properties must be participating in the Region's 
diversion programs to qualify. 

31



Additional Potential CoUection Contract 
Changes 
3. Provision of enhanced large item collection service to MR buildings and 

MU properties with 1 or more residential units, that receive the Region's 
curbside base or enhanced garbage collection service. 

• These properties must be participating in the Region's diversion 
programs in order to qualify to receive this service. 

• This service would be provided in a manner parallel to the approved 
service for the LOR sector. 

Next Steps for Local Area Municipalities 
• Formally, the Region would ask to receive the following from LAMs by 

February 1, 2019· (extended to Feb. 20): 

1. Comments/position on proposed base collection service options 

11. Verification of current or additional enhanced services - this would 
include the provision of enhanced large item collection service to MR 
and MU residential units, in a manner parallel to the service provided 
to the LOR sector (i.e. if LOR has a 4 item limit per unit per collection 
day, this would also apply to MR and MU residential units) 

iii. NEW - Verification if any municipality would like to include a per stop 
price for in-ground public space recycling and litter bins and/or for in
grourid IC&I , MR and/or MU properties (all streams), as an enhanced 
service under provisional items 

32



Questions? 

niagararegion.ca/letstalkwaste 

Port Colborne Downtown Audit Results - IC&I Inside OBA 
(Base} 
2018 Weekly Average Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties Inside the Port 
CoJborne Downtown OBA (Base Collection Area)' 

CoUecUon Average % of Participating Ave·rag.e 
Servht:e· l'C&I Properties Using Number of 

Regi'.onat Col l:ecUon Contai1ners Peli 
Servi·ce Inside OBA <1l Set-Out 

88% 2.4 

75% 1.7 
5% 0.7 

Note: 

Average % of JC&I 
Properties 

Exce·eding Garbage 
Contain er Limit (2) 

4% 

N/A 
N/A 

1) In 2018, there were a total of 84 IC&I properties audited inside the Port Colborne Downtown OBA base collection area. 
Of this total, an average of 56 IC&I properties participated in a Regional collection service. 
Although an average of 4% of IC&I properties exceeded their total weekly set-out limit of 7 garbage containers, there 
were 3 individual properties that had exceeded the 7 garbage container limit, at least once during the 2 day audit period. 

33



Port Colborne Downtown Audit Results - MU Inside OBA 
,Base 
2016 Weekly Average Containers Set Out by MU Properties Inside the Port 
Colborne Downtown OBA (Base CoUection Area) 

CoHection Ave·rage % of Participating Average 
Servi.ce MU Properties Using Number of 

Regional, CoHecOon Service Containers Per 
Inside DBA(1l Set-Out 

96% 2.8 

63% 1.7 

23% 2.6 

Average % of MU 
Properties 

Exceeding Garbage 
Container Limit (2l 

2% 

N/A 
N/A 

In 2016, there were a total of 33 MU properties audited inside the Port Col borne Downtown DBA base collection area Of this total, 
an average of 28 MU properties participated in a Regional collection service. 
Although an average of 2% of MU properties exceeded their total weekly set-out limit of 7 garbage containers, there were 5 
individual properties that exceeded the 7 garbage container limit, at least once during the 4 day audit period. · 

Port Colborne Mai1n Street Audit Results - IC&I Inside DBA 
.Base 
20118 Weekly Average Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties Inside the Port 
Cofborne Main Street DBA {Base, Colfection Area)1 

Collection Average % of Partiicipatiing Average Average % of IC&I 
Service JC&I Properties Usingi Number of Properti.es 

Regi,onal Co·l;lectiolil Contai.ners Per Exceeding Garbage 
Servirce Inside OBA (1l Set-Out Container Limit (2) 

88% 1.5 0% 

75% 1.0 N/A 
6% 0.5 N/A 

Note: 
1) In 2018, there were a total of 37 IC&I properties audited inside the Port Colborne Main Street OBA base collection area. 

Of this total, an average of 16 IC&I properties participated in a Regional collection service. 
2) There were no IC&I properties exceeded that their total weekly set-out limit of 7 garbage containers. 

34



Port Colborne Main Street Audit Results - MU Inside 
OBA Base 
2016 Weekly Average Containers Set Out by MU Properties Inside the Port 
Colborne Main Street DBA (Base· Collection Area) 

Collection Average % of Participating Average Average % of MU 
Service MU Properties Using Number of Properties 

Regional Col'lecti'on Service Containers Per Exceeding Garbage 
1:nsi1de DBA(1) Set-Out Container Limit (2) 

86% 2.2 0% 

74% 1.9 N/A 

14% 1.6 N/A 

In 2016, there were a total of 31 MU properties audited inside the Port Colborne Main Street OBA base collection area. Of this 
total, an average of 25 MU properties participated in a Regional collection service. 

2) There were no MU properties that exceeded their total weekly set-out limit of 7 garbage containers. 

Port Colborne Audit Results - IC&I Outside DBAs 
{Base) 
2014 Weekly Average Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties Outside the 
Port Colborne DBAs (Base Collection) 

Col'lection Averag.e %. of IC&J Average Average o/o, of IC&I 
Service Properties Using Number of Properties 

Regional Colle·cUon Containers Exceeding Garbage 
Service Outside DBA (1) Per Set-Out Container LimU (2> 

42% 2.1 8% 

31% 2.0 N/A 

8% 1.3 N/A 
Note: 
1) In 2014, there were 264 IC&I properties audited outside the Port Colborne DBAs with base collection. 
2) Although an average of 8% of IC&I properties exceeded their total weekly set-out limit of 4 garbage containers, there were 9 

individual properties that exceeded the 4 garbage container limit, at least once during the 2 day audit period. 

35



This o::me intentionally left blank. 

36



Dra.inag!e and d1itching in Ward 4 

CJ r isto:p.her Comfort io: brendaheidebrecht 

Brenda, would you please fo1ward to all Council members and anyone that should be included. 
Thanks! 

Hello, 

Thanks for your time. 

First, I would like to thank all members of the cunent Council for bringing not only our 
concerns, but the concerns of our immediate neighborhood as well as those of all Ward 4 
residents to a higher point than it seems to have been in the budget process for sometime. 

I just finished watching the February 4, 2019 Budget meeting #3 on You Tube. It seems most of 
my issues were address to Council so what I would like to address at the Council meeting on Feb 
11 may be a bit redundant as to my concerns with the water flow on Pinecrest and Cedar Bay 
Roads. However, after viewing the meeting, I am now very concerned as to taking ditching out 
of the Levy and billing as an "add on" going forward. 

First, the ditching and drainage concerns (please see attached photos): 

• pictures #1 and #2 show that ditching on Pinecrest wast recently completed but ended 
abruptly and the water has no output heading south 

• #3. As the ditch turns into the Scout Camp off Pinecrest, there is a great amount of 
vegetation growth 

• Pictures 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 show the ditch as it runs towards the east being restricted by a 
variety of vegetation, trees, debris and made made objects. 

• Pictures 9 through 13 show the ditches inside Bell Acres that are severely congested with 
vegetation. Picture #10 shows a ditch that appears to be non-existent. The bottom of the 
ditch is is about .5 meters below the top of the overgrowth. 

• Picture #12 shows the comer of Tammy and Richard. This comer is often under water 
much of the year. The ditch serves no purpose here to protect the road as the road is 
beginning to break apart at this location 

I am glad to see from the meeting and delighted when I heard Mr. Chris Lee say that ditching in 
our area was next on the schedule. I hope that is what I heard. 
However, I am very concerned to what as I understood as the ditching budget coming out of the 

tax levy in the near future and being paid for by a possible "per residence basis". My concerns 
as to this method of budgeting for ditching (not drains) are as follows: 

• the amount being withdrawn from the levy never represented the actual costs of ditching 
since the ditching was never completed to a satisfactory level for many years. We've 
been here 24 years and this has mostly been the case. 

37



o there have been issues that have been around for many years and should be resolved p1ior 
to any change in funding. One that concerns me is the bedrock in several areas that staff 
and council are aware of that impedes flow. If a remedy to this was ever budgeted for 
and that money was not used, redirected or simply fell off the sheet, why should we pay 
now. Essentially twice. I think this argument can be used for any issues that haven't been 
resolved over the past MANY years being borne out by the cunent property owners. 

• my understanding of Market Value Assessment was to make Municipal Trucing more 
equitable. Basically, those with homes and properties valued higher, pay 
more. Although this is perhaps not as equitable as it may seem on the surface, this is the 
system that we have. By going to a "flat rate" per prope1iy seems to go against this 
convention. My example would be a property assessed a higher value would pay more 
for garbage pick up, for instance. Fair? Perhaps not. But that is the system. 

Looking forward to bring my concerns to Council Febrnary 11 , 2019. 

Thanks for your time! 

Clnis and Josie Comfort 

-
#1 - Pinecrest.JPG 

#2 - Pinecrest.JPG 

#3 - Into Scout Camp facing east.JPG 

#4 - Scout Camp.JPG 

#5 - Scout Camp.JPG 

#6 - Scout Camp.JPG 

#7 - Scout Camp.JPG 

#8 - Scout Camp.JPG 

#9 - Richard Avenue.JPG 

#10 • Richard.JPG 

#11 - Richard facing west.JPG 

#12 - corner Richard and Tammy facing east.JPG 

#13 - North end of Richard facing west.JPG 

38



t9 
C

L 
-, 
ti 

C
l) 

~
 

;> 
·i:: 

u 
~
 

Q
J 

C
l) 

c 
to

 
c:: 

0 0 
...... 

C'.J 
'**' 

C'.J 

~ <
ll 

e u C
l) 

i::: 
p:; 

....... 

-
0 

=II: 

39



l9 
0

.. 
: +

-' 
(/) 

ti) 
(]) 

>
 

I.... 
·i:: 

u 
0 

(]) 

ti) 
c 

bo 
ii: 

0 
I 

0 
N

 
CJ 

:j:t: 

CJ 

~ C
l] 

~
 

(,) 
ti) 

.s 
....... 
<+--< 
0 

i:i.. 

~
 

40



#3 - Into Scout Camp facing east.JPG - Google Drive 

#3 - Into Scout Camp facing east.JPG [ u~i;J 

1of1 41



t9 
0.... 
! 0.. 
E

 
Q

J 

co 
.:::. 

u 
.... 

....,, 
0 

::i 
Q

J 

0 
bJi 

u 
0 

(/) 
0 

I 
0 

""" 
I 

0 
:j:j: 

~
 ~ u ~ ;::! 

0 u 
rn 

- ...... 
;g; 

0 

42



l9 
0... 
I ci 

0.) 
E

 
-~
 

co 
.... 

u 
p 0

.) 
+

-' 

-en 
:J

 
0 

0 
u 

0 
(/) 

CJ 

CJ 
LO

 

e:: 
=I:!: 

~ u ~
 

0 (.) 

C
l.l 

...... 
<+-< 

in
 

=1t 
0 43



~
 

C
l.. 

--, 
d. 

v 
E

 
;> 

co 
·i:: 

u 
0 

..... 
v 

:::J 
bn 

0 
0 

u 
0 

(/) 
0 I 

--0 
0 

'**= 
e:: f u ~
 

0 u 
C

l) 
..-

\0
 

=tt: 

<.+..; 
0 

...... 

44



t9 
a.. 
J ci. 

Q
.) 

E
 

;::.. 
co 

·i:: 
u 

~
 

...... 
Q

.) 
:::J 

bo 
0 

0 
u 

0 
(/) 

0 0 
,...... 
:j:t: 

e: ci. 
~ u ~
 

0 (.) 

U
J 

....... 
...... 

c
-

0 
=i:t: 

....... 45



l') 
a.. 
~
 

Q
_

 

Q
.) 

E
 

>
 

ro 
-
~
 

u 
0 

+
"' 

Q
.) 

:J 
bn 

0 
0 

u 
0 

(/) 
0 

I 

0 
CXl 

~
 

=!:I: 

~ u ; 0 u 
U

) 
...... 
'+-< 

0
0

 
0 

=Ii: 

46



#9 - Richard Avenue.JPG - Google Drive 

#9 - Richard Avenue.JPG [ Sign in I 

1 of 1 47



.!:: c O
l 

iii 

<D 
0.. 
., -0 'co 
..c 
.~ 
0:: 

0 ; 

...... 0 

48



#11 - Richard facing west.JPG - Google Drive 

#11 - Richard facing west.JPG 
[- -~-;;n~n] 

1 of1 49



# 12 - corner Richard and Tammy facing east.JPG - Google Drive 

#12 - corner Richard and Tammy facing east.JPG [ Sign in I 

-----------------

1 of l 
50



0 >
 

·c: 
~
 

0 
bo 
0 0 
0 0 ~ V

l 
0 ~
 

O
ll 

.s (.) 

<S 
-0

 
a 

..c:: (.) 

~
 

..... 0 
-0

 
I:: 
0 

~
 0 

z 
..... 0 

("
) 

-=It 

51



Tn1s pc:~e intentionally left blank. 

52



Angie Desmarais - Motion - Affordable Housing Strategy 1/20/2019 

Whereas access to adequate housing is a fundamental human right (paragraph 25(1) of 
the United Nations Universal Declaration of Human Rights, and Ontario Human Rights 
Commission - Human Rights Perspective on Housing Supply, January 2019); and 

Whereas Port Colborne is fast approaching a housing crisis with alarming occupancy 
rates, soaring housing costs and stagnating incomes (Ontario Association of Food 
Banks, Quarterly Report, September 2018, Port Colborne Primary Rental Market 
Statistics, 2016, Key Housing Indicators for Port Colborne, July 5, 2017 and Where Will 
We Live - Ontario's Rental Housing Crisis, May 2018); and 

Whereas the Senior Citizens Advisory Committee and the Social Determinants of 
Health Committee, both being committees of this council have each placed housing as 
a priority to their mandate; and 

Whereas designing and implementing a poverty reduction strategy has been included in 
the Port Colborne Strategic Plan (CAO Report No.:2015-47); and 

Whereas adequate and affordable housing has been directly linked to poverty reduction 
(Wellesley Institute, Poverty Is a Health Issue: It's time to address housing and 
homelessness, Oct 10, 2013) 

Therefore be it resolved that The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne does 
acknowledge that housing is a human right and that municipal government has a role to 

play in the gradual realization of this right for all residents of Port Col borne; and 

That staff be directed to engage with stakeholders to create a coordinated municipal 
affordable housing strategy for the city of Port Col borne with the goal to establish a 
definition for the term "affordable housing" and to create affordable housing options 
across the housing continuum, with a report due back to this council to include a high
level view of timelines and targets on or before May 27, 2019. 

53



Tnis page intentionally left blank. 

54



The proposed Housing Strategy for Port Colborne could/should : 

• Key stakeholders could include: Developers, planners, community 

services, financers, provincial/federal government officials, CMHC, 

social/health services, economic development, 

• Explore: Municipal responsibilities/areas of influence, bylaws, 

incentives, secondary packages, communication, education, etc. 

• Must have a vision, goals and targets - How do we construct our 

community to be healthy, vibrant and livable for all residents? 

• Must be evidence-based - identify the problems, who is impacted, 

what solutions are needed - in the Port Colborne context 

• Consider/Utilize ideas from the City of St Catharines housing report 

but recognize the unique context of Port Colborne 

• Link to Regional Plans 

o 10 Year Housing and Homelessness Action Plan (HHAP) 

o New Regional Official Plan {2021-2041) - provincial growth 

plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe 

o New Regional Affordable Housing Strategy 

55



CITY OF PORT COLBORNE POLICIES WITH RESPECT TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

OFFICIAL PLAN 

2.4.2.2 Affordable Housing 

a) The City will work with other levels of government, the private sector, community 
and non-profit groups to ensure that sufficient affordable rental and ownership 
housing is provided. 

b) Studies of the need for affordable ownership and rental housing may be conducted 
from time-to-time. 

c) A variety of planning tools will be used to assist in the development of affordable 
housing such as supporting an "Affordable Housing as a Community Facility" by
law (to exercise· financial assistance powers under Section 110 of the Municipal 
Act relating to municipal capital facilities), fast-tracking affordable housing 
development, reducing development charges and where required, identifying a 
specific share of new housing which must be affordable. 

d) The City will only consider the demolition or the conversion of rental 
accommodation to condominium ownership where the proposal will not adversely 
affect the supply of affordable rental housing. A vacancy rate of 3% is desirable. 
The City will not permit the demolition or conversion of rental housing to 
condominium ownership in situations where the vacancy rate is less than 3 percent 
and the ownership housing to be created is not considered to be affordable. 

e) Opportunities shall be made available for the provision of affordable housing within 
new intensified or infill developments 

ZONING BY-LAW 

(iv) ACCESSORY APARTMENTS (By-law 4915/140/06) 

Notwithstanding any other provisions this bylaw, any single detached 
dwelling permitted in any zone may be internally converted or by way of an 
addition to the existing dwelling to provide an accessory apartment, subject 
to the zone requirements and the following regulations: 

(a) Only one accessory apartment is permitted per lot. 

(b) Where the parcel proposed for an accessory 
apartment is not serviced by a municipal sewer 
system and/or municipal water system, the minimum 
lot size of the parcel shall be 0.4 hectares. 

(c) The maximum floor area for the accessory 
apartment shall not exceed 40% of the gross floor area of the 
dwelling. 

56



(d) One additional on site parking space shall be provided for the 
accessory apartment, and parking spaces may be stacked. 

(e) The external appearance and character of the single detached 
dwelling, landscaped area, and outdoor amenity areas is to be 
preserved. 

(f) Additions shall be architecturally similar to the existing dwelling and 
use similar exterior building materials wherever possible, and, 

(i) The entrance to the accessory apartment shall be located 
only in the interior side or rear yard; 

(ii) No exterior stairway to the second floor of the dwelling or 
accessory apartment shall be permitted in the front yard or 
exterior side yard. 

(g) The accessory apartment shall be clearly attached to and form part 
of the main dwelling unit. For the purposes of this subsection, 
"attached" shall mean that a roof and wall of the accessory apartment 
is shared in common with the main dwelling unit. 

(h) Any accessory apartment located in the basement of a single 
detached dwelling is subject to the following additional requirements: 

DRAFT ZONING BY-LAW 

i. Window openings to each bedroom and living room and 
the room heights of the accessory apartment must meet 
the minimum requirements of the Ontario Building Code; 
or, 

ii. A secondary means of ingress/egress must be provided to 
the accessory apartment unit. 

2.9 Accessory Uses to a Dwelling 
2.9.1 Accessory Dwelling Unit 

a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law, any single detached 
dwelling permitted in any zone may be internally converted or by way of 
an addition to the existing dwelling or creation of a standalone structure or 
building , provide an accessory dwelling unit, subject to the specific zone 
requirements and the following: 

i) Only one accessory dwelling unit is permitted per lot. 

ii) Where the parcel proposed for an accessory dwell ing unit is not 
serviced by municipal sewer and/or municipal water services, the 

57



2.9.1. 1 

a) 

2.9.1.2 

a) 

minimum lot size shall be 0.4 hectares and all relevant 
requirements of the Region of Niagara are complied with . 

iii) The maximum floor area for the accessory dwelling unit shall not 
exceed 40% of the gross floor area of the dwelling. 

iv) One additional on-site parking space shall be provided for the 
accessory dwelling unit, and parking spaces may be stacked. 

v) All relevant requirements of the Ontario Building Code and Ontario 
Fire Code are complied with. 

Dwelling Unit, Interior Accessory 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law, one interior accessory 
dwelling unit is permitted in any detached dwelling, semi-detached 
dwelling unit or townhouse dwelling unit provided it complies with Section 
2.9.1 (i)to(v)and: 

i) The interior accessory dwelling unit is entirely within the exterior 
walls of the principal dwelling unit. 

ii) The external appearance and character of the single detached 
dwelling, landscaped area and outdoor amenity areas are to be 
preserved. 

iii) Additions shall be architecturally similar to the existing dwelling unit 
and use similar exterior building materials. 

iv) The entrance to the accessory dwelling unit shall be located only in 
the interior side or rear yard and no exterior stairway to the second 
floor of the dwelling or accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted in 
the front or corner side yard . 

Dwelling Unit, Detached Accessory 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law, one detached 
accessory dwelling unit is permitted in any residentia l zone provided it 
complies with Section 2.9.1 (i) to (v) and shall not: 

i) Be located in a required front yard or corner side yard . 

ii) Be located within any sight triangle. 

iii) Exceed a building height of 4.6 metres. 

iv) Be located less than 1 metres from an interior side or rear lot line. 

v) Be located closer than 1.5 metres to a main building. 

58



2.9 Accessory Uses to a Dwelling 

2.9.1 Accessory Dwelling Unit 

2.9.1. 1 

a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law, any single detached 
dwelling permitted in any zone may be internally converted or by way of 
an addition to the existing dwelling or creation of a standalone structure or 
building, provide an accessory dwelling unit, subject to the specific zone 
requirements and the following: 

a) 

i) Only one accessory dwelling unit is permitted per lot. 

ii) Where the parcel proposed for an accessory dwelling unit is not 
serviced by municipal sewer and/or municipal water services, the 
minimum lot size shall be 0.4 hectares and all relevant 
requirements of the Region of Niagara are complied with. 

iii) The maximum floor area for the accessory dwelling unit shall not 
exceed 40% of the gross floor area of the dwelling. 

iv) One additional on-site parking space shall be provided for the 
accessory dwelling unit, and parking spaces may be stacked. 

v) All relevant requirements of the Ontario Bui lding Code and Ontario 
Fire Code are complied with. 

Dwelling Unit, Interior Accessory 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law, one interior accessory 
dwelling unit is permitted in any detached dwelling, semi-detached 
dwelling unit or townhouse dwelling unit provided it complies with Section 
2.9.1 (i) to (v) and: 

i) The interior accessory dwelling unit is entirely within the exterior 
walls of the principal dwelling unit. 

ii) The external appearance and character of the single detached 
dwelling, landscaped area and outdoor amenity areas are to be 
preserved. 

iii) Additions shall be architecturally similar to the existing dwelling unit 
and use similar exterior building materials. 

iv) The entrance to the accessory dwelling unit shall be located only in 
the interior side or rear yard and no exterior stairway to the second 
floor of the dwelling or accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted in 
the front or corner side yard. 

59



2.9.1.2 

a) 

Dwelling Unit, Detached Accessory 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this By-law, one detached 
accessory dwelling unit is permitted in any residential zone provided it 
complies with Section 2.9.1 (i) to (v) and shall not: 

i) Be located in a required front yard or corner side yard. 

ii) Be located within any sight triangle. 

iii) Exceed a building height of 4.6 metres. 

iv) Be located less than 1 metres from an interior side or rear lot line. 

v) Be located closer than 1.5 metres to a main building. 

60



Primary Rental Market Statistics - Port Colborne (CY) 1 of 1 

Number of Private Apartment Units 

Oct-14 Apr-15 Oct-15 Ocl-16 

Bachelor 8 8 8 9 ...- !((J1n~""' 1 Bedroom 173 173 172 169 

2 Bedroom 390 390 395 393 

3 Bedroom+ 60 60 58 59 

Total 631 631 633 630 

Private Apartment Vacancy Rates(%) Private Apartment Average Rents($) 

Oct-14 Apr-15 Oct-15 Oct-16 Oct-1 4 Apr-15 Oct-1 5 Oct-16 

Bachelor .. Bachelor -· . ... - ·- -
1 Bedroom 4.4 c 0.5 b 1 Bedroom 694 a 666 b 704 b 728 b -
2 Bedroom 1.6 c 3.0 c 1.8 c 2.7 c 2 Bedroom 832 b an c 857 b 899 b 

3 Bedroom+ 0.0 d 3 Bedroom+ 976 b 974 c -
Total 2.5 c 2.6 c 1.6 c 2.5 c Total 802 a 820 c 818 a 858 b 

Private Apartment Availability Rates(%) Private Apartment Estimate of Percentage Change (%) of 
Average Rent 

Oct-14 Apr-15 Oct-15 Oct-16 

Bachelor 

1 Bedroom 7.5 c 1.3 d 

2 Bedroom 2.3 c 4.0 d 3.1 d 2 .7 c 

3 Bedroom+ 0.0 d 

Total 4.4 c 3.5 d 2.6 b 2.5 c 

Source: CMHC Rental Market Survey 

Notes: 
The following letter codes are used to indicate the reliability of the estimates: 
a • Excellent, b· Very good, c • Good, d • Fair (Use with Caution) 
•• Data suppressed to protect confidentiality or data not statistically reliable. 
- No units exist in the universe for this category 
n/a: Not applicable 

Oct-14 Apr-15 Oct-15 

Bachelor .. ~ -- -.. .. -
1 Bedroom ++ ++ 2.6 

2 Bedroom 1.4 d 2.3 

3 Bedroom+ ++ ++ ++ ............. .. 

Total 1.4 d 2.2 

++ - Change in rent is not statistically significant. This means that the change in rent is not statistically different than zero (0). 

Oct-16 

c 

c 

++ 
b 1.5 d 

The Percentage Change of Average Rent is a measure of the market movement, and is based on those structures that were common to the survey sample for 
both years. 
The information contained in this document is a printable version of information originally contained on CMHC website application https://www03.cmhc
schl.gc.ca/hmiportaV. CMHC makes considerable effort to ensure that the information and analysis on this application is reliable, but cannot guarantee that it is 
accurate or complete. The content of the application is general in nature and is not intended as a substitute for professional advice when making significant 
financial decisions. You understand and agree that by using this document and the information it contains, you will be bound by the terms of use of the CMHC 
website (http://cmhc.ca/enlimno/imno_003.cfm), and in particular, you agree that you may not hold CMHC liable for any consequences that arise if you choose to 
rely on this information and analysis to make a financial decision. 

Canada ©2014 CMHC-SCHL 

61



Key Housing Indicators In Port Colbome Frequ~ncy of Data Collection II Source 

#of residents experiencing homelessness quarterly? Port Cares+ Niagara Region 

#of unique residents who used shelter annually Port Cares+ Niagara Region 

# of times each person entered shelter per year annually Port Cares+ Niagara Region 

Average length of stay per household per shelter admission annually Port Cares+ Niagara Region 

# of days in shelter per person per year annually Port Cares+ Niagara Region 

#of residents experiencing homelessness who didn't use shelter annually Port Cares, Bridges CHC 

Top barriers that Jed to not using shelter annually qualitative responses Port Cares, Bridges CHC 

What did they do if they did not go to a shelter? annually qualitative responses Port Cares, Bridges CHC 

# of residents w ho accessed housing/homelessness outreach interventions . annually Niagara Region/Salvation Army/Bridges CHC (to start) 

#of outreach interventions per person annually Niagara Region/Salvation Army/Bridges CHC (to start) 

#of residents experiencing homelessness w ho became housed annually Niagara Region 

#of tenancies stabilized annually Port Cares 

#of evictions prevented annually Port Cares 

#of households using the utility bank annually Port Cares 

# of users of food ban ks monthly/quarterly Port Cares 

OW caseloads annually Niagara Region (Marc Todd) 

ODSP caseloads annually Niagara Region (Marc Todd) 

Total # of NRH affordable housing units in Port Colborne annually 88 NRH + 139 NP/co-op Niagara Regional Housing 

#of NRH affordable bachelor housing units in Port Co/borne annually 0 Niagara Regional Housing 

#of NRH affordable 1 bdrm housing units in Port Co/borne annually 82 NRH +33 NP/,co-op Niagara Regional Housing 

#of NRH affordable 2 bdrm housing units in Port Co/borne annually 4 NRH + 49 NP/co-op Niagara Regional Housing 

#of NRH affordable 3 bdrm housing units in Port Co/borne annually 2. NRH + 56' NP/co-op Niagara Regional Housing 

#of NRH affordable 4 bdrm housing units in Port Co/borne annually 0 NRH + 1 NP/co-op Niagara Regional Housing 
-

Total # of households on NRH Affordable Housing wait list annually 560 Niagara Regional Housing 

#of single person households on NRH Affordable Housing wait list annually 243 Niagara Regional Housing 

#of family households on NRH Affordable Housing wait list annually 112 Niagara Regional Housing 

#of senior households on NRH Affordable Housing wait list annually 205 Niagara Regional Housing 

Total # of households housed from NRH Affordable Housing w ait list annually 2.3 Niagara Regional Housing 

#of single person households housed from NRH Affordable Housing wait list annually N/,A Niagara Regional Housing 
- -

#of family households on NRH Affordable Housing wait list annually N/A Niagara Regional Housing 

It of senior households on NRH Affordable Housing wait list annually N/A Niagara Regional Housing 

Total average wait time to access a NRH affordable housing unit in Port Colborne annually 5.6 yrs Niagara Regional Housing 

Average wait time to access a NRH affordable bachelor housing unit in Port Co/borne annually N/A Niagara Regional Housing 

Average wait time to occess a NRH affordable 1 bdrm housing unit in Port Co/borne annually 10.25 yrs Niagara Regional Housing 

62



Average wait time to access a NRH affordable 2 bdrm housing unit in Port Co/borne annually 3 yrs Niagara Regional Housing 

Average wait time to access a NRH affordable 3 bdrm housing unit in Port Co/borne annually 2.5 yrs Niagara Regional Housing 

# of rent supplements provided to households annually 38 (current) Niagara Regional Housing 

#of individuals housed through Housing First annually Port Cares 

Average length of time individuals received Housing First annually Port Cares 

#of new NRH affordable housing units developed (by type) annually 0 Niagara Regional Housing 

Total # of primary (Private Row (Townhouse) and Apartment) private market rental units annually 638 CIVIHC 

II of bachelor primary private market rental units annually 9 CMHC 

II of 1 bdrm primary private market rental units annually 169 CMHC 

#of 2 bdrm primary private market rental units annually 397 CMHC 

II of 3 bdrm primary private market rental units annually 63 CMHC 
~ 

#of secondary privat e market rental units (i.e. granny suites) annually unsure - City of Port Colborne (permits?) 

#of new affordable private market rent al units (Non IAH) annually s CMHC 

#of new affordable units built w/ assistance from NRH programs (ie secondary suites) annually 1 secondary suite Niagara Regional Housing 

Private primary market (Private Row {Townhouse) and Apartment Vacancy Rates - All units annually 2.5% CMHC 

Private primary market (Private Row (Townhouse) and Apartment Vacancy Rates - by Bedroom annually • • (suppressed) CM HC 

Private primary market (Private Row (Townhouse) and Apartment Vacancy Rates - by Bedroom annually • • (suppressed) CMHC 

Privat e primary market (Private Row (Townhouse) and Apartment Vacancy Rates - by Bedroom annually 2.7% CM HC 

Private primary market (Private Row (Townhouse) and Apartment Vacancy Rates - by Bedroom annually 0% CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - lowest quartile -all types .. (suppressed) CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - 2nd lowest quartile - all types • • (suppressed) CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - lowest quartile - bachelor annually • • (suppressed) CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - 2nd lowest quartile - bachelor -- CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - lowest quartile - 1 bdrm annually 0% CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rotes - 2nd lowest quartile - 1 bdrm 0% CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - lowest quartile - 2 bdrm annually •• (suppressed) CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - 2nd lowest quartile - 2 bdrm 0% CMHC 

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - lowest quartile - 3 bdrm annually •• (suppressed) CMHC 
-

Private primary market rental vacancy rates - 2nd lowest quartile - 3 bdrm •• (suppressed) CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - lowest quartile - bachelor annually • • (suppressed) CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rat es - second lowest quartile - bachelor annually •• (suppressPd) CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - second highest quartile - bachelor annually • • (suppressed) CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - highest quartile - bachelor annually • • (suppresspd) CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - lowest quartile - 1 bdrm annually <$575 CMHC 

63



Average private primary market rental rates - second lowest quartile - 1 bdrm annually $575-$800 CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - second highest quartile - 1 bdrm annually $801-878 CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - highest quartile - 1 bdrm annually >$878 CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - lowest quartile - 2 bdrm annually <$690 CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - second lowest quartile - 2 bdrm annually $.690-$920 CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - second highest quartile - 2 bdrm annually $921-$973 CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - highest quartile - 2 bdrm annually >$973 CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - lowest quartile - 3 bdrm annually "* (suppressed) CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - second lowest quartile - 3 bdrm annually • • (suppressed) CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates- second highest quartile - 3 bdrm annually .. , (suppressed) CMHC 

Average private primary market rental rates - highest quartile - 3 bdrm annually •• (suppressed) CMHC 

Changes in average private primary market rent - all (Oct to Oct ove r previous year) annually 4.9% 
--

CMHC 

Changes in average private primary market rent - bachelor annually .. (suppressed) CMHC 

Changes in average private primary market rent - 1 bdrm annually 3.4% CMHC 

Changes in average private primary market rent - 2 bdrm annually 4.9% CMHC 

Changes in average private primary market rent - 3 bdrm annually • • (suppressed) CMHC 

Changes in housing ownership prices (resale and new) annually 20% Niagara Association of Realtor's 

#of motel/hotel units avai lable for rent 
-- - - - ·- -- -· -

annually 
-

Bridges CHC 

Occupancy rate of motel/hotel units available for rent annually Bridges CHC 

#of individuals living in motel/hotel units annually Bridges CHC 

ng in a motel/hate/ room because .. , Would you prefer to be living somewhere else? If so, what? annually qualitative responses Bridges CHC/Port Cares 

#of boarding room u nits annually Bridges CHC 

Occupancy rate of boarding rooms annually Bridges CHC 

#of individuals living in boarding rooms annually Bridges CHC 

iving in a boarding room because ... Would you prefer to be living somewhere else? If so, what? annually qualitative responses Bridges CHC/Port Cares 

#of group homes/units per home annually Bridges CHC 
-

Occupancy rate of boarding rooms annually Bridges CHC 

#of individual living in group homes annually Bridges CHC 

Living in a group home becouse ... Would you prefer to be living somewhere else? If so, what? annually qua litative responses Bridges CHC/Port Ca res 

Ot her Indicators? 

#of hOJJSeholds t hat received NEEF quarterly/semi-<1nnually 95 Niagara Region , . 

#of households accessing Supported Transitional Housing or Housing First quarterly/semi-annually 30 Niagara Region 

#of households accessing prevention services (including trusteeship) quarterly/semi-annually 216 - Niagara Region 

It of households issued Housing Stability Plan benefits quarterly/semi-annually 172 ' Niagara Region 

64



#of nouseholds at risk of homelessness that received supports and services that contributed to -

housing loss prevention, retention, and re-housing quarterly/semi-annually Niagara Region 

# of households at risk of homelessness that are stabilized quarterly/semi-annually Niagara Region 

Population Lagging (every 4 years) 18306 Census Data 2016 
- - ~- --- -- - -

Total private dwellings .. Lagging (every 4 years) 982S Census Data 2016 

Private dwellings occupied by usual residents Lagging (every 4 years) 8018 Census Data 2016 

Population aged 0-14 Lagging (every 4 years) 24SS Census Data 2016 

Population aged lS-64 Lagging (every 4 years} 1134S Census Data 2016 
··-

Population aged 65+ Lagging (every 4 years) 4S10 Census Data 2016 
- - - - -

Average age Lagging (every 4 years) 46.S Census Data 2016 

Occupied Private Dwellings by Structural Type Lagging (every 4 years} 801S Census Data 2016 

Single-detached house Lagging (every 4 years) 5850 Census Data 2016 

Apartment in a building that has five or more st oreys Lagging (every 4 years) 185 Census Data 2016 

Movable Lagging (every 4 years) SS Census Data 2016 
- -

Other attached dwelling (as below) Lagging (every 4 years) 1925 Census Data 2016 
- - - - - . 

Semi-detachedhouse Lagging (every 4 years) lSS Census Data 2016 

Row house Lagging (every 4 years) 160 Census Data 2016 
.. .. 

Apartmentorflatinaduplex Lagging (every 4 years) sos Census Data 2016 
-· - ·- - .. -- -- . -

Apartm entinabuildingthathasfewerthanfivestoreys lagging (every 4 years) 1020 Census Data 2016 
- - - - -

Othersingle-attachedhouse Lagging (every 4 years) 85 Census Data 2016 
- . . ... 

Private Households by Household Size Lagging (every 4 years) 8020 Census Data 2016 
--

1 person Lagging (every 4 years) 2490 Census Data 2016 
- -

2 persons Lagging (every 4 years) 3100 Census Data 2016 
-~··--;- -·. ., - - -- - - -- -

3 persons Lagging (every 4 years) 1175 Census Data 2016 
- - - -

4 persons Lagging (every 4 years) 820 Census Data 2016 
- -

5 or more persons Lagging (every 4 years) 430 Census Data 2016 
-

Average ho usehold size Lagging (every 4 years) 2.2 Census Data 2016 
-·· 

Families, households and marital st;itus Lagging (every 4 years) TBD Censys [:ma 2Q!§ 

Language Lagg111g (!lvery 4 years) TBD l,:~n~ys DiJ~a 2016 
--

Income Lagging (every 4 yeaf$) TBP Census .Qatfl 201§ 

Immigration and ,ethnocultural c:l iversity Lagging (every A years) T?P Census Da~~ 2016 

Housing Lagging (every 4 year~) TBD CenSJ,!S Da~~ 2016 

Aboriginal peoples Lagging (every 4 years) TBD Ci:nsus Data 2016 

Education Lagging (every 4 years) TSO Census Data 2016 

65



LaQour Lagging (e11e 1 ~ 4 y~ars) TBD ~erisys Data 20~6 

Journev to ~ork L~ggifig te.vgry 4 ygars) TE\D Census Qata 2Qlfj 

Language of work Lagging (every 4 years) TBD Census l:)~ta 2016 

Mobility and m igration Lagging (every 4 years) TBD <;:ensus Data 2016 

66



67



68



A 

48°/o of Ontario renters make 
less than $40,000 a year. 

480/o of all renters in Ontario live 
in the Toronto metropolitan region. 

~ Over 50°/o of Ontario households 
- aged 25 to 34 rent their home. 

Nearly half of Ontario renters 
pay unaffordable rental 
housing costs. 

In Toronto a household must 
earn $24 an hour for their 
rents to be affordable. 

69



KEY ISSUES 
The percentage of renters is increasing in Ontario and across Canada. Renters in O n tario now constitute over 30% of the total 
population. In the C ity of Toronto, almost half of all households rent their home. This increase has been largely dr iven by a growing 
proportion of renters within the younger generations. Over half of Ontario households between the ages 25 to 34 are renters. Th is 
trend may be due to the increasing cost of homeownership, the lack of well-paid and secure jobs and the increasing numbers of 
single-person households. Low- and moderate-income households are also much m ore likely to rent their homes. 71 % of households 
with income below $20 ,000 are renters, co1npared to only 10% of households with income over $100,000. 

A significant percentage of renters across Ontario and in Toronto are facing unaffordable housing costs that limit their ability to 
spend money on other life necessities. Too many people are choosing to forgo a healthy diet or the medication they need just to 
keep a roof over their head. Many facing rising rents are being displaced from their communities and many more are commuting 
longer hours between home and work. T he road to homelessness for renters living on lower incomes is a stark reality if they lose 
their job or face a health challen ge. 

Renters are facing a combination of rising housing costs, stagnating incomes, and limited access to subsidized housing. Renters tend 
to have much lower incomes compared to hom eowners. As rental housing costs continue to rise, all levels of governmen t must 
focus on alleviating the burden of unaffordable housing, especially for low-income renters. Solving the affordable rental housing cri
sis in our province requires long-term commitment to t argeted housing policies and investments that focus on the needs of low- to 
moderate-income renter households. 

Rents have risen across O ntario over the past 20 years, particularly since 2011. We know for a fact that our affordable rental housing 
crisis will not be solved by building more condominiums or luxury purpose-built rentals. We need a combination of targeted 
policies and investmen ts including funding for social housing, government support for non-profit housing, and strong 
protections in p lace for tenants. Preserving the status-quo is no longer an option for the hundreds of thousands of renters 
struggling every day to keep a roof over their head . 

.. According to the Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC), housing is considered affordable if shelter costs account for less than 30% of before-tax household income. 
*This report will refer to renter households as renters for short. 1 

70



V acan.cv rates irL 20 17 
i 

Barde 

Gre-ntct· Sudb"luy 

Oudph 

Hrm1llmn 

King, ton, 

:Kitchener " Camb1-idge z \\~atcrfoo 

:Uuu.luu 

Onttu·lo 

O ::.h n\\'n 

Ott"-l"i-a 

Peterborough 

Sat·n ia 

Sault St~. ~fo.ri~ 

5t . C o.rhadne,s .. Niagara 

Thuf.'l.dff nay 

Toronto 

\'(finds or 
Based on CMHC Housing Market lnfonnation Portal. 

l Bcdt"o om (CJ;f.?) 2 Bed-room (qc) 

3,3 

A low vacan cy rate means: 

* Renters looking for 
affordable rental homes 
have limited choices. 

* Rents continue to rise 
due to limited supply. 

2 

71



D'f.i1;•~nfr1.g completion~. CJ1ntluio 

.(l ·n 
~ 
iJ 

i 
ti 
~~ 

tr1.1 1 .~ 

$3f~ 

J.i~K 

-+ :i~: 

+.:1K 

}5]{ 

h1}: 

h}:. 

:er..: 
/' 

.I t·, .// 
t • ...__,...... ' I ,~}~ ~·~· ... /V 

.., ./ 
1.; ;: ·, --- --- \ .r ~ 

I _,r· 
\ .... ' ,--" 

:, .. _.. .. .,,. --------"· ~ ""'--......-. 
i.\K 

- - - ~ - ~ ... - ~ -. . .. . . . . .. , .. 
~.!J; 

lii ~ .s ... ~ 
~ ~ $' ~ ".;! ~ ~ f!~ 

.,., 
~ ~ ..;, ·.i!;i ..,, 

":~ ·~ r , ..... ' . ...... ~ .... ~ - ' "" ZS ;•., - '. ·~ -"' 
..,, 

l'~r 

Based on CMHC Housing Market Information Portal. 

~wr<mnri ,.,llw 
lirimt"n·;,~ l"r 

R~·.tul 

(fJM•~f\ 

Rentals constituted less than 9% of all 
new units built since 1990. 

l 
~ 

.f 

/\ I 
\ /' ' ' 

""\ 1 •' \/_J 
I .. 

-· ;.-: .., I - ' J . , 
· ~ . " 

!::; ~: ..... ; · . '·. ,., t. ... 
~ r':..; ,,.. - ,_ ~ -..._ 
- J I:._"] 

,,_, -:-·..., - ·~ '-'- -"" 

, , 
~ ..... 

1i 
1 
:. 
~1 __ 

'. . . ..... . .. ,... 
=;:_ 

3 

72



In Toron to, the average rent for a l;bedroom condo in 2017 was $1,803 while the 
average rent for a l ;bedroom purpose;built rental was $ 1,194 . 

.. : ·. . Purpose~hilil(J;e~~t~1i. ~f~--·;,~,I{~)(~~{i~b~:9,£f~tf~~d~h1~r:~~;iaj]~;Q'~;.ofg~~¢-~.~;a~g;it-'.e;::f~'o-
I : • . . ' • • • •; . . " 1 . ~ • • '•' • ·' f -,>;('•" . l' · 1·~- ' ,-.. - 1~· ;,~~ /'• ... • ' ~ < •' 

• .. ,: , • J .... ·' - < '• •• ·.,. ·n~·:,,;>'· I '•" .• -~..t •• r;:c.·-1;.._ .... ~~R""~-lliY..;&i..:.!'S--..>'"~·ll-~.~b'<!>-., - · ···.J.:::• .~· ,• 

·:... ~. ': , ~ . : : .;.·~ .. ~; · · _.-;_ ~~:'V:".~i.~~=- ·-:.~-- r~rep acement~ .or-'1"'\.lrnose .. 11111 1 f;irf~h t ii 1~ ' ~:.~-~:.:.;··~v-:;.··¢-rr 
~- ··,. "• ·• ... · -. :.--.,-•f: .• ,.~(:""·~"'11#•1'-V!•/~-r;;;;.o.t.._ .. .-..,; ... ...,.,..._._'.l_:,!1_¥ 1:-::: ,1 .1:"~~ ~~~ __ 

C"n'l.pi(!oti<H;.s of f'Utpoo;r-bHilt ft." n rAl \ H1!rs b".I Ont~rio ;i'•:t flt"f<'l.""l"l.l'l:\ !?l' -0>f .,u n~"\;;.• h~~~sk1 . .g i:ot.1mrfl"t!otu 

.f 
.-; 
:I 
] 
1 
~ ., 
t: 
;:;; 
:;; 
~ 

~ 
.± 
~ 
'-I , 
t 

::J 
~ 

"t;l 

~ 
.a 
•.; 
0 

~ 
l';l 

~ ... 
c.< 

.•.:i 

~ii 

, . 
.'·.-

~ii 

~ 1'.' 

t .• . 
~ . .... 

'1 

, . 
' 

1 

' 

~ •1- '"'F I - "I' ·p• '"l'"" . I t= I I l f 1----i 
.... ~ .. ,... =- ... ~ - t""""' II- J J ' .. , . .. · ~ . . .. ... ,., 
"8 $: ~ ~ i ~: ~ ~ ~= ~~ ~: ;;..~ ~: 
~ - - I ' I ~ .... II •::Jo ,.· l'f\ ~ ('..J - • I 

·~ .. :;.. ;..: ~ 
... ... .. ... .. ~c 

1,s.11c 

Based on CMHC Housing Market Infonnation Portal 

..,. -,-,. . - .. .. '. ·;: ~ " .. 
~ 

<!; . , ... - I I ... .. .. , . -
~ ~ -,_ . . 

__,. . 
'• 

.,,,. 
· ~ ,_ 
~ ,,. " ' -"'4 

73



The majority of Ontario urban centres have experienced larger increases in housing costs 
in the period between 2011 and 2016 than in the previous five years 

;t\;;,.~rft'll~ ~ltoe?Etet· -C:·Os.t~ for ~c:me-r houtieh~l&! 

~h' 

L '· .•• -- ~ 

1.~ ..... -

!1\J( 

'}(( 

~ ~·~ 
P,l ., ... 
~ ;.;~ 
~ 
~ 
~ ~x· 
(; .... 
~ 

':'-' ... \."'· 

h_'\,~ 

ti'1: 

h-'-

o~.._, 

' ... 

!.-: . .. ._,, ... ~ .•. • • -.. -;; 
·:.. ... c:..,, ~"..1.}1'.· .. ,. ~ 

:=-~u ~ ~• ~ 
... r_,J "'-:: t~t,.e.;~_ ... ~ .. \ · ~ ~l"lttlV:H 

~:l· ,~ .. '.""71i' ... 

1.:.!.;7',: .,.;-;-: 
\'i1fi 1 ..... :..;J 

'-i:•:!trh ~:if;J~r.::,..~ -~h""C."t. u • .• ,. 

~~~~~~~~[~~ti~8~~a~~~~frF~~~~~~~~~PE~~~~ ~ ~~~~~n~R~~~ ~~ ~ ~ :I -~: ;4 ~· ;: ~ :; 
I • Ill' I -• -J; ~ ' • • • • • J 

Based on 2016 Census data. 

""'""···:•"' 

t; :" 17". ::! .:. 
~ :i r~ ~ ;.: ' : 

5 

74



Ren ter hou~~hofd, in ~uhsidi::: e.r:l housing ('l;.~) 

]f) f) 

')(;• 

l;l;!) 

70 

& 
Q.Q 

!:! 
-c: 
~ 
"!"-

ti. 
5.Ci 

4Ci 

3C• 

20 

ll) 

D 

.A. ti t'Mi,.t'-"' hn• 1· .... S..;;(.-l . 11'1r -.n.,,.. 'r; :c.~"'~"l ~.r.i h·,.·m; ... ,.. ll!" :1.-:r ~ :i.:·, ... ".fli:' 
j,~l:J.~!jl} 

"~ante ~ housei1:Jld~ r.m living in. 5utis,6~::c-c hoi.::.mg 
• ~1..!i11,.•.!r hui.ss1_..ttrt1l;.l";;i- l1 •.•m•J m '!itJIJ.~ 1 cJ1~._,.;;j hiJ1tr;m1~ 

_ _ of ff@W~~~ in 011.tario 
live· in the private re11tal 
market ~1nrn_imlllfe a11y. 

The majority of low .. income renters 
pay rent to private landlords: 

* 67o/o of ren ters with income below 
$20,000 

* 81 % of renters with income between 
$20,000 to $40,000 

"Subsidized housing" includes rent-geared-to-income, social housing, pubUc housing, goven1ment-assisted housing, non-profit housing, rent supplements and housing allowances. 6 
Based on 2016 Census data. 

75



Pt>-ree·nragf' i"l·f ()nt;wto fi':n.ti:'-r- ~"Lnuse-h1nld!!i ~pe,111dDn~ .'S·O~{~ <"''.If t"tl!'.'H"f" :i:·•l irnx·•n-H" 'l'Jt1 ;;;hdr-n· C'.()RT~ 
hy ~ti! ~".IU~l ·h"t r:-CHt~ ~ 

1;11:..5 

~ • .!It 
"··"'· 

fr;.; 

~ 
:E: 

.e_.. ... 
t;f ,.u.t 

:.., 
-Q-

~'?I 
.;.'.': ~ 

Q' c: 
~ 
.f. 
~ -K' 
-tll 

~ I ~'I 
fl 
-!J· 
v ... 
:.•) - , .. :-: 

~c 

,, ... ~ 

'~ 

i..:~-.d::~ ~3~,C>J!J 

Based on 2016 Census data. 

n.~. 

:'Mi~ 

S1{' C.'2~;.SJ9, 9~~9- :f<t\..', 'i.X"(l-S 29, ' a :;i 

82.59'1') of renters in Ontario with incomes below 
$20,000 are spending 30°/o or tnore of their income 
on shelter costs. 

71.4% of renters in Ontario with incomes between 
$20,000 and $40,000 are spending 30% or n-iore of 
their income on shelter costs. 

n.; 

:!3 

S·f;;(\i.XtJ.$ ; 9S~9' ~· SC J•Js~t:i :tT1J <:"-.. et• 

7 

76



In Peterborough, Barrie, Oshawa, St. Catharines - Niagara, Kingston, and Toronto 
close to or over half of renters have unaffordable shelter costs. 

P<>r""<' Pf°,l~~ of 'fC'"rLft'"!' hou5.C"hot"'l-1cl" ... virh u11:tfforrlnb~[,'" :-.ht'"!ft•f L'O~t~ 

~r .;::-'~jf 1 •. ~1 •...

~~<;1tii" 
..... '1::1.t!. 

l'.J..ll"'11i:>ft 

°t •-r: ~·lt~O 

1.:-:._ ~~~ 't"tf"l 

~:~ 't t;r!• .-.t 

\'i.;:r.: i a 
\r6ri .. ~1.J\•-c, 

l·b Ji".'l.'T 
1-i-.:· rA- r fh. ·; 

3
1

1-:,~hr-1~~. r.' s n~1 .. -:;:!0rt

\·ll,•1:.~ .,·~1-.1 1f"1r .l. f '11;_-?>;J ::;s •. ;.r,. .. :~ ·-'-· J ... ,,~- Jt I 5Rk:Z&t.·.:± .. 1'## §:,S'ta--ftt'!f .. _AL??"fi '::W-;- .. ;. A ?,;~:±rlT*! - - -- - - -
(i,~ 1~t"I ~t=Jt-il•'! ' . ' ' 

1-.lurlr,ih =r:~.;::::;:;:;::::::::;;:;, _;:;_:;:. ::::. :;;;;:;:;;::;:::;;;_.,;;;:;::;:;::;:::::::::;;:;,.::;,,;;::;;::::,.;:. =::;::;==:;::::::;::::;=:::;::::::::;::==;: 
,,-,;,,..,.,.,. ... 1.!itm.:,;i.,, <;1 , \.· = .. . :::: :::=·= · 

~ I t:-:!t1f~ 

r1 ... 1 ..... ~,,n !!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!~!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!! 
~.!c1 · -'"·o ··· 

"'1:
1

!i:ll1~tse-:r: ...... 
t ,,._ ~ '::l~ \..,, J •• '" .. : .• :..::=::::::;::;:;::;:;;:=::========:;;=::;::;;;;:::::=:;:;;:;:;:;;::::::::;:;:;:::;::::;::=.;,~;::==::;::;=:::::;;::;::::::;::::::-: 
F .!"l'l' _,,.. _.,fl 

1(;~l :?lllY 

:a1.m k1h1 1 
~'~01·111~:.l l 

<•11·2•J... <;t1r111.r1•1 iQC·• -·-========================================--.. 
~ h<·":<o e"'11:,. 

rrnl't. R;.·.'1MN --======::::::====================::::::::::=:::::::;;---' 
Q..:f-l'i'.: 

"?: .·-:..:•~""",' 

c ::. ~ .... H ~· ·.~ ,:j '!: •" ,J . ··~ 

· · ~ 
'°'.;. Or if ni~~t Ht'oubrl·.:i,'~t1 ~rt"nr:i;ig ;(\Clo Or ~torr C"'f 1'1i:'l.nl"lr C l 1 "1hd!n Cc..,,., 

Based on 2016 Census data. 

--!'J i.o .. $) 

8 

77



Average iJncmne ;f!Jt'\d aye-eage ~h.e-ke-r ,ee-3.t~. ren;:~r i'llousdto~c]j in O n g:11.rlB 

__, 
\.'Yor 
~l -
= 
~ 

!I :. ... 
• . u 

~ t.~1 

~ ·1 

1 ~ 

1l ... ... ~ ~ . .. .. 

~.'.t-• .cl 

C ~ tJ .. I 

~· . ~ ~ 

.;: (: 

-.-~ ,.. 
"'' 

Based on 2016 Census data. 

.'\vi;ray. i:n:::om;,- l•:-tit1n 5~-r:il.l!i'!'hr.iL~l~ 
~ A,,...u~ :!lif-,f'L't~r (~"'~ 11":111l"r hCJu: oeb•:!IM!!. 

Housing costs are beco1ning increasingly 
unaffordable for ni.any low- and 

inoderate .. income renters, resulting in 
lower quality of life an.cl well .. being. 

~ .. n=:c=·v= ·1- - -~-r ·-=-s:-·-2 ·· ·r ·-··•=cr:-rr· -cz--~ .-.~r--raf7Fls---'?JG?'~:tv~ 

~ .... - - ".;J ~ '1.-:J 

~~ ~·~ ;;;, ?.: 
( .. f i C" .. ......i 

Y ;:;;i.r 9 

78



A·ve-t1"l~t.e- hou~e-hold ineot"l'\ie 'by ~et"l.urc-

. 
"' ~ .. 
!i ...,, 

~fr ... 
l 
~ 

t .;.: 

1 •.:1t: 

ll t'·l : 

J "•1L• 
"'"" ''-

·~=~ 1 ~ 

:h.:i~.:.. 

; .... : 

1<:t.:1!: 

}~1< 

qC..ll 

~<·I. 

~ l'7 1 : 

; ta~, .. : 

L1l ~ 

•._:riu.•.l!, 

Based on 2016 Census data. 

r.)i~! :l.tl'-' 
II C\.·.!., ,.,. r .-u 1.r .p.,1s:i;n~ 

lr.-1~~r:.l' hou•wh1>lc1 .. 

The average income of homeowners has 
grown by 84% between 1991 and 2016. The 
average income of renters has only grown 
45% over the same time period. 

10 

79



· · .:·:··'~._~_'-'·,_:·;,>.::·:+_~ .. -~:'. . .-':~::;·"..-:-y·~:;·-c·~.~·~:-:-;jJf.)r.Z"';.:~!~~"\'4.': ,.--~~~-~$!:t:.~~~l~-----~~~:-:l'~'"'~t:~:·x~~~%""~;t;.::~;}'r~!t~~~::.;i 

H~use~19~ds>eaT~Ang:)11.~PJ~µ$\;~~g~i~§'.!~th.~fµl;);,,OJj~!igh.tlY1!1t?~€e£~1~~t~£ft)gllt~?i~¥~~~~~ 
. · - · - · " •, · .. ·. ·' - .. " .. _· .. ·--~·..,,~<: - ..... .Ii'\:: , ... ~U~--_,,.~-!l. -~-,-*.->1,..,~., 00 .~-,-~s::. »;•«• .. ·-·~"',...~·'r.-" .. {"';~··"·,-,;:._._n,~ 

· :· s ign~fi~a~~': aff 9rd~bni_fy- ~ha.Jfe!}~~-s~·ittHfios~tiro.ct~~c~iit£e·~~.iJ1~qp-t~.rig:'~ffi~1~r~~~l~~:~~~-, •.• · ... _ --· - ','! _ :·:~:· .. ;:.:.:.:~- ·-..·~:~· ·._ .. -.··::.·< ::;: ~:--::"; -~":_:(·:,_;-.~t·,:·":.-_:..:~lli~~ ·- .... - ..... ' .. ! - V\. - . - ... ~,)t .. .i!,.~~ ": ' 

}']e;::i'l,,;td~r ,., .. ,.~~ i:ir:i::d t:d. fov T~nt to bey a±1ordiabie 

~h.·v·~ 

: ~! 

Oltl'!O!J 
~ ..... ...... 

Based on 2016 Census data. 

P~~ffi:oM:ueh 
$} 

\V''"'' MTJ 
H~ 

H .... 'nli r:ir1 

''='1-.d:m 
$.t 

Since u rban centres constitute Ontario's 
111.atn ..... 111 

find themselves 
~· in the areas where they 

work, leading to ~!'JY~~ll!~r and 

Other households may find themselves 
working longer hours or t aking on more 
than one job in order to be able to afford 
the rising rents. 

11 
80



'[;l'lll.l.-i.~ 

Hr:u:npkttii 

Ch:itharn-Kcn.t 
Ore.atcir Sudbmy 
Ouelph 
H riniilton 
1Kawartba Lakes 
}~en.Ofll 
11.J!'< 11.,u1g 
·n(~,,,t"hm 

K~tehtnet· 
'L.cindon 
2vf91·kham 
!vf\ll(."<U 
Mississauga 
Nt\V'markct 
t •1 i? tssln;q 
{J ik kvIDr! 
{ )<Sh;m·;1 

Ottll\YJ. 

lP ete rborou~h 
Rkhmoru:l Hill 
~;>m]= S tt':. ~\1f:u·iF 

S t. Catharine:; 
Thunder Ba.')' 
Toronro 
\lam1hau .., 
~~i:/mcbor 

Based on 2016 Census data. 

Aver-~e n1on1b]y ~helre r 
o'1~t .. foti' an j.T"nt~rt d,vi"'tH ng~ 

-71-1 

S957 

~9l 

5S43 

H uur lv '\'\~~e lLU ' t:o.rJ ell for 
;n -'"' ~ ·agll"' ~hditt-1? .-.o~t"i to t1'r" 

affordable 

Sl ·l 

\ l 1e<:llly ln:nrr~ oti 1uiui.mun1 

v..'71g<"' t5i,1J·H ·im· ;fn·~·;;gr-
3J:teitcf cost5 to bt> affotdab ]c 

·H ------- ·-·-· --
517 
5~20 
· 1s 
: .. 1s 

~l6 

5C 

JL. 
46 

12 

81



WHAT ONTARIO NEEDS 

Provincial cost-matching of the federal National Housing Strategy funds. 

Build more affordable purpose.-built rental housing with deep affordability 
(where people are not forced to pay more than 30% of their income on rent). 

Build new social housing and preserve the existing social housing stock. 

Preserve existing affordable rental units by decreasing financial incentives for 
landlords to push out sitting tenants. 

Recognize the right to housing in law. 
13 

82



~·~ 
ACTO Advocacy Centre 

CP for Tenants Ontario 
Tenant Duty 
Counsel Progra 

Our vision is safe, well-maintained, secure and 
affordable housing for all Ontarians. 

www.acto.ca 

83



Ill Ill 
Ill 111 
Ill 111 
Ill 111 
Ill 111 -·- 84



.. ... 0 a. 
a. 
:::J 
en C

l 

..s :0
 

w
 

-0
 

c: 
C

ll 
Q

I 
0 
c: 
C

ll 
.. 

t:'. 
t/l 

·u; 
ro 

g1 c 
t/l 

$: 
c 

·-
ro 

<
 

<11 
ro 

~
:
:
I
 

..... 
:::J 

..c: 
(/) 

t/l 
ro

O
 

0 
c 

0 
... 

-0
 

>
. 

... 
s:: 

>
. 

0 
c 

<11 
G

I 
>

. 
C

l 
.!!! 

..c: 
ro

-
Q

I 
2 

·u; 
.. 

E
~
 

t/l 
..c 

:::J 
Q

I 
cu 

Q
I 

t/l 
<

 
<! 

<! 
a: 

u 
0 

<! 

85



About the OAFB 

L 
ast year, Ontario's food banks were vis ited by 
over a halt-milhon people Some were born here 
Some recently immigrated. Some were young. 
Some were old. Some had life-long disabilities. 
Some had only recently hit a rough patch All 

faced the difficult choice of either paying for a roof over 
their head, or puttmg food on the table 

Every mun1c1pdHty, ev.~ry town. and every city in Ontario 1s raced with hung11r From 
securing fresh and healthy food ~ources. to driving change through poltcv research 
and public t-duca11on pto<)tdms, the Ontario Assoclauon of Food B<ink~. unites local 
business leaders, the food industry. tood banks and agencies to work 1og~1her to 
Pradocate huno1•1 ncro•;s tlH' province. 

n1e Ont<t110 Assocra11u11 of Food Banks rs not government funded and reliPS 
excluii1vely on !he ~;upport of car111g iPdividuals and orgamNtions to achieve its 
mission. Fat every $1 don11ted, the OAFB can provide the equivale111 of thte,.. meal5 
tu son1ro11P 111 nerd 

I 
I 
L 

Introduction 
1tli El lv~lf n~ill•WJJ u~11.a1~~ tw11\J 11J tµ 
fbutJ W_:.!i l~~ "'A"'h ~drif WP lttH~J ti'l..11 th~tF 
is L! fijli lu"'1ll' faJ if!H llWlV lilfo.!.t~ ~H! 
fan .tilJ~ "1tl' 1maldr;i tc1 l'llfm!.l ll1P1• moot 
bptij .. r tj'.tr-iH'C''O np•Ji 111,Jlilh 

Ontario's current housing crisis is 
having a particularly negative effect on 
low-income adults and families, with 
housing costs increasing far faster than 
income or wages. While the Government 
of Canada, in partnership with the 
Government of Ontario, has taken the 
fi rst steps in implement ing a 1 0-year 

housing strategy to help address t his 
issue, there is still an immediate need 
to assist struggling famil ies who have 
to choose between putting a roof over 
their head and having enough to eat 
each month. 

This report discusses the impact that 
the current housing crisis is having 
on low-income Ontarians, as well as 
provides three recommendations for 
change on how the Government of 
Ontario can take immediate action, 
alongside the National Housing 
Strategy, to address the root-causes of 

poverty and hunger in our province. 

Summc:H-y nf Opcomrnend8tinrQ· 
Increase Social Assistance Rates to Reflect Today's Cost of Living 

2. Reform Ontario's Social Assistance Programs to Help Recipients Move 
Out of Poverty 

3. Invest tn Affordable Housing through Constructron. Repairs, and a 
Portable Housrng Benefit 

c; 

86



W•. - - "E~ 

\,, 
70°/o 
INDICATED SOCIAL 
ASSISTANCE AS 
PRIMARY SOURCE OF 
INCOME 

-A 1 T VEA 

499,415 
INDIVIDUALS ACCESSED A FOOD BANK 

2,861,872 
VISITS WERE MADE TO ONTAR IO'S FOOD BANKS 

D tlANW'' 

• tt 
50°/o 33°/o 
IDENTIFI ED AS 
SINGLE-PERSON 
HOUSEHOLDS 

WERE CHILDREN 

8 Wf"1't1 ft.J"Uil l".'l. ~1UllJ M..>t•.11 3L~t ,,'Ci 

"."H1lnJin:: ftH.Hl '-'"'"'It ,.,rr(' *- -;~s•r<I f>v Ital' 
<* !!.llllio!I f •~'"'lllF lfth•J 'Jtoiih=d n11 •1 f' lhc..T"J lw 
t!iilli'..!!1 I JIJlll~ P't'f;'l lllP "''"1'1!'* tlf tf.ll;> '(Pl:li r If 

fJL~p i rulitr\f.!U~!<> ~'I (»=~ i...,tJf W~tF Pil/1P 

FntP.l , ,, «>ti{, ifli b~i•1!i!i11~ ! =mud~ 111rl i4l mr1~1 lq j1P.1 !"' .. ,., t 
.Jil:dpJ ·~tidal 1~iMRn,...fi P'l tl~P.it pniTIJUT. 'H)'l l•P. n { mromr 
flti!i ll'!'F!·1:; .r-i grr,-tiirlrJ 1 rnful fr1 '?Hf fW'ifii~"'·11n it<r1 fl~_sirHJ 
, \Hlftf~ rii. mti:!HS-lis fift j1;:tf lh-a;tf> «i111ikknt ifi~'OH!i.!fo af[ijt t1 

II r1f the.if mr'St hnfilr 'Y::'l'~ll!'itif!<: '"'Reh .mm1H1 

in 2016, the Census revealed that, for 
the first time on record, 'one-person 
households' had become the most 
common type of household in the 
country.' This is reflected in the client 
demographics of food banks as well, 
with 50 percent identifying as single 
person households. 

What makes this growing trend 
a concern is that single person 
households are often at greater risk 
of financial insecurity because there is 
typically only one income to support 
all household expenses. like rent. heat. 
and hydro. For a single person living 
alone, balancing a monthly budget can 
be a challenge. However. for a single 
person with a low income, balancing a 
monthly budget can quickly transition 
from being difficult to impossible, and 
often results in having to make choices 
between fixed expenses, like rent, and 
other necessities, like food. 

in Ontario, a single person accessing 
Ontario Works receives $721 per month, 
and a single person on the Ontario 
Disability Support Program receives 
$1,151 per month.2 The average price 
of a one-bedroom apartment, however, 
exceeds $900 per month provincially, 
and over $1,200 per month when 
looking at urban centres. 

Without sufficient income to afford 
both rent and all other necessities, 
many individuals report skipping meals, 
delaying bill payments, or simply 'going 
hungry' to ensure that rent is paid.3 

In a province like Ontario, adults and 
families should never have to choose 
between putting a roof over their head 
or purchasing food - and yet, it is a 
choice that hundreds of thousands of 
Ontarians must make every day. 

87



AND HOW 
IT AFFECTS 
LOW-I NCOME 
ONTARIANS 

r 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
! 
' 

A Lack of 
Affordab le 
Housing Drives 
Food Bank Use 

0 ne of t he primary drivers of 
food bank use is the lack of 
affordable housing options 

for low-income Ontarians. According 
to the Canada Mortgage and Housing 
Corporation, housing is considered 
affordable if it consumes no more than 
30 percent of a household's before
tax income.• This helps to ensure that 
individuals have sufficient income to 
not only afford the roof over their head, 
but also other basic necessities, like 
heat, hydro, transportation, and food. 

The average food bank client. 
however, spends more than 70 percent 
of t heir monthly income on housing. 
Not only does this leave very little for 
other basic necessities, but it makes it 
near-impossible to save for unexpected 
expenses inthe future, and increases the 
risk of displacement or homelessness. 

Social housing, where rent is set to 
an affordable percentage of income, 
is meant to address this problem. Yet 
there are 171,363 households on the 
wait list for social housing in Ontario, 
with an average wait t ime of four years. 5 

In t he meantime, individuals have to 
find housing on the market. 

180 

160 

140 

120 

100 

80 

60 

40 

20 , -Households Affordable Affordable 
on lhe 2016 Housing Housmg 
Wall List 10< Unit~ Bul d lhiil~ All of 
AffOfdable and Maintain. Cenada 
Hou~ng, Onlario (Niltlonal 
Olllano (ln1 .. unem Housing 

in Affordable Strategy, 10 
Houl!lllng, Years) 

2014·2020) 

FIGURE 1: AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
WAITLIST VS GOVERNMENT 

COMMITMENTS TO BUILD 

90°/o 
OF FOOD BANK CLIENTS AR E RENTAL 

OR SOCIAL HOUSING TENANTS 

" 

88



,.._ ... 
0 
N 
l
o:: 
0 
D. 
w 
er:: 
er:: 
w 
(!) 

z 
~ 
::c 
en 
::.; 
~ .. 
::t 
CD 
Cl 
0 
0 
!..!,.. 

Lio 
2 
Q 
I
-<! 
u 
0 
en 
.:n 
<( 

0 
Cl'. 
...: 
I
~ 
0 

Housing Is 
Unaffordable 
Across Ontario 

I 
n the 2017 Hunger Report, the 
Ontario Association of Food Banks 
analyzed the cost of renting in ten 

cit ies across the provi nee, and found that 
in all ten cities, a person that is employed, 
full-time on minimum wage does not 
earn enough to comfortably afford the 
cost of housing. For individuals that 
rely on social assistance, the budgetary 
requirements are even more alarming, 
with the rental rates in the majority of 
the cities profiled far exceeding their 
monthly income. 

FIGURE 2 : THE COST OF RENTING, BY CITY (2017 FIGURES) 

Uniquo Percentage Avcraoe Average 
Clly Population'' Food Bank of Population Household Cost o r A Vacancy 

Clients Served by 51 ,, 1 Bedroom Rate" 
Food Bank ze Apt '" 

Toronto 2.731,571 113,370'2 4% 2.4 $1,137 1.3% 

Oltlwl i 934,243 55,483 6% 2.5 $982 3.0% 

H1mlhon 536,917 29,083 5% 2.5 $811 3.8% 

London , 383,822 25,093 7% 2.3 $807 2.1% 

,Windsor I 217,188 22,152 10% 2.3 $706 2.9% 

1

Sudbury J 161,531 7,586 5% 2.3 $776 5.3% 

SL C1th1rlnes 133,113 10,961 8% 2.3 $801 2.2% 

IThundtr Bay I 107,909 17.401 16% 2.2 $765 5.0% 

I 21.054 2,737 13% 2 $761 ;8rockvllte N/A 

Elliot Lake 110,741 1,083 10% 1.9 $693 NIA 

Ontario 13,448,494 499,415 4% 2.6 $972 2.1% 

... I 

i 
I 
I 
! I 
I I 

I I 

FIGURE 3: PERCENT OF INCOME SPENT ON MARKET RENT (2017 FIGURES) 

City Meehan Median After 
Minimum After Tax Te I come Minimum OOSP ow on: ~erson, wage FT Wa9ePT 

Income. All 
Households Households Worker Worker 

Rec1p1en1 R~rr1en1 

--
Toronto 23% 40% 59,., 96% 102lr. 158' · ---
Ottawa 16% 29% 50% 83% 88% 136' ---- --~ 

Hamilton 16% 32% 41% 68'11\ 73% 112,% ------
London 18% 31% 41% 68 ' 73" 11 2% - = 
Windsor 17% 29% 36% 60% 64% 98% ---
Sudbury 15% 27% 39% 65% 70'.t 108lr. .. _ - -
St Catharlnes 18% 33% 41 % 68% n" 11 1% 

Thunder Bay 16% 29% 39% 65'11. 6911. 106% --
Brockvllle 20% 31 % 39% 64% 69'7. 106'11\ -
Elliot Lake 21% 35% 35% 58% 62"L 96% 

-
30·60% of Income 60-100% of Income - 100%+ of Income 

The above chart highlights the average percentage that Ontarians from six income 
demographics spend on housing each month, based on the average rent for a one-bedroom 
apartment In each of those cities, including: the average Ontarian household, single person 
households, full-time minimum wage workers, part t ime minimum wage workers, ODSP 
recipients, and ow recipients. 

Since the report's release, this trend 
has continued with rental prices -
particularly for new leases - increasing 
province-wide.• 

In addition to many low-income 
individuals having to make difficult 
choices between basic necessities, 
rising rental prices has led to an 
Increasing number of families living 
in spaces that are too small for their 

family size. For example, as revealed 
by ACORN Canada, it is becoming 
common for families of four or five 
people to be living in a one-bedroom 
apartment, simply because they cannot 
afford to move.' 

J l_ - -· ---- l' 

89



I 

I 
I 
I 

i 
I 

I 
I 
I 

! 
I 

I 
i 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

..... ,.... 
0 
N 
l
a: 
0 
a. 
w 
IX 

"' w 
(!) 

z 
:::> 
J: 
(/) 

::.: 

"" ..:;: 
m 
Cl 
0 
0 
LL 
l.L 
0 
2 
0 

~ ..:: 
(.) 

0 
ti) 
(/j 
...;: 
g 
a: 
._;: 
~ 
% 
0 

I. 

Moving The 
Need le On The 
Housing Crisis 

I n November 2017, the Government 
of Canada announced Its new 
National Housing Strategy, 'A 

Place to Call Home'. This strategy 
detailed a number of commitments 
to help shift t he needle on affordable 
housing in Ontario and across the 
country, including: legislation that will 
require the government to maintain a 
National Housing Strategy, the creation 
of 100,000 new housing units across 
the country over the next 1 O years, and 
the establishment of a new housing 
benefit.8 

In April 2018, Ontario became the first 
province to sign a bilateral agreement 
with federal government, committing 
to the implementation of the strategy, 
and to matching the investments 
being made into the protection, 
renewal, and expansion of affordable 
housing options in the province. This 
agreement also included working with 
the federal government on the design 
and implementation of a new Canada 
Housing Benefit in Ontario.• 

While this is a positive first step in 
moving the needle on Ontario's housing 
crisis, there are still details that need to 
be clarified, particularly related to how 
many individuals will be able to access 
the benefit, how much support it will 
provide, and its timing. 

~ ~ ~ 
THE NATIONAL HOUSING STRATEGY 

COMMITS TO CREATING 

100,000 
NEW SOCIAL HOUSING UNITS ACROSS 

THE COUNTRY OVER THE NEXT 10 YEARS 

ONTARIO'S AGREEMENT WITH 
THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 

COMMITTED TO MATCHING 
THE INVESTMENTS MADE IN 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING, INCLUDING 
THE INTRODUCTION OF A NEW 

Housing 
Benefit 

i 
i 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

! I 
I 

I 

I 
i 

..J 

The Ontario Association of Food 
Banks is pleased with the work being 
done by both the provincial and federal 
governments to address Ontario's 
housing crisis and provide some relief 
for low-income Ontarians that are 
struggling to put a roof over their head 
and afford their most basic necessities 
each month. 

While predictable and long-term 
funding for the National Housing 
Strategy's 1 O year plan is expected 
to start in April 2019, it is important 
to remember that, with half a million 
Ontarians accessing food banks each 
year, there is still a very real and urgent 
need to invest in poverty reduction 
solutions today. 

In addition to the National Housing 
Strategy, the Ontario Association of 
Food Banks (OAFS) supports the 
actions outlined in the Income Security 
Reform Working Group·s report, Income 
Security: A Roadmap for Change. 
This report details recommended 
improvements to Ontario's income 
security system, including the 
establishment of a Minimum Income 
Standard in Ontario to be achieved 
over the next 10 years, and significant 
improvements to Ontario's social 
assistance programs.10 

By launching these two strategies 
in tandem, the OAFB believes that the 
province of Ontario will significantly 
move the needle on poverty and, 
ult imately, create a firm foundation for 
a stronger and more inclusive province. 

n 

90



hf?le are atruoi.:t llall a million Ontiu i.ans 
h~l t1Jt,1 to foud bank~ PV~tf '/Fru simply 

becalf1'1l=1 lllf'Y lili f!et iiatJ~ s1 Hfif Hfrl t ill[·.n1ufJ 
lo f1ffo1d al1 l.,f Lil.t"ii l.Jasic w~r-r..ssili~. like 
j •,nnf h •ttlt.n. ;,-~1'1.ih'l"'l.fJff-r1fii1n Ql·lfi f.t.tn~ 

Hunger is a sym ptom of poverty, and wit hout long-t erm solutions to 
poverty reduction, there w ill always be a need for food banks in Ontario. 
This is w hy it is so important for the Government of Ontario t o continue 
working towards solutions that address t he core needs of those who 
are going hungry. 

The Ontario Association of Food Banks has put forward the f ollowing 
three recommendations as t he first st eps t hat the new Government of 
Ontario should take t o address hunger and poverty in our province: 

1. Invest in Affordable Housing 
Through Construction, Repairs, and a 
Portab le Housing Benefit 

.. 
Over 89 percent of food bank clients are rental or social housing tenants who 

spend more than 70 percent of their income on rent. This leaves very little for other 
necessities like heat, hydro, transportation, medicine, and food. 

The Ontario Association of Food Banks recommends investing in affordable 
housing through construction, repairs, and a portable housing benefit. 

In Income Security: A Roadmap for Change and Canada's National Housing 
Srrategy A Place ro Call Home, the following key recommendations were 
made: 

-+ Introduce a housing benefit to assist all low·mcome peoplP with the high 
cost or housing so they are not forced to choose between a home and other 
necessilfes 
7 Implement the portable housmg benefit In 2019·20 at a modest "gap 

coveraqe" or 25%. wllh the gap defined as th<' dirforence between ihe 
actual cost of housing and a minimum household contribution given 
household income 

7 Increase gap coverage ro 35'lri in 2020·21 and continue to 111crease qap 
coverage, reaching 75't by or before 2027·28 

-+ Implement the investments outlined in the National Housing SH ategy, lnclud1ng 
investments In affordable housing construction and repair, including: 
' The preservation or at least 130,000 community housing units m Ontario 
~ Create 100.000 new housing unns, as well as renew and repair more than 

300,000 housing units over the next 1 O years 
' The development or a provincial, three-year action plan. heglnning In 2019 

2020, setting targets and outlining how the Government of Ontario will use 
federal and cost·matched funding to achieve the de~ired outcomes. 

I . 

91



,.... .... 
c:> 
N 
I
C:: 
0 
a. 
UJ 
c:: 
a:: 
UJ 
Cl 
z 
::> 
:i:: 
en 
~ _, 
:;( 
m 
0 
0 
0 
u.. 
LL 
0 

:a: 
0 
;:: 
<! 
C3 
0 
Cl.I 
en 
;;-£ 

0 
CE 
,,;: 
1-z 
0 

2. Reform Social Assistance 
Programs to Help Recip ients Move 
Out of Poverty 

Ontario Works and the Ontario Disability Support Programs adhere to a number 
of complex policy directives that penalize recipients for their assets, savings, and 
housing. This makes it difficult for adults living on social assistance to establish a 
foundation that will allow them to break the cycle of poverty. 

The Ontario Association of Food Banks recommends updating Ontario's social 
assistance programs to improve their assessment and reporting processes as well 
as their overall implementation in order to help individuals move out of poverty. 

In Income Secu1 /1y. A Roadmap for Change, the following reforms were 
recommended to improve and modernize Ontario's social assistance 
system: 

_. Improve social assistance rules and redesign benefits to make it easier for 
peoµle to pursue !heir employment goals and realize the benefits of worl<lng 

_. Modernl1e Income and asset rules so people can maximize the Income 
sources available to them and save for the future. 

_. Eliminate financial penallles related to employment efforts and rigid reporting 
requirements, and place a firm emphasis on problem-solving end addressing 
urgent needs first (eg. risk of homelessness) This mcludes rev1s111g policies 
that create barriers to safety and well·being (e.g .. Oee1ng an unsafe home). 

_. Redesign the social assistance rate structure so that all adults have accP.ss to 
a consistent level of support regardless of hvmg situation 
? T1ans111on to a Standard Flat Rate that does not dlsthicJulsh between basic 

needs and shelter 

! 

·---' i_ 

3. Increase Social Assistance Rates 
to Reflect Today's Cost of Living 

Almost 70 percent of adults that visit a food bank throughout the year cite social 
assistance as t heir primary source of income. This is a clear indication that these 
support programs do not provide sufficient income to afford all of the recipient's 
most basic needs. 

The Ontario Association of Food Banks recommends an immediate increase to the 
income support available through Ontario Works (OW) and the Ontario Disability 
Support Program (ODSP), w ith the eventual goal of progressing these programs 
towards a Minim um Income Standard (equivalent to the Low Income Measure as 
used by Ontario's Poverty Reduction strategy, plus an addit ional 30% for persons 
with a disability) by 2027-28. 

In Income Security' A Roadmap for Change, the following increases and 
umeline were recommended: 

-+ Fall 2018. 
-:> Set the Standard FIGL Rate at $794/month (10% lncrea~e over Fnll 2017 

OW maximum basic needs and shelter rates) 
-:> Set the !;tanclard Flat Rate - DlsabHlty at $1,209/month (5% Increase over 

rall 2017 ODSP maximum basic needs ond shelter 1ates) 

-+ fall ?019' 
-:> Increase the Standard Flat Rate to $850/month (7'1. increase) 
-:> Increase the Standard Flat Rate - Disability to $1 ,270/momh (5°'· lncreasP.) 

-+ Fall 2010 
.; Increase tht> Standard Flat Rate to $893/month (5'\. increase) 
-:> Increase the Standard Flat Rate - Disability to $1 ,334/month W'• lncrl'asa) 

-+ Continue to raise th~ level of income support available until the Mlnlrmnn 
Income Standard is ach1pvetJ in combination with other income security 
components by 2027-28. 

i 
i 
j 

92



I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

,...., 
..... 
0 
N 
la: 
0 
0.. 
UJ 
c:: 
a: 
UJ 
Cl z 
::> 
::c 
(j) 
~ 
:z 
::..e 
!O 
a 
0 
a 
u. 
u. 
0 
:';£ 
0 

~ 
i3 
0 
Cr) 
C-1 
..;: 
0 
Cl .-.: 
~ 
0 

Helping t he Government of Ontario 
Achieve its Objectives 

lw. l;.,.rwH1 !Jiii;lial li.I t..Jh4'Jlt:i hrt~ Fh1r~Fta$11:eii Ulf: 
iw~naMli •Jt illi:ifH1filnf.J ~fll§l~!W~ 3.flfi r:Mt 
~Vid~Ei l.!1 lfo• fm.i-VHIE:i~l f4ltllUt.Jf ill\'~9HH~ 
ifi f1f,r,~1·1 y r?tlueW=ih llaq 1.1~u deitmtaHra1~1 
w ha'W' lbl!ij (~Htl l"BPl ~i'il/lttij§ Te!Eti~ t 

t~'im fV· lfJi1Ul!~4 n1MiMi! €sqt.s_ il1uetifiililffl ja§tW'? tj)lsteffi 
. ri lit~i nl''-tAl.lhf µ,,.; 

In 2008, the Ontario Association of Food Banks released T he Cost of Poverty: An 
Analysis of the Economic Cost of Poverty in Ontario." While this report was released 
almost ten years ago, its findings still remain true today. In short, 'poverty' costs the 
federal and provincial governments up to $13 billion per year ($15.1 billion when 
indexed to inflation). It is an expensive problem to have, but equally one that can be 
solved. 

By investing in solutions that not only help Ontarians afford their most basic 
necessities, but help to move individuals out of poverty, the Government of Ontario 
will be investing in overall economic health and wellbeing of the province and its 
citizens. 

L:_: ___ _ 

-1 . 
I I 

I I 
i I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

i 
i 
I 
i 

Works 
Cited 
1. Statistics Canada. {2017, August 2). 

Families, households and marital status: 
Key results from the 2016 Census. The 
Daily. Retrieved from: https://wwwl 50. 
statcan.gc.ca/nl /dally-quotldlen/170802/ 
dq170802a-eng.htm 

2. Income Security Advocacy Center. (2017) . 
OW and ODSP Rates and the OCB 2017. 
Retrieved from: http:// lncomesecurity. 
org/public-education/ow-and-odsp-rates
andthe-ocb-2017/ 

3. Matern, R. & Haman, I. (2017). Who's 
Hungry. Dally Bread Food Bank. Retrieved 
from: http://www.dailybread.ca/ 
whoshungry2017/ 

4. Canada Mongage and Housing 
Corporation. (2017). About Affordable 
Housing in Canada. Retrieved from: 
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/en/lnpr/ 
afhoce/ afhoce_021 .cfm 

5. Ontario Non-Profit Housing Association. 
(2016). 2016 Waiting Lists Survey 
Report. Retrieved from: http:// onpha. 
on.ca/Content/ Advocacy_and_research/ 
Research/2016_ Wa iting_Llsts_Survey.aspx 

6. Canadian Broadcast Corporation (2018, 
January 1 B). New year, same old expensive 
rent In Toronto. Retrieved from: https:// 
www.cbc.ca/ news/canada/toronto/rent· 
expensive-toronto-2018-1 .4491949 

7. Canadian Broadcast Corporation (2018, 
July 5). Toronto needs to change its 
definition of affordable housing, advocacy 
group says. Retrieved from: https:// 
www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/ 
toronto-acorn-canada-affordable
houslng-1.4734473 I 

I 

I __ J L__ -

8. Government of Canada (2017, November 
22). National Housing Strategy: A Place 
to Call Home. Retrieved from: https:// 
www.placetocallhome.ca/pdfs/Canada· 
National-Housing-Strategy.pdf 

9. Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
(2018, April 30). Canada-Ontario Bilateral 
Agreement Signed for the National 
Housing Strategy. Retrieved from: https:// 
www.amo.on.ca/AMO-ContenVPolicy
Updates/201 B/ CanadaOntarioBllateral 
AgreementSignedfonheNatlona 

10. Income Security Reform Working Group, 
First Nations Income Security Reform 
Working Group & Urban Indigenous Table 
on Income Security Reform (2017). Income 
Security: A Roadmap for Change. Retrieved 
from: https://www.ontario.ca/page/ 
lncome-security-roadmap-<:hange 

HI I 
..: 

93



94



POR. T COLBOR.NE 

Engineering & Operations Department 
Engineering Division: 

Report Number: 2019-15 Date: February 111, 2019 

SUBJECT: Information Report on the Proposed Regional Niagara Waste 
Collection Se-rvices Contract 

1) PURPOSE: 

This report has been prepared by Chris Lee, Director of Engineering and Operations. The 
purpose of this report is to inform Council and the public of the proposed Regional Niagara 
waste collection services contract, the past public consultation process that Regional Staff 
have undertaken to date and to present Regional Niagara Public Works Reports PW 3-
2019 and WMPSC-C 9-2018, all of which speak to the matter. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES: 

Presently, Regional NJagara staff have been undertaking preliminary Stakeholder 
Consultation and Engagement on their proposed waste collection services for the period 
going forward from 2020, after the expiration of their existing collection contract with 
Emterra Environmental and Progressive Waste Solutions Ltd. 

There is a great deal of background and detail within the two attached Regional N.iagara, 
Public Works Reports, WMPSC-C 9-2018 and PW 3-201·9, which highlight the work to 
date by Regional staff regarding the issue. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS: 

None at this t ime. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

a)1 Do Aothing. 

If no action is taken at th is time, Regional staff will proceed as directed by Regional 
Council without input from the City of Port Colborne. 

b) Other Options 

Accept staff's recommendation and receive the attached reports for information purposes. 

5)1 COMPLIAN1CE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

N/A 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A - Regional N.iagara Public Works Report WMPSC-C 9-2018 

Appendix B - Regional Niagara Public Works Report PW 3-2019 

Engineering & Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No.: 2019-15 Page 1 of 2 

95



7) RECOMMENDATION 

That Council receive Engineering & Operations Department Report 2019-15 for 
information. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on January 31, 2019 by: 

Chris Lee 
Director of Engineering and 
Operational Services 

Reviewed by: . . 
. I-' . -,......-,~ 

.t::..'/ ~ · • "-.... 

Peter Senese 
Director of Corporate Services 

Reviewed and respectfully 
submitted by: 

C. Scott Luey 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Engineering & Operations Department, Engineering Division, Report No. : 2019-15 Page 2 of 2 

96



6. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

6.1PW3-2019 

Public Works Committee Meeting 
January 8, 2019 

(Excerpt from Minutes 1-2019) 

Proposed Base Services for Next Collection Contract 

Report 2019-15 Appendix A 

Catherine Habermehl, Acting Commissioner, Public Works, and David Kains, Metroline Research 
Group, provided information respecting Proposed Base Services for Next Collection Contract. Topics 
of the presentation included: 
• Proposed Collection Service Options (background, rationale) 
• Results and key insights of the targeted and broad stakeholder consultations 
• The research methodology for conducting the stakeholder consultations 
• Base Garbage Collection Service Options 
• Stakeholder Consultation 
• Recommendations 

A copy of the presentation is attached to these minutes. 

Moved by Councillor Sendzik 
Seconded by Councillor Steele 

That Report PW 3-2019, dated January 8, 2019, respecting Proposed Base Services for Next 
Collection Contract, BE RECEIVED for information and the following recommendations BE 
APPROVED: 
1. That, based on the results of the stakeholder engagement process, the Request for Proposals for 

Niagara Region's next garbage, recycling and organics collection RFP BE APPROVED to be issued 
with the following, subject to final comments from Local Area Municipalities: 

a. Pricing for the following garbage collection frequency options: 
i. Every-other-week (EOW) garbage collection for all residential properties and for those 
Industrial, Commercial & Institutional {IC&I) and Mixed-Use {MU) properties located outside 

Designated Business Areas (DBAs), as a base service (weekly recycl ing and organics to 
continue, and current garbage container (bag/can) limits would double for affected sectors, 
on an EOW basis), and, 

ii. Status quo - weekly base garbage collection service. 

b. Establishment of a four (4) item limit per residential unit, per collection, for large item 
collection at Low-Density Residential (LDR) properties, as a base service; 

c. Pricing for the continuation of appliances and scrap metal curbside collection at LDR 

properties, as a base service. 

1 

97



d. Change the weekly garbage container (bag/can) limits for Industrial, Commercial & 
Institutional (IC&I) and Mixed-Use (MU) properties located inside Designated Business Areas 

(DBAs) from seven (7) containers to four (4) containers per property, as a base service; 

e. Change th e weekly garbage container l imit for MU properties located outside DBAs from six (6) 
containers to four (4) containers per property, as a base service; 

2. That Report PW 3-2019 and Council's resolutions, along with the Metroline stakeholder 

consultation report, when finalized, BE CIRCULATED to the Local Area Municipalities, for their 

review, and comments to be provided by February 1, 2019 or no later than February 20, 2019; 
and, 

3. That staff BE DIRECTED to provide a follow-up report on the position of the Local Area 

Municipalities on the base and enhanced services to be included in the next garbage, recycling 

and organics collection contract Request for Proposals. 

The following friendly amendment was accepted by the Committee Chair, and the mover and 
seconder of the motion to add clause l(f) as follows: 

f . Mandatory use of clear garbage bags for garbage collection. 
Moved by Councillor Foster Seconded by Councillor Nicholson 

That clause l(c) BE AMENDED to read as follows : 

c. Discontinuation and continuation of appliances and scrap metal curbside collection at LDR 
properties, as a base service. 

The Committee Chair called the vote on the motion, as amended, as follows: 

That Report PW 3-2019, dated January 8, 2019, respecting Proposed Base Services for Next 

Collection Contract, BE RECEIVED for information and the following recommendations BE 
APPROVED: 

Carried 

1. That, based on the results of the stakeholder engagement process, the Request for Proposals for 

Niagara Region's next garbage, recycling and organics collection RFP BE APPROVED to be issued 

with the following, subject to final comments from Local Area Municipalities: 

a. Pricing for the following garbage collection frequency options: 

i. Every-other-week (EOW) garbage collection for all residential properties and for those 

Industrial, Commercial & Institutional (IC&I) and Mixed-Use (MU) properties located 

outside Designated Business Areas (DBAs), as a base service (weekly recycling and organics 

to continue, and current garbage container (bag/can) limits would double for affected 

sectors, on an EOW basis), and, 

ii. Status quo - weekly base garbage collection service . 

2 
98



b. Establishment of a four (4) item limit per residential unit, per collection, for large item 
collection at Low-Density Residential (LDR) properties, as a base service; 

c. Discontinuation and continuation of appl iances and scrap metal curbside collection at LDR 
properties, as a base service; 

d. Change the weekly garbage conta iner (bag/can) limits for Industrial, Commercial & 
Institutional (IC&I) and Mixed-Use (MU) properties located inside Designated Business Areas 
(DBAs) from seven (7) containers to four (4) containers per property, as a base service; 

e. Change the weekly garbage container limit for MU properties located outside DBAs from six (6) 
containers to four (4) containers per property, as a base service; 

f. Mandatory use of clear garbage bags for garbage collection; 

2. That Report PW 3-2019 and Council's resolutions, along with the Metroline stakeholder 
consultation report, when finalized, BE CIRCULATED to the Local Area Municipa lities, for their 
review, and comments to be provided by February 1, 2019 or no later than February 20, 2019; 
and, 

3. That staff BE DIRECTED to provide a follow-up report on the position of the Local Area 
Municipalities on the base and enhanced services to be included in the next garbage, recycling 
and organics col lection contract Request for Proposals. 

Carried 

3 

99



Niagara.I/ Region 

Report 2019-15 Appendix B 

PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Subject: Proposed Base Services for Next Collection Contract 

Report to: Public Works Committee 

Report date: Tuesday, January 8, 2019 

Recommendations 

Page 1 

1. That, based on the results of the stakeholder engagement process, the Request for 
Proposals for Niagara Region's next garbage, recycling and organics collection RFP 
BE APPROVED to be issued with the following, subject to final comments from 
Local Area Municipalities: 

a) Pricing for the following garbage collection frequency options: 
i) Every-other-week (EOW) garbage collection for all residential properties and 

for those Industrial, Commercial & Institutional (IC&I) and Mixed-Use (MU) 
properties located outside Designated Business Areas (DBAs), as a base 
service (weekly recycling and organics to continue, and current garbage 
container (bag/can) limits would double for affected sectors, on an EOW 
basis), and 

ii) Status quo - weekly base garbage collection service. 

b) Establishment of a four (4) item limit per residential unit, per collection, for large 
item collection at Low-Density Residential (LOR) properties, as a base service. 

c) Discontinuation of appliances and scrap metal curbside collection at LOR 
properties, as a base service. 

d) Change the weekly garbage container (bag/can) limits for Industrial, Commercial 
& Institutional (IC&I) and Mixed-Use (MU) properties located inside Designated 
Business Areas (DBAs) from seven (7) containers to four (4) containers per 
property, as a base service. 

e) Change the weekly garbage container limit for MU properties located outside 
DBAs from six (6) containers to four (4) containers per property, as a base 
service. 

2. That Report PW 3-2019 and Council's resolutions, along with the Metroline 
stakeholder consultation report, when finalized, BE CIRCULATED to the Local Area 
Municipalities, for their review, and comments to be provided by February 1, 2019 or 
no later than February 20, 2019; and, 

100



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 2 

3. That staff BE DIRECTED to provide a follow-up report on the position of the Local 
Area Municipalities on the base and enhanced services to be included in the next 
garbage, recycling and organics collection contract Request for Proposals. 

Key Facts 

• Niagara Region's next garbage, recycling and organics collection contract is set to 
begin by March 8, 2021. 

• The preparation for the next collection contract provides an opportunity to complete 
a service delivery review to improve program effectiveness (i.e. increase diversion of 
waste from disposal) and efficiencies (i.e. mechanisms to reduce costs and changes 
to service to reflect usage). 

• On April 12, 2018, Regional Council approved WMPSC-C 9-2018, which identified 
the proposed base collection services options to be included in the stakeholder 
consultation and engagement process. 

• The purpose of this report is to seek Council's approval of the proposed base 
collection services being recommended for inclusion in Niagara Region's next 
collection RFP, based on the results of input received during the stakeholder 
consultation and engagement phase, subject to further input from Local Area 
Municipalities (LAMs). 

• Niagara Region is consulting with LAMs on the proposed base collection service 
changes and to confirm which enhanced collection services they would like included 
in the next collection RFP. 

Financial Considerations 

It is estimated that without any changes to the existing collection service levels to be 
provided in Niagara Region's next contract, the annual contract cost could be greater 
than $25 million in 2021. This is based on an average of the bids received for the 
current collection contract, plus annual escalation of 1.9%. Factors such as, but not 
limited to, the increase in minimum wage and driver shortages will more than likely 
impact pricing. 

The primary financial implications of implementing the proposed recommendations 
include: 

• Final consideration of inclusion of EOW garbage collection in the next collection 
contract would occur after pricing is received for this option . As a point of 
reference: 

In response to Niagara Region 's last collection contract RFP, excluding one 
submission anomaly, on average bidders priced a cost reduction of 
approximately $1 .2 million annually for EOW garbage collection. 
Region of Waterloo's implementation of EOW garbage collection in their 2017 
contract resulted in an annual contract savings of approximately $1 .5 million. 

101



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 3 

• Elimination of Niagara Region's annual contract cost to provide appliance and 
scrap metal curbside collection, which currently is approximately $130,000. 

• Incremental cost avoidance for the proposed weekly large item and garbage 
container limit changes, which would likely be offset by incremental increases in 
the organics and recycling collection costs, based on anticipated increased 
participation in diversion programs. 

• Extended site life for open Regional landfills, and more revenue generating 
capacity from the reduction of divertible materials being landfilled by residents 
and other service users who are participating in the curbside recycling and 
organics collection programs. 

• Cost avoidance/cost reduction in the landfill contract with Walker Environmental 
due to an increase in the diversion of waste from disposal. 

• Increased tonnages of food and organic waste collected at the curb from 
improved participation and capture rates would result in increased processing 
contract costs, unless the tonnages are offset by food waste avoidance and other 
reduction initiatives. 

• Reduced methane emissions due to the reduction of organics being landfilled will 
result in less leachate generated, thereby reducing costs associated with care 
and control of these landfill sites. 

Analysis 

A) BACKGROUND 

Current Collection Contracts: 
Niagara Region's current collection contracts with Halton Recycling Ltd. , doing business 
as Emterra Environmental, and Waste Connections of Canada Inc. expire March 7, 
2021 . Niagara Region recently awarded a new collection contract for the municipalities 
of Lincoln and West Lincoln to Canadian Waste Management Inc. from January 2, 2019 
until March 7, 2021 . These contracts include provision of base and enhanced collection 
services, which are defined as follows: 

i) Base Collection Services 
Niagara Region currently provides base collection services (i.e. weekly garbage, 
recycling , and organics) to all property types, including IC&I and MU properties located 
inside and outside DBAs, in all 12 Local Area Municipalities (LAM). Each LAM pays a 
proportional share of this cost, based on their total household units, as a percentage of 
the Region's total household units. 

Appendix 1 provides a comparison of the current vs. proposed base collection services 
for each property type. 

102



NiagaralJfT/I/ Region 

ii) Enhanced Collection Services 

PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page4 

Niagara Region also provides enhanced collection services (i.e. street litter, front-end 
garbage, additional garbage container limits, increased garbage or recycling collection 
frequency, etc.), at the request of each LAM. Each LAM directly pays for the cost 
associated with providing their enhanced collection services. Each LAM was requested 
to verify which enhanced collection services they would like included as part of Niagara 
Region 's next collection RFP. 

Appendix 2 provides a detailed comparison of the current vs. previous enhanced 
collection services provided in each LAM. 

Current Residential Diversion Rate: 
Over the past seven years, Niagara Region's residential diversion rate has increased 
from 42% (2010) to 56% (2017), however this rate may be plateauing. In preparation 
for the next contract, Niagara Region is investigating options to increase participation in 
the recycling and organics diversion programs, such as EOW garbage collection and 
mandatory use of clear garbage bags. Experience in other Ontario jurisdictions 
demonstrates that EOW garbage collection is an effective mechanism to increase 
diversion. It is a best practice in Ontario and the highest residential diversion rate 
primarily attributable to EOW was in York Region (66% in 2016). While Niagara has 
achieved its 2016 residential diversion target of 56%, additional mechanisms are 
needed to achieve the 2020 target of 65%. These mechanisms also include improved 
recognition of waste reduction and reuse efforts, which traditionally are more difficult to 
measure. 

Estimated Landfill Capacity: 
At the time of this report, approval for the Humberstone Landfill expansion is expected 
to be finalized before the end of 2018. This landfill expansion will provide capacity for 
an estimated 25 years or more, based on serving the southern Niagara municipalities. 
The current remaining capacity at the Niagara Road 12 Landfill is 48 years, based on 
serving the municipalities of Pelham, Grimsby, Lincoln and West Lincoln. Niagara 
Region's current disposal contract with Walker Environmental for the remaining Niagara 
municipalities ends in February 2031, or just over 12 years. 

In order to ensure long term disposal capacity is available, Niagara Region staff are: 
i) Initiating the RFP for the Long Term Waste Management Strategic Plan in 2019-

2020. 
ii) Participating in the Municipal Mixed Waste Processing (MWP) Working Group, 

which has the objective to "identify collaboration opportunities and specific 
information needs, actions and timelines, in order to determine the feasibility of 
jointly implementing waste management policies, programs and/or facilities", which 
includes alternative technology facilities. 

iii) Continuing to engage other neighbouring municipalities in discussions related to 
available capacity at their current/future alternative waste management technology 

103



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 5 

facilities and future needs that could be addressed by partnering on alternative 
technologies. 

B) PROPOSED BASE COLLECTION OPTIONS 
The following proposed base collection options were included as part of the stakeholder 
consultation and engagement phase for Niagara Region's next collection contract: 

1) Change the weekly garbage container (bag/can) limits for IC&I and MU properties 
located inside DBAs from seven (7) containers to four (4) containers per property. 

2) Change the weekly garbage container limit for MU properties located outside DBAs 
from six (6) containers to four (4) containers per property. 

3) Every-other-week (EOW) collection for garbage only (weekly recycling and organics 
to continue) for all sectors outside DBAs: 
• Current garbage container limits would double for all sectors (i.e. LOR properties 

would be allowed to set out two (2) garbage containers, on an EOW basis). 
and/or 

4) Mandatory use of clear bags for garbage, with the option of allowing an opaque 
privacy bag to be placed inside the clear bag: 
• The clear bag program will be for all sectors (both inside and outside DBAs). 

5) Establishment of a four (4) item limit per residential unit, per collection, for large item 
collection at LOR properties, and, if requested by LAMs, as an enhanced collection 
service at eligible Multi-Residential (MR) and MU properties. 

6) Discontinuation of appliances and scrap metal collection at LOR properties. 

Rationale for Proposed Base Collection Options: 
The following rationale was taken into consideration when determining which collection 
options were recommended for consultation: 
1) Increasing participation and capture rates in the Region's recycling and organics 

diversion programs and extending existing landfill site capacity; 
• Nearly 50% of low density residential garbage is organic waste and only 48% use 

the residential Green Bin program; 
• IC&I and MU audits show diversion programs underutilized. 

2) Benchmarking collection services, based on the best practices and/or major trends 
observed from the service levels provided at Niagara's 13 municipal comparators 
that would result in financial , environmental and/or social benefit e.g. contract cost 
avoidance and increased diversion though the implementation of EOW garbage 
collection. 

3) Reflecting actual service usage based on results of curbside audits and other 
collection monitoring/measurements and contract cost avoidance for services with 
limited usage: 
• 99% of properties using the large item service set out 4 items or less and 92% of 

the total bookings were for 4 or less items. 
• Appliances and scrap metal: 

- Tonnages have decreased by 94% since 2007; 

104



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 6 

Items can be recycled , at no cost, at the Region's Drop-off Depots, or by 
scrap metal haulers/dealers; 

- Only 6% of properties are using the service. 
4) Standardizing base garbage collection limits across similar sectors to improve 

service delivery and program communication, increase participation and capture 
rates in diversion programs, potentially avoid contract costs for a service level which 
is not needed and reduce contract complexity - this specifically includes consistent 
base garbage collection container (bag/can) limits for the IC&I and MU sectors 
inside and outside DBAs; 
• Average number of garbage containers placed out per week: 

- IC&I properties inside DBAs was 2.1; 
- MU properties inside DBAs was 2.0; 
- MU properties outside the OBA is 2.4. 

• Proposed four (4) garbage container limit should meet the set-out needs of the 
IC&I and MU properties, based on these audit results , particularly if diversion 
services are utilized. IC&I properties outside DBAs already have a base four (4) 
garbage container limit in place. 

The associated rationale for each proposed base collection option and the curbside set
out audit .data for the IC&I and MU sectors are included in more detail in Appendix 3. 

C) STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT PHASE 

The stakeholder consultation and engagement phase was referred to as "Let's Talk 
Waste Niagara". 

Stakeholder consultation and engagement began in May 2018 and was carried out in 
two phases: 
1) Targeted Stakeholder Consultation 
2) Broad-based Community Consultation 

1) Targeted Stakeholder Consultation: 
Various stakeholder groups were targeted for consultation to provide input on the 
proposed collection options being considered for Niagara Region 's next contract. 
These stakeholder groups included: 
a) Regional Departments and Agencies, Boards and Commissions (ABCs) (i.e. Niagara 

Region's Planning and Development Services Department, Niagara Regional 
Housing, and Niagara Region 's Economic Development); 

b) Waste Management Advisory Committee (WMAC); 
c) Organizations Representing Businesses (i.e. Business Improvement Associations, 

Chambers of Commerce, Niagara Tourism Agencies, and Niagara Industrial 
Association) ; 

d) LAMs (i.e. municipal staff and Councillors) . 

105



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 7 

The formal input on the proposed collection options was received from the following 
targeted stakeholder groups: 

a) Regional Departments and ABCs: 
i) Niagara Region's Planning and Development Services: 

Niagara Region 's Planning and Development Services noted the proposed 
options align with and support policy 4.2. 9.1 d) i) of the Growth Plan, which 
relates to waste management. Staff also reviewed the proposed container limit 
changes pertaining to MU properties inside and outside DBAs, to ensure 
alignment with broader Corporate initiatives, including the objectives of Growth 
Management policies. Based upon their review, it was anticipated that smaller 
MU developments would not be affected by the proposed change in container 
limits. 

ii) Niagara Regional Housing: 
Niagara Regional Housing reviewed the relevant proposed collection options and 
indicated they would not be in support of EOW garbage collection, or mandatory 
use of clear bags for garbage at their properties. 

iii) Niagara Region's Economic Development: 
Niagara Region's Economic Development indicated that their work generally 
revolves around larger industrial companies, which would not use the Region's 
curbside garbage collection service, and would not be impacted by the proposed 
collection options. 

b) Waste Management Advisory Committee (WMAC) 
A meeting was held with members of the WMAC on November 21 , 2018 to discuss 
the proposed collection options and obtain their formal comments. The WMAC 
members voted all in favour or majority in favour of all of the proposed collection 
options. 

c) Organizations Representing Businesses (ORBs): 
Meetings were held with representatives from each of Niagara's local Business 
Improvement Associations (including LAM staff), Chambers of Commerce, Niagara 
Tourism Agencies, Niagara Economic Development Corporation, and Niagara 
Industrial Association, during the months of July, August and September. The dates 
of these meetings can be found in Appendix 5. 

106



The purpose of these meetings was to: 
• Discuss the proposed collection options; 
• Obtain their preliminary input on these options; 
• Obtain their input on how to further engage their members; and, 

PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 8 

• Request their formal comments on the proposed collection options by November 
30, 2018. 

The following ORBs provided formal comments on the proposed collection options for 
the next contract: 
• Queen Street BIA, Niagara Falls 
• Victoria Centre BIA, Niagara Falls 
• St. Catharines Downtown Business Association 
• Port Dalhousie Business Association 
• Grimsby Downtown Improvement Association 
• Pelham Business Association 

A copy of the ORB's comments were provided to the respective LAM, for their 
consideration, and are included in Appendix 4 . 

Based on the comments received, there was limited support for the mandatory use of 
clear bags for garbage, or the reduction in the garbage container limits for IC&I and 
MU properties inside the DBAs. 

d) Local Area Municipalities (LAMs) 
Correspondence on the proposed collection options and enhanced collection services 
was sent to LAM Clerks and Public Works Officials (PWO) in May 2018, for their 
review and comment. 

Niagara Region made presentations on the proposed collection options at several 
PWO meetings during 2018. In addition, Region staff offered to attend LAM 
Committee or Council meetings to make a presentation. As of December 19, Region 
staff were requested to present at the following LAM Committee or Council meetings: 
• Grimsby Council (December 17, 2018) 
• Niagara-on-the-Lake Council (January 7, 2019) 
• Lincoln Council (January 14, 2019) 
• Niagara Falls Council (January 15, 2019) 
• Fort Erie Council (January 21 , 2019) 
• West Lincoln Council (January 21 , 2019) 
• Welland General Committee (January 22, 2019) 

Town of Grimsby 
Town of Grimsby Council, at its December 17, 2018 meeting, approved the eight 
recommendations, which were included in Report DPW18-42: 

107



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 9 

1) Implement EOW garbage collection for all residential properties and for those IC&I 
and MU properties located outside the Grimsby DIA area, as a base service. 

2) Do not implement clear garbage bags. 
3) Establish a four-item limit for large item collection, per residential unit. 
4) Provide large-item collection at MR buildings with 7 or more residential units and 

MU properties with 1 or more residential unit. 
5) Discontinue appliances and scrap metal curbside collection at LOR properties. 
6) Reduce the number of garbage bags/containers for IC&I and MU properties inside 

the DIA area from 7 to 4 per week, as a base service. 
7) The Town's enhanced service and extra payment for collection inside the Grimsby 

DIA area remain at two collection days per week but changed to Tuesdays and 
Fridays and that the number of garbage bags/containers be reduced from 12 per 
pick-up day to 6 per pick-up day (12 per week), resulting in the Town's Enhanced 
service payment being reduced from 17 bags/containers per week to 8. 

8) The number of garbage bags/containers for MU properties outside the Grimsby 
DIA area be reduced from 6 to 4 per week, or 8 containers under EOW garbage 
collection, as a base service. 

Formal comments from the remaining LAMs on the proposed base collection options 
and which enhanced services are to be included in Niagara Region 's next contract 
are requested by February 1, 2019 or no later than February 20, 2019. 

2) Broad-based Community Consultation : 
In addition to targeted stakeholder consultation, a broad-based community consultation 
was undertaken with the following stakeholder groups: 

• LOR households; 
• MR property owners, groups and associations (i.e. property management 

companies); 
• IC&I and MU property owners 

This broad-based community consultation included the following activities and 
approaches: 
a) Promotion & Outreach; 
b) Surveys; 
c) Public Open Houses and Community Booths; 
d) Social Media; and 
e) Waste Management Info-Line and Website. 

a) Promotion & Outreach : 
The following mediums were used during the last week of October and the entire 
month of November to promote community consultation on the proposed collection 
options: 

(i) Niagara Region's Website 

108



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 10 

(ii) Social Media (i.e. Facebook paid ads and posts and Twitter posts) with a link to 
the "Let's Talk Waste" webpage; 

(iii) Letters sent to IC&I, MU and MR properties, which use Region 's curbside 
garbage; 

(iv) Newspaper Advertisements (i.e. print and on-line); 
(v) Media Coverage (i.e. Cogeco Your TV, 610 CKTB, newspaper articles) ; 
(vi) Postcards (Regional and Municipal offices) 

Details on each of the various promotional mediums can be found in Appendix 5. 

b) Surveys: 
A Request for Proposal was awarded to Metroline Research Group to undertake 
quantitative research to determine whether there was sufficient support for 
recommending the proposed collection options . The following surveys were 
completed: 
(i) On-line surveys were completed by 6,639 LOR households, 38 MR and 166 

IC&I and MU properties (86 outside DBAs and 80 inside DBAs); 
(ii) Telephone survey of 1,253 LOR households; 

Based on preliminary results , as of December 17, 2018, strong support for the 
following options occurred: 

• Establishment of a four (4) item limit per residential unit, per collection , fo r 
large item collection at LOR properties, as a base service. 

• Discontinuation of appliances and scrap metal curbside collection at LOR 
properties, as a base service. 

However, no clear LOR support for EOW garbage collection or mandatory use of 
clear garbage bags was demonstrated in the survey results: 

• LOR households were roughly split on supporting EOW garbage collection 
with slightly more leaning towards continuing their weekly collection. 

• Opposition to the mandatory use of clear garbage bags was apparent, 
particularly from the on-line survey (73% of LOR households opposed). 

In order to determine the order of preference for clear garbage bags versus EOW 
garbage collection (or both), all survey respondents were asked to make a program 
choice. The below table highlights the results from all stakeholder groups, with the 
exception of IC&I and MU inside DBAs who would not receive EOW garbage 
collection, and in many cases receive enhanced services. 

LOR MR IC&I and MU 
Outside DBAs 

Telephone On-line On-line On-line 
Clear Bag 33% 17% 29% 36% 
EOW 27% 33% 13% 15% 

109



LOR MR 

PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 11 

IC&I and MU 
Outside DBAs 

Both Clear Bag and 21 % 12% 18% 7% 
EOW 
Neither1 19% 38% 40% 42% 
1. In the telephone survey, LDR households could not see the option of 'neither' 

and the interviewer worked to obtain a choice, which is why this option has a 
much lower response than in the on-line surveys. 

In the case of the IC&I and MU sectors: 
• Majority of those property owners (58% of 43 respondents) receiving base 

garbage collection inside the DBAs indicated they can manage if the 
container limit is reduced from seven (7) containers to four (4) ; 

• Majority of those property owners (65% of 43 IC&I respondents and 74% of 
35 MU respondents) outside the DBAs support continuing the current level of 
service. 

A more detailed description of results is provided below. 

(i) On-line Surveys: 
On-line surveys were developed to obtain formal input from various stakeholder 
groups (i .e. LDR, MR, IC&I and MU) on the proposed collection options. These 
on-line surveys were open to all residents and businesses receiving Niagara 
Region 's curbside garbage collection service. 

A total of 6,639 on-line surveys were completed by LDR households, 38 on-line 
surveys by MR households, and 166 on-line surveys by IC&I and MU properties. 
There were no controls to limit the regions or populations for survey participants. 
However, Metroline monitored and deleted any duplicate survey submissions. 

The highlights of the on-line survey results for each sector are included below. 

• LOR: 
o 43% would be able to manage-with EOW garbage collection ; 
o 62% would not support mandatory use of clear bags for garbage; 
o 33% would choose the option of EOW garbage collection; 17% clear bags; 

12% both EOW and clear bags; and 38% neither option ; 
o 72% would not be impacted with placing a maximum limit of four large 

items per weekly collection; 
o 61 % would not be impacted with the elimination of curbside collection of 

appliances/scrap metal 

• MR: 
o 37% would be able to manage with EOW garbage collection; 

110



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 12 

o 42% would not support mandatory use of clear bags for garbage; 
o 13% would choose the option of EOW garbage collection; 29% clear bags; 

18% both EOW and clear bags; and 40% neither option 

• IC&I and MU Inside OBAs (Base Collection): 
o 58% could manage if the weekly base container limit was reduced from 

seven to four containers; 
o 46% of IC&I and 49% of MU properties would not support mandatory use 

of clear bags for garbage 

• IC&I and MU Inside OBAs (Enhanced Collection): 
o 66% feel they need to maintain their current container limits; 
o 87% feel they need to continue with their current frequency of collection 

• IC&I and MU Outside OBAs (Base Collection): 
o 66% of MU properties could manage if the weekly base container limit was 

reduced from six to four containers; 
o 35% of IC&I and 26% of MU properties would be able to manage with 

EOW garbage collection 
o 38% of IC&I and 63% of MU properties would not support mandatory use 

of clear bags for garbage 

(ii) Telephone Survey: 
Metroline conducted a random telephone survey of residents living in LOR 
properties. In total , 1,253 surveys were conducted, which can be considered 
statistically accurate to within +/-2.8%, 19 times out of 20 (95% Confidence 
Interval). The sample was divided between the 12 LAMs, with minimum of 75 
surveys was completed in each. 

The highlights of the telephone survey results are included below: 

• LOR: 
o 46% would be able to manage with EOW garbage collection; 
o 38% would not support mandatory use of clear bags for garbage; 
o 27% would choose the option of EOW garbage collection; 33% clear bags; 

21% both EOW and clear bags; and 19% neither option; 
o 89% would not be impacted with placing a maximum limit of four large 

items per weekly collection; 
o 75% would not be impacted with the elimination of curbside collection of 

appliances/scrap metal 

Additional details on the LOR on-line and telephone survey results can be found 
in Appendix 8. 

111



c) Public Open Houses and Community Booths: 

PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 13 

Niagara Region conducted one public open house and one community booth event 
in each of Niagara's 12 LAMs during the month of November. The dates and 
locations of these events can be found in Appendix 6. 

The purpose of these events was to engage participants on the proposed collection 
options and request their input on the proposed collection options through 
completion of the on-line survey. There were over 500 participants that attended 
these various events held across the region . 

The majority of comments received were related to the options for EOW garbage 
collection and mandatory use of clear garbage bags. Participants attending the 
community booths and open houses were divided about every-other-week garbage 
collection . While approximately half of the participants expressed their support, there 
were some specific concerns that were repeated throughout the consultation 
process. There was less support for clear bags, with the majority of participants 
expressing opposition to this option. 

A minority of the feedback and conversations at these events dealt with the options 
to introduce a four-item limit on large item collection and the discontinuation of 
appliances and scrap metal curbside collection, but of those commenting, there was 
a high level of support to implement these changes. 

Appendix 4 provides a summary of the more commonly-repeated concerns raised 
during these events. 

d) Social Media: 
Facebook was the primary social media platform used by stakeholders to comment 
on the proposed collection options for the next contract. The majority of comments 
were related to the proposed options for the mandatory use of clear garbage bags 
and every-other-week garbage collection. Of all the comments documented that 
were related to every-other-week garbage collection , 22% of comments were in 
support of this proposed option. For clear garbage bags, 10% of comments related 
to this option were supportive. 

Overall , the majority of commenters used this platform as a means of 
communicating their concerns. The comments posted on the Region's paid 
Facebook advertisement were reviewed, categorized and tallied. As of November 
30, 2018, there were 1,467 Facebook comments were posted. 

Appendix 4 provides a summary of the ten most frequently reported concerns, in 
order of the frequency that they appeared in the comments section. 

112



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 14 

e) Comments from Niagara Region 's Waste Management Info-Line and Website: 
A total of 65 comments/inquiries on the proposed collection options were received 
and responded to by staff through Niagara Region's Waste Management Info-Line, 
Website orby email in either June, October, or November. 

D) OVERVIEW OF KEY RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Base Collection Service Changes 
As a result of the stakeholder engagement and consultation process, the following key 
recommendations are being made: 

a) EOW Garbage Collection 
Based on best practices and experience with EOW garbage collection in Niagara's 
municipal comparator group (municipalities with populations greater than 300,000) and 
the potential for significant cost reduction, it is recommended that this option be 
included for pricing in the next collection contract RFP, for comparison with weekly 
garbage collection frequency. Although there was no clear stakeholder support and 
Niagara Regional Housing expressed opposition to this option, municipalities who have 
implemented this change note that residents do adapt and increase their diversion 
efforts, as a result. 

EOW garbage collection would apply to all residential properties and those Industrial, 
Commercial & Institutional (IC&I) and Mixed-Use (MU) properties located outside 
Designated Business Areas (DBAs), as a base service (weekly recycling and organics 
to continue, and current garbage container (bag/can) limits would double for affected 
sectors, on an EOW basis). 

b) Limit on Large Item Collection 
Establishment of a four (4) item limit per residential unit, per collection, for large item 
collection at LOR properties, as a base service is recommended, based on actual usage 
statistics and responses from a majority of survey respondents. 

c) Discontinuation of Appliances and Scrap Metal 
Discontinuation of appliances and scrap metal curbside collection at LOR properties, as 
a base service is recommended based on actual usage statistics and responses from a 
majority of survey respondents. 

d) Weekly Base Garbage Container Limits Inside DBAs 
Changing the weekly garbage container limits for IC&I and MU properties located inside 
Designated Business Areas (DBAs) from seven (7) containers to four (4) containers per 
property, as a base service, is recommended, based on actual usage statistics and 
responses from a majority of base service user on-line survey respondents. Although 
the base garbage container limit would decrease, eligible IC&I and MU properties inside 
the DBAs have unlimited organics and recycling collection once weekly, but currently 

113



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 15 

these diversion programs are underutilized. It should be noted that of the six (6) ORBs 
that provided formal comment, only one (1) supported this change. 

e) Weekly Base Garbage Container Limits Outside DBAs 
Changing the weekly garbage container limit for MU properties located outside DBAs 
from six (6) containers to four (4) containers per property, as a base service, is 
recommended, based on actual usage statistics and to achieve a standardized base 
collection service across all similar sectors (in combination with option d) above) . This 
will reduce service and contract complexity and improve program communication across 
the region . This change is also expected to result in increased diversion efforts, as the 
current unlimited recycling and organics program for all eligible IC&I and MU properties 
are currently underutilized. The IC&I sector outside the DBAs has had four (4) container 
limit per property, as a base service since March 2011 . However, it should be noted 
that out of the 43 MU survey respondents, only one third felt they could manage if this 
change was made. 

While the initial list of all proposed options is supported by WMAC and Niagara Region's 
Planning and Development Services noted the options align with and support policy 
4.2.9.1 d) i) of the Growth Plan, which relates to waste management, one of the options 
is not recommended for implementation based on the general lack of support from 
survey respondents. The use of mandatory clear garbage bags will continue to be 
monitored for potential future implementation but based on existing data from Ontario 
jurisdictions, EOW garbage collection is expected to have more of a positive financial 
and diversion performance impact. 

In order to address the concerns and comments received on the proposed options 
being recommended for inclusion in the next collection contract, Appendix 7 proposes 
potential solutions to minimize impact of the change(s) on the service user. This 
appendix will continue to be developed and expanded, as required . 

2. Enhanced Collection Service Changes 

Niagara Region is requesting that LAMs confirm existing or new enhanced services that 
should be provided as part of the next collection contract. There are three areas that 
should be specifically addressed: 

a) In those LAMS that provide enhanced garbage collection service to DBAs, Regional 
staff have been engaged in discussions with Local Public Works Officials on one or 
more of the following proposals for the IC&I and MU sectors, based on usage of 
current garbage collection service and underutilization of the diversion programs: 
• Reducing OBA garbage container limits; 
• Reducing frequency of OBA garbage collection; and 
• Increasing recycling and/or organics collection service to align with frequency of 

garbage collection . 

114



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 16 

b) Provision of enhanced bulky goods collection to those households in MR buildings 
with seven (7) or more residential units (garbage limit of a maximum of 12 containers 
per week with no tags) and MU properties with one (1) or more residential unit 
(garbage limit of a maximum of seven (7) containers per week outside the OBA and 
a maximum of six (6) containers per week inside the OBA), that receive the Region's 
curbside base garbage collection and/or to those MR building receiving enhanced 
Regional containerized front end garbage collection service: 

• These properties must be participating in the Region 's diversion programs (i.e. 
recycling and organics) in order to qualify to receive this service. 

• This service would be provided in a manner that is parallel to the approved 
service for the LOR sector. 

c) Verification if any municipality would like to include a per stop price for in-ground 
public space recycling and litter bins and/or for in-ground IC&I, MR and/or MU 
properties (all streams), as an enhanced service under provisional items. 

3. Contract Service Improvements 
As outlined in Report WMPSC-C 9-2018, staff will be pursuing the following service 
improvements in the next collection contract RFP: 
a) Potential changes to how the Region collects leaf and yard waste (L& YW) and brush 

at LOR households, which would be a seamless change to residents: 
• In addition to the current service level, the Region would obtain pricing to provide 

an additional four weeks of dedicated L&YW and branch collection in the spring 
and the fall seasons, in the urban areas only, or potentially expanding a dedicated 
L&YW and brush collection to approximately ten (10) months of the year in urban 
areas; 

• This change would result in lower organics processing costs by separating L& YW 
material from green bin material, thereby removing this material from the GORE 
system; 

• This change would result in increased organics collection costs associated with 
providing these additional L&YW and branch collection service; 

• Staff will need to complete a cost-benefit analysis to determine whether the 
. organics processing cost ~avings outweigh the increased collection costs before 

determining whether to proceed with these changes. 

b) Elimination of a current restriction that impacts IC&I properties with private garbage 
collection. Currently, these properties, which would otherwise have been eligible to 
receive curbside garbage collection, are restricted from using this service. 

• These properties must be participating in the Region's diversion programs (i.e. 
recycling and organics), in order to qualify to receive the curbside garbage 
collection service. 

115



E) NEXT STEPS 

PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 17 

The Region is requesting receipt of the following from LAMs by February 1, 2019 or no 
later than Feb 20, 2019: 
• Comments/position on proposed base collection service options; 
• Verification of current or additional enhanced services - this would include: 

Services to IC&I and MU properties inside DBAs; 
Provision of enhanced large item collection service to MR and MU residential 
units, in a manner parallel to the service provided to the LOR sector (i.e. if LOR 
has a 4 item limit per unit per collection day, this would also apply to MR and 
MU residential units); 
Inclusion of a per stop price for in-ground public space recycl ing and litter bins 
and/orfor in-ground IC&I, MR and/or MU properties (all streams), as an 
enhanced service under provisional items. 

The milestones for the collection contract RFP development are outlined below: 
• Report to Public Works Committee (PWC) and Council on results of stakeholder 

consultation and engagement (PWC January 8, 2019 and Council January 17, 
2019); 

• Receipt of each LAM's position on base and enhanced services (no later than 
February 20, 2019); 

• Council approval of service levels to be included and RFP development initiated (Q2 
to Q3 2019); 

• RFP issuance (early Q4 2019); 
• Award of new collection contract (Q1 2020); 
• One year for successful bidders to order/receive their fleet of collection vehicles (Q1 

2020 to Q1 2021); 
• Start of new contract (March 8, 2021 ). 

Alternatives Reviewed 

Niagara Region investigated the option of switching over to cart-based collection for the 
next collection contract. Under the Province's Environmental Plan, waste diversion 
programs, such as the Blue Box Program, may be moving to the producer responsibility 
model. As a result, Niagara Region would no longer be responsible for providing 
collection and processing of Blue Box materials. This would be the responsibility of the 
Blue Box industry stewards. Therefore, at this time, staff did not believe implementing 
major program changes was advisable. 

Also, based on the experiences of other municipalities that implemented a cart-based 
collection program, this option was not recommended for further consideration for the 
following reasons: 

1) Significant capital costs to purchase and distribute the carts 

116



PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 18 

2) On-going annual maintenance and replacement costs associated with the carts 
3) Higher contamination rates of the recycling and organics streams associated 

with the use of carts. As a result, there would be a decrease in the Reg ion's 
revenues and difficulty with marketing the recyclables. 

4) Additional costs associated with retrofitting Niagara Region 's Materials 
Recycling Facility from the current two-stream operation to a single-stream 
operation, if all recyclables are collected in one cart. 

Based on the results received during the stakeholder consultation and engagement 
phase, the following proposed collection option is not being recommended for 
implementation, as part of Niagara Region's next collection contract: 

1) Mandatory use of clear bags for garbage, with the option of allowing an opaque 
privacy bag to be placed inside the clear bag 

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities 

The recommendation to approve the proposed base collection services for Niagara 
Region's next collection contract supports Council's Strategic Priority of Investment, 
Innovation and Entrepreneurship. 

Other Pertinent Reports 

• CWCD 357-2018 Let's Talk Waste Niagara - Stakeholder Consultation and 
Engagement Activities for the Proposed Waste Collection Options 

• CWCD 216-2018 Fact Sheet- Consultation and Engagement Strategy for Proposed 
Service Level Collection Options Under Consultation 

• WMPSC-C 9-2018 Stakeholder Consultation and Engagement on Proposed 
Collection Service Changes for Next Collection Contract 

• WMPSC-C 34-2017 Schedule for the Next Regional Waste, Recycling and Organics 
Collection Contract 

• PW 42-2014 A Matter of the Security of the Property of the Municipality- Bulky/ 
White Goods Collection Service for Multi-Residential and Mixed-Use Properties 

• WMPSC-C 44-2013 Bulky/White Goods Collection Service for Multi-Residential and 
Mixed-Use Properties 

• WMPSC-C 2-2013 Large Item Collection Service for Multi-Residential Buildings and 
Mixed-Use Properties 

• PW 47-2012 Consultation Results on Proposed Clear Bag Pilot for Industrial, 
Commercial and Institutional Properties 

• WMPSC 24-2011 Clear Bag for Garbage Pilot for Industrial, Commercial and 
Institutional Properties 

117



Prepared by: 
Brad Whitelaw, BA, CIM, P.Mgr, CAPM 
Program Manager, Policy & Planning 
Waste Management Services 

Submitted by: 
Ron Tripp, P.Eng. 
Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

Recommended by: 
Catherine Habermebl 
Acting Commissioner 
Public Works 

PW 3-2019 
January 8, 2019 

Page 19 

This report was prepared in consultation with Susan McPetrie, Waste Management Services 
Advisor and reviewed by Sara Mota, Program Financial Specialist, and Catherine Habermebl, 
Director, Waste Management Services. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Comparison of Current vs. Proposed Base Collection Services Page 20 
Appendix 2 - Comparison of Current vs. Previous Enhanced Collection Services Page 24 
Appendix 3 - Rationale for Proposed Collection Options for Next Contract Page 29 
Appendix 4 - Stakeholder Comments on Proposed Base Collection Options Page 46 
Appendix 5 - Stakeholder Consultation and Engagement Process Page 55 
Appendix 6 - Summary of Stakeholder Consultation and Engagement Events Page 63 
Appendix 7 - Addressing Concerns Related to Proposed Collection Options Page 64 
Appendix 8 - LOR Telephone and On-line Survey Results Page 67 

118



Appendix 1 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 20 

Appendix 1 - Comparison of Current vs. Proposed Base Collection Services 

l l 
Property Type Current Base Collection Proposed Base Collection 

Low-Density 
Residential 
(1 to 6 units): 
single-family, 
townhouse, semi
detached, duplex, 
triplex, fourplex, 
fiveplex, sixplex, 
cottages 

Multi-Residential 
(7 or more units): 
• apartments, 

cottages, 
condominiums 
and rentals, 
nursing and 
retirement 
homes, mixed
use, rooming/ 
boarding houses 

Service Level Service Level 

• Weekly garbage, 1 bag/can 
limit per residential unit 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes 

• Weekly, unlimited Green Bins 

• Large items, with no limit per 
collection , per residential unit 

• Appliances and scrap metal, 
with no limit per collection, per 
residential unit 

• Weekly Leaf & Yard Waste 
(L& YW) and 8 brush collections 
per year 

• Weekly garbage, 1 bag/can 
limit per residential unit, 
maximum 12 bags per building 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green Bins 
or Green Carts (by request) 

• Every-other-week garbage, 2 
bag/can limit per residential unit, 
and/or 

• Mandatory use of clear garbage 
bags 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes 

• Weekly, unlimited Green Bins 

• Large items, with 4 item limit per 
collection, per residential un it 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• Weekly L& YW and 8 brush 
collections per year 

• Additional 4 weeks of dedicated 
L& YW and brush collections in 
the spring and the fall seasons, 
in urban areas only 

• Every-other-week garbage, 2 
bag/can limit per residential unit, 
maximum 24 bags per building 
and/or 

• Mandatory use of clear garbage 
bags 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green Bins or 
Green Carts (by request) 

119



Property Type Current Base Collection 
Service Level 

• No large item collection 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

Mixed Use • Weekly garbage, maximum 7 
Buildings - Inside bag/can limit per property 
OBA 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green 
Bins/Carts 

• No large item collection 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

Mixed Use • Weekly garbage, maximum 6 
Buildings- bag/can limit per property 
Outside OBA 

Appendix 1 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 21 

Proposed Base Collection 
Service Level 

• Provision of large item collection 
to properties receiving Region's 
curbside base or enhanced 
garbage collection (ELOS 
provided only) 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

•Weekly garbage, maximum 4 
bag/can limit per property 
and/or 

• Mandatory use of clear garbage 
bags 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green 
Bins/Carts 

• Provision of large item collection 
to residential units only, which 
receive Region 's curbside base 
or enhanced garbage collection 
(ELOS provided only) 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

• Weekly garbage, maximum 4 
bag/can limit per property 

• Every-other-week garbage 
collection, maximum 8 bag/can 
limit per property (if container 
limit decrease approved) 
and/or 

• Mandatory use of clear garbage 
bags 

120



.. 

Property Type 
l Current Base Collection 

l 

Service Level 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green 
Bin/Carts 

• No large item collection 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

IC&I Properties - • Weekly garbage, maximum 7 
Inside OBA bag/can limit per property 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green 
Bin/Carts 

• No large item collection 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

IC&I Properties- • Weekly garbage, maximum 4 
Outside OBA bag/can limit per property 

Appendix 1 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 22 

Proposed Base Collection 
Service Level 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green 
Bin/Carts 

• Provision of large item collection 
to residential units only, which 
receive Region's curbside base 
or enhanced garbage collection 
(ELOS provided only) 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

• Weekly garbage, maximum 4 
bag/can limit per property 
and/or 

• Mandatory use of clear garbage 
bags 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green 
Bin/Carts 

• No large item collection 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

• Every-other-week garbage, 
maximum 8 bag/can limit per 
property 
and/or 

• Mandatory use of clear garbage 
bags 

• Elimination of restriction on 
curbside garbage collection for 

121



Property Type Current Base Collection 
Service Level 

• 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green 
Bin/Carts 

• No large item collection 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L&YW or brush collection 

Appendix 1 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 23 

Proposed Base Collection 
Service Level 

IC&I properties receiving private 
garbage collection 

• Weekly, unlimited Blue/Grey 
Boxes or Carts 

• Weekly, unlimited Green 
Bin/Carts 

• No large item collection 

• No appliances and scrap metal 
collection 

• No L& YW or brush collection 

122



A d" 2 c ppen 1x -
Municipality 

Fort Erie 

Grimsby 

Lincoln 

Niagara Falls 

Appendix 2 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 24 

ompanson o f C t urren vs. p rev1ous E h n ance d C II f S o ec ion erv1ces 
2004-11 Collection Contract 2011-21 Collection Contract 
Street Litter Receptacle Collection 
• Once-per-week collection • Twice-per-week collection 

(Jarvis and Ridge Road) (Jarvis St, Ridge Rd and 
Niagara Blvd. 

• Once-per-week collection 
(Crystal Beach OBA) 

• Once-per-week collection 
(Garrison Rd.) 

Street Litter Receptacle Collection 
.. -

• Twice-per week collection • Three days-per-week collection 
• Once-per-week collection on 

Windward Dr. 
Addit.ional Curbside Waste Collection 
• One additional garbage • One additional collection day 

collection day per week in the per week in the downtown core 
downtown core • Maximum of 12 garbage 

• Maximum of 12 garbage containers per property per 
containers per property per collection day in the downtown 
collection day in the downtown core 
core 

Contain.erized Waste Collection 
• Once-per-week collection • Once-per-week collection 
Weekly (Blue and Grey) Recycling Cart Collection - -
•Once-per-week (Monday) • Every municipality with a 

Designated Business Area 
receives weekly recycling 
collection as part of base 
collection service 

.,Street Litter Receptacle Collection 
-

•Seven days-per-week, year- •Seven days-per-week, year-
round collection in Mainline round collection in Mainline 
business district business district 

• Chippawa area collected on • Chippawa OBA collected once-
Thursday by residential truck per week. One additional day 
and Sundays, mid-May to mid- per week collection from mid-
October, as part of Mainline May to mid-October 
business district •Collection once-per-week for 

street litter receptacles outside 
the Mainline 

123



A d" 2 c ,ppen 1x -
Municipality 

Niagara-on-
the-Lake 

Appendix 2 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 25 

omparison o f C t urren vs. p rev1ous E h n ance dC II f S o ec ion erv1ces 
2004-11 Collection Contract 2011-21 Collection Contract 

Containerized Waste Collection 
• Once or twice per week • Multi-residential buildings with 

(Monday and/or Thursday) varying collection frequency 

Additional Curbside Waste CollectiAn 
~ ···- -

•All tourisUcommercial business •All tourist/commercial 
(lodging and food outlets only) businesses (lodging and food 
on the Mainline receive an outlets only) on the Mainline 
increase to 20 garbage receive an increase from seven 
containers per property, to fifteen garbage containers per 
between July 1 to Labour Day property, between the Victoria 

Day weekend and Labour Day 
Old Corrugated Cardboard Collection 
• Once-per-week collection (over • No collection of old corrugated 

two days-Thursday and Friday) cardboard 
Special Set-out Collection for Physically-Challenged Residents 
• Set-out and collection service • Included in base collection 

of standard limit garbage, services 
organics and recycling 
containers 

Additional Curbside Waste Collection 
- - - .. - ~ -· -

-
•Two additional garbage •Two additional garbage 

collection days per week in the collection days per week in the 
downtown core downtown core 

• Maximum of 20 garbage •Maximum of 20 garbage 
containers per property for containers per property for each 
each collection day collection day 

Old Corrugated Cardboard Collection 
- - - ·-

• Weekly cardboard collection • Two days of curbside collection 
from commercial properties in of cardboard from commercial 
the Queen Street Commercial properties in the Queen Street 
Area, two days per week: Commercial Area 
Monday and Thursday 

Weekly (Both Streams) Recycling Cart Collection 
- - -

• Once-per-week collection • Every municipality with a 
Designated Business Area 
receives weekly recycling 
collection as part of base 
collection service 

124



A d" 2 c ppen 1x -
Municipality 

Pelham 

Port 
Col borne 

Appendix 2 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 26 

ompanson o f C t urren vs. p revaous E h n ance d C II f S o ec ion ervaces 
2004-11 Collection Contract 2011-21 Collection Contract 

Street Litter RE¥ceptacle Collection -

• Once-per-week collection •Twice-per-week collection 
Containerized Waste Collection 
• Once-per-week collection • Once-per-week collection, with 

the exception on one property 
receiving twice-per-week 
collection 

We~kly (Both Streams) Recycling Cart Collection 

• Once-per-week collection • Every municipality with a 
(Thursday) Designated Business Area 

receives weekly recycling 
collection as part of base 
collection service 

Specl_al Set-out Collection for Physically-Challenged Residents 
• Set-out and collection service • Included in base collection 

of standard limit garbage, services 
organics and recycl ing 
containers 

Str.eet Litter Receptacle Collection 
·--· - ·-- - -

·-~ -· 
• No street litter receptacle • There are street litter 

collection receptacles (OMG bins) that 
require separate collection of 
Grey and/or Blue Box materials. 
The recycling from the 
compartmentalized bins are 
collected separately and at the 
same frequency as garbage 
containers 

Additional Curb.side Waste ,ColleCtiori 
.. ,. ,II - • - ""II 

• Daily garbage collection at Port • No additional curbside waste 
Colborne Hospital (Monday- collection as part of enhanced 
Friday). No container limit. services 

•Additional garbage container 
limits at group homes, schools, 
Home Hardware 

Old Corrugated Cardboard'Collectiorf · ·r.r. - ·• 
·--,f - -~- .. ~-· --

• Once-per-week collection • Every municipality with a 
(Thursday) Designated Business Area 

receives weekly recycling 

125



Appendix 2 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 27 

Appendix 2 - Comparison of Current vs. Previous Enhanced Collection Services 
Municipality 2004-11 Collection Contract 2011-21 Collection Contract 

collection as part of base 
collection service 

Street Litter Receptacle Collection ' 

•Seven days-per-week, •Four days-per-week collection 
including all parks, sports for Downtown St.Catharines 
facilities and recyclables from • Seven days-per-week, from May 
OMG bins 1 to October 31 inclusive, and 

one (1) day per week, from 
November 1 to April 30 inclusive 
in Port Dalhousie 

•Once-per-week collection for all 
other street litter receptacles 
located on city streets, in front 
of schools, in sports facilities, 
parks, cemeteries, and 
recreational and community 
centres 

Containerized Waste Collection 
, .. - - - -

• Variable frequency - multi- •Variable frequency - multi-
residential/Downtown IC&I residential properties 

St.Catharines 
properties and pullout service 

Additional Curbside Waste Collection - - -· - -· 

•Six additional collection days • Three additional collection days 
per week in the downtown per week in the downtown core, 
core, over and above the Base over and above the Base Level 
Level of Service of Service 

• Maximum of 7 garbage 
containers per property per 
collection day in the downtown 
core 

Old Corrugated Cardboard Collection -- -

• Communal front-end cardboard 
containers shared by 
businesses in the downtown 
collection area 

Weekly (Both Streams-) Recycling Cart Collection 
, __ 

• Once-per-week collection • Every municipality with a 
(Monday or Thursday) Designated Business Area 

receives weekly recycling 
collection , as part of base 

126



A d" 2 c .ppen 1x -
Municipality 

Thorold 

Welland 

West Lincoln 

Appendix 2 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 28 

ompanson o f C t urren vs. p rev1ous E h n ance d C II f S o ec ion erv1ces 
2004-11 Collection Contract 2011-21 Collection Contract 

collection service 
Special S~f-out. Collection for Physically-Challenged Residents 
• Set-out and collection service • Included in base collection 

of standard limit garbage, services 
organics and recycling 
containers 

Stre_et Litter Receptacle Collection -- - - - - -· 

•Three days-per-week collection • Three days-per-week collection 
Addition·a1 ICur6side Waste {Collection " 

• Two additional collection days •Two additional collection days 
per week in the downtown per week in the downtown core 
core 

Add~tional Blue 8Qx Collection 
-· ·-- -.~ , .. - ""'I.I. ~-·-·-·- - ~-· -

•Additional weekly collection of • Additional weekly collection of 
Blue Box recyclables for all Blue Box recyclables for all 
commercial properties located commercial properties located 
within the City of Thorold 's BIA. within the City of Thorold's BIA. 

Cc;mtainerized Wiste Collection 
• No containerized waste • Once-per-week collection 

collection (condo properties) 
Cont~inerized Waste Collection 

' 
•Once-per-week collection •Once or twice-per-week 

collection dependini:i on location 
Additional Curbside Waste Collection 
• No additional curbside waste • One additional collection day per 

collection week in the downtown core 
• Maximum of 7 garbage 

containers per property per 
collection day in the downtown 
core 

127



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 29 

Appendix 3 - Rationale for Proposed Collection Service Options for Next Contract 

Proposed Collection Service Options: 

1) Change the weekly garbage container (bag/can) limits for IC&I and MU 
properties located inside Designated Business Areas (OBA) from seven (7) 
containers to four (4) containers per property, as a base service. 

Pros Cons 
1) Fairness & equity: 1) Potential illegal dumping: 
Base Collection Service: • if garbage container limits 
• based on the 2018 curbside audits: are decreased , there is 

- average# of garbage containers placed out potential for businesses 
per week by IC&I properties inside DBAs and residents to illegally 
was 2.1. dump items. 

- in 2018, audits were completed in : 
Grimsby, Welland (Downtown and North 2) Potential for increased 
End), Port Colborne (Main St. and number of complaints from 
Downtown), Lincoln (Beamsville and business owners, MU 
Vineland), Pelham, Thorold , St. Catharines property owners and 
(Downtown and Port Dalhousie), Fort Erie residents due to reduced 
(Ridgeway, Bridgeburg, and Crystal container limit: 
Beach), and Niagara Falls (Queen, Main • business owners may 
St. , Lundy's Lane, Clifton Hill and potentially complain about 
Chippawa) DBAs. this reduction in container 

• based on the 2016 and 2018 curbside audits: limit being provided to their 
- average# of garbage containers placed out property. 

per week by MU properties inside DBAs 
was 2.0. 

- in 2016, audits were completed in : Fort 
Erie (Ridge~ay, Bridgeburg, and Crystal 
Beach), Welland (Downtown and North 
End) , and Port Colborne (Main St. and 
Downtown) DBAs. 

- in 2018, audits were completed in: 
Grimsby, Lincoln (Beamsville and 
Vineland) , Pelham, Thorold , St. Catharines 
(Downtown and Port Dalhousie) , and 
Niagara Falls (Queen, Main St. , Lundy's 
Lane, Clifton Hill and Chippawa) DBAs. 

• the proposed 4 garbage container limit 
should meet the set-out needs of the IC&I 
and MU properties, based on these audit 
results , particularly if diversion services are 

128



Pros 
utilized. 

• the proposed 4 garbage container limit will 
align with the existing 4 garbage container 
limit for IC&I properties located outside 
DBAs, and the proposed limit for IC&I and 
MU properties located inside DBAs. 

• it will encourage participation in diversion 
programs, which are under-utilized. 

Enhanced Collection Service: 
• based on the 2014 garbage set-outs at 

enhanced IC&I properties: 
- Grimsby (12 garbage container limit, twice 

per week) - average # of garbage 
containers placed out per set-out: 3.6 

- West Lincoln (7 garbage container limit, 
twice per week) - average # of garbage 
containers placed out per set-out: 2.5 

- Thorold (7 garbage container limit, three 
times per week) - average # of garbage 
containers placed out per set-out: 4 .5 

• based on the 2015 garbage set-outs at 
enhanced Niagara Falls IC&I and MU 
properties: 
- Main Street, Lundy's Lane and Queen 

Street DBAs - average # of garbage 
containers placed out per set-out: 5.2 
(IC&I) and 2.9 (MU) 

- audits were completed during the summer 
months, when the 15 garbage container 
limit was in effect for food and lodging 
outlets (1 collection per week). It is a 7 
garbage container limit elsewhere, 
once/week. 

• based on the 2018 garbage set-outs at 
enhanced IC&I and/or MU properties: 
- Grimsby (12 garbage container limit, twice 

per week) - average # of garbage 
containers placed out per set-out: 1.6 (MU) 

- West Lincoln (7 garbage container limit, 
twice per week) - average # of garbage 
containers placed out per set-out: 1.7 (MU) 

Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 30 

Cons 

129



Pros 
- Thorold (7 garbage container limit, three 

times per week) - average # of garbage 
containers placed out per set-out: 1 .9 (MU) 

- Natl (20 garbage container limit, three 
times per week) - average # of garbage 
containers placed out per set-out: 6 .0 
(IC&I) and 6.8 (MU) 

- St. Catharines (7 garbage container limit, 
four times per week) - average# of 
garbage containers placed out per set-out: 
2.7 (IC&I) and 1.5 (MU) 

Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 31 

Cons 

2) Change the weekly garbage container limit for MU properties located outside 
DBAs from six (6) containers to four (4) containers per property, as a base 
service. 

Pros Cons 
1) Fairness & equity: 1) Potential illegal dumping: 
Base Collection Service: • if garbage container limits 
• based on the 2014 curbside audit: are decreased, there is 

- average # of garbage containers placed out potential for businesses 
per week by MU properties outside DBAs: and residents to illegally 
2.4 dump items. 

• the proposed four (4) container limit would 
meet the set-out needs of the MU properties, 2) Potential for increased 
based on these audit results. number of complaints from 

• the proposed four (4) container garbage limit business owners, due to 
will align with the existing four container reduced container limit: 
garbage limit for IC&I properties located • business owners, MU 
outside DBAs, and the proposed limit for IC&I property owners and 
and MU properties located inside DBAs. residents may potentially 

• it will increase diversion, with less reliance on complain about this 
landfill. reduction in container limit 

being provided to their 
property. 

3) Every-other-week (EOW) collection for garbage only (weekly recycling and 
organics to continue) for all sectors outside DBAs, as a base service. Current 
garbage container limits would double for all sectors (i.e. LDR properties 
would be allowed to set out two 2 arba e containers, on an EOW basis . 

Cons 

130



Pros 
• approximately 70% of the municipal 

comparators (Barrie, Durham, Halton, 
Markham, Ottawa, Toronto, Vaughan, 
Peel and Waterloo) provide EOW garbage 
collection service. Residents have 
adapted to this change. 

2) Increased waste diversion: 
• waste diversion rates increased between 

6% (Peel) and 16% (Durham) for these 
municipal comparators. This depended on 
whether they introduced other diversion 
programs (i.e. organics) at the same time 
as EOW garbage. 

3) Potential contract savings: 
• annual contract savings for the municipal 

comparators ranged between $200,000 
(Barrie), Waterloo ($1.5 million) , and $12 
million (Peel) , depending on size of the 
contract and any other contract changes 
that were implemented (i.e. EOW, carts, 
etc.). 
- However, Peel staff reported a one-time 

initial cost to implement three stream 
cart collection of $35 million (based on 
325,000 single-family homes), with an 
estimated annual maintenance and 
replacement cost of $1 to 3 million. 

• avoided Walker disposal costs, if there is a 
decrease in the volume of garbage 
collected. 

4) Regional disposal capacity: 
• preservation of existing Regional disposal 

capacity, if the volume of garbage 
landfilled decreases. 

5) Fairness & equity: 
• based on the 2015-16 waste composition 

study, Niagara's LOR properties set out 
an averaQe of 0.9 QarbaQe containers per 

2) 

Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 32 

Cons 
• if residents/businesses are 

not provided with weekly 
garbage collection service, 
there is potential for them to 
illegally dump items. 

Potential increased number 
of complaints, due to 
reduction in service: 
• Residents/businesses may 

complain about this 
reduction in garbage 
collection service being 
provided to their property. 

131



Pros 
week. 

Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 33 

Cons 

4) Mandatory use of clear bags for garbage, with the option of allowing an 
opaque privacy bag to be placed inside the clear bag. The clear bag program 
will be for all sectors (both inside and outside DBAs), as a base service. 

Pros Cons 
1) Increased waste diversion: 1) Perception of invasion of privacy: 

• studies completed by Ontario's • residents using clear bags may 
Stewardship Effectiveness & complain it is an invasion of their 
Efficiency Fund report that "clear privacy. 
bag programs are successful in - this concern is partially 
decreasing the amount of addressed by allowing the use 
recyclables being landfilled or of an opaque bag inside the 
incinerated, and have shown that clear bag. 
mandatory by-laws and clear bags • IC&I business groups, who 
result in maximum participation and participated in the Region's 2012 
diversion". consultation sessions for a clear 

• implementing clear bags resulted in garbage bag pilot, expressed 
a 6% increase in Markham's 2014 privacy concerns, as well. 
diversion rate, for a total diversion 
rate of 81 %. 2) Potential illegal dumping: 

• residents are motivated to recycle • residents and businesses 
due to social pressure. opposing the use of clear garbage 

bags may potentially illegally 
2) Enforcement/safety: dump their garbage. 

• increases awareness of what is 
placed in the garbage, due to 3) Collection issues: 
visibility of bag contents. • if a clear bag is placed inside a 

• eliminates (or minimizes) the option reusable container, enforcement 
of concealing hazardous or other may become more difficult if 
non-acceptable materials (e.g. driver dumps the contents of the 
recyclables and organics) in the container directly into truck, as 
garbage. opposed to pulling the clear bag 

• facilitates education and out of the container to look at it. 
enforcement of Niagara's Waste • the IC&I business groups 
Management By-law, where expressed concerns about the 
necessary. aesthetics of uncollected bags, 

which would contain non-
3) Fairness & equity: acceptable materials, being left in 

• clear bags are currently being used downtown or tourist areas. 
for diapers by those Niagara 
residents operatinq daycares out of 4) Other Municipal programs: 

132



Pros 
their households, or families with at 
least two children under the age of 
four years old . 
- these residents may feel the 

program ensures equal treatment 
for all households. 

Cons 

Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 34 

• clear bag pilots were 
implemented in two comparator 
municipalities (Durham and 
Markham), however only 
Markham implemented a full 
program. 

• Durham decided not to 
implement a region-wide clear 
bag program in 2014, due to a 
lack of information on the 
effectiveness of the clear bag in 
reducing the amount of garbage 
collected. 

5) Establishment of a four (4) item limit per unit per collection for large item 
service at LOR, MR and MU properties. 

Pros 
1) Municipal best practice/trend: 

• average large item limit is three per 
residential unit for those 
municipalities with weekly collection, 
and four per residential unit with bi
weekly collection. 

2) Potential contract savings: 
• municipalities that implemented 

collection limits on the number of 
large items reported contract savings. 

3) Fairness & equity: 
• provides a standardized collection 

limit for all properties. 
• Niagara residents set out an 

average of fewer than 2 large items 
per collection in 2018. 

6) Discontinuation of a liances and scra 
Pros 

1) Municipal best practice/trend: 
• approximately half of municipal 

com arators Barrie, Hamilton, 

Cons 
1) Potential illegal dumping: 

• if residents are limited in the 
amount of large items that can be 
collected , there is potential for 
them to illegally dump items. 

2) Potential increased number of 
complaints from residents, due to 
reduction in service: 
• residents may complain about this 

reduction in service being 
provided to their property. 

metal collection at LOR ro erties. 
Cons 

1) Potential illegal dumping: 
• if residents are not provided with 

service, there is otential for them 

133



Pros 
London , Ottawa, Peel and Windsor) 
do not provide appliance collection 
service. 

2) Potential contract savings: 
• municipalities that eliminated this 

collection service realized a contract 
savings. In Peel, th is was a net 
annual savings of $100K. 

• Niagara's current annual cost to 
collect these items is $126K (or 
$2,032 per tonne due to the reduced 
tonnage). 

• many appliances and scrap metal 
items are scavenged before 
municipal contractors can collect 
them. 
- for the first two months of 2018, 

Emterra reported that 
approximately 60% of the items 
scheduled for collection were "not 
out" and were potentially 
scavenged. 

• appliance and scrap metal tonnages 
collected in 2017 were 94% lower 
than what was collected in 2007. 

3) Fairness & equity: 
• residents have the option to recycle 

these items, at no cost, at the 
Region's drop-off depots or a scrap 
metal dealer, as well as call a scrap 
metal hauler to collect them. 

2) 

Cons 

Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 35 

to illegally dump items. 
• Barrie reported an increase in 

illegal dumping when bulky/white 
goods collection service was 
discontinued; however it was not 
sustained (approximately six 
months). 

• Peel provided its residents with 
advanced notice of this 
discontinuation of service and 
options for collection, so they did 
not see any significant increase in 
illegal dumping. 

Potential increased number of 
complaints from residents, due to 
elimination of this service: 
• residents may complain about the 

elimination of this service. 
• those municipalities that 

discontinued collection (Barrie, 
Hamilton, Ottawa and Peel) 
reported a minimal reaction from 
their residents. 

134



Audit Results 

Base Collection Service Audit Results 

Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 36 

Weekly Average Garbage Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties Inside the OBA 
(Base Collection Area) 
Municipality Audit Year Average Average% Average Average% 

Number of of Number of of IC&I 
IC&I Participating Garbage Properties 

Properties IC&I Containers Exceeding 
Participating Properties Per Set-Out Garbage 
in Regional Using Container 
Collection Regional Limit 

Service Garbage 
Collection 

Service 
Inside OBA 

Fort Erie 2018 56 88% 1.6 0% 
Grimsby 2018 9.0 89% 1.2 0% 
Lincoln 2018 18 83% 2.1 3% 
Niagara 

2015 94.5 87% 2.7 6% 
Falls 
Pelham 2018 34 85% 2.3 3% 
Port 2018 72 88% 2.2 3% 
Colborne 
St. 

2018 56 71% 1.7 0% 
Catharines 
Thorold 2018 2 100% 1.8 0% 
Welland 2018 68 91 % 2.0 3% 

135



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 37 

Weekly Average Garbage Containers Set Out by MU Properties Inside the OBA 
(Base Collection Area) 
Municipality Audit Year Average Average% Average Average% 

Number of of Number of of MU 
MU Participating Garbage Properties 

Properties MU Containers Exceeding 
Participating Properties Per Set-Out Garbage 
in Regional Using Container 
Collection Regional Limit 

Service Garbage 
Collection 

Service 
Inside OBA 

Fort Erie 2016 63.5 95% 2.6 7% 
Grimsby 2018 2 50% 1.0 0% 
Lincoln 2018 21 90% 2.1 5% 
Niagara 

2015 63 98% 1.8 3% 
Falls 
Pelham 2018 19 79% 2.8 0% 
Port 

2016 53 92% 2.5 1% 
Col borne 
St. 

2018 16 75% 1.6 0% 
Catharines 
Thorold 2018 0 0% 0 0% 
Welland 2016 54.5 91 % 2.8 3% 

136



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 38 

Weekly Average Recycling and Organics Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties 
Inside the OBA 1 Base Collection Area) 

Municipality Audit Average% Average Average% of Average 
Year of Number of Participating Number of 

Participating Recycling IC&I Organics 
IC&I Containers Properties Containers 

Properties Per Set- Using Per Set-
Using Out Regional Out 

Regional Organics 
Recycling Collection 
Collection Service 

Service Inside OBA 
Inside OBA 

Fort Erie 2018 66% 1.9 11 % 1.8 

Grimsby 2018 56% 1.5 22% 0.8 

Lincoln 2018 72% 1.9 17% 1.0 

Niagara Falls 2015 61 % 2.0 11 % 1.3 

Pelham 2018 62% 3.1 12% 1.0 

Port Colborne 2018 72% 1.6 6% 0.6 

St. 
2018 73% 1.5 16% 1.5 

Catharines 

Thorold 2018 50% 0.5 0% 0.0 

Welland 2018 65% 2.1 9% 2.4 

137



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 39 

Weekly Average Recycling and Organics Containers Set Out by MU Properties 
Inside the OBA (Base Collection Area) 

Municipality Audit Average% Average Average% of Average 
Year of Number of Participating Number of 

Participating Recycling MU Organics 
MU Containers Properties Containers 

Properties Per Set- Using Per Set-
Using Out Regional Out 

Regional Organics 
Recycling Collection 
Collection Service 

Service Inside OBA 
Inside OBA 

Fort Erie 2016 72% 2.0 16% 0.8 

Grimsby 2018 100% 1.8 0% 0.0 

Lincoln 2018 52% 2.4 19% 1.1 

Niagara Falls 2015 46% 1.3 11% 1.0 

Pelham 2018 84% 2.5 32% 0.5 

Port Colborne 2016 67% 1.9 19% 1.5 

St. Catharines 2018 69% 1.5 13% 1.0 

Thorold 2018 0% 0.0 0% 0.0 

Welland 2016 72% 2.3 17% 1.0 

138



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 40 

2014 Weekly Average Garbage Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties Outside the 
OBA (Base Collection) 

Municipality Average% of Average Average Average% of 
IC&I Number of Number of IC&I 

Properties Containers Per IC&I Properties 
Using Set-Out Properties Exceeding 4 

Regional Exceeding 4 Garbage 
Collection Garbage Container 

Service Container Limit 
Outside OBA Limit 

Fort Erie 41 % 1.7 12 7% 

Grimsby 46% 1.8 6 7% 

Lincoln 47% 1.7 10 5% 

Niagara Falls 43% 1.8 28 7% 

Niagara-on-the-
62% 1.3 11 3% 

Lake 

Pelham 37% 1.8 3 6% 

Port Colborne 42% 2.1 9 8% 

St. Catharines 41 % 1.9 35 7% 

Thorold 26% 1.7 7 11 % 

Wainfleet 44% 1.5 1 2% 

Welland 39% 1.7 10 6% 

West Lincoln 46% 1.4 3 3% 

Regional 44% 1.7 11 6% 
Average: 

139



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 41 

2014 Weekly Average Garbage Containers Set Out by MU Properties Outside the 
OBA (Base Collection) 

Municipality Average% of Average Average Average% of 
MU Properties Number of Number of MU MU Properties 

Using Containers Per Properties Exceeding 6 
Regional Set-Out Exceeding 6 Garbage 

Collection Garbage Container 
Service Container Limit 

Outside OBA Limit 

Fort Erie 71 % 1.7 1 1% 

Grimsby 85% 1.5 0 0% 

Lincoln 79% 1.6 1 2% 

Niagara Falls 70% 2.0 2 2% 

Niagara-on-the-
62% 1.6 0 0% 

Lake 

Pelham 67% 1.7 1 5% 

Port Colborne 86% 1.6 0 0% 

St. Catharines 69% 1.9 4 2% 

Thorold 70% 1.1 0 0% 

Wainfleet 70% 1.4 0 0% 

Welland 74% 2.0 2 2% 

West Lincoln 74% 1.5 0 0% 

Regional 
72% 1.8 1 1% 

Average: 

140



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 42 

2014 Weekly Average Recycling and Organics Containers Set Out by IC&I 
Properties Outside the OBA (Base Collection) 

Municipality Average% of Average Average% of Average 
Participating Number of Participating Number of 

IC&I Recycling IC&I Organics 
Properties Containers Per Properties Containers Per 

Using Set-Out Using Set-Out 
Regional Regional 
Recycling Organics 
Collection Collection 

Service Service 
Outside OBA Outside OBA 

Fort Erie 33% 1.6 7% 1.0 

Grimsby 35% 1.8 11% 0.7 

Lincoln 41 % 1.8 11% 0.8 

Niagara Falls 32% 1.7 7% 0.8 

Niagara-on-the-
58% 1.9 28% 0.8 

Lake 

Pelham 27% 1.6 12% 0.9 

Port Colborne 31 % 2.0 8% 1.3 

St. Catharines 29% 1.8 9% 0.9 

Thorold 21 % 1.6 6% 0.7 

Wainfleet 37% 1.7 7% 0.8 

Welland 28% 1.8 7% 1.4 

West Lincoln 34% 1.5 10% 0.7 

Regional 
34% 1.7 11% 0.9 

Average: 

141



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 43 

2014 Weekly Average Recycling and Organics Containers Set Out by MU 
P rf 0 t "d th OBA (B C 11 f ) rope 1es U SI e e ase o ec ion 

Municipality Average% of Average Average% of Average 
Participating Number of Participating Number of 

MU Properties Recycling MU Properties Organics 
Using Containers Per Using Containers Per 

Regional Set-Out Regional Set-Out 
Recycling Organics 
Collection Collection 

Service Service 
Outside OBA Outside OBA 

Fort Erie 68% 2.0 23% 0.9 

Grimsby 76% 1.8 29% 1.3 

Lincoln 70% 2.3 27% 0.9 

Niagara Falls 50% 1.9 18% 0.7 

Niagara-on-the-
54% 2.0 16% 0.6 Lake 

Pelham 73% 1.7 17% 0.9 

Port Colborne 66% 1.6 17% 1.0 

St. Catharines 57% 1.8 17% 0.8 

Thorold 70% 1.4 35% 0.8 

Wainfleet 56% 1.4 7% 0.5 

Welland 63% 1.7 19% 1.1 

West Lincoln 59% 1.7 15% 0.8 

Regional 
61% 1.8 20% 0.8 Average: 

142



Enhanced Collection Service Audit Results 

Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 44 

Weekly Average Garbage Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties Inside the OBA 
(Enhanced Collection Area) 
Municipality Audit Year Average# of Average% Average# Average% 

IC&I of of Garbage of IC&I 
Properties Participating Containers Properties 

Participating IC&I Per Set-Out Exceeding 
in Regional Properties Garbage 
Collection Using Container 

Service Regional Limit 
Garbage 

Collection 
Grimsby 2014 38 88% 3.6 0% 
Niagara 

2015 147 82% 5.2 6% 
Falls 
NOTL 2018 30 80% 6.0 21% 
St. 

2018 77 52% 2.7 0% 
Catharines 
Thorold 2014 62.5 94% 4.5 2% 
West Lincoln 2014 38 95% 2.5 0% 

Weekly Average Garbage Containers Set Out by MU Properties Inside the OBA 
(Enhanced Collection Area) 
Municipality Audit Year Average# of Average% Average# Average% 

IC&I of of Garbage of IC&I 
Properties Participating Containers Properties 

Participating IC&I Per Set-Out Exceeding 
in Regional Properties Garbage 
Collection Using Container 

Service Regional Limit 
Garbage 

Collection 
Grimsby 2018 18 89% 1.6 0% 
Niagara 

2015 21 95% 2.9 3% 
Falls 
NOTL 2018 17 100% 6.8 12% 
St. 2018 71 94% 1.5 0% 
Catharines 
Thorold 2018 30 92% 1.9 0% 
West Lincoln 2018 12 100% 1.7 0% 

143



Appendix 3 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 45 

Weekly Average Recycling and Organics Containers Set Out by IC&I Properties 
Inside the OBA (Enhanced Collection Area) 
Municipality Audit Year Average% Average# of Average% Average# 

of Recycling of of Organics 
Participating Containers Participating Containers 

IC&I Per Set-Out IC&I Per Set-Out 
Properties Properties 

Using Using 
Regional Regional 
Rec)lcling Organics 
Collection Collection 

Grimsby 2014 64% 2.6 7% 1.6 
Niagara 

2015 55% 2.4 6% 4.4 
Falls 
NOTL 2018 57% 2.9 7% 6.0 
St. 

2018 52% 2.6 10% 2.4 
Catharines 
Thorold 2014 54% 2.2 6% 0.9 
West Lincoln 2014 78% 1.8 7% 0.8 

Weekly Average Recycling and Organics Containers Set Out by MU Properties 
Inside the OBA (Enhanced Collection Area) 
Municipality Audit Year Average% Average# of Average% Average# 

of Recycling of of Organics 
Participating Containers Participating Containers 

MU Per Set-Out MU Per Set-Out 
Properties Properties 

Using Using 
Regional Regional 

Rec)lcling Organics 
Collection Collection 

Grimsby 2018 78% 0.9 0% 0.0 
Niagara 

2015 57% 1.1 14% 0.6 
Falls 
NOTL 2018 59% 2.3 0% 0.0 
St. 

2018 55% 2.5 7% 2.6 
Catharines 
Thorold 2018 67% 1.1 3% 3.5 
West Lincoln 2018 67% 1.8 0% 0.0 

144



Appendix 4 
PW 3-201 9 

January 8, 2019 
Page 46 

Appendix 4 - Stakeholder Comments on Proposed Base Collection Options 
Consultation and engagement with stakeholders commenced in May of 2018 to obtain 
input on the proposed base collection options. The following sections summarize the 
results of the comments provided by stakeholders throughout the consultation process. 
Not all stakeholders that staff engaged with provided formal comments on the proposed 
collection options. In addition , the results of the on-line and telephone survey are 
contained in a separate appendix. The following section summarizes the formal 
comments provided from the following stakeholders: 

• Regional Departments and Agencies, Boards and Commissions 

• Waste Management Advisory Committee 

• Organizations Representing Business (ie. Business Improvement 
Associations, Chambers of Commerce, Tourism Agencies and Industrial 
Associations) 

• Local Area Municipalities 

• Residents and Business Owners (excluding feedback provided through 
the on-line and telephone surveys) 

1.0Regional Departments and Agencies, Boards and Commissions (ABCs): 
Staff from the following Regional Departments and ABCs provided input on the 
proposed base collection options. 

1.1 Planning and Development Services 
Planning and Development Services reviewed the proposed container limit 
changes pertaining to MU properties inside and outside DBAs, to ensure 
alignment with broader Corporate initiatives, including the objectives of Growth 
Management policies. The following comments were provided by Pat Busnello, 
Manager Development Planning: 

"the proposed reduced limit would not affect larger mixed-use developments 

that already exceed the current container limits and require private garbage 
collection" 
"recent curbside audits referenced in Appendix A of Report WMPSC-C 9-
2018 indicate the average number of garbage containers placed out weekly 
by mixed-use properties was below the proposed limit. The report therefore, 
indicates that the needs of mixed-use properties are expected to be met 
based on the audit results, particularly if diversion services are utilized. As 

145



Appendix 4 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 47 

such , it is generally not anticipated that smaller mixed-use developments 
would be affected by the proposed change." 

Lindsey Savage, Planner with Community and Long Range Planning provided 
comments on the alignment of the proposed collection options with the new 
Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, which took effect on July 1, 
2017: 

• "The proposed changes to waste collection services align with and support 
policy 4.2.9.1 d) i) of the Growth Plan, which requires municipalities to 
develop and implement official plan policies an~ other strategies in support 
of integrated waste management, including through enhanced waste 
reduction, composting and recycling initiatives. In addition, a new Regional 
Official Plan is under development which will include policies supporting 
integrated waste management, in conformity with the Growth Plan." 

1.2 Economic Development 
Valerie Kuhns, Economic Development Manager with Economic Development 
indicated that their work generally revolves around larger industrial companies, 
which would not use the Region's curbside garbage collection service, and would 
not be impacted by the proposed collection options 

1.3 Niagara Regional Housing 
Cameron Banach, Manager Housing Operations with Niagara Regional Housing 
reviewed the relevant proposed collection options and indicated they would not 
be in support of EOW garbage collection, or mandatory use of clear bags for 
garbage at their properties. 

2.0Waste Management Advisory Committee (WMAC) 
At the November 21 , 2018 WMAC meeting, members voted all in favour or majority 
in favour of all base collection options. 

3.0 Organizations Representing Business 
Meetings were held with representatives from each of Niagara's Business 
Improvement Associations, Chambers of Commerce, Niagara Tourism Agencies, 
Niagara Economic Development Corporation, and Niagara Industrial Association, 
during the months of August and September. 

146



Appendix 4 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 48 

The following ORBs provided formal comments on the proposed collection options 
for the next contract: 

• Grimsby Downtown Improvement Association: 
o Do not support reducing base container limit from seven (7) cans/bags 

to four (4) cans/bags per week. 
o Do not support mandatory use of clear garbage bags due to concern 

about enforcement and mixed-use properties. 
o Do not support reducing enhanced container limit without knowing the 

associated cost savings. 

• Niagara Falls - Queen Street Business Improvement Association: 
o Do not support reducing base container limit from seven (7) cans/bags 

to four (4) cans/bags per week. 
o Do not support mandatory use of clear garbage bags. 

• Niagara Falls - Victoria Centre Business Improvement Association: 
o Request reduction in container limit for enhanced collection service 

from fifteen (15) cans/bags weekly to seven (7) cans/bags weekly. 
o Do not support mandatory use of clear garbage bags. Support would 

be contingent on seeing a report on how the contractor will educate its 
staff on the proper materials that go into the proper containers/bags. 

o Request collection start time change to 5 a.m., instead of 7 a.m. 

• Pelham Business Association: 
o Support all proposed collection options 

• Port Dalhousie Business Association: 
o Expressed concern that proposed options would make collection more 

onerous and/or costly for businesses. 
o Also have concerns about storing garbage in the hot summer months. 

• St. Catharines Downtown Business Association: 
o Do not support reducing base container limit from seven (7) cans/bags 

to four (4) cans/bags per week. 
o Do not support mandatory use of clear garbage bags due to concern 

about enforcement and mixed-use properties. 

o Request for increased organics/recycling collection and review of days 
and times of collection for the enhanced collection area. Also request 
continued front-end cardboard collection bins. 

Based on these comments, there was very limited support for the mandatory use of 
clear bags for garbage, or the reduction in the garbage container limits for IC&I and 

147



Appendix 4 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2Q19 
Page 49 

MU properties inside the DBAs. The exception was the Pelham Business 
Association, which supported all proposed options. 

4.0 Local Area Municipalities (LAMs) 
Formal comments from the LAMs on the proposed collection options and which 
enhanced services to be included in Niagara Region's next contract are being 
requested by February 1, 2019. 

5.0 Residents and Businesses 
The primary method for collecting input from residents and businesses on the 
proposed collection options was through the on-line survey. Residents of low density 
residential properties were also targeted for feedback through a telephone survey. 

Individuals that wanted to provide comments and feedback in addition to or as an 
alternative to the surveys were able to do so through a number of options. While this 
feedback cannot be included in the statistical analysis as representative of the 
population, it can be considered as part of the anecdotal findings to support the 
overall findings. 

Residents and business owners provided additional comments by posting on 
Facebook, calling the Waste Info-Line, sending emails, providing web submissions 
and/or speaking with staff in-person at open house and community booth events. 
These comments are summarized in the subsections below. 

5.1 Facebook 
Facebook was the primary social media platform used by members of the public to 
comment on the proposed collection options for the next contract. The majority of 
comments were related to the proposed options for the mandatory use of clear 
garbage bags and every-other-week garbage collection. Of all of the comments 
documented that were related to every-other-week garbage collection, 22% of 
comments were in support of this proposed option. For clear garbage bags, 10% of 
comments related to this option were supportive. 

Overall , the majority of commenters used this platform as a means of 
communicating their concerns. The comments posted on the Region 's paid 
Facebook advertisement were reviewed, categorized and tallied. The ten most 

frequently reported concerns are listed below in order of the frequency that they 

148



Appendix 4 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 50 

appeared in comment section. As of November 30, 2018, 1,467 Facebook 
comments were posted. 

Most Common Comments (by % of most posted comments) 
1. Concern about odours from products that cannot be placed in the Green Bin (i.e. 
diapers and raw meat packaging) increasing with every-other-week garbage 
collection (16%) 

2. Concern about privacy with the use of clear garbage bags for personal items (i.e. 
incontinence products, feminine hygiene products, prescription bottles, bills) and 
that one opaque bag is not sufficient to contain all of these items (12%) 

3. Concern that services are decreasing, but residents will not receive an 
associated decrease in taxes (10%) 

4. Concern about a potential increase in pests (i.e. rats, raccoons, squirrels , 
coyotes, maggots) if garbage is collected every-other-week (1 0%) 

5. Concern that mandatory use of clear garbage bags is adding unnecessary plastic 
waste to the landfills (8%) 

6. Requests for Region to use carts, bigger containers and/or containers with lids 
(7%) 

7. Complaints about current service, including missed collection (7%), late 
collection (7%) and generally displeased with service (4%) 

Facebook Analytics for "Lets Talk Waste" Campaign: 
• Impressions: 271,397 

- The number of times any content from the "Niagara Region" Facebook page 
entered a person's screen. · 

• Link clicks: 6,633 
- The number of clicks on links within the "Lets Talk Waste" Facebook paid ad 

that led to the Niagara Region "Lets Talk Waste" webpage. 

•Reach as per analytics: 78,784 
- Number of people who had a paid post from the Niagara Region Facebook page 

enter their screen. 

149



•Reach with organic: 112,159 

Appendix 4 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 51 

- Number of people who had an unpaid post from Niagara Region Facebook page 
enter their screen. 

• Cost per click: 2.44% 
- The actual price paid for each click in the "Lets Talk Waste" Facebook paid ad 

campaign. 

•Total engagements: 19,733 
- Includes all actions that people take involving the "Lets Talk Waste" Facebook 

paid ad while it was running. Post engagements can include actions such as 
reacting to, commenting or sharing the ad, or clicking on a link. 

• Reactions as per analytics: 367 
- On the "Lets Talk Waste" Facebook paid ad itself, Facebook only reports direct 

reactions on those people who the ad was delivered to. So if a Facebook user 
received the ad and reacted, that is counted as one reaction per analytic. But if 
the Facebook user's friend saw their feed (but did not receive the ad) reacted, it 
is not counted. 

• Comments as per analytics: 331 
- On the "Lets Talk Waste" Facebook paid ad itself, Facebook only reports direct 

comments on those people who the ad was delivered to. So if a Facebook user 
received the ad and commented, that is counted as one comment per analytic. 
But if the Facebook user's friend saw their feed (but did not receive the ad) 
commented, it is not counted. 

• All reactions: 561 
- This is the total number of reactions on the "Lets Talk Waste" Facebook paid ad . 

This provides a better picture of the total engagement. 

• All comments: 1,467 
- All comments (including replies) on the "Lets Talk Waste" Facebook paid ad. 

• Shares: 358 
- The number of times Facebook users shared the "Lets Talk Waste" Facebook 

paid ad to their Facebook profile or a different Facebook page. 

• Amount spent: $2,456.23 

5.2 Open Houses and Community Booths 

A public open house, with a presentation was held in each of the twelve 
municipalities in Niagara. Staffed community booths with informational displays were 
also held in a public space in each municipality. The community booths were very 

150



Appendix 4 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 52 

well attended with approximately 450 attendees and open house attendance was 
lower with 67 attendees, perhaps due to poor weather conditions. 

The majority of the comments heard were related to the options for every-other
week garbage collection and mandatory use of clear garbage bags. Members of the 
public visiting the booths and open houses were divided about every-other-week 
garbage collection. While approximately half of the people that talked to staff at 
events expressed support, there were some specific concerns that were repeated 
throughout the consultation process. There was less support for clear bags, with the 
majority of participants expressing opposition to the option. A minority of the 
feedback and conversations at these events dealt with the options to introduce a 
four-item limit on bulky item collection and the discontinuation of scrap metal 
collection, but of those commenting there was a high level of support to implement 
the changes. The key concerns about the proposed options heard at these 
stakeholder consultation events are listed below. 

Most Common Comments (listed in no particular order) 

1. Concern about odours from products that cannot be placed in the Green Bin (i.e. 
diapers and raw meat packaging) increasing with every-other-week garbage 
collection 

2. Concern that illegal dumping will increase as a result of every-other-week 
garbage collection and/or mandatory use of clear garbage bags. 

3. Concern about privacy with the use of clear garbage bags for personal items (i.e. 
incontinence products, feminine hygiene products, prescription bottles, bills) and that 
one opaque bag is not sufficient to contain all of these items 

4. Concern about the additional expense of having to purchase clear bags and/or 
privacy bags and potential issues with the quality and availability of clear garbage 

bags 

5. Concern about storing additional garbage bags due to every-other-week garbage 

collection and/or clear garbage bags that are left behind due to unacceptable 
materials. 

6. Concerns about the ability of collectors to monitor and enforce clear garbage bag 

contents 

151



Appendix 4 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 53 

7. Concern about how residents will transport scrap metals and large appliances to 
the drop-off depots. 

8. Concern about a potential increase in pests (i.e. rats, raccoons, squirrels, 
coyotes, maggots) if garbage is collected every-other-week 

9. Concern that mandatory use of clear garbage bags is adding unnecessary plastic 
waste to the landfills 

10. Complaints about current service, including missed collection, late collection , and 
generally displeased with service 

6.0Waste Info-Line, Emails, Web Submissions 
Residents and business owners interested in providing the Region w ith additional 
comments were able to do so by calling the Waste Info-Line, sending an email or 
submitting their comments through the Region's website. Comments from 
individuals that provided an address were recorded in CityView, Waste 
Management's customer service software. These comments were categorized 
based on support or opposition to the proposed options. Comments from ind ividuals 
that did not provide an address recorded in a public comment tracking sheet, 
separate from the CityView program. As of December 2, 2018, 38 comments were 
recorded in CityView and 27 additional comments without associated addresses 
were recorded in the spreadsheet public comment tracking sheet. 

6.1 CityView 
Due to the self-selected nature of the input and the small number of comments 
recorded, the CityView data cannot be considered representative of the viewpoints 
of the broader population. The comments do provide anecdotal insight into some of 
the key attitudes that residents and business owners have towards the proposed 
collection options. 

The majority (74%) of individuals that commented were contacting the Region to 

express concern over one or more of the proposed collection options. The key 
concerns expressed in the comments align with those provided through Facebook 
and at the open houses/community booths. Individuals opposed to every-other
week garbage collection were concerned about potential odours and pests. 
Comments related to clear bags were focused on privacy issues. There were also 

152



Appendix 4 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 54 

concerns from multi-residential and mixed-use property owners about tenants not 
complying with the diversion programs and thus presenting a challenge for both the 
every-other-week and clear garbage bag options. 

Of the 38 comments recorded , 26% were in favour of one or all of the proposed 
options. In particular, 16% were in favour of every-other-week garbage collection. 
Other comments provided included suggestions for alternative options, including 
collection from alternating sides of the road and communal collection areas. 

6.2Additional Comments 
The additional comments from residents and business owners that did not provide 
an address align with the comments provided through Facebook, at public 
consultation events and in CityView. The most frequent comments were concerns 
about odours and pests related to every-other-week garbage collection and privacy 
issues associated with clear garbage bags. 

153



Appendix 5 - Stakeholder Consultation and Engagement Process 

Appendix 5 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 55 

An extensive public consultation and engagement process was undertaken to obtain 
stakeholder input on the proposed base collection options for the next collection 
contract. The consultation began in May 2018 was carried out in two phases: targeted 
stakeholder consultation and broad-based community consultation. Targeted 
stakeholder consultation involved direct communication with specific stakeholder groups 
to provide information and gather feedback on the proposed collection options. Broad
based community outreach was completed to reach residents and businesses eligible 
for Regional curbside collection services to inform them about the proposed collection 
options and encourage participation in the on-l ine survey, which was the principle 
mechanism for collecting public input and feedback. 

A summary of both phases of the consultation is described below. 

1. Targeted Stakeholder Consultation and Engagement 
1.1. Regional Departments and Agencies, Boards and Commissions (ABCs): 

• The following Regional Departments and ABCs were contacted to discuss 
proposed options and invite questions, comments and input into the process: 

a Planning and Development Services Department 
a Economic Development 

a Niagara Regional Housing 

1.2. Waste Management Advisory Committee (WMAC) 
• At the November 21 , 2018 meeting of the WMAC, members were provided 

with a presentation on the proposed collection options and an opportunity for 
questions and comments. 

• Members were provided with an opportunity to vote on each proposed service 
option. 

1.3. Organizations Representing Business 
1.3.1. Business Improvement Associations (BIAs), Chambers of 

Commerce, Industrial Associations 

• Waste Management staff met with each of Niagara's BIAs, Chambers of 
Commerce and the Niagara Industrial Association in August and 
September of 2018 to provide a presentation on the proposed service 
options. The purpose of these meetings was to discuss the proposed 
collection options, obtain preliminary input on these options, obtain input 
on how to further engage their members and to request formal comments 

154



Appendix 5 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 56 

by November 30, 2018.The meeting dates and representatives that 
attended the meetings are listed in the tables below. 

• Waste Management staff sent follow-up emails to each organization after the 
meetings on October 9, 2018 and November 22, 2018 to request formal 
feedback. 

• Those organizations were also provided with letters for distribution to their 
membership on October 24, 2018. The letters contained information about the 
proposed options and stakeholder consultation process as well as a link to 
the on-line survey and open house/community booth dates and locations. 

• The following four organizations confirmed they would reach out to members 
on behalf of the Region to encourage participation in the consultation 
process: 

o St. Catharines Downtown Association, Queen Street Niagara Falls 
BIA, Downtown Welland BIA, Grimsby Downtown Improvement 
Association 

B usmess mprovemen tA ·r ssoc1a ions 
LAM Organization/Representative Meeting Date 
Represented 
Fort Erie • Ridgeway Business Improvement Association August 23, 2018 

(BIA) - Marge Ott 
•Crystal Beach BIA- No rep attended 
• Bridgeburg Station BIA - No rep attended 
•Town of Fort Erie - Kelly Walsh 

Grimsby • Grimsby Downtown Improvement Association August 1, 2018 
- Leigh Jankiv 

•Town of Grimsby- Bob LeRoux 

Lincoln • Downtown Beamsville BIA - Stephanie Hicks August 10, 2018 
•Town of Lincoln - Dave Graham 

Niagara Falls • Clifton Hill BIA - No rep attended August 15, 2018 
• Fallsview BIA - Sue Mingle 
• Lundy's Lane BIA - David Jankovic 
• Main and Ferry BIA - Ruth Ann Nieuwesteeg 
• Victoria Centre BIA - Eric Marcon 
• Queen Street BIA - No rep attended 
• City of Niagara Falls - Geoff Holman 

Pelham • Pelham Business Association - David Tucker August 8, 2018 
•Town of Pelham - Derek Young & Ryan Cook 

155



LAM Organization/Representative 
Represented 
Port Colborne • Port Colborne Main Street BIA - Frank Danch 

• Port Colborne Downtown BIA- Betty Kone 
•Town of Port Colborne - Chris Lee 

Port Dalhousie • Port Dalhousie Business Association -
Wolfgang Guembel 

St. Catharines • St. Catharines Downtown Association - Tisha 
Polocko 

• City of St. Catharines - Dan Dillon 

Thorold • Thorold BIA - Marsha Coppola, Tim Whalen 
• City of Thorold - Sean Dunsmore 

Welland • Welland Downtown BIA -Amanda 
MacDonald, Delores Wright 

•Welland North BIA- John Clark 
• City of Welland - Eric Nickel 

Chambers of Commerce 
LAM Organization/Representative 
Represented 
Niagara-on-the- • Chamber of Commerce - Janice Thompson 
Lake (Natl) •Town of Natl - Sheldon Randall 

Fort Erie, • Greater Niagara Chamber of Commerce -
Grimsby, Lincoln, Mishka Balsam 
Niagara Falls, 
Natl, Pelham, 
Port Colborne, St. 
Catharines, 
Welland, 
West Lincoln 

Appendix 5 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 57 

Meeting Date 

August 24, 2018 

August 22, 2018 

August 22, 2018 

August 2, 2018 

August 9, 2018 

Meeting Date 

September 10, 
2018 

September 13, 
2018 

156



Fort Erie, • Niagara Chamber of Commerce Partnership -
Grimsby, Lincoln, Rebecca Shelley (Grimsby); Johnathan 
Niagara Falls, George (Fort Erie); Paul Scottile, Jim Arnold 
Pelham, Port (Niagara Falls) ; Denise Potter (West Lincoln); 
Col borne, . Len Stalk (Port ColborneMJainfleet); Gary 
Welland, Bruce, Anna Murre (Lincoln); Delores Fabiano 
West Lincoln (Welland/Pelham, Niagara Falls, Fort Erie, 

Port Colborne/Wainfleet) 

Thorold • Venture Niagara - Susan Morin 
• Niagara Centre Board of Trade & Commerce 

- John D'Amico 

Industrial Associations 
LAM Organization/Representative 
Represented 
All Niagara •Niagara Industrial Association -Adam Joon & 
Municipalities Aaron Tisdelle 

1.3.2. Tourism Agencies 

Appendix 5 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 58 

August 22, 2018 

September 26, 
2018 

Meeting Date 

September 21 , 
2018 

• Waste Management staff met with the Tourism Partnership of Niagara on behalf 
of five tourism agencies (Destination Marketing Organizations) : Niagara Falls 
Tourism, Tourism Niagara-on-the-Lake, City of St.Catharines Department of 

Economic Development and Tourism, Twenty Valley Tourism Association and 

Niagara South Coast Tourism Association. 

• Staff offered to provide a presentation at the meeting. 

•On September 18, 2018, letters were provided to each tourism agency describing 
proposed options, audit data, info about survey and public events. The letter 

requested formal feedback on the proposed options be December 7, 2018. 

• A follow-up email containing a link to the project website and on-line survey was 
sent to the Tourism Partnership of Niagara on November 23, 2018, for distribution 

to their membership. 

Tourism Agencies 
LAM Organization/Representative Meeting Date 
Re resented 

157



Fort Erie, 
Grimsby, Lincoln, 
Niagara Falls, 
Niagara-on-the-
Lake, Port 
Colborne, St. 
Catharines, 
Welland , 
West Lincoln 

•Tourism Niagara -Anthony Annunziata & 
Karin Jahnke-Haslam (on behalf of Niagara 
Falls Tourism, Tourism Niagara-on-the-Lake, 
City of St.Catharines Department of Economic 
Development and Tourism, Twenty Valley 
Tourism Association and Niagara South Coast 
Tourism Association) 

Appendix 5 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 59 

September 18, 
2018 

1.4. Local Area Municipalities (LAMs) (i.e. municipal staff and Councillors) 
• Letters were sent to LAM Clerks on May 4, 2018 and Public Works 

Officials (PWOs) on June 6, 2018 advising of proposed options and 
requesting LAM comments by February 1, 2019 

• Presentations were made to PWOs at their June 11 , Oct. 16 & Dec. 11, 
2018 meetings 

• In addition, Region staff offered to attend LAM Committee or Council 
meetings to make a presentation. As of December 11, Region staff were 
requested to present at the following LAM Committee or Council 

meetings: 
o Grimsby Council (December 17, 2018) 

o Niagara Falls Council (January 15, 2019) 
o Fort Erie Council (January 21 , 2019) 

o West Lincoln Council (January 21 , 2019) 
o Welland General Committee (January 22, 2019) 

2. Broad-Based Community Consultation and Engagement 
Broad-based community consultation employed a range of outreach activities to 
engage with as many low density residential (LOR) households, multi-residential 
(MR) property owners, groups and associations (i.e. property management 
companies) and Industrial, Commercial and Institutional (IC&I) and mixed-use (MU) 

property owners as possible during October and November of 2018. The table below 
provides details on each outreach activity undertaken as part of the broad-based 

consultation and engagement. 

Outreach Description Location Date (2018) 
Activity 

158



Letters Letters mailed out containing 
information on proposed 
collection options, link to 
survey, open 
house/community booth 
information and an invitation 
to contact the Region 

Web Project website provided 
information on the proposed 
collection options, details 
about public open house 
events/community booths 
and the link to the survey 
Link to project website 

Social Link to project website 
Media 

Link to project website and 
details about open 
houses/community booths 

Newspaper: Invitation to participate in 
Print Ads stakeholder consultation with 

link to project website 

Appendix 5 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 60 

• 1 ,369 businesses inside October 22 
Designated Business 
Areas (DBAs) 

• 1 ,980 businesses outside 
DBAs 

• 125 multi-residential 
properties 

• Project webpage on October 23, to 
Niagara Region website November 30 

• Webpage banner on 
Niagara Region Waste 
web page 

•LAM provided with P&E for October 22 
websites that had link to 
project webpage 

• Facebook paid October 25-
advertisement with link to November 28 
project webpage 

• Twitter post on Niagara 
Region Twitter with link to 
project webpage 

• Face book posts November 1-
November 28 

• Niagara This Week October 25, 
November 
1,8,15, 22 

• St. Catharines Standard October 27, 
November 10, 

• Welland Tribune November 3, 
• Niagara Falls Review November 3, 
•News Now Novemb~r 15 

and November 
22 

159



Newspaper: Invitation to participate in 
On-line Ads stakeholder consultation with 

link to project website 

Media An overview of proposed 
Coverage options and rationale and 

reference to project 
webpage, survey and 
events 

Post Cards Invitation to participate in 
consultation , list of key 
options and link to 
survey/webpage 

Internal Campaign banner and link to 
Advertising survey/webpage 

Appendix 5 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 61 

• 24 hour ad - St. Catharines October 30, 
Standard, Welland Tribune, November 
Niagara Falls Review 6,13, 20 
websites 

• 24 hour ad - Niagara This November 24 
Week website 

• 1 week ad - News Now November 22-
website 29, 2018 

• 2 week ad - Niagara November 19-
Independent website 30 

• Big Box Takeover- St. October 30, 
Catharines Standard, November 
Welland Tribune, Niagara 5, 11 ,20 
Falls Review 

•Media release October 25 
• Radio interview on 610 November 5 

CKTB Newstalk 
• Television coverage on November 5 -

Cogeco YourTV; November 30 
accessible on-line and 
aired daily on YourTV 

•Articles - St. Catharines October 28, 
Standard/Niagara Falls November 5, 
Review, Voice of Pelham , 7, 23 
Erie Media 

• Post cards displayed at October 23-
LAM offices: 100 each in November 30 
Fort Erie, Grimsby, Lincoln, 
Niagara-on-the-Lake, 
Pelham, Port Colborne, 
Thorold and Wainfleet; 200 
each in Niagara Falls, 
St.Catharines and Welland . 

• Post cards available at 
Regional Headquarters and 
landfill sites 

• Post cards distributed at 
every community booth and 
open house 

• Vine intranet for all October 31-
Regional employees November 30 

160



Community A table with educational 
Booths material and poster boards 

with information on proposed 
options were set up in public 
spaces including malls, 
arenas, community centres 
and libraries. Staff were 
avai lable with iPads to allow 
visitors complete the on-line 
surveys and to respond to 
questions and comments 

Open Staff provided a 25-minute 
Houses presentation and the 

opportunity for a question 
and answer period. Staff 
were also available with 
iPads to allow attendees to 
complete the on-line survey 
to respond to questions and 
comments 

Appendix 5 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 62 

• Vine weekly for all Regional November 1 
employees 

• One booth in each LAM Each booth set 
during day and/or evening up for one day 
hours in each LAM 

between Oct 
30-Nov 26 

Approx. 450 
visitors in total 
at booths 

• One open house in each Various dates 
LAM from 6pm-8pm from Nov 1-

Nov28 

Total of 67 
attendees 

161



Appendix 6 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 63 

Appendix 6 - Summary of Stakeholder Consultation and Engagement Events 

Public Open Houses (All public open houses were held from 6:00pm to 8:00pm, with a 
t t' t 6 30 ) presen a ion a pm 

Municipality Location Date 
Niagara-on-the-Lake Community Centre November 1, 2018 

Niagara Falls Gale Centre November 5, 2018 

Welland Community Wellness Complex November 6 , 2018 

Port Colborne Roselawn Centre November 8, 2018 

Pelham Pelham Meridian Centre November 12, 2018 
Fort Erie Leisureplex November 13, 2018 

St. Catharines St. Catharines Public Library- Central November 15, 2018 
Branch 

Thorold Niagara Region Headquarters Building November 19, 2018 

Lincoln Fleming Centre November 20, 2018 

West Lincoln Municipal Office November 22, 2018 
Grimsby Peach King Centre November 27, 2018 

Wainfleet Firefighters Memorial Community Hall November 28, 2018 

c "t 8 th ommum:y 00 s : 
Municipality Location Date Time 

St. Catharines Pen Centre October 30, 2018 9am-9pm 

Niagara Falls MacBain Community Centre November 5, 2018 9:30am-4pm 
Niagara-on- Community Centre November 6, 2018 9am-3:30pm 
the-Lake 
Port Colborne Vale Health and Wellness November 7, 2018 4:30pm-9pm 

Centre 
Thorold Thorold Public Library November 8, 2018 10am-7:30pm 

Pelham Pelham Public Library November 12, 2018 1 Oam-4:30pm 

Fort Erie Fort Erie Centennial Library November 13, 2018 9:30am-4:30pm 

Welland Seaway Mall November 14, 2018 10am-8pm 

Lincoln Fleming Centre November 20, 2018 9am -5pm 

West Lincoln West Lincoln Public Library November 21 , 2018 10am-4:30pm 

Wainfleet Wainfleet Arena November 22, 2018 2:30pm-8:30pm 

Grimsby Grimsby Public Library November 26, 2018 9am-8:30pm 

162



Appendix 7 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 64 

Appendix 7 - Addressing Concerns Related to Proposed Collection Options 

During the stakeholder consultation and engagement process, concerns were 
expressed by residents and business owners through Facebook, public open 
houses/community events and communication by email, phone and web submission. 
Those concerns are summarized in Appendix 4. The following table provides potential 
responses for addressing those concerns and minimizing potential impacts of the 
proposed collection options. 

Resident Concern 
Odours from diapers, feminine 
hygiene products, raw meat 
packaging increasing with 
every-other-week garbage 

Increased illegal dumping of 
garbage as a result of every
other-week garbage and/or 
clear garbage bags 

Privacy issues with the use of 
clear garbage bags for 
personal items 

Options for Addressing Concern 
• Provide option for residents to drop-off clear bags of diapers 

at landfill sites/drop-off depots at no charge. 
• Diapers, feminine hygiene products and raw meat packaging 

should be sealed tightly a plastic bag and placed in a 
container with a lid for storage in a cool , dry location. 

• Styrofoam meat trays can be washed and placed in the Blue 
Box for weekly collection. 

• Experience in other municipalities has shown that property 
owners readily adapt to collection changes and if there is an 
increase in illegal dumping after the change in collection is 
implemented, it is temporary and short-lived. 

• By-law officers work to enforce ongoing issues with illegal 
dumping. 

• To conceal private or sensitive materials, allow an opaque 
privacy bag (i.e. grocery bag) to be placed inside the clear 
garbage bags. 

• Confidential documents should be shredded and placed 
inside a clear plastic bag before being placed inside the Grey 
Box or Grey Cart. These materials can also be placed in the 
Green Bin. 

• Experience in Markham showed that allowing multiple 
opaque privacy bags at outset of clear bag program 
facilitated implementation and reduced privacy concerns. 

163



Additional expense of having 
to purchase clear bags and/or 
privacy bags and potential 
issues with quality and 
availability of clear garbage 
bags 

Storing additional garbage 
bags due to every-other-week 
garbage collection and/or 
clear garbage bags that are 
left behind due to 
unacceptable materials 

Ability of collectors to monitor 
and enforce clear garbage 
bag contents 

Ability of residents to transport 
scrap metal and large 
appliances to drop-off depots. 

Appendix 7 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 65 

• Clear plastic and coloured plastic garbage bags are 
manufactured from the same type of plastic resin. The quality 
and strength of clear plastic bags is similar to that of opaque 
plastic bags. 

• Differences in price and quality may occur, based on 
individual bag size, closure type, packaging size or brand 
name. 

• Regional staff would communicate with local businesses to 
ensure that clear bags would be available for purchase at the 
same local retailers as traditional opaque bags. 

• Residents and businesses can significantly reduce their 
garbage by fully utilizing the weekly, unlimited recycling and 
organics collection services provided by Niagara Region. 

• Once unacceptable materials are removed from clear 
garbage bags, the materials can be placed out on the next 
scheduled collection day or taken to a drop-off depot for a 
fee. 

• Collectors would evaluate whether a bag conforms to the 
Waste Management By-law regarding recyclables, organics 
and hazardous waste, based on what can be seen through 
the clear bag. 

• Collectors would not be opening bags or searching contents. 
Bags would be assessed visually during collection time to 
address clear instances of non-conformance, including 
situations where non-acceptable materials are visible or a 
clear garbage bag has not been used. 

• Regional staff will follow-up with the property owner regarding 
the proper set out of material for collection to avoid re
occurrence of uncollected garbage. 

• Residents that do not have the ability to transport scrap metal 
and large appliances would have the option of contacting 
private scrap metal haulers for pick-up. 

164



Increase in pests (i.e. rats, 
raccoons, squirrels, maggots) 
if garbage is collected every
other-week 

Clear garbage bags adding 
unnecessary plastic waste to 
landfills 

Requests for Region to use 
carts, bigger containers and/or 
containers with lids 

Appendix 7 
PW 3-2019 

January 8, 2019 
Page 66 

• Placing food waste and food soiled-paper products in the 
Green Bin, which will continue to be collected weekly, will 
remove the most odorous part of the garbage stream, which 
can attract pests. 

• Residents can take simple steps to deter pests, such as 
rodents, from their Green Bins, including: 

o Keeping the Green Bin container securely closed at all 
times 

o Setting out the Green Bin for collection every week, 
even if it is not full 

o Setting out the Green Bin by ?am on collection day, not 
the night before 

o Storing the Green Bin in a shaded, cool area 
o Lining the Green Bin with paper liner bags, sheets of 

newspaper or cereal boxes to absorb liquids 
• For those residents already using garbage bags and/or 

grocery bags, clear bags would not increase the amount of 
plastic bags being sent to landfills. 

• Plastic opaque privacy bags would be optional. 
• Use of clear garbage bags would be expected to increase 

diversion rates, potentially offsetting any additional plastic 
introduced throuQh use of clear Qarbage bags. 

• The Region has explored the option using carts for 
residential curbside collection. The results of that research 
indicate that the costs of that change would be prohibitive at 
this time. In addition, cart programs utilize single stream 
recycling collection, which have higher rates of 
contamination than the two stream recycling program that 
Niagara Region is currently using and would negatively 
affect revenue from the sale of recyclables. 

165



Niagara 7/11 Region 

Appendix 8 

LOR Telephone and Qn .. line Survey Results 

A quantitative survey with residents of Niagara Region 

---· ,. -~.r 

~ p't ~- ETROLINE 
)- ilESEA l: C H GRO UP 

Metroline Research Group Inc. 

301-7 Duke Street West, Kitchener, Ontario 
1000-10 Four Seasons Place, Toronto, Ontario 

166



co 
...J 

N
 

8 
~
 

"'I 

... -
f;-

C
li 

z 
.Q

 
E

 
w

 

Q
J 

C
li 

a 

tl.O
 

u 

ro 

~ 

0.. 

(
/)

 

I 
w

 
s:: 

a:: 
.2 

~
 

... u 
~
 

8 
V

l 
z 

~
 

"' 
w

 

~ 
a 

s:: 
~
 

.2 ~
 

0 
a: 

_
J
 

e I:) 
l:Jl 

~ 

167



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

1.0 Current Attitudes/Behaviour 

1.1 Importance of Waste Diversion 
Qll - How important would you say it is that Niagara region works to reduce the amount of garbage that is sent for disposal? (Fu ll sample) 

Diverting wast e is important to the vast majority of residents in Niagara Region. In 
tota l, 94% of those in the t elephone survey said it is 'important' to them, with 72% 
saying "very" important, and 22% saying "somewhat" important. Only 4% told us 
it was "not important" , or they "don' t know". 

Resident s in the online survey scored the importance slightly lower, but even still 
87% find waste diversion important. 

Figure 1.la - Importance of waste diversion by survey type 

Telephone 
(n=l ,253) 

Very important 72% 

Somewhat important 22% 

Not very important 3% 

Not important at all 2% 
Don't know 1% 

Online 
(n=6,639} 

52% 

35% 

8% 
3% 

2% 

Figure 1.lb 1- tmportance of waste diversion by survey type (Hamilton) 

This question w as asked in Hamilton in 2016, and the results were simi lar to what 
Niagara Region residents have said in th is survey. Residents in both surveys fee l 
that waste diversion is important, but in the random te lephone survey are more 
likely to say it is "very" important. 

Hamilton Waste Survey 

Very important 
Somewhat important 
Not very important 

Not important at all 
Don't know 

1 City of Hamilton Wast e Management Services Public Engagement Survey - Metroline Research Group, 2016 

~~rf~~~1~t 

.. 

Telephone Online 
(n=800) (n=l ,468) 

75% 60% 

21% 30% 
2% 6% 

1% 3% 

1% 1% 

Page 3 

168



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Where relevant, this report will indicate statistically significant differences by sub-groups for the random telephone survey. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 

• Women (76%) are more likely to say reducing the amount of garbage sent for disposa l is "very" important than men (68%). 
• Those 65+ years (76%) and those 45-64 years (73%) are more likely to find it "very" important than those 18-44 years (63%). 
• Those participating in the organics collection program (74%) are more likely to find it "very" important than those who are not (67%). 
• Those who support clear bags {80%) more likely to find it "very" important than those who do not (65%) . 
• Those who could manage every-other-week (EOW) garbage collection {80%} are more likely to find it "very" important than those who 

would continue to need/want weekly collection {64%). 

Figure 1.lc - Importance of waste diversion by municipality 

(Random telephone survey) Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. f leet. Lincoln 

Very important 72% 81% 73% 83% 74% 80% 76% 73% 68% 61% 60% 69% 73% 
Somewhat important 22% 14% 17% 13% 22% 16% 19% 19% 24% 31% 32% 24% 22% 

Not very important 3% 3% 3% 1% 2% 2% 4% 4% 4% 4% 5% 3% 4% 

Not important at all 2% 2% 3% 3% 1% -- -- 1% 4% 3% 3% 2% 1% 

Don't know 1% -- 4% -- 1% 2% 1% 3% -- 1% -- 2% --

Looking across the municipalities in Niagara Region, there are some differences when residents were asked to choose an importance leve l. 
Primarily though this difference is between "very" and "somewhat" important. 

Overall, the sentiment of important (very/somewhat) vs. not important (not very/not important/ don't know) is pretty similar. At least 9 in 10 
residents for al l municipalities find diverting waste to be 'important' . 

~ ~T.~,9,~l~u~ Page 4 

169



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

1.2 Garbage Limits 
Q12 - Niagara Region allows for one bag/container of garbage to be put out per week. Dimensions of the container cannot exceed three 
feet high by two feet wide {91cm by 61cm) and must not weight more than 50 pounds. Which of the following best describes your situation 
in an average week? (Full Sample) 

Residents were pretty much evenly split about how much garbage they 
put out at the curb in an average week. 

On one side is the group (53% combined) who put out the maximum 
one bag (42%) and those who need more than one bag (11%). 

On the other side (47% combined) is the group who doesn't have a full 
bag {34%) or sometimes can afford to skip a week (13%). 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 

Figure 1.2o - Typical garbage set out by survey type 

We put out more than one garbage 
bag/container 
We put out one full garbage bag/container 

On a weekly basis, our garbage 
bag/container is not completely full 
Some weeks, we do not have enough to 
put out the garbage bag/container 

Telephone 
(n=l,253) 

11% 

42% 

34% 

13% 

• Those 18-44 years are more likely to put out a full bag or more (72%) than those 45-64 years (50%) and those 65+ years (45%). 

Online 
(n=6,639) 

9% 

49% 

29% 

13% 

• Those living in households of three or more people are more likely (73%) to put out a full bag or more than those in households of two 
people (41%) and those in single person households (30%). 

• Those with a household member using diapers are more likely to put out a full bag or more (87%) than those without (51%). 
• Those who use seven or more bag tags a year are more likely to put out a full bag or more (91%) than those who use 1-6 tags (61%) and 

those use don't use any tags in an average year (42%). 
• Those who do not participate in the organics program are more likely to put out a full bag or more (63%) than those who participate (49%). 

• Those who would need to continue weekly garbage collection are more likely to put out a full bag or more (70%) than those who cou ld 
manage EOW (33%). 

~ ETROllNE 
uu:.a.iC!t OllOU JI 

Page 5 

170



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 
Figure l.2b - Typical garbage set out by municipality - .. - -

(Random telephone survey) Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

We put out more than one garbage 11% 7% 11% 8% 13% 9% 10% 4% 11% 11% 16% 14% 8% 
bag/ container 
We put out one fu ll garbage 42% 45% 35% 35% 44% 43% 34% 45% 41% 50% 39% 46% 49% 
bag/container per week 
On a weekly basis, our garbage 34% 30% 37% 45% 34% 34% 44% 39% 35% 24% 32% 25% 34% 
bag/container is not completely fu ll 
Some weeks, we do not have 13% 18% 17% 12% 9% 14% 12% 12% 13% 15% 13% 15% 9% 
enough to put out the garbage 
bag/container -

All percentage differences fall within the margin of error. There are a few trends in the data, however these could potentially be a result of the 
size of the households interviewed for the study rather than something unique to the municipal ities: 

• Residents of Thorold (60%), Welland (60%} and Niagara Falls (57%) are slightly higher in putting out one bag or more per collection. 

• Residents of Lincoln (43%) and Pelham (44%) and Grimsby (46%) are slightly lower in putting out one bag or more per collection. 

1.3 Garbage Tags 
Q13 - How many tags for additional garbage bags does your household buy and use in an average year, if any? (Full Sample) 

About two-thirds of the community (65%) told us they do not buy/use any 
garbage tags in the course of an average year. 

About one-third (35%) will use a garbage tag at least once a year on average, 
between those buying and using one to six tags (24%), and those using seven 
or more tags (11%) . 

. · ~:_A ETROLINE Tr•·-,u ... ac11 c:uo uri 

Figure 1.3a - Garbage tags used by survey type -

(Random telephone survey) 

None 
1-6 
7+ 

Telephone 
(n=l,253) 

65% 
24% 
11% 

Online 
(6,639) 

49% 
32% 

19% 

Page 6 

171



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 

Household size was the biggest determinant in using garbage tags. About half of those (48%) of household with three or more people require at 
least one tag a year. 20% of households with three or more people use seven or more tags a year. 

Figure 1.3b - Garbage tags used by household size - -

(Random telephone survey) Total Household Size 
(n=l,253) 

1 2 3+ 

None 65% ~ 86% 72% 52% 
1-6 23% 10% 23% 28% 
7+ 12% 4% 5% 20% 

Age is also a determining factor. The younger the resident in the survey, the more likely they were to have used bag tags. 

Figure 1.3c - Garbage tags used by age group 

(Random telephone survey) Total Age group 
(n=l,253) 

18-44 45-64 65+ 

None 65% 54% 62% 78% 
1-6 23% 25% 27% 17% 

7+ 12% 21% 11% 5% 

Other significant findings: 

• Those who deal with infant/adu lt diapers (53% use at least one a year) are more likely to need bag tags than those without diapers (33% use 
at least one per year). 

• Those who need to put out more than one bag of garbage per week are more likely to use at least one bag tag per year (67%) than t hose 
who put out one bag per week (41%), those who put out a bag per week that isn't fu ll (26%), and those who can afford to occasionally skip a 
week (12%). 

• Those who need to continue having garbage picked up weekly are more likely to use at least one bag tag per year (41%) than those who 
cou ld manage every-other-week (27%). 

~~Te~.<2~1~~ Page 7 

172



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Figure l.3d - Garbage tags used by municipality - - -

(Random telephone survey) Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

None 65% 69% 69% 74% 61% 69% 77% 60% 62% 60% 75% 58% 73% 
1-6 23% 21% 19% 21% 25% 24% 19% 32% 24% 24% 16% 29% 20% 

7+ 12% 10% 12% 5% 14% 7% 4% 8% 14% 16% 9% 13% 7% 

Municipalities less likely to have used any garbage tags in the past year: 

• Pelham (23%), Wainfleet (25%), Lincoln (26%) and West Lincoln (27%) 

Municipalities more likely to have used a garbage tag in the past year: 

• Welland (42%), Thorold (40%), Niagara Falls (39%) and St. Catharines {38%) 

'. ,~_A ETROLINE 
,~. H!E U CH <J IO UP 

Page 8 

173



1.4 Waste Collection Participation 
Q21 - Does your household put out the following items for curbside collection? 
(Full sample) 

Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Figure 1.4a - Waste collection program participation by survey type 

Virtually all households in Niagara Region are 
participating in the recycling program {99%/99%). 

About 7 in 10 households say they participate in the 
organics collection program. The participation level is 
virtually the same between the random telephone 
survey and the online survey {71%/72%). 

Participation in leaf/yard waste collection is next 
(63%/82%), and the brush collection in spring and fall 
(52%/63%). 

Participation in both the appliances/scrap metal 
collection {26%/27%), and the bulky/large item 
collection (35%/46%) is lower. 

~ ETROLINE 
t ! St r.ilC11 O i OU f' 

Waste Col lection Participation 

Recycling - Blue and/or Grey Box 

Organics - Green Bin 

Appliances/scrap metal r-g;%N!t4¥#kt!Ql. 26% . ... 27% 

Bulky/large items 35% 
46% 

Leaf/Yard waste l .;, :-::;,:;.~% ffP\c •~ · .'"?.'&..fX*j,';..9'·.cJ;.:: ---L~ 

Brush in spring/fa ll 50% 
63% 

• Telephone l!5i Online 

71% 
72% 

~' 

81% 

99% 
99% 

·------.. -····---- - - -----·-·-..-----· ------ ··- .....,. ____________ ... ___ .,._..,__,_ 

Page 9 

174



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Figure 1.3b 2- Waste collection program participation by survey type {Hamiltan) 

The percentages were different, but we found a similar sentiment/ pattern in 
Hamilton in 2016. 

Virtually all participate in recycling, t he organics collection and yard waste 
co llection (which included brush in this survey) were next, and the bulky/large 
item collection (which includes scrap metal/appliances) had the lowest 
participation. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 

Participate in Organics/Green Bin collection 

Hamilton Waste Survey 

Blue Box recycling 

Organics/Green Bin 

Yard w aste 

Bulky/large item collection 

• Those 65+ years (77%) and 45-64 years (73%) are more like ly to participate than those 18-44 years (55%). 

Telephone Online 
(n=800) (n=l,468) 

99% 99% 

83% 84% 

80% 88% 

45% 55% 

• Those in a single person household (72%) and dual person household (74%) are more likely to participate t han those in a household of t hree or more 
people (66%). 

• Those with no household members using diapers (72%) are more likely to participate than those with a household member in diapers (50%). 

• Those who can afford to skip a weekly collection (81%), and those who put out a garbage bag every week that isn't full (76%) are more likely to 
participate than those who put out a fu ll bag every week (68%) or those who put out more than one bag (52%). 

• Those who can manage every-other-week collection (77%) are more likely t o participate than those who need to continue having t heir garbage collected 
every week (66%). 

Participate in bulky/large item collection 
• Those in households of three or more (37%) and two people (35%) are more likely to participate than those in single person households 

(28%). 

• Those who use seven or more bag tags per year (45%) or 1-6 bag t ags (44%) are more likely to participate than those who do not use bag 

tags in an average year (30%). 

2 City of Hamilton Waste Management Services Public Engagement Survey - Metroline Research Group, 2016 

AA~T.~.<?.~.~~ Page 10 

175



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Participate in leaf/yard waste pickup 
• Those who could manage garbage collection every-other-week are more likely to participate (67%) than those who need to continue having 

garbage picked up weekly (61%). 

• Those w ho participate in organics collection are more likely to participate in leaf/yard waste pickup (71%) than those who do not participate 
in organic collection (45%). 

Participate in brush pickup 
• Those who could manage garbage collection every-other-week are more likely to participate (54%) than those who need to continue having 

garbage picked up weekly (47%). 

• Those who participate in organics collection are more likely to participate in brush pickup (56%) than those who do not participate in 
organic collection (36%). 

Figure 1.4c - Waste collection program participation by municipality 

(Random telephone survey) Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

Recycling - Blue and/or Grey 99% 99% 100% 99% 100% 97% 99% 99% 100% 97% 96% 98% 99% 
Box 
Organics - Green Bin 71% 63% 84% 73% 72% 73% 70% 75% 74% 74% 59% 64% 60% 

Appliances/Scrap Metal 26% 16% 36% 19% 35% 24% 19% 19% 34% 30% 23% 24% 7% 
Bulky/Large Items 35% 36% 36% 27% 42% 28% 29% 31% 44% 41% 25% 36% 14% 

Leaf /Yard Waste 63% 45% 77% 55% 73% 58% 59% 55% 82% 70% 19% 68% 35% 

Brush in spring/fall 50% 32% 53% 45% 60% 52% 43% 35% 69% 55% 12% 50% 28% 

Participation rates in the different programs vary by municipality. Some of this may be a resu lt of their geographical location. Municipalities in 
areas that are less urban may have residents with larger properties t o manage their own composting and leaf /yard waste or brush disposa l, for 
example. 

~ BRO LINE 
ij f$E~ iC •1 ~ ~ O~ P 

Page 11 

176



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

1.5 Recycling Participation 

1.5.1 Blue Boxes 

Q22 - Blue Box recycling includes containers that are made of plastic, metals, glass or styrofoam. How many Blue Boxes does your household 
put out at the curb in an average week? (Base - Converted to full sample) 

Figure 1.5.1a - Number of Blue Boxes by survey type 

Telephone Online Virtually all residents (99%) of Niagara Region are participating in the 
recycling program. (n=l,253) (n=6,639) 

97% of residents in the telephone survey are putting out at least one blue 
box per week. About 1 in 5 residents puts out two or more blue boxes per 
week. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Tel·ephone) 

None/Not participating in program 

Less than once a week 
One per week 
Two or more per week 

1% 1% 

2% --

78% 70% 
19% 29% 

• Household size was a primary factor in the number of blue boxes. Households of three or more people are most likely to be putting out 
two or more boxes (34%), compared to two person households (9%) and single person households (3%). 

• Those 18-44 years (29%) are most likely to be putting out two or more boxes, compared to those 45-64 years (23%) and those 65+ years 
(7%). 

• Those buying the most (7+) garbage tags per year are also most likely to put out 2+ blue boxes (42%), compared to those who buy 1-6 tags 
(20%), and those who do not use garbage tags (15%). 

• Those who wou ld need to continue having waste collected weekly are most likely to be putting out two or more blue boxes (22%), 
compared to those who cou ld manage every-other-week collection (16%) . 

. ·~:;A ETROLINE 
,~.ktHAi ~ H Clt01JP 

Page 12 

177



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Figure 1.5. lb - Number of Blue Boxes by municlpolity 
-

(Random telephone survey) Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

None/Not participating 1% 2% 1% 1% 1% 4% 3% 1% -- 4% 4% 2% 1% 

Less than once a week 2% -- 2% 3% 1% 3% -- 1% 1% -- -- 4% --
One per week 78% 85% 81% 84% 79% 75% 77% 82% 80% 74% 71% 71% 75% 

Two or more per week 19% 13% 16% 12% 19% 18% 20% 16% 19% 22% 25% 23% 24% 

Across all municipalities, there is not much difference when looking at the percentage of households who put out at least one blue box per week on 
average. Niagara-on-the-Lake was lowest, but even there it was 93% of households. 

1.5.2 Grey Boxes 

Q24 - Grey Box recycling includes items such as paper, cardboard, cereal boxes, tissue boxes, etc., and bundled plastic bags. How many Grey 
Boxes does your household put out at the curb in an average week? (Base - Converted to full sample} 

Almost all Niagara residents are participating in the grey box recycling 
program as well. Slightly fewer (92%) than the b lue box (99%) participation. 

92% of Niagara low-density households put out at least one grey box per 
week on average. 

Residents are less than half as likely {8%) to put out two or more grey boxes 
than blue boxes {19%). 

~ ~ ~ ETROLINE 
USV.i Cli 0 ~0 11? 

Figure 1.5.2o - Number of Grey Boxes by survey type 

Telephone 
(n=l,253) 

None/Not participating in program 6% 

< 1 x week 2% 

One per week 84% 

Two or more per week 8% 

Online 
(6,639) 

2% 
1% 

81% 

16% 

Page 13 

178



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 
• Household size a factor once again. Those in households of three or more people are most likely (14%) to put out two or more grey boxes, 

compared to two person households (4%) and single person households (2%). 

• Those 18-44 years are most likely to put out two or more grey boxes (14%), compared to those 45-64 years (9%) and those 65+ years (2%). 
• Those buying the most (7+) garbage tags per year are also most likely to put out 2+ grey boxes (20%), compared to those who buy 1-6 tags 

(8%), and those who do not use garbage tags {6%). 

Figure l.5.2b - Number of Grey Boxes by municipality 

(Random telephone survey) Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l.253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath . fleet. Lincoln 

None I Not participating 6% 8% 4% 5% 4% 8% 4% 4% 3% 8% 13% 4% 12% 
< 1 per week 2% -- 1% 3% 3% 3% 4% 4% 1% -- 1% 3% --

One per week 84% 91% 88% 87% 85% 81% 84% 84% 85% 84% 79% 84% 80% 

Two or more per week - 8% 1% 7% 5% 8% 8% 8% 8% 11% 8% 7% 9% 8% 

As with the blue box recycling, there is no difference statistically by municipality. Only two municipalities are below 90% of residents putting out at 
least one grey box in an average week - Wainfleet (86%) and West Lincoln (88%). 

~~Ti~S~~~.~ Page 14 

179



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

1.6 Green Bin/Organics Participation 
Q26 - Green Bin organics program includes food waste, paper napkins/ towels/bags, paper take-out trays/egg cartons, coffee 
grounds/filters & tea bags. How many Green Bins or containers marked as organics does your household put out at the curb in an average 
week? (Base - Converted to full sample) 

About 7 in 10 (71%) of Niagara Region residents told us they are participating 
in the organics collection program. That number dropped slightly when 

looking at green bins in an average month, to 69%. 

68% of residents in the telephone survey told us they put out at least one 

green bin per week. In this particular question, the finding of the on line 

survey was similar, where 70% told us they are putting out one green bin per 
week on average. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 

Figure 1.6a- Number of Green Bins by survey type 

(Random telephone survey) 

None I Not participating 
Less than one per week 
One per week 
Two or more per week 

Telephone Online 
(n=l,253) (n=6,639) 

31% 29% 

1% 1% 

63% 63% 

5% 7% 

• Those 65+ years (73%) and 45-64 years (70%) are more likely to put out at least one green bin per week than those 18-44 years (53%). 

• Those using diapers for someone in their household (49%} are less likely to put out at least one green bin per week than those with no 

diapers in their household (69%). 

• Those who do not use any garbage tags in an average year (68%) and those who use 1-6 garbage tags per year (70%) are more likely to put 

out at least one green bin per week than those who use 7+ garbage tags per year (57%). 

• Those who would need to continue having waste collected weekly (62%) are less likely to put out one or more green bins per week 
compared to those who could manage every-other-week collection (73%). 

• Those who feel there would be little to no impact to their household with every-other-week collection (72%} are more likely to be putting 

out at least one green bin per week than those who feel every-other-week wou ld have at least some impact (62%). 

·l~~~ 'T~I ~Te~S?.~lw~u~ Page 15 

180



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Figure 1. 6b - Put out one or more Green Bins by typical garbage set out 

• Those who can afford to skip a week on garbage 

collection occasionally (77%), and those who put 

out less than one full bag/container per week 

(73%) are more likely to be putting out at least 

one green bin per week, compared to those who 

put out one full bag/container per week (65%) 

and those who put out more than one full 

bag/container per week (48%). 

Figure 1. 6c - Number of Green Bins by municipality 

(Random telephone survey) Total Fort Grimsby 
(n=l,253) Erie 

None I Not participating 31% 39% 17% 
< 1 per week 1% 1% 2% 
One per week 63% 57% 76% 
Two or more per week 5% 3% 5% 

_AA~I~2~1~~ 

48% 

More than one 
bag/container 

Lincoln Niag. 
Falls 

28% 28% 
-- 1% 

72% 65% 

-- 6% 

73% 

65% 

One full bag/container One bag/ container not full 

NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain-
Colb. Cath. fleet . 

27% 32% 29% 28% 27% 45% 
3% -- 1% 1% 3% --

61% 62% 56% 65% 66% 51% 
9% 6% 14% 6% 4% 4% 

77% 

Could skip a week 
occasionally 

Welland West 
Lincol n 

36% 46% 
3% --

58% 54% 
3% --

Page 16 

181



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

1.6.1 Not participating in Green Bin/Organics collection 
Q28 - Why do you not participate in the Green Bin/Organics program? (Base - Not participating) 

Just under a third (31%) of those not participating in the 
Green Bin/Organics program told us they are doing their 
own composting/vermiposting. 

"We have a farm and dispose of it in our manure pile ... " 

The next biggest barrier to participating in the Green 
Bin/Organics program is a concern about smells/odours. 

13% of those not participating in this program indicated 

they do not participate because of a worry about the 
smell. 

"It sme lls awful. We freeze organic waste throughout the 
week and dispose with the trash on garbage day. You can 
always tell when someone uses the green organics bin as soon 
as you walk into their house. It isn't practical ... " 

Figure 1. 6. la - Why not participating in Green Bin/Organics program? 

Why not participat ing in Green Bin/Organics program? 
(Telephone survey, n=369) 

Composting/vermiposting 

Smell/Odour 13% 

Inconvenient/extra work r;r;e; :tg §b-itszwa 11% 

Worried about bugs/maggots/animals 10% 

Have a garburator ''H' 9% 

Not inte rested in sorting it out !. - i"fa•!J 9% 

Don't have enough wast e t o be worth it ea 1·&M6SW 8% 

Messy wu W 6% 

Bin breaks, don't have one 5% 

Don't have room to store - 3% 

Don't know M *S H W 11% 

Lack of motivation was third, with people telling us that separating the waste was inconvenient or extra work for them (11%). 

"Waste of time separating items and keeping another bin full of stinking food around fo r rodents and insects to find ... " 

~~Te~.2~1~~,~ 

31% 

Page 17 

182



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

The other major barrier is a concern about bugs/maggots/animals in and around the green bin (10%). 

"Many animals In my neighbourhood makes it difficult to keep the organics from being eaten. I have t he same problem with my regular garbage container ... " 

The 'ick' factor was expressed as well, with 6% talking about the process being messy and 9% not being interested in sorting out the waste for the 
Green Bin. 

"I find it gross and disgusting ... " 
"Because I do nat have very much for the green bin and find it disgusting to deal with in the summer ... " 

~ ~T~~S~~l~IJ~ Page 18 

183



co 
Cl 

O
'l 

.-1 
Cl.I 

C"'I 
..:-ClJ 

tlO
 

n
l 

c.. 
.Q

 

E
 

~ ClJ 
C

l I t: 
.g .... 
~
 

a ~
 

..,, 

~ t: 
,£! i:::n 
<Ii 
a: e 0 i:::n 

~ 

184



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

1. 7 Appliances/Scrap Metal Participation 

1. 7.1 Put out at the curb 
Q29 - How many times per year would you say your household puts out appliances or scrap metal at 
the curb for collection? (Base -Converted to full sample} 

Figure 1. 7a - Appliance/Scrap Metal participation by survey type 

4 in 5 households in Niagara Region (80%) told us they do not participate in 
the appliances/scrap metal collection program. Among those who have 
participated, at most is was about once a year. 

The results of the on line survey are similar in this case, with 75% not 
participating in the program. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 

None I Not participating 
Once per year 
Twice or more per year 

Telephone 
(n=l,253) 

80% 

15% 
5% 

Online 
(n=6,369) 

75% 

15% 
10% 

• Those 18-44 years (21%) and those 45-64 years {22%) are more likely than those 65+ years (15%) to participate in the program at least once 
a year on average. 

• Those with households of three or more people (23%) and households of two people (20%) are more likely than those in single person 
households {13%) to participate in the program at least once a year on average. 

• Those who use 7+ garbage tags per year (27%) and those who use 1-6 garbage tags per year (25%) are more likely than those who do not 
use garbage tags (17%) to participate in the program at least once a year on average. 

Figure 1. 7a -Appliance/Scrap Metal participation by survey type -

(Random telephone survey) Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

None I Not participating 80% 86% 73% 85% 75% 81% 85% 84% 75% 77% 81% 84% 95% 

Once per year 15% 11% 23% 15% 16% 18% 8% 8% 19% 19% 16% 11% 4% 

Twice or more per year 5% 3% 4% -- 9% 1% 7% 8% 6% 4% 3% 5% 1% 

~· ~~fTROLINE 
,,,.. • • £ ~~;.. a ch O S! OU P 

Page 20 

185



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 
1. 7.2 Scheduling a pick up 

Q210 - Do you schedule a pick up with Niagara Region for scrap metal or appliances, or put them out at the curb for anyone to pick up 
without scheduling a pick up? (Base- Participate at least once a year on average) 

Figure 1. 7.2a -Appliance/Scrap Metal pick up type by survey type 

Those who participate in the app liances/scrap metal program at least once a 
year on average were asked how they arrange for pick up. 

Three-quarters (74%) of program participants told us they schedu le a pick up 
with Niagara Region, and one-quarter (26%) w ill simply put the item at the 
curb. 

The on line survey respondents felt similarly (77% schedu led, 23% leave at curb). 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone} 

Note: Sample size varies according to 
participation rates and survey type 

Schedule a pick up 
Leave out 

• Women (81%) were more likely than men (65%) to say they scheduled a pick up. 

Telephone 
(n=249) 

74% 
26% 

• Those 65+ years (88%) were more likely to have scheduled a pick up than those 45-64 years (72%) or those 18-44 years (64%). 

Figure 1. 7.2b -Appliance/Scrap Metal pick up type by municipality 

Note: Sample size varies Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland 
according to participation rates (n=249) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. 
and survey type 

Schedule a pick up 74% 92% 90% 82% 69% 85% 73% 83% 69% 65% 79% 74% 

Leave out 26% 8% 10% 18% 31% 15% 27% 17% 31% 35% 21% 26% 

--~J~:_AETROLINE 
,,~.kfSEA i CH C'> lt O IJfl 

Online 
(n= 1,696) 

77% 
23% 

West 
Li ncoln 

75% 
25% 

Page 21 

186



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

1.8 Bulky/Large Item Collection 

1.8.1 Put out at the curb 
Q211 - Bulky/ large item collection .includes items like carpet and furniture. How many times per year would you say your household puts out 
items like this out at the curb for collection? {Base - Converted to full sample) 

More households (29%) do participate in bulky/large item collection 
compared to the scrap metal/appliances collection (20%). 

In total, 29% of households told us they participate at least once a year, with 
the majority (19%) of households participating once a year, and 10% of 
households participating two or more times a year on average. 

Those in the on line survey told us they are participating more often. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 

Figure 1.Ba - Bulky/Large Item collection by survey type 

Telephone 
(n=l,253) 

None/not participating 71% 

Once per year 19% 
Twice or more per year 10% 

Online 
(n=6,639) 

56% 
20% 

24% 

• Those in households of three or more are more likely to participate at least once a year (33%), compared to households of two people 
(28%), or single person households (19%). 

• Those who use 7+ garbage tags per year (43%) are more likely to participate at least once a year (43%), compared to those who use 1-6 
garbage t ags per year (38%) and those who do not use garbage t ags (23%). 

Figure 1.Bb - Bulky/Large Item collection by municipality 

Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

None 71% 71% 72% 83% 67% 78% 74% 72% 61% 66% 80% 70% 89% 

Once per year 19% 19% 24% 13% 20% 14% 14% 15% 25% 27% 16% 18% 8% 

Twice or more per year 10% 10% 4% 4% 13% 8% 12% 13% 14% 7% 4% 13% 3% 

AA ~T.~.~~,R~~ Page 22 

187



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

1.8.2 Scheduling a pick up 

Q212 - Do you schedule a pick up with Niagara Region for these bulky/large items, or put them out at the curb for anyone to pick up without 
scheduling a pick up? (Base - Participate at least once a year on average) 

Those participating in the bulky/large item pick up are most likely going to be 
scheduling a pick up with Niagara Region. 94% sa id they wou ld schedule a 
pickup for bulky/large items, compared to 74% of those participating in scrap 
metal/appliances. 

Figure 1.8.2b - Bulky/Large item collection type by municipality 

Note: Sample size varies Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. 
according to participation rates (n=365) Erie Falls 

and survey type 

Schedule a pick up 94% 96% 95% 100% 97% 
Leave out 6% 4% 5% -- 3% 

AA~T.~.9~1~"~ 

Figure 1.8.2a - Bulky/Large Item collection type by survey type 

Note: Sample size varies according to Telephone Online 
participation rates and survey type (n=365) (n=2,943) 

Schedule a pick up 94% 92% 
Leave out 6% 8% 

NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

93% 100% 81% 92% 92% 100% 94% 87% 
7% -- 19% 8% 8% -- 6% 13% 

Page 23 

188



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

2.0 Waste Collection Options For Next Contract 

For Niagara Region's new wast e collection (garbage, recycling and organics) contract, residents and businesses are being asked for their opinion 
about several proposal collection options. Adopting some or all of these opt9ions would help reduce the amount of waste going to disposa l, and 
limit future cost s to businesses and taxpayers. 

The purpose of this survey is to receive feedback from residents on the possible collection options and to help Regional staff understand resident's 
feelings about each option. 

J L~.AETROLINE 
,,,. t l &c>. .a CH Ortour 

Page 24 

189



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

2.1 Bulky/Large Item Collection 
Q31 - The first option is related to large or bulky item pick up, such as carpet or furniture. The change would be to limit the number of 
large/bulky items collected to a maximum of four per week. In 2018, 92% of the bookings for large or bulky item pick up were for four items 
or less. If Niagara Region was to make this change, what would be the impact on your household? (Base - Full sample) 

Making a change to the bulky/large item collection so 
that a maximum of four items per collection can be put 
out will not unduly impact Niagara region residents. 

6% of residents in the telephone survey, and 14% in the 
online survey feel this change would have an impact on 
their household. 

The vast majority told us there would be little to no 

impact to them (94% of households in telephone survey, 
87% of households in the online survey). 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 

• Those in households of three or more (8%) are 

Figure 2.la - Change ta Bulky/Large Item collection, impact by survey type 

Impact of change to large/bulky item pickup 

A big impact 

Some impact 

Might or might not be an impact 

Not much of an impact 

No impact 

2% 
5% 

4% 
- 8% 

15% 

25% 
27% 

~·7if':wuz:wxs;:;q:wq 64% 

slightly more likely to feel impacted, compared to I • Telephone Iii Online 

households of two people (5%) and single person 
households (4%). 

• Those who use 7+ garbage tags per year (16%) are most likely to feel there would be an impact on their household, compared to those who 
use 1-6 garbage tags per year (5%) and those who do not use garbage tags (4%). 

~ ETROLINE 
~ESEA I C t~ ~ •ou i:. 

Page 25 

190



Figure 2.lb - Change to Bulky/Large Item collection, impact by municipality 

A big impact 

Some impact 
Might or might not be an 
impact 
Not much of an impact 
No impact 

r~~ ,~1~IE~.'2~1tfu~ 

Total 
(n=l,253) 

2 

4 
5 

25 

64 

Fort Grimsby Lincoln 
Erie 

-- 7% --
1% 8% 3% 

5% 4% 5% 

23% 21% 30% 

71% 60% 62% 

Niag. NOTL 
Falls 

2% --
7% 2% 
7% 8% 

33% 21% 
51% 69% 

Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

1% -- 1% 4% -- 2% 1% 

3% 7% 5% 3% 1% 3% 4% 

6% 7% 4% 3% -- 11% 4% 

19% 25% 27% 30% 11% 23% 19% 

71% 61% 63% 60% 88% 61% 72% 

Page 26 

191



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

2.2 Appliances/Scrap Metal Collection 
Q32 - The second option under consideration would eliminate curbside pickup by Niagara Region of appliances and scrap metal. Currently, 
residents can go online and schedule a pick up of items at their home. Only 6% of Niagara households are using the curbside collection of 
appliances and scrap metal service. Also, as much as 60% of these items that are being put out have already been removed by the 
time crews arrive to pick them up. There would continue to be an opportunity for residents to take the items to a regional drop-off depot, at 
no charge, or have it picked up by private scrap metal haulers. If Niagara Region was to make this change, what would be the impact on 
your household? (Base - Full sample) 

Dropping/stopping the appliance/scrap metal collection 
program would have some impact on about 1 in 5 
households in Niagara region . 17% of households in the 
telephone survey, and 22% in the on line survey feel there 
would be at least some impact. 

83% of households in the telephone survey, and 78% of 

the households in the online survey, feel there would be 
little to no impact on their household. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 
• Those who use 7+ garbage tags per year (23%) are 

most likely to feel there would be an impact on 
their household, compared to those who use 1-6 
garbage tags per year {18%) and those who do not 
use garbage tags (14%}. 

• Those who would need to continue to have their 

Figure 2.2a - Change to appliance/scrap metal collection, by survey type 

Impact of change to appliance/ scrap metal pickup 

A big impact 

Some impact 

Might or ight not be an impact 

Not much of an impact 

No impact 

7% 
8% 

I J 17% 

!·'iM · .... , .... ,.,.,+·L 25% 
27% 

. ·"""~~~·-- 50% 
34% 

• Telephone II Online 

garbage picked up weekly are more likely to find at least some impact (19%) than those who could manage every-other-week collection 
(12%}. 

~~I,~~~IR~~ Page 27 

192



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 
Figure 2.2b - Impact of change to appliance/scrap metal collection, by municipality 

Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

--
A big impact 7% -- 11% 7% 8% 10% 7% 9% 7% 8% 3% 8% 4% 

Some impact 9% 8% 11% 4% 11% 13% 7% 11% 10% 5% 9% 8% 7% 

Might or might not be an 9% 14% 11% 12% 11% 12% 8% 4% 9% 10% 1% 8% 10% 
impact 

Not much of an impact 25% 28% 25% 25% 27% 23% 27% 20% 28% 34% 11% 23% 16% 

No impact 50% 50% 43% 52% 43% 42% 51% 56% 46% 43% 76% 53% 63% 

, __-;.~~ ETROLINE ,,,.l!HARCll •HOU• 
Page 28 

193



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

2.3 Clear Bags 

2.3.1 Support for clear bags 
Q33 - A third option under consideration is the mandatory use of clear garbage bags. Some municipalities in Canada have already made this 
change. The cost for the clear bags would be about the same as green/black garbage bags. Clear garbage bags will make it easier to see 
recyclable or organic material that should be placed in the Blue/Grey Box or Green Bin or Hazardous Waste items that should be disposed of 
safely. A smaller opaque bag, such as a grocery bag, can be placed inside the clear garbage bag for disposing of sensitive or personal items. 
Would you support a switch to clear garbage bags? (Full Sample) 

Household support for the mandatory use of cl ear bags in 
the telephone survey was surprisingly a fairly even split. 
48% would support (definitely or probably), and 52% do 
not support . 

It's a different picture when looking at the sentiment 
expressed in the online survey. 27% would support, and 
73% oppose. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 
• Those who would need to continue to have their 

garbage picked up weekly are more likely to 
support the use of clear bags (57%) than those 
who could manage every-other-week collection 
(40%). 

! ~~~ ETROLINE 
,,,.~£$1!A iCh (i i OU 

Figure 2.3.1a - Suppart for mandatory clear garbage bags by survey type 

Support for change to mandatory clear bags 

Definitely would support 

Probably would support 

Might or might not support 

Probably would not support 

Definitely would not support 

. 26% 
LVLl:-~JJ 13% 

•• 22% 
he- - I 14% 

fa,..@ 14% 
11% 

~14% .. L__ ____ J 16% 

46% 

• Telephone l!I Online 

Page 29 

194



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 
Figure 2.3.lb -Support for mandatory clear garbage bags by municipality 

Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

Definitely would support 26% 19% 24% 28% 26% 30% 33% 24% 23% 20% 26% 33% 27% 

Probably would support 22% 26% 28% 23% 19% 16% 15% 24% 26% 30% 16% 20% 19% 
Might or might not support 14% 17% 14% 12% 13% 19% 16% 19% 15% 16% 8% 13% 11% 
Probably wou ld not support 14% 17% 17% 17% 16% 12% 12% 7% 14% 8% 13% 15% 12% 
Definitely would not 24% 21% 17% 20% 26% 23% 24% 26% 22% 26% 37% 19% 31% 
support 

_AA~r,~2~1~~ Page 30 

195



2.3.2 Why support/not support? 
Q34 - Why do you say that (support/ not support clear bags)? 
(Full Sample) 

Keeps unwanted items from landfill 
Encourages use of Blue/Grey boxes and Green Bins 
Concerned about invasion of privacy 
Don't want my neighbours seeing my garbage 
Concerned about strength of clear bags 
We do not need "garbage police" 
Added cost/more effort 
Neutral/indifferent (General) 
We only use small grocery bags 
Stupid/no need (General) 
Safer/ better for waste management people 

NOTE: All other responses are less than one percent t otal 

Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Total Support cl ear Oppose clear 
bags bags 

28% 51% 6% 
25% 48% 5% 
25% 8% 40% 
14% 3% 24% 
5% 2% 8% 
5% 1% 8% 
4% 1% 8% 
4% 6% 3% 
3% 1% 5% 
2% -- 3% 
1% 3% --

"Clear bags tend to cost more money and are not as readily available. I also think having them curbside looks gross vs a black garbage bag. That being said I can 
understand why this idea could potentially reduce the amount of unacceptable Items ... " 

"I just don't buy garbage bags so that would be an extra expense for us. Otherwise I am on board, we f10ve nothing to hide ... 11 

"Taking the trouble to separately sort embarrassing or secure sensitive material is annoying ... " 

"Clear bags are more expensive for one. The world doesn't need to see m y garbage. Are you going to refuse pick up if I have recyclables in m y trash? What about 
recycling that can't be cleaned like pizza boxes? Teaching what can be recycled and what can't would be far better ... " 

"If it becomes mandatory I will of course comply but personal items aside, I am not a fan of having my neighbours being able to see what I purchase, eat or throw 
out. Items come into my house concealed in shopping bags and that privacy with them going out is just as important to me ... " 

~ ETROLINE 
l! i ~.; iC h '1 1.0UP 

Page 31 

196



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

2.4 Every Other Week Garbage Collection 

2.4.1 Managing every-other-week collection 

Q35 - Jn Niagara Region an average of 50% of every garbage bag is food waste. A fourth option under consideration, that is already in 
practice in many other municipalities which encourages residents to use their Green Bin, is to pick up garbage every-other-week, but 
continue to collect unlimited Blue/Grey Boxes and Green Bins every week. There would be no change or reduction in the garbage container 
limit, but there would be less frequent pickup. With collection every-other-week, you would be allowed two garbage bags/containers. 
Based on your household's waste practices, would you be able to manage? (Full Sample) 

Residents were split on their feelings about garbage collection every-other
week, with slightly more leaning towards continuing their weekly collection. 

46% of the telephone survey, and 41% of those in the on line survey could 
manage every-other-week col lection. 

Be able to manage garbage collection every-other-week 

Need to continue having your garbage picked up weekly 

3 Region of Waterloo Waste Survey, Metroline Research Group Inc., 2014 

:AA ~I,~2~1~u~ 

Figure 2.4.la -Ability to manage Every Other Week garbage collection by survey type 

Telephone Online 
(n= 1,253) (n=6,369) 

Be able to manage EOW collection 46% 43% 
Need to continue weekly collection 54% 57% 

Niagara Region Waterloo Region3 

Telephone LDR Online Telephone Online 
(n=l,253) (n=6,639) (n=Sll) (n=7,087) 

46% 43% 50% 36% 

54% 57% 50% 64% 

Page 32 

197



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings (Telephone) 
• Residents 65+ years are more likely to be able to manage every-other-week collection (51%), compared to those 45-64 years (45%) and 

those 18-44 years (41%). 

• Those in single person households (62%) are more likely to be able to manage every-other-week collection than those in two person 
households (50%), and those in households of three or more {37%). 

• Households with no one using diapers are more likely to be able to manage every-other-week collection (47%) than those with someone in 
diapers (31%). 

• Those who do not use garbage bag tags in an average year are more likely to be ab le to manage every-other-week collection (52%) than 
those who use 1-6 garbage tags {41%) and those who use 7+ garbage tags (24%). 

• Those who participate in organics collection are more likely to be able to manage every-other-week collection (50%) compared to those 
who are not currently participating in organics collection (37%). 

• Those who support mandatory use of clear bags (55%) are more likely to be able to manage every-other-week collection (55%) than those 
who oppose mandatory clear bags (38%). 

• Those who currently put out more garbage are less likely to say they could manage every-other-week collection 

Figure 2.4. lb -Ability to manage every-other-week garbage collection by typical garbage set out 

Ability to manage every-other-week collection 

80% 

60% 

31% 

23% 

I 
Put out 1+ Put out one fu ll Put out one Could afford t o skip a 

bags/containers per bag/cont ainer per week bag/container that is not week 
week full 

~~T£~2~1~ Page 33 

198



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 
Figure 2.4.lb -Ability to manage Every Other Week garbage collection by municipality 

Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

Be able to manage EOW 46% 52% 48% 52% 36% 50% 52% 40% 50% 47% 40% 49% 38% 

collection 
Need to continue weekly 54% 48% 52% 48% 64% 50% 48% 60% 50% 53% 60% 51% 62% 
collection 

'1A ETROLINE 
P. f UAi Cll OitOUP 

Page 34 

199



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

2.4.2 Impact of every-other-week collection 

Q36 - If Niagara Region collected garbage bags every-other-week, but collected your Blue/Grey Boxes and Green Bins every week, what 
would be the impact on your household? (Full Sample) 

In the telephone survey, just under half of 
residents (48%) feel there would be at least 
"some" impact on their household if 
Niagara Region switched to every-other
week garbage collection (while continuing 
to collect blue/grey boxes and green bins 
weekly). 

A slight majority (52%) feel there would be 
little to no impact to their household. 

Respondent Sub-Segment Findings 
{Telephone) 

• Those in households of three or 
more (62%) are more likely to say 
there would be a big/some impact, 
compared to households of two 
people (40%) and single person 
households (33%). 

• Those 18-44 years (59%) are more 
likely to say there would be a 
big/some impact, compared to 

Figure 2.4.la - Impact of Every Other Week garbage collection (Telephone) 

Impact of Every Other Week garbage collection 
(Telephone, n=l,253) 

impact 
19% 

those 45-64 years (48%) and those 18-44 years (41%). 

• Those using diapers (70%) are more likely to say there will be an impact, compared to households with no diapers (47%). 

~~T.~2.~'~~ Page 35 

200



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

• Those using 7+ garbage bag tags per year (76%) are more likely to say there will be an impact, compared to those using 1-6 garbage tags 
(55%) and those not using garbage tags (41%). 

• Those not participating in the green bin/organics collection are more likely to say there will be an impact (57%) than those who are 
participating {45%). 

Figure 2.4.lb - Impact of Every Other Week garbage collection 

Niagara Region Hamilton4 Waterloo Region5 

Telephone Online Telephone Online Telephone Online 
(n=l,253) (n=6,639) (n=800} (n=l,468) (n=511) (n=7,087) 

A big impact 27% 37% 34% 44% 25% 18% 

Some impact 21% 21% 20% 19% 29% 24% 

Might or might not be an impact 7% 9% 6% 8% 7% 10% 

Not much of an impact 19% 17% 18% 13% 22% 24% 

No impact 26% 16% 22% 16% 17% 24% 

Impact Ratio +3 +25 +14 +34 +15 -6 

(Big/Some vs. Not much/no impact) 

While 48% of Niagara region resident indicate every-other-week collection would have some impact on t heir household, these numbers are lower 
than the 54% of residents in Hamilton and Waterloo Region who indicated there would be an impact on their household. 

4 City of Hamilton Waste Management Services Public Engagement Survey - Metroline Research Group, 2016 
5 Region of Waterloo Waste Survey, Metroline Research Group Inc., 2014 

~ ~Te~a<2~1t'~ Page 36 

201



Niagara Region Waste Callectian - December, 2018 

Figure 2.4.lc- Impact of Every Other Week garbage collection by municipality 

Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. NOTL Pelham Pt. St. Thor. Wain- Welland West 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls Colb. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

-

A big impact 27% 19% 32% 16% 38% 15% 18% 27% 25% 26% 31% 28% 35% 

Some impact 21% 23% 19% 23% 19% 31% 23% 24% 20% 26% 23% 20% 16% 

Might or might not be an 7% 13% -- 5% 7% 9% 4% 5% 8% 7% 3% 8% 10% 
impact 
Not much of an impact 19% 14% 21% 21% 22% 15% 16% 23% 19% 23% 13% 18% 18% 

No impact 26% 31% 28% 35% 14% 30% 39% 21% 28% 18% 30% 26% 21% 

Impact Ratio +3 

AA~T,~.~~l~u~ Page 37 

202



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

2.4.3 Why is there an impact 

Q37 - Why do you say that? (Base - Asked of those who say there would be a big/ some impact) 

Figure 2.4.3a - Why big/some impact of EOW collection? (Telephone) 
Those w ho feel there would be a "big impact" or "some 
impact" were asked for the primary reasons why 
(unaided, this list was not provided). 

Why big/some impact from EOW collection? 
(Telephone, n=603) 

Smell The biggest barrier is the smell, especially in the summer 
t ime (63%), significantly higher than all other ment ions. Animals • ~. - : • ' ·- - ;-JI • - ' • • -·· 

Keeping animals out of t he garbage was the second 
barrier, at 39%. 

Storage 

Insects ~···; ,.s..,' -~ -·.. • • 

Finding space to store the garbage for the extra week 
was third, at 35%. 

Messy 

Health con cern 

-.: .. -.... ~.:;: 

Diapers - 7% 
"The stench would be absolutely sickening in the summer, and 
it would also be a big draw for flies and rats and we are Schedu ling/ remembering Bii 6% 

overrun with them already- both of which could be a health Too much garbage to w ait :m 3% 
issue. Instead of punishing those of us that recycle and try ta 
keep garbage at a minimum try increasing the cost of the bag Pet w aste • 3% 

tags substantially - if the price is high e nough they'll learn to Don't know ES 3% 
recycle ... " 

12% 

23% 

22% 

39%· 

35% 

63% 

"We produce a fu ll green bin and full garbage every week for a family of 4. Bi-weekly garbage would result in us having 2 bags of garbage bl-weekly. We do not 
have storage space for this extra bag. We already have a mice problem in our neighbourhood and we are concerned that It would increase if we are keeping bags 
of garbage fo r longer. Our garbage contains soiled diapers and holding them longer would greatly increase odour issues ... " 

"Where om I supposed to keep this garbage for on extra week. If I leave it outside animals will get it, if I leave it in my house it will smell and I w/11 have files In my 
house ... " 

L~.~ 
""• ~I~.'2~,~~ Page 38 

203



Niagara Region Waste Collection - December, 2018 

2.5 Making A Choice 
038 - If you had to choose between mandatory use of clear garbage bags, every-other-week garbage 
collection, or the use of both, which would you choose? (Full Sample) 

Figure 2.Sa - Choice between EOW collection and/or clear garbage bags by survey type 

In the telephone survey, residents could not see the option for "neither", and 
our interviewers worked to force a choice from the other three. In the 
on line survey, this was visible after the first day or two of fieldwork, and as a 
resu lt was selected more often. 

In the telephone survey, between the two, there was a slight preference for 
clear garbage bags over every-other-week, but not dramatically so. In the 
online survey, residents who made a choice decided on every-other-week 
collection over clear bags by a margin of about 2:1. 

Figure 2.Sb - Choice between EOW collection and/or clear garbage bogs by municipality 

Total Fort Grimsby Lincoln Niag. 
(n=l,253) Erie Falls 

Clear garbage bags 33% 26% 33% 31% 37% 
EOW garbage collection 27% 31% 24% 33% 22% 
Both clear garbage bags and 21% 25% 24% 20% 13% 
EOW garbage collection 
Neither 19% 18% 19% 16% 28% 

·~!~~ETROLINE 
,,,. i;UCAl Cll G<l)U > 

Telephone Online 
(n=l,253) (n=6,639) 

-
Clear garbage bags 33% 17% 
EOW garbage collection 27% 33% 
Both clear garbage bags and EOW 21% 12% 
garbage collection 

Neither ** 19% 38% 

NOTL Pelham Pt . St. Thor. Wain- Wel land West 
Col b. Cath. fleet. Lincoln 

36% 26% 40% 33% 31% 33% 36% 37% 
22% 34% 21% 30% 42% 21% 20% 20% 
30% 19% 24% 20% 16% 19% 25% 22% 

12% 21% 15% 17% 11% 27% 19% 21% 

Page 39 

204



POR. T COLBOR.NE 

Engineering & Operations Department 
Engineering Division 

Report Number: 2019- 1,2 Date: February 11, 2019' 

SUBJECT: Amendment to the Zavi,tz Municipal Drain Sherkston North Branch 
East & West Trail Branch Dratns Report 

1. PURPOSE 

This report, prepared by Alana Vander Veen, Drainage Superintendent has been 
authorized by Chris Lee, Director of Engineering & Operations in response to actions by 
the Town of Fort Erie. The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an update on 
the activities of the Town of Fort Erie, requisite actions, and project summation and 
reasons of the amendment for the Zavitz Municipal Drain Engineer's Report, of which a 
portion of the Zavitz and the Sherkston North and East & West Trail Branch Drains, are 
located in Port Colborne. 

2) HtSTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNClL POLICY, PRACTICES 

In brief, a detailed summation of the Zavitz Municipal Drain history can be found in 
Report No. 2017-156. (See attached) 

In summary: 
• Wiebe Engineering appointed circa 2005 completed minimal work on the 

report before entering into receivership/bankruptcy in 2008, forcing the 
City to obtain a new Engineer; 

• Paul Smeltzer, P. Eng of AMEC Earth and Environment Limited was 
appointed on April 11, 2011, however due to a change in staff, the 
Engineering firm presented Paul Marsh, P. Eng to undertake finalizing and 
adoption of the new report; 

• A tender was issued by the Town of Fort Erie to complete the construction 
as per the report and Anthony's Excavating Central l1nc. was awarded the 
project; 

• During construction, errors within the report were noted, within the Port 
Colborne upstream end of the drain, with respect to the working ·side, in 
addition to a design change that was made on the West Trail branch in 
order to minimize the depth along the Friendship Trail. Lastly, a request 
from a property owner to upsize a culvert that proved to be inadequate in 
size to handle the first heavy rains and snow melt; 

• Due to these concerns, staff contacted the Tribunal Coordinator for the 
Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs, Appeal Tribunal on how to proceed 
with making changes to the new report; 

3)i STAFF COMMENTS AN'D Dl1SCUSSIONS 

The directions from the Tribunal Coordinator stated that the Town and the City were to 
have the engineer of record make the corrections to the report under a Section 58(4) of 
the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990 which allows the Engineer of record to complete an 
addendum report. 

205



With AMEC Earth and Environment Limited , now Wood Group, contact was made with 
confirmation that Wood Group was unable to complete the addendum required due to 
insufficient staff. 

Again, contact was made with the Tribunal Coordinator and further instructions were 
given by them to contact Paul Marsh P. Eng, who was Engineer of record, to complete 
the what was required, to fulfill the requirements of the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990. 

Paul Marsh P. Eng who now works for EWA Engineering Inc. examined the changes 
and has agreed to fulfill the requirements. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

a) Do nothing. 

The City is mandated by the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990 to ensure that Municipal Drain 
Reports are kept up to date for future maintenance. Doing nothing is not an option. 

b) Other Options 

An up to date report provides for an effective drain maintenance and roadside ditching 
program, which in turn will reduce overall costs, providing ratepayers with a reasonable 
level of service. The approval of this report and enactment of its corresponding by-law 
will enable the City of Port Colborne to then finalize this drainage process and , once 
completed, enable the collection of assessments due to the municipality, for the 
preparation of the engineer's report and construction of the Zavitz, Sherkston North and 
East & West Trail Branch Drains upon the passing of its final by-law for billing. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

Municipal Drain Maintenance Strategic Planning is currently in progress. This project is 
in compl iance with all City legislative requirements. 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A - Report No. 2017-156, Zavitz Municipal Drain Sherkston North Branch East 
& West Trail Branch Drains. 

Appendix B - Plan view of the Zavitz Municipal Drain Sherkston North Branch East & 
West Trail Branch Drains. 

Appendix C - Town of Fort Erie's By-Law 144-2018 Appointing Paul Marsh P. Eng of 
EWA Engineering Inc. 

Appendix D - Prepared Addendum Report by Paul Marsh P. Eng of EWA Report 
Prepared for the Copy of October 31 , 2016 Engineer's Report for the 
Zavitz Drain . 

Report No. 2019-12 Page 2 of 3 

206



7) RECOMMENDATION 

That staff be directed to prepare a by-law appointing Paul Marsh P. Eng of EWA 
Engineering Inc. to comply with Section 8, Chapter D. 17 of the Drainage Act R.S.O. 
1990, as such a by-law will allow us to fulfill the requirement of Section 58(4 ), Chapter 
D. 17 of the Drainage Act R.S .O. 1990, as recommended by the Tribunal Coordinator; 
and 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be directed to execute the appropr iate by-law. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on February 1, 2019 

Alana Vander Veen 
Drainage Superintendent 

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by: 

C. Scott Luey 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Report No. 2019-12 

Reviewed by_: 

Chris Lee 
Director, Engineering & Operations 

Reviewed by: 

Peter Senese 
Director of Community & Corporate 
Services 

Page 3 of 3 

207



PORT COLBORNE 

Engineering & Operations Department 
Engineering Division 

Report Number: 2017- 156 Date: October 10, 2017 

Report 2019-12 
Appendix A 

SUBJECT: Zavitz Municipal Drain Sherkston North Branch East & West Trail 
Branch Drains 

1. PURPOSE 

This report, prepared by Henri Bennemeer, Drainage Superintendent has been 
authorized by Chris Lee, IDirector of Engineering & Operations in response to actions by 
the Town of Fort Erie. The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an update on 
the activities of the Town of Fort Erie, requisite actions, and project summation through 
to the tender stage, regarding the Zavitz Municipal Drain Engineer's Report, of which a 
portion of the Zavitz and the Sherkston North and East & West Trail Branch Drains, are 
located in Port Colborne. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 

A brief, point form outline of the history of the Zavitz Municipal Drain is presented in 
Section 1.3, pages 2 through 8 of the engineer's report, contained in the attachment 
section of this report. Staff compiled a more detailed history of the Zavitz and Branch 
Municipal Drains (see plan view attached), for future consideration and for Municipal 
record. Background highlights, derived from various Engineering & Operations Reports 
to Council, are outlined as follows. 

Report No. 2006-14 facilitated Council's initial appointment of an engineer and 
preparation of a new engineer's report for the Zavitz Drain , ih collaboration with the 
Town of Fort Erie. Report No. 2010-43 provided a brief history and status update of the 
Baer Drain and associated Schooley, Zavitz, Outlet and Beaver Creek Drains and 
facilitated Council's appointment of a member of Port Colborne Council to the Baer 
Municipal Drain Court of Revision. 

Report No. 2011-20 revealed that Port Colborne properties were not in the watershed of 
the Baer Drain and provided extensive background research back to 1890 as to why, 
necessitating a Town Fort Erie re-write of the Baer Engineer's Report. The report also 
provided the rationale for an expanded scope (additional branch drains/road authority 
petitions) for the Zavitz Drain (Port Colborne portion) related to the Friendship Trail and 
Sherkston Hamlet Storm Water Management (SWM) plan, facilitating the appointment 
of an engineer for the preparation of a report thereof and associated Drainage Act 
R.S.O. 1990 clerical matters and direction to staff. 

Report 2012-15 provided a proj.ect update and description/development of the 
Sherkston Hamlet SWM plan/branch drain(s) scheme and the procedure for a 
joint/collaborative report for tfrle Zavitz Municipal Drain, in which the City of Port 
Colborne turned over the proceedings under the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990 to the Town 
of Fort Erie in order to have one report prepared , thus providing the most cost effective 
and most prudent way for two municipalities to proceed on a common/joint watershed 
municipal drain project. 

208



Report 2013-31 provided Council with a final version of the Engineer's Zavitz Drain 
Report along with staff's statistical/financial analysis and concerns regarding 
assessment methodology pertaining to the engineer's findings and recommendations in 
the report. Report 2014-6 facilitated Council's appointment of a member of Port 
Colborne Council to the Zavitz Municipal [)rain Court of Revision. 

In summation, initial interest in the Zavitz Drain came by way of the Town of Fort Erie 
who initiated this process. This is due, in part, to a circa 2004 request/petition for 
maintenance of the Schooley, Baer, Zavitz & Outlet Drains and concerns over a circa 
1979 Drainage Tribunal order regarding tt1e Outlet Drain and the potential impact of the 
Schooley Drain as a result of the pending transfer/download of Point Abino Road from 
the Region. 

At that time, the maintenance provisions under the then current reports for these drains 
were deemed outdated and in need of new reports. Subsequently Wiebe Engineering 
Group Ltd was appointed circa 2005 to prepare one engineer's report for all four drains, 
with Port Colborne having to follow behind with a negotiated, expanded scope for their 
portion of the Zavitz Drain. This is chronicl1ed in Fort Erie Reports IS-61-04, IS-26-05 & 
IS-19-06 and Port Col borne Report E& 0 2006-14. 

In January of 2008, the Town of Fort Erie was informed that Wiebe Engineering Group 
Ltd. was about to enter into receivership/bankruptcy proceedings. As a result, Fort Erie 
elected to have three new reports prepared, one each for the Schooley, the Baer and 
the Zavitz and Outlet Drains by various engineering firms. What is most disconcerting 
about this plan of action is the fact (uncovered during the Zavitz Tribunal Hearing of 
August 5, 2015) that Wiebe had virtually completed (marked as a draft) their report on 
the Schooley, Baer, Zavitz and Outlet Drains in July of 2006. 

Subsequently, the Schooley Drain report was commissioned in March of 2008, 
completed in February 2010 and adopted by Fort Erie By-Law 83-10. The Baer Drain 
report was commissioned in May 2008 and completed in February 2011 , after Port 
Colborne's Drainage Superintendent revealed an error (Port Colborne properties not in 
watershed) in the Engineer's April 201 0 Report and after the September 2010 
resubmission to the C.O.R. was set aside by the Drainage Tribunal (report lacking 
Engineer's seal & signature), and ultimately adopted by Fort Erie By-Law 82-10. The 
aforementioned is chronicled in Fort Erie Reports IS-09-08, IS-20-08, tS-31-10 & IS-32-
10 and Port Col borne Reports E&O 2010-43 & 20111-20. 

With respect to the Zavitz and Outlet Drains, on or about August of 2010, the Town of 
Fort Erie elected, once again, to have separate reports prepared for each drain. In th is 
case, separate engineering firms were selected. As a result of the RFP selection 
process, in October of 2010, AMEC Earth & Environmental was appointed to prepare an 
Engineer's Report for the Zavitz Drain. Similar to that which was experienced at the time 
of the Wiebe appointment, the Town of Fort Erie neglected to include the !Port Colborne 
portion of the Zavitz Drain, as part of the scope of work in their Engineering Services 
agreement with AMEC Earth & Environmental Ltd. Subsequently, Port Col borne staff 
were successful in negotiating a change in the scope of work, induding. some additional 
branch drains for the Sherkston Hamlet SWM, along with the requisite engineering fees 
and a process to facilitate one Engineet's Report for a drain in common, in the case of a 
downstream, initiating municipality. 

Report No. 2017-156 Page 2 of 5 

209



After numerous peer reviews, design issues, report re-writes, appeals to the Court of 
Revision & Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food & Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) Appeals 
Tribunal, many Tribunal hearings, the Engineer's Report was finalized in October 2016 
and adopted by Fort Erie By-Law 16-2014, bringing us to the current, construction 
tender stage in the project. 

Appeal results worth noting however, are staff's success in having Wiebe Engineering 
fees assigned to the Zavitz Drain reduced from $21 ,240 to $11,761 and AMEC 
Engineering fees assigned to the Port Colborne portion of the Zavitz Drain reduced from 
$52,076.08 to $9, 120.33, a significant savings for watershed ratepayers. As for the 
Sherkston North and East & West Trail Branch Drains, the Tribunal ruled that the 
engineering cost and assessment schedules were fair and equitable. The 
aforementioned, other than the appeals process, is chronicled in Fort Erie Reports IS-
49-10, IS-17-12, IS-26-2013, IS-38-2013 & IS-01-2014 and Port Colborne Reports E&O 
2011-20, 2012-15, 2013-31 & 2014-6. 

The Outlet and Beaver Creek Drains, which have a significant impact on the Zavitz 
Drain, will the subject of a future report to Council. 

3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

As stated above, staff is now at the tender stage for the Zavitz drainage works. In 
conformance with the process for one Engineer's Report for common watersheds 
between two municipalities laid out at the onset of the project, Town of Fort Erie staff in 
collaboration with Port Colborne staff, prepared tender documents which closed on 
August 23, 2017. The results as follows, are considered fair and equitable (see also 
attached FE Report No. IS-32-2017 for more details). 

Submitted Tenders 

Contractor Tender Price Tender Price 
(including 13% HST) (net of non-rebatable taxes) 

Anthony's Excavating 
$ 235,751.01 $ 212,301 .08 

Central Inc. 
C.R.L. Campbell 

$ 377,749.16 $ 340,174.82 
Construction & Drainage Ltd. 
Geo. Barnes and Sons 

$416,991 .11 $ 375,513.41 
Limited 

The Town of Fort Erie is the approving authority for the tender amount. The total tender 
amount is for works in both municipalities and a more detailed cost break down 
including engineering, contract administration and grants, will be reported at the time of 
the levy by-law, upon completion of the project. The low bidder, Anthony's Excavating 
Central Inc., is an experienced contractor within the Niagara region and has completed 
similar contracts satisfactorily for the City of Port Colborne. 

According the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990, upon completion of all appeals, the initiating 
municipality is the only municipality that is required to pass a by-law. In this particular 
case for the Zavitz Drain, the October 2016 report process has been more atypical and 
therefore requires that the City enact its own by-law for the following reasons: 

Report No. 2017-156 Page 3 of 5 

210



a) To enable the City of Port Colborne the ability to bill the watershed as per the 
schedules listed in the attached report; 

b) The collaborative process which provided for the upstream (Port Colborne) portion of 
the Zavitz Drain to be included in a downstream (Fort Erie) municipality's report; 

c) The Sherkston North and East & West Trail Branch Drains are drains/watersheds 
entirely within the confines of the City of Port Colborne's legislative jurisdiction. 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

a) Do nothing. 

The City is mandated by the Drainage Act to ensure that Municipal Drain Reports are 
kept up to date for future maintenance. 

According the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990, upon completion of all appeals, the initiating 
municipality is the only municipality required to pass a by-law, therefore, the Town of 
Fort Erie is the approving authority for the tender amount. 

Doing nothing is not an option. 

b) Other Options 

An up to date report provides for an effective drain maintenance and roadside ditching 
program, which in turn will reduce overall costs, providing ratepayers with a reasonable 
level of service. The enactment of this by-law also facilitates the collection of 
assessments due to the municipality, for the preparation of the engineer's report and 
construction of the Zavitz, Sherkston North and East & West Trail Branch Drains. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

Municipal Drain Maintenance Strategic Planning is currently in progress. This project is 
in compliance with all City legislative requirements. 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Copy of October 31 , 2016 Engineer's Report for the Zavitz Drain. 

Plan view of the Zavitz Municipal Drain Sherkston North Branch East & West Trail 
Branch Drains and associated Schooley, Baer, Outlet & Beaver Creek Drains. 

Copy of Town of Fort Erie Infrastructure Services Report IS-32-2017 Award of Tender 
for Zavitz Municipal Drain Construction. 

Report No. 2017-156 Page 4 of 5 

211



7) RECOMMENDATION 

That staff be directed to prepare a by-law adopting the Zavitz Drain Engineer's Report, 
dated October 31 , 2016, prepared by Paul Marsh, P. Eng. of AMEC Foster Wheeler, 
prepared under Sections 4 & 78, Chapter D.17 of the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990 as such 
by-law will provide local status regarding the Port Colborne portion of the Zavitz Drain 
and the Sherkston North and East & West Trail Branch Drains. 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be directed to execute the appropriate by-law. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on September 29, 2017 

1;___~ rs~ 

Henri Bennemeer 
Drainage Superintendent 

Reviewed and respectfully submitted by: 

C. Scott Luey 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Report No. 2017-156 

Reviewed by: 

Chris Lee 
Director, Engineering & Operations 

Reviewed by: 

Peter Senese 
Director of Community & Corporate 
Services 

Page 5 of 5 

212



-- --1 l~ [ t J Jl /~-,'=l~:-:~~~C:-~ -- ,-~r ~: -~:-~- -- 1 1rr1,~ 1 rr1111D1 i,J-/l T_J 
I I § ~g ~(l f--11' l -- -~ 
I ! I /r l~ L i '1:, J , I / I v_!! - --.\ 

- - // LI r' ~1 - \- - - --· OUTLETD~IN 
/ - ,_/ A~· I ,~ ~ , 

·~ 1 11, 1 v . ;;~ ' I v= l I - L1 •·=i-l~-- '1 / !: ·'t:~:1" -~-~ I:~ '-ti' I ~ /( ;' ~ . . l '"'.:- ~ / 1,·~i ·- ~/ -=:.!:; ' I I 
·fr· I .: - I IL . d ( \ -

Iv ·r- ..,._ I _, (J~ /~ ' _! ' 

I'll'.:.• \ J 1 1 I -.._.·.:: 1' 1 - · - ,_... ii:.~-=_,/'-\'. ~m< __ -\\ - .._ - { \ J 
' • .,J ~.:.::. • - • • - · __.....,. ZAVl"TZ DRAIN I 

\ 11 
L, 1(-1._ I~ ~· I I =-'BJ 'Ua_r."I"'.. I .... - 278.4 ha \ / 
~ -1 , '=.:"t - "El t p\.. -'---L'I -- I 

l:"ft: ·:la~,.;;.~L~ - ~ ~.:-~,:; ... ..;-rm~ '';.L L ' L ' ..&.--J-L_ ~ \ .. -1 \ l 
I I~~ ~~ ~: .. ~-1 -- ,,..,,-~ -r-- i ''"--,..1. \ / 

I ~-...-.:f~1~l'?'5 :- 1 I I i ~-1- ':-J -' 
,_, I ~-:;;:-~~~. -.: _- !!:.:,· ::i..L-Ji--=-i ~- ~ ~ \ -::;r ~'~, ! l - I J_i' I I l 

_ .:::;c·~- · w ·- 11,,i s~· - ~ a I ~---- - I 
ll.... \ D<=""J:•L ~·~n.=:i ~ . I 

n-...0 --..; - - 1 - ,,,..:.,.~ : .. _ 1::li - -.~~ ..... - - - - \- - - - , ~ "C-=- ~ I 
'/ !:11 ·-==rrr~~n~:~71friH11!1 ~\:r~41r:-~~-:~-L --">W4 __ :_ 1' ~ n~ tbl L 

r I 1 , 1 ·-r .:i-...1 _ 1·r.i:"' ! - ~ ---~---..... J _ l l! "._ .. , J~r ~J!· 1;\~I 1 . --11~ ~~~ 
.---------=-=-=-=-··-=---=·~ _' -~.:..:....11...:..:. 11 fJ - l ·'-'I ' · 1 ti ] _ _ -:;i -· ·- .-::-1 1=-:::-= ~ 

PROPERTY DETAILS - r I u i I ' ~ c~t·-~~ ~"""~"~t- l' - . - r/-... \ r' 
""":.;::: r@:""l":r- @~ @~· J1 1 · ~ BAERDRAIN ~~I . JI'.!! 1 t y ', 

©~ :::..~ @ ~..:"' @ :::=-@Ee-:"::' >< l __ _yg~--f'" ---- -· --=---= /./ - \-- ~ -
... -- ,,,_ ... - S"U"" I @::-• (D::--• @:=-· · ~ @5::"= ><W><..V YDRAIN 

@r:=-=--::. @~ @?.:!-:"'!':"" @~=-= """' l\ ~Tlil/ ' 

"'---·- ··- ··-- """"-'- I \ J ~~ .. . '*' @ :":,.· · .. @:• . ~ ........ I I 

l_ 

l _\ 

AHRrNAU DnhJn L.V. thechd P.O.S, ~ 
o...n '-"" '""''" Lv. ~~- - ZAVITZDRAIN VITZDRAIN AND SHERKSTO ""'"'"'""· 
..... 1-11000 ~~ NORTH BRANCH DRAIN, EAST& amec ., c.o..M"' ....... 

.,.. . .:rffj3' ~ TOWNOFFORTERIE WEST TRAILBRANCHDRAINS (oster t •a 110120 
.... ..... 2014 •• roo.~ CITY OF PORT COLBORNE WATERSHED wheeler ....... E-1A 

213



I 

Report 2019-12 

The Municipal Corporation of the Appendix c 
Town of Fort Erie 

By-law No. 144-2018 

Being a By-law to Appoint a Drainage Engineer and 
Execute an Agreement with EWA Engineering Inc. 

for the Preparation of an Amended Engineer's Report 
for the Zavitz Municipal Drain 

Whereas Report No. IS-49-10 was considered and approved at the Council-in-Committee Meeting 
held October 4, 2010 to appoint AMEC Earth and Environmental Limited as the Drainage Engineer 
for the preparation of a new Engineer's Report for the Zavitz Municipal Drain in the amount of 
$24,990 (including 13% h.s.t.); and 

Wher~as ~y-law No. 119-10 was passed by the Municipal Council of the Town of Fort Erie on the 
1 ih day of October, 2010 to appoint a Drai~age _Engineer for the preparation 9f a new Engineer's 
Report and to execute an agreement with AMEC Earth and Environmental Limited for professional 
engineering services for the Zavitz Municipal Drain; and 

' Whereas Report No. IS-45-2018 was considered and approved at the Council-in-Committee 
.J Meeting held November 13, 2018 to appoint a new Drainage Engineer for the Zavitz Municipal 

Drain; and 

Whereas it is deemed necessary to appoint EWA Engineering Inc. as the Drainage Engineer for 
the preparation of the Amended Engineer's Report for the Zavitz Municipal Drain; 

Now therefore the Municipal Council of The Corporation of the Town of Fort Erie enacts as follows: 

1. That EWA Engineering Inc. is appointed as the Drainage Engineer for the preparation of an 
Amended Engineer's Report for the Zavitz Municipal Drain. 

2. Thatthe entry into and execution of an agreement with EWA Engineering Inc., in a form 
satisfactory to the Director, Infrastructure Services and the Town Solicitor, is authorized and 
approved. 

3. That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized and directed to execute the agreement with EWA 
Engineering Inc. for the preparation of an Amended Engineer's Report for the Zavitz 
Municipal Drain and to affix the corporate seal thereto. 

214



) 

By-law No. 144-2018 Page Two 

4. That the Clerk of the Town is authorized to effect any minor modifications, corrections or 
omissions, solely of an administrative, numerical, grammatical, semantical or descriptive 
nature to this by-law or its schedules after the passage of this by-law. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 19th day of November, 2018. 

Mayor 

Clerk 

I, Carol Schofield, the Clerk, ofThe Corporation of the Town of Fort Erie certifies the foregoing to be a true copy of By·law No. 144-
2018 of the said Town. Given under my hand and the seal of the said Corporation, this day of , 20 

215



January 9, 2019 

Attention: Mr. Dave Maiden 
Drainage Superf ntendent 
Town of Fort Erie 
Town Hall, 1 Municipal Centre Drive 
Fort Erie, ON, L2A 256 
905 871-1600 Ext. 2405 
<DMaiden@forterfe.ca> 
Copy to: Ms. Alana Vander Veen, 

Drainage Superintendent, City of Port Colborne 

Dear Mr. Maiden: 

Report 2018-12 Appendix U 

EWA Engineering Inc. 

Our File No. 189998 

Please find our report amending the original Zavitz Drain Report prepared by Amee Foster Wheeler and sealed 

by myself. These changes to the report were identified during constructions as follows: 

• Increase in culvert capacity for the Zavitz drain located on the Damude Property identified as Roll No. 
271104000105300. 

• A revision In the Drain grade line on the West Trail Branch Drain adjacent to the Friendship Trail. 

• Change~ to the working easement and allowance calculations for the Clee and Cosby properties. 

These changes are located in the City of Port Col borne portion of the Zavitz Drain works and are brought 

forward for consideration under Section 58 (4) of the Drainage Act, which is to approve changes in the drainage 
design and drainage schedule before final drain commissioning into service and after the report adoption by 
Bylaw. 

For the execution of this work, I have attended the site, met with Mr. Clee and performed a technical review of 
the information available. The amended portions of the report follow this letter. 

Pagel of 15 

1
84 Main Street, 
Unionville, ON L3R 2E7 

647.400.2824 
www.ewaeng.com 

216



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

1 Introduction 

The Town of Fort Erie appointed Mr. Paul Marsh, P.Eng. of EWA Engineering as drainage 
engineer for the Zavitz Drain by Council bylaw. 

1.1 Background 

The Zavitz Drain Report was originally prepared by the appointed engineering firm, Amee 
Foster Wheeler and sealed by Paul Marsh, P.Eng. as part of the Drainage Tribunal hearings in 
2016. Construction commenced in 2018. 

From the original drain report, there have been three significant changes made to the original 

design. 

1. Mr. Damude requested that a larger culve rt was required on his property than the 
design replacement culvert sized as SOOmm circular CSP. 

2. Port Colborne Acting Drainage Superintendent Ms. Alana Vander Veen revised the 
drain grade line for the West Trail Drain to prevent the drain from being too deep 
adjacent to the Friendship Trail. This affected the proposed relaying of the culvert 
crossing Pleasant Beach Road. 

3. After 140m of trees were cleared from the Clee property on the North side of the Zavitz 
Drain, from a total length of 193.3m, Mr. Clee requested that construction be halted. 
The drainage report provided an allowance to Mr. Clee (North side of the drain) under 
Section 30 but directed work to be done from the South side where an allowance for 
work was not granted to Mr. Cosby. 

2 Study Approach 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Information relevant to the construction notes and changes was provided to EWA Engineering 

for review and consideration. 

A site visit was conducted on November 14, 2018 and the following activit ies were performed: 

1. A visual inspection ofthe works along the Friendship Trail was performed. 

2. A survey of drainage swale cross-section was collected in three locations. 

3. It was identified that GPS survey data of the West t rail, East Trail was available and the 
City of Port Colborne wou ld provide the information. 

4. A meeting with Mr. Clee was held and a walking tour of his property was performed 
along w ith a discussion of potential options to proceed. 

EWA reviewed the hydro logic modelling information prepared by Amee Foster Wheeler as part 
of the original design work completed for the Zavitz drain. Additional calculations and analysis 

were performed, which are included in the Appendix to this report. 

Page 2 of 15 

217



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

2.1 Previous Reports and Studies 

Original Computer Aided Design (CAD) files were not made available for the project by Amee 
Foster Wheeler (now the Wood Group). 

Data from NPCA was already in the possession of EWA Engineering for a related project that 
also covered the Port Colborne portion of the Zavitz Drain. 

Previous versions of reports and Assessment schedules were provided by the Town of Fort Erie. 

Specific information, marked up plans, are included as Attachment A. 

3 Methodology 

Site data collection to verify construction work along with survey data and review of predictive 
runoff calculations to confirm design standards is considered a suitable methodology for 
resolving the changes made to design in the field . 

4 Analysis 

The following are the three aspects of change from the original design considered for review. 

4.1 West Trail Grade Line Changes 

Prj # L89998 
EWA Engineering 

The fo llowing is the redline Mark up from the Acting Drainage Superintendent Alana Vander 
Veen for the changes in design grade line. 

Figure 1 West Trail Design Revisions During Construction 

The affected changes shown above are as follows: 

l. A rip rap drop structure was introduced at the outlet of the West Trail and before the 
entrance to the 900mm culvert crossing the Friendship Trail. 

2. The proposed grade line of the West Trail was changed from 0.25 % to 0.1%. 

3. The culvert was not lowered but extended in place with an extension of the same size 
and material. 

Page 3 of L5 

218



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

4. No change in the grade line for East Trail were proposed or made. 

The concern for the changes are related to the potential for failures caused by the following: 

A. A lower grade will reduce the conveyance capacity of the drain without any additional 
compensatory change such as wider bottom or side slopes. 

B. The extension of the culvert will reduce conveyance capacity and might be below the 
design standard. 

C. Increase in drain slope at the outlet might lead to erosion of the base grade. 

Cross section profiles were collected during the site visit at the fo llowing Cross-sections: 

4.1. l West Trail Station 0 + 230 Section C 

The survey data collected shows the following channel cross section. 

SECTION C 

I 
d=0.9~ 1.0 

I 
(2.1,- 1.1) 

Figure 2 West Trail 0+230 Section C 

Top width bankfull flow at a depth of 0.9m is shown to be 3.6m. 

4.1.2 West Trail Station O+ l 70 Section B 

The survey shows the following channel cross section. 

SECTION B 

Figure 3 West Trail Station 0+170 Section B 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

0 =0.90 
SS =1.50 
ew =o.so 

D =0.90 
SS = 1.50 
ew =0.90 

Page 4of15 

219



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

4.1 .3 West Trail Station 0 + 030 Section A 

SECTION A 

(0.0,0.0) 

r 
d • 0.35n 

~ 

Figure 4 West Trail Station 0+030 Section A 

D =0.35 
SS =1.50 
SW ~ 1.00 

For each cross-section an equiva lent trapezoid was used to confirm the design capacity. It's 
recognized that a potentially slightly larger capacity may exist based on the specific 
measurements made but that a comparison against trapezoidal design as stated in the original 
design plan & profile drawings is required for comparison. 

The Rational Method was used to pred ict the channel capacity for a 1:2 year flow of 0.065 ems 
with a 1:5 year flow of 0.088 using a 1 hour intensity value. 

Figure 5 West Trail Catchment Areas 

--~ 

il·1 
'l 

" 

The capacity of the equivalent trapezoidal channels was calculated to be as follows: 

Tobie 1 West Trail Channel Capacity 

Channel 
ID 

Sect -A 

Sect - B 

Sect - C 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Length 
(m) 

Slope, Manning 
(m/m) n coeff 

0.0019 0.022 

0.0019 0 .022 

0.0007 0 .022 

Bottom Bank 
Width, Depth, Slope, Q, 

BW(m) D (m) (m) (m3/s) 

1 0.35 1.5 0.404 

0.8 1 1.5 2.955 

1.1 0.9 1.5 1.687 

Page 5of15 

220



15_ -

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

The slope was determined based on the GPS survey data, collected post construction by City of 
Port Col borne, for the crossing inverts and for the base grade points. The survey showed the 
base grade points are not graded correctly and will need to be revised to grade posit ively 
towards the outlet. 

The grade lines used in the calculation are shown in the fol lowing figure. 

I - " - - -
I 1 

llPP'!Ol< IAAIE 
..• - .. - ii\15.0S>'JP 1'Wi. '4_" - - .. 

I : 

I \ 

I - - - -
~~· ~~ ~lD~ ~ ~-{! - _ - - ·- - - STRUCMi£ 

' 

~~~~~~~~~~~~-o.sm.,-,--eamJM-=•":;..,,.::::-;;0•~~1-t--~~--it--~~~~~~~~t--~~~~~~ 

, I 

0+~00 I 
0+400 

SJDE 5LOPE-2:1 

I 

o+~oo I o+1~o I 
0+100 

Figure 6 West Trail Revised Design Grode Lines 

From t his we can conclude that the drain as constructed has adequate capacity for the 
predicted runoff from the Rational method. However, the lower section of the West Trail East 
of the Pleasant Beach Road requires re-grading to match the design. During the site visit water 
was seen to be ponding in this section. This indicates that the bottom of the ditch should be 
regraded to better match the design shown in Figure 6 West Trail Revised Design Grade Lines 
as the red arrow. 

Calculations are included as Attachment B. 

4.2 Zavi1tz Dratn Cultvert Size Changes 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Original Report contained like for like culvert replacements with two SOOmm CSP culverts being 
required on two properties; Damude and Clee. 

Review of the previous SWMHymo modelling work completed for the Zavitz Drain shows that 
runoff computations for the 1:2 year storm were analyzed and reported as 6 hour SCS storm 
runoff of 1.608 ems {revised to 1.560). The CN value used was 75, perhaps sl ightly on the high 
side for such a fla t area that is largely forested or scrub large rural I urban fringe lot sizes with 
large lawn coverage. 

Time to peak reported as 12.16 hours but with a run-time warning that the time step value 
used was too large and may affect time to peak results. 

Page 6of15 

221



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

The SWMHYMO file; ZavFinal.out reported t he following results: 

1.253 based on a CN of 73.50 {which is considered more appropriate) 

Time to peak of 12.33 hrs with the same warnings. 

Comparison with Rational Method calculations to benchmark runoff results resulted in a peak 
flow predicted va lue of 0.944 ems based on a runoff coefficient of 0.17, which is suitable for 
rural lot area w ith grades less than 2%. {local grades are actually less than 0.2%) 

Culvert design capacity of 1 ems is considered the design requirement for the t wo private 
crossings. The free flow capacity of the existing and design SOOmm CSP culverts is given as 0.3 
ems, too low in comparison with the design capacity. 

A comparison of upstream and downstream and downstream channel capacity shows that the 
channels as constructed through the land area upstream of the culverts are low in capacity. 

The calculation record is included in Att achment C. 

4.3 Zavitz Drain Work Zone Changes 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

A review of the Allowances for the property shows that two allowances were considered: 

• A Section 29 allowance that is paid for permanent or long term negative impacts to 
land use. Typically associated with permanent easements in favour of maintenance or 
degradation of soil capability from soil spreading. 

• A Section 30 allowance that is paid for construction impacts to use, such as crop 
disturbances or ornamenta l t rees. This is a one time payment for negative impact of 
construction. 

From the original report, For the Zavitz Drain, page 43 Section 8.2. 

"No allowances have been granted under Chapter D.17 Section 29 as the work 
anticipated does not meet the requirements as set out in Chapter D.17, Section 29. 11 

"The allowances paid under the Drainage Act, Chapter D.17, Section 30 (note changed 
f rom original text) are based on a value of $1,000 per hectare for wooded areas, $2,000 
per hectare for cultivated lands and $5,000 per hectare for the lands that are m ostly 
residential and being in use. 11 

For t he Sherkston North Branch, there were Section 29 allowances made but none were 
recorded fo r the Zavitz Drain. 

From the Assessment summary in the report, page 43. 

Page 7 of 15 

222



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

RoUNo-. 
Property Owner 

Name 
Zavitz Drain - Fort Erle 

20018339000000 SpJroneUo, A. 
200183380000UO Beach, C.M. 
20 J18337000000 Green, K.R. 
200183370f.OOC10 Beach, D. & C. 
200183360.000UO Clark, D.M. 
2001 B335000ID(l)'O Woronchak, M. & N. 

if qt~I Alfpwanc:_es - Fon Erie 

Za,vllz Orafn - Port Colborne 
271104000105400 Cosby, D. 
27110400.0138400 Clee,.J. 
271104000105300 Damude, R. 

Total Alft~wances - Port Colbome 
Total Allowances -Zavitz Drain 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Chapter D.17, Chapter 0.17, 
Total Section 29 Section 30 

- $880 $ 880 
- $827 $ 827 
- $533 $533 
-- $474 $ 474 
- $551 $551 
- $ 280 $280 

$ 3,,543 

- $ 406 $ 406 
- $1 ,294 s 1,294 
- $307 $307 

$ 2,008 
$ 5,551 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

Project No: TP110~ 20 /TP110120A Page43 

Figure 7 Original Report Assessment Allowances 

The section 30 allowance for Property 138400 was $1,294 and based on the following: 

• A calculated working space allowance of lOm Right Width and 610.3m Length for a 
tota l impacted area of 0.610 Ha and a calculated value of $1,221. 

• A channe l allowance for the increase in drain top width from 2.lm to 2.Sm Right and 
2.Sm from 2.2m Left; Width and 610.3m length Right and 417.0m Left for a total 
impacted area of 0.024Ha and 0.013Ha w ith a va lue of $74. 

The Section 30 allowance for Property 105400 was $406 and based on the following: 

• A calculated working allowance of lOm Left Width for a distance of 193.3m for a total 
impacted area of0.193 Ha and a calculated value of $387. 

• A channel allowance for the increase in top with from 2.0 to 2.5 for a distance of 
193.3m and an impacted area of 0.0.10 Ha with a value of$19. 

From page 32 of the Drain Report, 

ST A 2+268.2 to STA 2-t685.2 
Clean out appfoximately 417.0 m oi existing channel !o the design 

I 271104000138400 grade and dimensrons as noted on the enclosed plans, including 
Glee, J. R. removal of debris and obsfluctions. Remove existing culvert and 
(bolh sides) replaee with new 500mm CSP ealver1 a! STA 2+601.8 to f;e Installed. 

Spoil to be levelfed adjacent to the drain (see Section 6.S>. 
Work to be undertaken from north and west side of drain. 

1271104009138400 ST A 2+685.2 to STA 2+878.5 
' Clee, J. R. Clean out approximately 193.3 mm existing channel lo the design (north s!de) and 

grade and dimensions as noted on tile enclosed plans, including 

271104000105400 
removal of debris and obstructions.. 

Cosby, D. Spoil to be levetred adjacent to the drain (see Section 6.5}. 
Work to be undertaken from south side ol drain (souili slde) 
- ---

I 

I 

Shows that the plan of work was for the grade line restoration and spoil was to be removed 
from the South side of the drain for the last 193.3m of the drain East of the Pleasant Beach 
Road. 

Page 8 of15 

223



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Figure 8 Drain Length for Allowance Calculation 

This image from Google maps shows a measurement of the drain allowance for Section 30 
calculation for the Clee Property 138400 was calculated based on 610m of length, which is the 
entire length of property adjacent to the North, West and North of the drain as an allowance 
for clearing and cleaning. 

From the 1979 Report prepared by CJ Clarke Consulting Engineers, 

" This drain was last cleaned out in conjunction with the repair the Baer Drain under the 
1957 report ... " 

"Allowances for damages to lands and crops (if any) under Section 30 of the Drainage 
Act are as follows: ... " 

ZAVITZ ORAitl: City of Port Colbor ne A 110 ~1ances 

o ... mer Con. 

Robert Jane 

Jos . Clee 

Lot or 
Part 

2 

A l l o '·''a n c e 

s 
$ 

35.00 

85 . 80 

There were no allowances granted for work on the now Cosby property. 

From the 1947 Report, 

Page 9of1'5 

224



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

"We recommend that the Zavitz Drain be constructed at the location shown colored in 
red on the Flat Plan attached to and part of this report and that it be constructed to the 
bottom widths, side slopes and grade Jines as shown on our Profile attached to and part 
of this report." 

"ALLOWANCE FOR DAMAGE TO LANDS & CROPS & DISPOSAL OF MATERIA L" (predates 
the revised Drainage Act of 1974). 

ALLOWANOE FOR DAJ4..~GE TO LANDS & CROPS & DISPOSAL 
OF :MATERIAL 

Elia Zavitz 
Gee. Becket ead 
w. A. Sehoenbur~ 

35.00 

Note: the Clee property was formerly the Zavitz property. The Cosby property was formerly the 
Mathes property, which did not receive an allowance. 

No assessment for damages were planned for work on the South side of the drain in either the 
1947 report or in the 1979 report. This establishes that historically the drain has always been 
cleaned from the North and West sides of the drain. 

From OMAFRA Publication 852, "A Guide for Engineers working under the Drainage Act in 
Ontario, published 2018, Queen's Printer for Ontario, Toronto, Ontario 

Page 55, 

"When a drain is constructed, the municipality acquires a right-of-way or easement 
along the drain. If property owners plant trees within this right-of-way without 
permission, allowances are typically not provided for Section 78 reports. 11 

Generally, this recognizes t hat a municipality reserves the access privilege to perform future 
works from the easement without incurring undo costs that affect other ratepayers within the 
drain watershed. 

From the site visit that was conducted on November 14, 2018, the stumps left behind by the 
cutting of trees on the North Side of the Drain appeared to show that the trees were planted 
into the spoil bank from the previous drain cleaning. This indicates, as per the Drain allowance, 
that work was undertaken from the North side of the Drain and the landowner subsequently 
planted trees adjacent to the Drain. 

Page lO of 15 

225



Prj 11 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Figure 9 View of South Bank Zavitz Drain looking East 

This image from Google Maps shows the extent of the drain already cleared on the North Side. 

Figure 10 140m of the North Side of Zavitz Drained Alreody Cleared 

The remaining drain to be cleared is 193.3m of origina l distance to be cleared minus the 
distance already cleared, 140m is 53.3m. This is the area adjacent to the existing house and the 
septic tank located at the North East Corner of the house. The view of the drain from the 
roadway shows the distance between the drain. the house and the septic tank. 

Page 11 ofl5 

226



Drain CL I 

Prj # 1-89998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Figure 11 Zavitz Drain from Pleasant Beach Road looking East 

Septic Tank, <4m 
from Drain CL 

~gm from Drain 
CL to House Edge 

I PL Marker (SIB) 

A tree restoration plan was presented to Mr. Clee on or about November 26, 2018 and the 
owner refused to accept the plan by email dated, December 21, 2018. 

Summary: 

1. The Spruce trees were planted by Mr. Clee into the spoil pile from the previous drain 
clearing and in the way of future drain cleaning efforts. 

2. The report incorrectly stated the drain was to be cleared from the South side when the 
allowance was calcu lated for the North side and South Side. 

3. The north side has already been cleared for a distance of approximately 140m of the 
allowed 193.3m . The remaining SOm is in conflict with the existing house and septic 
tank and tile bed. 

4. A proposal was presented to Mr. Clee to complete the remaining work to conduct drain 
maintenance from the North side preserving as many trees as possible along with a 
tree restoration plan, showing trees to be planted outside of a lOm buffer distance 
from the drain, which he did not accept. 

Pnge l2of15 

227



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

4.4 Additional Zavitz Drain Changes not already noted 

The original design had a rock check dam (OPSD 219.210) shown on the plan & profile at 
Station 2+037.4. The details page included OPSD 219.211, which is a temporary Rock Flow 
Check dam for a flat bottom ditch. 

As the design called for a flat bottom ditch, the call out t ext should have referenced OPSD 
219.211. Since the temporary placement was intended to be during construction and removed 
later, it is no longer shown on the drawings composed as a record of construction. 

5 Recommendations 

5.1 West Trail Grade Line Changes 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

The revised grade line change along with constructed channels have adequate capacity to meet 
the predicted design flow. The actual Grade line constructed to the East of Pleasant Beach Rd . 
to date is not as per the revised design grade line and should be addressed through 
construction regrading. 

Revised drawings indicating the changes are included as Attachment E. A view of the 
constructed drain is presented in the following figure. 

Figure 12 Zavitz West Tra il Branch Drain past construction looking East 

There are no changes indicated for the assessment schedule based on the construction changes 
to the grade line. 

Page 13of15 

228



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

5.2 Zav~tz Curvert Sizes 

It is recommended that the culvert located on the Damude property be upsized to the 
minimum Corrugated Steel Pipe Atcl:i CSPA 910x660 

The li>enefrt of upsizing the culvert on the Clee property is not as clear as the upstream drain 
channel capacity is limited'; however, the culvert may also be upsized to the· CSPA 910x660. 

The actual culvert costs will be assessed using the same basis as the origina l assessment 
schedule. 

5.3 Zavitz Work Zone and Section 30 AUowance for Property ARN 

27111 0400011 38400 

Replace the description on page 32 of the report with the following text. 

271104000138400 
Glee, J. R. STA 2+685.2 to STA 2+878,.5 

Clean out approximately 193.3 m of existing channel to the design grade 
and dimensions as noted on the enctosed plans, including. removal of 
debris and obstructions. 

(north side) and 

271104000105400 Spoil to be levelled adjacent to the dria!n (see Section 6.5). 
Work to be undertaken from North side of drain. Cosby, D. 

' (south side) 
...-..--~==-----~=---··" -----·--==-

llrj II 189998 
EWA Engineering 

The Assessment schedule is changed to remove the allowance credit from Mr. Cosby. This 
criange affects all the other calculated assessments by redist.ributing costs as shown in the 
fol rowing Assessment Schedule shown in Attachment E. 

The Revised All'owance wm impact two property owners directly and all property owners 
indirectLy. Tliie removal of the allowaince for work zone from the Cosby property reduces the 
total allowance for that property. The allowance for the Clee property remains unchanged. 

Paul C. Marsh, P.IEng. 
P'rincipal Engineer 

EWA Engineering Im:. 
pcmarsh@ewaeng.com 

Engineer's Seal: 

llage 1.f of 15 

229



Attachments 
Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

List of Attachments: 

A. First Attachment: Documents related to request for Section 58 (4) to Tribunal. 

B. Calculations to assess West Trail Drain Capacity. 

C. Calculations to assess Zavitz Culvert Capacity 

D. Tree Restoration Plan presented to Mr. Clee. 

E. Revised Design Drawings and Assessment Schedule. 

EWA Engineering Page 15 of 15 

230



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Attachment A: Reference Mark up Plans 

231



~ I 
I ;!!\ l I 
\ ~\\ ~·' tit..,. •• ...,_ '. \\ ' ... -, -(106£~-.cD/ I I 

J_ .~ l. ,c_"'C':;o' __ L,--,; [ .:c;;::r_D \1 ,, .. ,,,,.,= ;EASTTRNLBRA~HDRAI - \ ~-·---
I "' , 

': 11.0Clt [(11' \loo-.. CSP ClJtYClfl 

\ ~ . \ \a PROP. "°°"""" HOf'C o.A.lltRI \frl>;f,! \#OSO'fl;fl!l.'8l.£ tlU 100••) 
~ • ! ... 011 ~I~ 11•.r<ll" ~l()t 0-1 

l ~ i -:-j_~• -r-.-:;- : - - ~ \ ' 

- -- - . __ ~ '. r· : -~ 
1 

-·---·-·-~·-· · · _ " 
1 

i. ~SHIPTBAll : -~ 

~r.!-~' .. --~~ r-1.ill:ttl":' '.""~ ~v~~o:.·tfl:d\C'i:.i~!"2.'1EJ.. ~·~e~tf) \ ~ i " (~t·~·~2:i/i ~~1·1 ~·" ···::~n-lt\· - =-~-~-\\~ ~:\. \ ~~!\ \ r:\.~.·~-il-~\. \. • < ":,:!"gd.'·1~ 
F l I I \ ~'" ; -·· is ~ 1 ~~. r.l"" .... 1 •. \ ·~ ! ~~ , l OISI .~ .. OH: Ctl.vPl I \;.~! ::I ' ~ - \~ 1 ~-- -: I -1 ~> t·J I 

\ 
'""!,~~= I \0-.~\ I ' ~~1 -~~ ~ ; ~ \~~\ I -~ \ o~\ \ f.~\ ' l \ ~~ 1

\ I C "'......,,,........ I -..) ' '" I~· ·1 f."\ ' ".~\ F· ') I (., I ~]· i t:J \ i . ~~p~~r:~·~ \ I -# \-· l i· j - I 1· 1 ~ I I 
1
llAL 8ltWOt r.w.w.) J \ -~ \ • \ \ I l 

Dd'T~~CVl'...:"' 

(PAilfOf"EENlll~ olW""'O ~I 
l O BC .....,.llOlo(fl) 

I 
I 

I 

-H+-+-1-.L. -1--! , 1 . u-1 ~+~-lLLL __ J t.· 1 

1 

! I I · --U-4-!-l jl 1~ --t+ i .-t I .• l N...J 1 ~ r'~":~+,-~j"'"L~•r • J~_d __ J_ __ Ll- -:--f-{ ~_" _7' .• _ •• "'_:~ •KMI• _ --f :±-t-l-..1 i I 
'---1~"" "T"'; l I r ! ______ L~.- ! ~CD:LJ' s .:-1 ,--1---- :~> -~_ ::i ~~f-::. -l:;J:;:r: _ :.r-~ -- ~\- - v~-~-I :::=L.J._l_ l..1 

' I I ~-- I ,_ i I I I I I I 1 ~- ' ~ "Sic ic."Tcr I ' /j r I : I ' ... '°"' 

B
_· --- I ----,,.,~· · .. • I ~--1- ~r, -~-· -1--"";;z=ftl 1=-r ~I -- '-1---I--"'- .::.:.:=.~~=- - ~ \ ------- ~ - I -"1--i __ , I - y-l-'---1 

I I [lf\l l

11
:
1
._ .. I I ! ~~~~'~:~"'~ ~ ___ I ± I 91~T~ ~i~0 --,-- , - I 4 ~Hl STA J l12.]1./t ~'"'' 

I I 'l I ' [. £'1.1\' : 1111;1• Cll:tlO ll'll~ll ' . -------r--1 I I l --' _j_ 1}~.·rJ_:•: r1 . ILo • ...L. , , ~ ,,_.,., . P( _ ; """ °"""" • 9--li•l.fil.L. lo.r~.-<£...il>c,J?.=.ikp~' • ·.:..~ . ·-'--\· .."-"" }'i'-'' or o 
I I ' I .. nN , unL'" I . I t L I siruy.~,~~ . I lt\.OClO: n. IOOrNtl csP OA\IVIT j . ' 

-r--t--~ _ I I / 1 , I I Tv.n~ ·., ... 1- 1c 1~J ,.,~ ::. I I I I , ' I I I : 1 I • 
L .. . - , I - 1_ • • - .. -. • - T- ~ - - ·1· · 1 Gfli'::'.r""'h:L\ ~"'"-' ;,, ?ril <:. - -l --r' - -~ ·- I i -; --[ ''.'.': ~·····r ~ ".".''' l f .. ·l . 1- - . "-H' r 

! I t.IDC SUll'(S T 2! 1 ....... -- -r1 ... 1~1SlMCS .. J. I l f ~!l ~ :,, l • ' ~ I I , I I II 1' · · ·"""""-,::;;,., ,, .. 1 i .... ~·"~~..:.-..,,:!'."::-: ... ~ .. ~ ,. u· •. • •.. .:.~·;'.;'.:' ... . i"' i , ~ ·1 I 
• ·-1 - I --t-, r-11 I r i I ~ . =\'~I ! i r--'1 '. ' -. I : " • -· ---- +----L-r----, .:.......-1. l --· -1- I . I I , I r,l, . I I . I LJ__ ! \ l _ i=~~1=1-I~ __ J_ _J_I_ 

I I I- :'.:\1~-s~o.~~~311 ' I 1-J I • I I I ! ' I I t-i I o.s,, .... -r:;., r·~· l.\"1 '+w; I i I I I I r 1· I I I I I 

- - 1·- - 1- 1 ; 1 - lT1 · : 1-, 1- ·1--1 1 1 ,-~ 1 , i i 1 ·1 1~--1--1 1 --1--1-- . :---r-111-i 
Sl~ 
~~ ~~ 01~ 

~a 
D1.t.,n L \I'. Cti..:i...d P.0..S. 

D•••• O.<. '"~"" ~'· ~. ·...;,.~ ""''" ""''· ..,... ~-~~. :- -~ llrnjlU:ll• '•"- ,,... ''HE~ __.._ Dot.- • ,, ... , . 
OC1(l9£R 2CIJ ..:..-•" ~ ~---.. ... ... .. 

~~ o\g 
~~ 
~g 

s.f. 
~@ 

ZAVITZ DRAIN 
TOWN OF FORT-ERIE 

CITY OF PORT COL'.BORNE 

~5 ~ ~~ ~ 8~ ~~ ~5 ~~ 
+~ ~ .~ ~ ~ i~ 6 ~ ~~ ~~ 
o~ of~ o~ o~ 1 ~ 1 ~ 1 ~ 1 _ 

ZAVITZ Df'' 
PLAN AND P 

EAST & WEST TRAJLB 
r. 

0.1lvo 1-v. c1 •• cli.1d P.0.S. 
O<o"" O.IC. Cti1 <:h d L li, 

""'" Hat.t. 1::2000 
\11rt. 1: 400 

°"1
• cx; roeER 2ou 

ZAVITZ DRAIN 
TOWN OF FORT ERIE 

CITY OF PORT COLBORNE EA! 

232



HIGHWAY #3 {GARRISON ROAD) cm:rnmm. 

- --- -··- -·-·- - ----·--- -f 
! 
--· - - - ---1 __ _.:.. ___ __ • -~~Wot~~;·-~ 

~IG COHiT'OJCT'ICIN A~ l'U
llt,T....S I°"._~ c1> 

ll£IillDl 

flD'\JC£ DCl!f "'°"""" CSP 

~ 

KEY PLAN 

( J , ';.j.j'. ,"" ) 

c~~~.'&f > 
a 

~ 
'"rb<U1< ~J £-SIA. 2•500 

I I I j±f' I ' i ±±" . t I - I ! I ~ I I - I 9 I I t ""'""'<;... .... I I I ' I I I . ~ I . 
189 I- -~1 - __.._, -n-~I -r I ~ I I I I II· - - b-+- - - I 1· ;-11 89 

I '~ I I I ... i """T 'I I I 
188 1 ~-j----:_ ---~- !---; J __ , --1--- --+-+J I · tt.,. .... .;;i-;;n;;;;::;-j :f- - --~ J · ! -+-f-1188 

I I J ' ~ i I + I I I IL I ti I I I l ' ~ · - ' L 
187 1--1 -r -i- ~ : -·1 I ; -,-_.i- . -=1-~::::t<l-~j --·- - __ .• --- --l- : ,:...~- ·i l hB7 

I ! --.: __ -_._,_ _ __, __ --=--J~ _--L.J_ ___ .. ·.::-=---1-· -·I I -i '--t--1 --,==r·--' - - ·-F+--, - "~'·-~· I I 
1861- • i -, - I . ··- i - , ~- - -- J I I - 1 ' ' '-r - ~-186 

! I I I I - - -· ----i---r· - - ---- - - --- - - ·-1 - .----1-- _, - --· I 
18s l- · + 1 -1---1o- - --l- --- - ··- ~- - 1--1-.........t-'"'" ---' -\.--!---+ ' '---+-- -, - r-h8s I. I I I ~f I 'l I -

I j ., I I ~9~ I nt51"Z.,·1r.~ { ~~~~o~Oo\W j ~· J. I 1 \ 

184 1-H· +- _.. . I I t --;·--1- --· --i ~ -1- I l~-"41-----cl I -~ ~, ! - . ::;--0. - ..... . 1184 
' j • ! ! "'""'~ GI" t.wl D'IAJI _ __ •. _ •• rDP ~-•N_DO _ !E ~~r~~.~-

I I I I i I l I I _j_J: l I I I· I I' I I 0

f 
1831 . - ----- I ' I --1 -r 1- ·- , , • h83 

I ' I ' • I . I I I I I I I I ' I ! ' I I I I ' . I I .. : I l . 
182 1 •'- ~ - - - - -------.~ -~~rlClr9 -, I 1-¢~ -i- 182 

I J I j l I : l ' ~ .... ~ - t:• l - t :... I ~~ I 1'Go. ~~· - , I '1 Rt I I I I I I ·--~ ..... .. ..... i I . l ·-- ·-~ " "'"+ 
181 1- -..,..- • • - -~ . l.. 181 

! ' I I I . . . .'I 1801+1 J ,__ --Y-1 I -t -~1_,_! -~-H+· __ _J_ ' - --.\ .-T--rlj- 1- 180 
I -1 I I I I I I ' I I I_ -1 ' j I 111-·t I 

0 

~ 
0.titft L.V. CNdt4 P.O S. 
DID• ,, 0.1(. Cft.cJ1U L.\', 

$col• 
H•th . ' :2000 

Vut. 1:'00 

Del• OCfOBER ZOU 

ZAVITZ DRAIN 
TOWN OF FORT ERIE 

CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

ZAVITZ DRAIN 
PLAN AND PROFILE 

STA I +900 TO STA 2+500 

·~ 
toroU-t Ne. 

~~r •11 'M""'1'1oiia 
wheeler "''"""' "" E-20 

~ 

233



.,, 
r§i 
J"' 
I'~ ;. --i 
·~ .Pn 
•:z: 

'.1·e: 
• l> 

-i 

JO 

I 

J.~ !NE:- A.. + 500 

I~ 
[! 

u~+i 

~. A: :1 

~ 

~ i 
! r--J-.....__j 

~ 
KEY PLAN 

('l71~~r;-ff~---.) 
-2.:.£:•=2:'"' :..~-l...,2:1!!'~~ ~ 

fil:r ~Sll..T <"ID oa:R!:i 
PAOP cu;;,~ CVl.~(_ft~ WAIQI 

~\o o. <\I Cl """' t< G loD 1Y11i1 

CIWl<A!":/ 
PROPOSED 

- -- ------- "5 1"Ll ,"\0i 

( ' 1'f110•G001ii"iif~" 

--.. ·---~!Q!~u~...:.""-L ) 

---

1

1 ! i L: 
I I I : I . I 1 •89 

I ' • .--+- I ~ 1 ~ I I I I I ~·m·-, -1-+--t-r-:~-jl--1 ! I , I ; /fi'-r-:·· 1 , I I • I ,., 
189 1 i 

1 

J_ _ ' ~ • _jl--=4-.+-1--·1~! l~-186 11::~3 I . : !t.c -.::::F,- cr,·:J-=.~=:f-L1 _ ·- -:!1' J_ ~1~·-\85 I 
_J - - - I l ' I I I I I ' ..J ,_, . ..,...,,, l ~~'"" ; I I j ~ I I 184 

-- ) I 

1 

I ·~q I I 1•· e.iua: -t _ -- I 

1 

1861 . -- - --
1 

1 

1 

1 .. t0t.r' ")"'"'\.o.. Om..""=-~ I l "'[' ""' !""' 1 ~t:.~~~ 
1 

.-r-

1

--

1

-· ; 1 ' l•BJ 

I I I 1 I , l .. ruv.,.,,,.,. I .--. ---i--
1 

-- I : I J .. i --; - I ·1 I I- - '_J_ ' : -,-- --;- I I '"' 
! T I I I - I I I • ' I 

184) [ ~i I ' I I 1 I I : .~1:-.:, ,.,____ l' I; I ''I 1181 

••J I- - - I --t-11· 1 - L~ t \ ~ i 1·-t-1--r-._n~· 1 '--,-1-·i-1---r-.. ·;Thao I __ !. - 1 1 . · 1 ,. 1 I I · e-tt I I 1821- ,-1 ! I : I I I ' i I I I I I I I I I I I I Ii.' l+l I I . I I!!'' I I I I 1 - -
\S i 1---1-1- I : I : ! ! -1 I I I 1 I I I i I 

I +- : ___ '1 i f-1-- r-~I. . I I : I i , 180 - - I I i I ' 

I i ! J I • 

185 

' o ~!! T .~ ··~ t-- ~ ~~ 

(. Et£\/Af1Qfril ~ 
- g 

~~ "t; ~~-~ ~~ !! ~~ ~ ~~ _,.,.:e ~~r - '! i-2 ru~ +; ~~ 
· ~ 

l, Qlf l~ W..t l!i'.d(O"f• ~~-"!i 

l. tr ~ U 0.11, C'J!UD ~ CGi.llT ,, IC\Glalt 
). IH 1 ll l.V. CCU!CL COl~flOI/ 

4. 01 !l!tll l D.IL Rt.\lt'Jl:D POI CIN ......,w..,.rs 
~ QI 10 12 D~. llf'o'IS(O l'OI IDWN ctlUUENlS 
1. DI 10/ 11 0.X. l'll'-"U l'llll Hf\11(1t 
I . GI ID U OJI~ 15WlD ran UTl&.ltJLi m;:w'.W 

N<'- ru.ri ; I DY I REVISIONS 1"""1-llCAD 

Oo.lf.)n I Lii. ICMchdl PO.S. 
Oril• ll 0~ Cnf:::lutd L V. 

S.:oi. :~·~, 1m;ttun /.!~:. • : 
""''" 1<2000 ~···"'."' \; ~ Vert, \ :<100 .~~'tfrj;;f."I .. 

oot• 0C100£R 2011 -IY:!-;;:.'!· '01\T~'l 

ZAVITZ 'DR.A:IN 
TOWN OF FORT ERIE 

CITY OF PORT COLBOR.NE 

C<1t1itrG:J flO, 

ZAVITZ DRAIN lamec ~ c~'"'""' , ..... 
PLAN AND PROFILE foster .,_.,!Y 110120 

STA 2+500 TO STA 2+901.579 wheeler ... "'••'"' No. E 
E-2 

234



Prj # l89998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Attachment B: West Trail Calculations 

235



Town of Fort Erie/ C"ttyof Port Colbome 

Zavitz Drain Section 58 (1) 

Zavitz Drain -West Trail a nd East Tra il Branch Drain Capacity Checks. 
Data Is provided from As Con,;tn.icted Survey conducted by CofPC, June 2018 ind from Site lnsp. Measureme nts, Nov 14, 2018 

Oitchm•nt R1lnf111 lnt•n•lty1 Imm/hr) 
Cone 

Arel Runoff C11chm~1 C•tchment C11thmtmt tlmelc 

ID 51.1bc11ch IH•) Coeff. Soil• len1th , m G.-.d< tmln) lYr 5Yr lOYr 25 Yr soYr 100Yr 

Z_EHtTr l .5571 0.17 IC111y {2%1 300 0.05 ,,,, 31.8 37.4 44.S 49.8 55.0 
Z Sherkl 5.0361 D.17IC1ay(2%) 250 o.os 23.3 U.8 37.4 ~4. 5 49.B 55.0 

Z WestTr 5.6791 0.171Cloy 12%1 350 0 .05 2BI 31.61 37.41 44.SI ••.•I 55.o 

I IUpper_Z WestTrall I 3.121 0 .17,Ctay (2%l 250 0.02 23.31 nal 37.41 44.S I 49.61 ss.o 

R1tlon11I Q-0.0017aCIA 

lYr SYr JO Yr 25 Yr SO 'fr 

0.039 0.053 0.063 0.07S 0.084 
0.055 0.076 0 ,089 0.106 0.119 

Pt1kDetl1n 
JOO Yr Flow, Cl (an, ) 

0.0911 0.03914 

0.1311 O.OSS41 

D.D6SI O.OBB! 0 .1041 0.1141 O.UBI 0.153 0.06474 

- --- ·---- 8ol1om - -- ---

Channel Length Slope, M1nnln1 Wld1h1 Oep1h, D Bank 
ID lml (m/ml n coeff BW {"11 (m) -Slope, Im) 

1121 0.00251 0.0221 o.sl 0.41 1.s 

Sect · A 0.0019 0.022 1 0 ,35 l.S 
Sect·B 0 .00191 0.0221 O.BI 1 1 1.5 

Sect-C 0.0007 1 0.02.21 1.11 0.91 1.5 

I I I I I 
0.035 I 0.048 I 0.057 I 0.068 I 0.076 I 0.064 '" n~• t\l'lt• 

I I I I 
0.046391 1450 HOPE I ·-I -·-I --··I I I 

I I I I 

Top 

Project: 185599 

By: Pill ul C. M.:. rsh, P.fnt:
Ck by:_ 

a. Width, V, I Design 

(ml/ sl (m) (m/sl Ratio 

0 .3721 1.7\ 0, 84 51 9.S 

0.404 2.05 0.757 5.2 
2.955 3.8 1.285 4S,6 

1,687 3.8 0.765 26.1 

0.130 0.819 2.7 

IAbove Holloway ••vRd. I 85.731 0.171tlov (2%1 I 12501 0.021 I 2BI 31.•I 37.•I 44-:5) 49.8[ ss.o[ I 0.9'41 1.2aal J..5151 uoil 2.0JBI 2.m ) o.mo2! l""'CSP I -I -·-· I . , ... I I I I I I I I I "~' nn'111 0.091 OA&G 0.10 

EWA Engineering Inc. 2018·11·19 Pilge1or1 

236



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Attachment C: Culvert Calculations 

237



EWA Engineering Inc. Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Municipal Drain Sect 58(4) 

Calculation Record 

Project: Zavitz Drain Section 58 (4) Revisions 
Project#: 18-9999 Zavitz Drain 

Date: November 7, 2018 
Prepared by: P.Marsh, P.Eng. 

Phase: Z PM: P.Marsh, P.Eng. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Task: 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

WBS item #: 

Calculation: Check Size of Two Culverts West of Hollobay Road 
Check the design capacity of the existing two 500mm CSP cu lverts replaced with same 

Purpose: size as per design. 

• Culvert #1 located on property 105300@ STA 2+190 

• Culvert #2 located on property 138400@ STA 2+610 

Deliverables : Description of Deliverables 

1. Calculation memo of culvert size check. 
2. Culvert size recommendation 

Requirements Review original design work by Amee where available. 

1 Requirements 
The culverts serve private property crossings. Design standard requirements are set at 1:2 year design storm 

interval. 

2 Met hodology 

Design Storm 
The design storm is provided on the attached pages from the Federal Meteorological database for the Port 

Colborne station. 

The 1:2 year design storm is shown with an Intensity of 23.3 mm/hr and 24 hr vo lume of 49.8 mm. The 24 hour 

intensity is provided as 2.1 mm/hr 

Software : 
Original Analysis was undertaken with SWMHYM0-99 (ver. 4.02) . The design storm used was the SCS storm 

with a 6 hr, 12 hr and 24 hr duration. 

Page 1 

1
84 Main Street, 
Unionville, ON L3R 2E7 

647.400.2824 
www.ewaeng.com 

238



EWA Engineering Inc .. 

3 Background 

Basin Profile 
The area is shown in the following figure. 

Cu lvert #2 

References 
The following documents are attached: 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Municipal Drain Sect 58(4) 

Culvert#l 

l. Origina l Plan & Profile Drawings (E-20 and E-2E) by Amee Foster Wheeler, sealed by P.Marsh, P.Eng. as 

drainage engineer. 

2. Amee SWMHYMO input and output files -ZavFinal.out 

3. Port Colborne IDF data file. 

4. Amee SWMHYMO model results 

5. Cuvlert Des ign Capacity Charts from "Handbook of Steel Drainage & Highway Construction Products" , 

American Iron and Steel Institute, 1984 

https://www .cs pi .ca/sites/default/fi les/ download/hand book cha pter04.pdf 

6. H7-8 cu lvert Ana lysis Report 

Page 2 

1
84 Main Street, 
Unionville, ON L3R 2E7 

647.400.2824 
www .ewaeng.com 

239



EWA Engineering Inc. 

Avai lable Data 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Municipal Drain Sect 58(4) 

The Plan & Profile drawings were not available from Amee Foster Wheeler, now Wood Group Pie. Instead, files 

were acquired from both City of Port Colborne and Town of Fort Erie to recreate the plan & profile and to 

validate the sub-catchment areas. 

The subcatchment area that corresponds to the SWMHYMO area 1 was measured in GIS to be 85.7 Ha instead 

of the given value of 82.2 Ha. However, this is well within the range tolerance for subwatershed delineation. 

5. Results 
The resulting SWMHYMO for Area 1 West of Hollobay is shown to be as follows. 

Zavitz Catchment Area 1 
scs 

Design 2 Year 
Peak Time to Runoff 

Storm Flow Peak Vol, 
ems hrs mm 

24 Hour 1.253 12.333 13.808 

Culvert #1 and Culvert #2 were given as SOOmm CSP culverts of approximate length of 6m. Culvert slope was 

not shown on the plan but the overall drain gradeline was shown as 0.0088 m/m (0 .88%) 

The Design Approved culvert capacity nomograph shows a calculated capacity as follows: 

Design Category 

Outlet Condition 

Inlet condition 

Pipe full flow, Manning 

Formula 

Culvert #2 installed view 

Page 3 

Result 

0 .3 ems 

0.45 ems 

0.35 ems 

1
84 Main Street, 
Unionvil le, ON L3R 2E7 

SOOmm Culvert 

D = SOOmm, 

HW/D = 2 

(3) projecting from fill 

Entrance, K = .9 

H = lm, depth= 1.Sm 

Android Flow Calculator 

647.400.2824 
www .ewaeng.com 

240



EWA Engineering Inc. Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Municipal Drain Sect 58(4) 

Figure 1 Clee Crossing Culvert looking South 

It was suggested that a larger culvert capacity be used such as CSP pipe arch culvert 910mm x 660mm 

Design Category Result 910 x 660 CSPA 

Outlet Condition Size= 910x 660, 

0 .65· ems HW/D = 2 

(3) projecting from fill 

Inlet condition l. ems Entrance, K = .9 

H = lm, depth = 1.Sm 

This indicates that the original culvert selected is undersized w ith a lower capacity than the design standard. 

4 Validation 
The Rational Method was used to confirm the runoff peak prediction. 

A = 82.2 ha 

C = 0.17 for row crop and pasture land 

I = 23.3 mm/ hr for a 1 hr storm with a 1:2 year return period. 

Produces a predicted peak runoff flow, Q of 0.944 ems 

Using the 24 hour 1:2 year intensity of I= 3.6 mm/ hr 

Produces a predicted peak runoff flow, Q of 0.25 ems 

Airport formula for time of concentration. 

c = 0.3 

L= 450m 

S = 0.01 m/ m 

K = 0.69 

Page 4 

Tc= 54.3 min 

1
84 Main Street, 

Unionville, ON L3R 2E7 

647.400.2824 

www.ewaeng.com 

241



EWA Engineering Inca Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Municipal Drain Sect 58(4) 

It is concluded that the 1 hour duration for intensity is suitable for a peak flow calculation using the Rational 

Method. This results in a predicted flow consistent with the SWMHYM0-99 result. 

Runoff Method Peak Flow, ems 

SWMHYMO 1.253 

Rational Method 0.944 

Existing 500mm CSP capacity= 0.45 ems 

Prop. 910x660 CSPA capacity= 1.0 ems 

It is concluded that the existing culverts are undersized for the predicted 2 year design flow. 

Consideration was given to the design capacity of the upstream and downstream channels. 

Two sections were considered: 

• Section 1@ STA 2+100 

• Section 2@ STA 2+358 

Section 1 had the following parameters based on the Plan & Profile drawing: 

Bottom width = 0.9m 

Slope= 0.088% 

Side slope = 2:1 

n= 0.026 

Bank full flow, depth = 186.S - 185.3 = 1.2m 

Section 2 had the following parameters based on the Plan & Profile drawing: 

Bottom width = 0.9m 

Slope = 0.088% 

Side slope = 2:1 

n= 0.026 

Bank full flow, depth= 186.3 -185.55 = 0.75m 

Note: Based on the site visit from November 14, 2018, a smaller bank than shown on the drawings was 

observed upstream of Culvert #2 {Clee) . The bank would be no greater than 0.65 with only 150mm of 

cover over the top of the placed culvert. 

Using Mannings formula for a Trapezoidal channel results in the following bank full capacities: 

Section 

Section 1@ STA 2+100 

Section 2 @ STA 2+358 

Page 5 

Flow,Qcms 

n = 0.026 

3.327 

1
84 M ain Street, 
Unionville, ON L3R 2E7 

Vel·ocity, m/s 

0.840 

647.400.2824 
www.ewaeng.com 

242



EWA Engineering Inc. 

0.849 

Town of Fort Erle 
Zavitz Municipal Drain Sect 58(4) 

0.594 

From this we can conclude that the channel capacity below Culvert 1 is above the 1:2 year storm and the 
channel capacity above culvert 1 is below the predicted peak f low of the 1:2 year storm runoff flow. 

6 Summary: 

The culverts shown in the original design were identified as a like for like replacement. Comparison with the 
modelling done previously and validation against other methods of prediction indicate that a larger capacity 
culvert is required to meet the 1:2 year design standard. 

The calculated designr flow rate for the drain for the :It: 2 year design storm event is 1.2 ems. However tlile 
channel above Culvert 2 (Clee) Is also identified and being below the 1:2 year capacity and based on the 
surrounding lancf form, a larger culvert install Jn this location is not required. 

It is recognized that the existing gradeline for the proposed drain is very low as 0.088% or 0.00088 m/ m 
(0.88m per 1000m). 

Based on the calcufatrons fllerein and modelling provided by the previous consultant, it is recommended that a 
minimum size CSPA be considered as 910x660 and that a HOPE doubl'e wall culvert with a smooth inner wall of 
a diameter not less than a nominal 525mm would meet design flow values. 

I have reviewed the calculation procedure and verified the results. 

P'rint Name: 

Signature: 

Page6 

1
84 Main Street1 
Unionville, ON L3'R 2E7 

647.4<J0.2824 
www.ewaeng.com 

243



"""""'£/ ,,,.._. 
4'.Elt.V"lflOff 

HIGHWAY U3 (GARRISON ROAD) ~ 

c~-:-'> 

( ' "'~'?:'~llVZ ) 

QIO 1nM:< (c/c.Oi'l\t'f"\ 
e l i p·hc .. I -p< P•"- · 

d\Je. .\~ \J l'\c\.,.rs1'l.·(r;:i 

~ 
® 

l--+----t-- l- 11 BJ 

1a2 1- t ':;:l .,.i,.,. ' I~ Fr '1 I - } I+-· · ~··· " '*' ~O'f1 •tl1 • 1 l ... , '51..0+'CS•2:1J 

-1 I i - ·--·1 -i~'c•1~J 1·- -f-j--1-1ie1 

.1 J__j --1-¥'· J,.r : - -1 -1 --1-11 eo 

I I I I I I '\~!.< f I I I 
81; 
~~ ~I~ ~~ 

0•~ 

Clr•!"n J O)C, 

S.ob 

·D<l~ OCTOtlU' lf>IJ 

~1~ +~ N"' 
ZAVITZ DRAIN 

TOWN OF FOR.T !"RIE 
CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

11 '"' ~' ~ +.,., 

ZAVITZ DRAIN 
PLAN AND PROFILE 

STA 1-t-goo TO STA ·~+500 

~/~ 
!~ 

Cai'lln:d 1•0. 

amec __;J , c... ....... .,,. "'· 
foster ~~ 110120 
wheeler • ....... •·· 

E-20 
lhl tl/U -r'.wirll•-.tft 

244



-·- - ---- -- --··--- - -- - -- - · __ .J 

-- -·. ----- ~-- - ---_,.. u. 

I 

·;~ 
!:~ 
lz 

. !'~ 
tfl ·:c . "' •o b> 
;c 
l 

' 

MATCH Hf. - A.. ., 
::i 

/I 
1, 11 •• I 

~ I ~ I"' . /._ 

~'-.] 

'-h.Tl 
·1 f-...J 

KEY PLAN 

(§) 

(~=~~~f!J · Lf· .) j · 
' 

. I Clr>H Ot,11' Sll.T ,UIO OE'Qllr'i fAOW 

I rf'~, c:lillCfK'T£ llOJ ClJHICRr fO IU.ml 
/ PJICIP QC..S..C"' Cl\l()[ 

Cu)Vet\ to l~ u_p:;;l ~ed 
( m1i;tn"'") """ ~\~~ \-"~ \J nc\e ( 

-\o c.. C"(I 0 l'l'Ct\ /( (o lo D '"' nh 

- --·--- i. I I ~ c '" 1111'::""') IW'LJ«D;Gf SGGranlC:i" 
CU\.V!IU TO PilaP, MSllOH CilU.Dt. 
, Ql"ll... PtPl N:OUC.St 
(a.£[ P!tOPCHT't} 

( 111;~----. 

--~~-·" _I J.1v· 
11 

)' I 

- 'ii·-l l 
~---... -- --· ' I SEC ll~TOW~ 

( :!7 t ip::i~IC3•00) ~ OIWI IJWI~ 
V'nli"f. 0 {~S rH"J) 

::>1'L I (\~ 

I i r- - 1 I I 
189 I 

- - I 
I I i 

I 

I I 
I 

i 
_ _,_,_-+---4-+---'--1-~----'--_.__-,,85 

-'·· - · \8 4' 

! 183 

182 1- I 

181 I ' ' I ! I ! I I I 
180=ff I I : - ! I I I H I --

1 
. I I I I I i 

I I 1 I ! I I I I ! 

I U ~; ~~ :.~ ¥~ ~: 
Co11iu1ci. /lo. 

Scolll tb1,. 1:2000 
1~ r.t.rJ:ll .... l 

°''"' ~·· "'''" .. P.OS. ~,.-;:-;:--~.,,. ..• 
DrO• l'I Q.K. cr.ci,,.ci L.Y. '::~~- ,· 1•§t1t• 

Y• n. 1:400 ~~P~ l_&_ 
ZAVITZ DRAIN 

TOWN OF FORT ERIE 
CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 

PLAN AND PROFILE foster ~ '~'""110120 
ZAVITZ DRAIN lamec " 

STA 2+sco TO STA 2+901.579 wheeler '" "''""'' E-
2

E 
""'c.o Dote OCTOB!fl ZOi l ~ •, ._ 4:'" 110f.TCCJ.»ol\Nl 

245



ZavFinal.out 
============================================================================= 

SSS SS w w M M H H y y M M 000 999 999 ========= 
s w w w MM MM H H y y MM MM 0 0 9 9 9 9 
SSS SS w w w M M M HHHHH y MM M 0 0 ## 9 9 9 9 Ver. 4 .02 

s w w M M H H y M M 0 0 9999 9999 July 1999 
SS SSS w w M M H H y M M 000 9 9 ========= 

9 9 9 9 # 3569108 
StormWater Management HYdrologic Model 999 999 :::::::;;:;:::::::::;::: 

*************************************************************************** 
*************************** SWMHYM0-99 Ver /4.02 *************************** 
******* A single event and continuous hydrologic simulation model ******* 
******* based on the principles of HYMO and its successors ******* 
******* OTTHYM0-83 and OTTHYM0-89. ******* 
*************************************************************************** 
******* 
******* 
******* 
******* 

Distributed by: J . F. Sabourin and Associates Inc . 
Ottawa, Ontario: (613) 727-5199 
Gatineau, Quebec: (819) 243-6858 
E-Mail: swmhymo@jfsa.com 

******* 
******* 
******* 
******* 

*************************************************************************** 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ 
+++++++ Licensed user : Philips Engineering Ltd +++++++ 
+++++++ Burlington SERIAL#:3569108 +++++++ 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ 

*************************************************************************** 
******* 
******* 
******* 
******* 

++++++ PROGRAM ARRAY DIMENSIONS ++++++ 
Maximum value for ID numbers 10 
Max. number of rainfall points: 15000 
Max. number of flow poi nts 15000 

******* 
******* 
******* 
******* 

*************************************************************************** 

******************** D E T A I L E D OUTPUT ******************** 
*************************************************************************** 
* DATE : 2011-09-07 TIME: 13:45:01 RUN COUNTER: 000032 * 
*************************************************************************** 
* Input filename: P:\Work\110120\Water\ SWMHYMO\ZavFinal . dat * 
* Output filename: P: \Work\110120 \Water\SWMHYMO\ZavFinal.out * 
* Summary filename: P:\Work\110120\Water\SWMHYMO\ZavFinal.sum * 
* User comments: * 
* 1: * ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

* 2: * 
* 3: * 
*************************************************************************** 

Page 1 

246



ZavFinal.out 

001 :0001--- -- --------------- ------------ - --- --- - ---- -- ------ - -------- -- -- - -----
*#****************************************************************************** 
*# Project Name : [Zavitz Munic ipal Drain] Project Number : [110120] 
*# Date 12-21-2010 
*# Modeller [TRW] 
*# Company AMEC 
*# License # 3569108 
*#****************************************************************************** 

I START Project dir.: P: \ Work\110120\ Wat er\SWMHYMO\ 

-------- - - -- - - ------ Rainfall dir.: P: \Work\ 110120\ Water\ SWMHYMO\ 

TZERO = .00 hrs on 0 
METOUT= 2 (output = METRIC) 
NRUN = 001 
NSTORM= 1 

# l=PC_SCS24.002 

001:0002 - - - -- ---- -- - --- -- ------------------- - - - - --- --- -- --- -- --- -- ------ - ------
-- ---- ------ -- -- ----
I READ STORM I Filename: P: \ Work\ 110120\Water\SWMHYMO\ PC_SCS24.00 
I Ptotal = 48 . 13 mm l Comments: THE SCS 24 HOUR DESI GN STORM ==> 2 YEA 
--------------------

TIME RAIN TIME RAIN TIME RAI N TIME RAIN 
hrs mm/ hr hrs mm/ hr hrs mm/ hr hrs mm/ hr 
.17 .530 6.17 .960 12 .17 6 . 930 18 .17 .870 
.33 .530 6.33 .960 12.33 6.930 18.33 .870 
. 50 . 530 6.50 .960 12 . 50 6.930 18. 50 .870 
.67 .530 6 . 67 . 960 12 . 67 3.560 18.67 .870 
.83 .530 6.83 .960 12.83 3.560 18.83 . 870 

1.00 .530 7 . 00 .960 13 .00 3 . 560 19.00 . 870 
1.17 .530 7.17 .960 13.17 . 670 19.17 . 870 
1.33 .530 7.33 . 960 13.33 .670 19 . 33 .870 
1 . 50 .530 7.50 . 960 13 . 50 .670 19.50 .870 
1.67 .530 7 .67 . 960 13 . 67 3.940 19 . 67 .870 
1 . 83 . 530 7 . 83 . 960 13.83 3.940 19.83 . 870 
2.00 .530 8.00 .960 14 . 00 3. 940 20.00 . 870 
2.17 .630 8.17 1.300 14 . 17 1 . 440 20 .17 .580 
2 . 33 .630 8.33 1.300 14.33 1.440 20.33 . 580 
2.50 .630 8.50 1.300 14 . 50 1.440 20 . 50 .580 
2 .67 .630 8.67 1 . 300 14 .67 1.440 20 . 67 . 580 
2.83 . 630 8.83 1 . 300 14.83 1.440 20.83 . 580 
3.00 .630 9 . 00 1 . 300 15.00 1 . 440 21.00 .580 
3 .17 . 630 9.17 1.540 15 .17 1.440 21.17 . 580 
3.33 .630 9.33 1.540 15.33 1.440 21.33 .580 
3 . 50 .630 9.50 1 . 540 15 . 50 1 . 440 21.50 .580 

Page 2 

247



ZavFinal.out 
3.67 .630 9.67 1. 730 I 15.67 1.440 21.67 .580 
3 . 83 .630 9.83 1.730 I 15 . 83 1.440 21 . 83 .580 
4 . 00 .630 10.00 1. 730 I 16 . 00 1.440 22.00 .580 
4.17 .770 10.17 2. 210 I 16.17 . 870 22 .17 .580 
4.33 .770 10.33 2. 210 I 16.33 .870 22.33 .580 
4. 50 . 770 10 . 50 2.210 I 16 .50 .870 22 . 50 .580 
4 . 67 . 770 10.67 2. 980 I 16 .67 .870 22.67 .580 
4 . 83 . 770 10 . 83 2. 980 I 16.83 . 870 22.83 .580 
5 . 00 . 770 11.00 2. 980 I 17.00 .870 23.00 .580 
5 . 17 . 770 11.17 4 . 620 I 17 .17 . 870 23.17 .580 
5 . 33 .770 11.33 4.620 I 17.33 .870 23 . 33 .580 
5.50 .770 11.50 4.620 I 17 .50 .870 23.50 .580 
5.67 . 770 11.67 20.010 I 17.67 .870 23.67 .580 
5.83 .770 11.83 36.560 I 17.83 .870 23.83 .580 
6.00 . 770 12.00 53.100 I 18.00 . 870 24.00 .580 

001:0003-------------------- --- - -- ------------------- - -- - ---------- --- ---------
***************************************************** 
* 
* 
* 

ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL DRAIN 
* 
* 
* 

***************************************************** 
**** RURAL CATCHMENT AREA 1 - Hydrologie Value for Zavitz Drain west of Holloway 

I CALIB NASHYD I 
I 01:Catehm DT=10.00 I 

Area (ha)= 82.20 
Ia (mm)= 5.000 
U.H. Tp(hrs)= .400 

Unit Hyd Qpeak (ems)= 5.334 

PEAK FLOW (ems)= 1.253 ( i) 
TIME TO PEAK (hrs)= 12.333 
RUNOFF VOLUME (mm)= 13.808 
TOTAL RAINFALL (mm)= 48.128 
RUNOFF COEFFICIENT = . 287 

Curve Number (CN)=73 . 50 
#of Linear Res.(N)= 2.00 

(i) PEAK FLOW DOES NOT INCLUDE BASEFLOW IF ANY. 

001:0004-------------------------------- - -------------------------- - -------- -- -
**** RURAL CATCHMENT AREA 2 

I CALIB NASHYD I 
I 02:Catehm DT=10.00 I 

Area (ha)= 52.80 
Ia (mm)= 5.000 
U.H. Tp(hrs)= .360 

Unit Hyd Qpeak (ems)= 3 . 807 

Page 3 

Curve Number (CN)=76.00 
#of Linear Res.(N)= 2 . 00 

248



ZavFinal.out 

PEAK FLOW (ems)= .960 (i) 
TIME TO PEAK (hrs)= 12.167 
RUNOFF VOLUME (mm)= 15.081 
TOTAL RAINFALL (mm)= 48.128 
RUNOFF COEFFICIENT = .313 

(i) PEAK FLOW DOES NOT INCLUDE BASEFLOW IF ANY . 

001:0005-------------------------------------------------------------- - ---- - ---
**** RURAL CATCHMENT AREA 3 

I CALIB NASHYD I 
I 03:Catehm DT=10.00 I 

Area (ha)= 
Ia (mm)= 
U.H. Tp(hrs)= 

Unit Hyd Qpeak (ems)= 3.822 

51.54 Curve Number (CN)=73.50 
5.000 #of Linear Res.(N)= 2.00 

.350 

PEAK FLOW (ems)= .870 (i) 
TIME TO PEAK (hrs)= 12.167 
RUNOFF VOLUME (mm)= 13.808 
TOTAL RAINFALL (mm)= 48.128 
RUNOFF COEFFICIENT = .287 

(i) PEAK FLOW DOES NOT INCLUDE BASEFLOW IF ANY. 

001:0006---------- - ----------------------------------------------- - --------- - - -
**** Hydrologic Value for Holloway Bay Road to Matthews Road 
--------------------
I ADD HYD (Hydrol) I ID: NHYD AREA QPEAK TPEAK R.V. DWF 
-------------------- (ha) (ems) (hrs) (mm) (ems) 

IDl 01:Catehm 82.20 1 . 253 12.33 13.81 .000 
+ID2 02:Catehm 52 . 80 .960 12 . 17 15.08 .000 
+ID3 03:Catehm 51. 54 .870 12.17 13.81 .000 

====================================================== 
SUM 09:Hydrol 186.54 3.061 12 . 17 14.17 .000 

NOTE: PEAK FLOWS DO NOT INCLUDE BASEFLOWS IF ANY. 

001:0007----- - ------ --- - -- -------- - --------------------- - --- --- --- - - - ---- - - - ---
**** RURAL CATCHMENT AREA 4 

I CALIB NASHYD I 
I 04:Catehm DT=10.00 I 

Area (ha)= 
Ia (mm)= 
U.H. Tp(hrs)= 

21.67 Curve Number (CN)=71 .00 
5.000 #of Linear Res.(N)= 2.00 

.240 

Page 4 

249



ZavFinal.out 

Unit Hyd Qpeak (ems)= 2.344 

PEAK FLOW (ems)::; .439 (i) 
TIME TO PEAK (hrs)= 12.000 
RUNOFF VOLUME (mm)= 12.664 
TOTAL RAINFALL (mm)= 48 .128 
RUNOFF COEFFICIENT = .263 

(i) PEAK FLOW DOES NOT INCLUDE BASEFLOW IF ANY. 

*** WARNING: Time step is too large for value of TP. 
R.V. may be ok. Peak flow could be off . 

001:0008 -- ------------------------------------------------------- ---- ----------
**** RURAL CATCHMENT AREA 5 

I CALIB NASHYD I 
I 05:Catchm DT=10.00 I 

Area (ha)::; 
Ia (mm)= 
U.H. Tp( hrs) = 

68 .71 Curve Number (CN)=73.50 
5.000 #of Linear Res.(N):::; 2.00 

.360 

Unit Hyd Qpeak (ems)= 4.954 

PEAK FLOW (ems):::; 1.133 (i) 
TIME TO PEAK (hrs)::; 12.167 
RUNOFF VOLUME (mm)::; 13. 808 
TOTAL RAINFALL (mm)::; 48.128 
RUNOFF COEFFICIENT :::; .287 

(i) PEAK FLOW DOES NOT INCLUDE BASEFLOW IF ANY. 

001:0009-------------------------------------------------------------------- - --
**** Hydrologic Value for Zavitz Drain east of Matthews Road 
--------------------
I ADD HYD (Hydrol) I ID: NHYD AREA QPEAK TPEAK R.V. DWF 
-------------------- (ha) (ems) (hrs) (mm) (ems) 

IDl 09 :Hydrol 186.54 3. 061 12.17 14.17 .000 
+ID2 04:Catchm 21. 67 .439 12.00 12.66 .000 
+ID3 05:Catchm 68.71 1.133 12.17 13.81 .000 

====================================================== 
SUM 08:Hydrol 276.92 4.622 12.17 13.96 .000 

NOTE: PEAK FLOWS DO NOT INCLUDE BASEFLOWS IF ANY. 

001:0010-- - ------ -- ---- - -------------------------------------------------------
***************************************************** 

Page 5 

250



* 
* 
* 

BRANCH DRAIN 

ZavFinal .out 
* 
* 
* 

***************************************************** 
**** RURAL CATCHMENT AREA 1 - Hydro logic Value for Branch Drain 
----------------------
I CALIB NASHYD I Area (ha)= 14.24 Curve Number (CN)=75 .00 
I 01 :Branch DT=10.00 I Ia (mm)= 5.000 # of Linear Res . (N)= 2.00 
--- -- ----------------- U.H. Tp(hrs)= . 220 

Unit Hyd Qpeak (ems)= 1.681 

PEAK FLOW (ems)= . 366 (i) 
TIME TO PEAK (hrs)= 12.000 
RUNOFF VOLUME (mm)= 14.555 
TOTAL RAINFALL (mm)= 48.128 
RUNOFF COEFFICIENT = .302 

(i) PEAK FLOW DOES NOT INCLUDE BASEFLOW IF ANY. 

*** WARNING: Time step i s too large for value of TP. 
R.V . may be ok . Peak flow could be off. 

001:0011----- ---- -- - --------- - ----- - -------------------------- ---- - ------------
FINISH 

******************************************************************************* 
WARNINGS / ERRORS I NOTES 

001:0007 CALIB NASHYD 
*** WARNING: Time step is too large for value of TP. 

R.V. may be ok. Peak flow could be off . 
001:0010 CALIB NASHYD 

*** WARNING: Time step is too large for value of TP. 
R.V. may be ok . Peak flow could be off. 

Simulation ended on 2011-09-07 at 13:45:01 
=============================================================================== 

Page 6 

251



idf _v2-3_2014_12_21_613_0N_6136606_PORT_COLBORNE 
Environment Canada/Environnement Canada 

Short Duration Rainfall Intensity-Duration-Frequency Data 
Donnees sur l'intensite, la duree et la frequence des chutes 

de pluie de courte duree 

Gumbel - Method of moments/Methode des moments 

2014/12/21 

=========================================;==============================~======= 

PORT COLBORNE ON 6136606 

Latitude : 42 53'N Longitude : 79 15'W Elevation/Altitude : 175 m 

Years/Annees : 1964 - 2007 # Years/Annees : 37 

================================================================================ 

******************************************************************************** 

Table 1 : Annual Maximum (mm)/Maximum annuel (mm) 

******************************************************************************** 

Year 5 min 10 min 15 min 30 min 1 h 2 h 6 h 12 h 24 h 
Annee 

1964 8.6 13.2 14.7 28.4 34.3 45.5 56.9 56 .9 64.3 
1965 5.8 6 .3 8.9 13.7 19.8 26.4 33.0 33.0 42.4 
1966 6.9 10.7 10.7 10.7 14. 0 15.0 22.1 26.2 26.7 
1967 7.6 12.2 17.0 26.2 26.7 26.7 26.7 36.1 59.9 
1968 8.1 14.5 16.8 19. 8 26.9 42.4 81.3 101.3 112.S 
1969 6.9 10 . 2 12.4 12.7 19.8 22 . 6 32.0 37 .3 43.2 
1970 8.4 10 .9 12.2 16.0 19 .3 20.3 26.4 33.3 39.6 
1971 8 . 1 12 .4 15.0 21.8 24.6 25 . 7 26.7 29 ~ 5 30.5 
1972 5.8 9 .4 13.7 17. 3 23.4 23.4 27.4 33.8 36.8 
1973 7.6 12 . 7 17.3 25.4 36.6 37.6 39.4 39.9 40.4 
1974 6.9 7.9 8.6 11. 7 15.2 25.7 29.7 29.7 33.0 
1975 12.7 20 . 3 24.6 3i. 7 32.0 32.0 32.5 33.5 33.5 
1976 4.8 7.9 9.1 11.4 19.0 23.9 23.9 38.1 47.2 
1977 12.2 14.5 16.6 33.3 37.6 37.6 42.2 48.0 51.3 
1978 6.9 8.8 11.1 15 .S 25.7 31.6 35.S 42 . 0 42 . 0 
1979 8.0 11.4 16.2 26.0 34.2 47.6 80.6 116.4 123.0 
1980 11.1 14.8 15.3 17.0 25.5 32.8 33.8 41.9 44.4 
1981 8.2 9.6 9.6 11.6 14.4 25.7 32.9 37.2 44. 6 
1983 8.0 10.5 15.2 27.4 29 .3 32.0 44.2 46.5 56.3 
1984 9.8 15.0 18.0 26.9 28 .9 30.7 30.8 51.8 54.2 

Page 1 

252



idf _v2-3_2014_12_21_613_0N_6136606_PORT_COLBORNE 
1985 7.6 9.5 10.5 12 .5 16.2 17.2 23 . 7 38.9 54.2 
1986 12.4 18.4 21.2 24 . 7 26.5 30.6 35.1 43.0 46.6 
1987 8.1 13.0 15.3 21.9 34.8 46.4 56.5 56.5 69.4 
1988 8.0 11 .3 12.9 14.7 17 . 0 20.0 22.7 42 .7 47.2 
1989 8.7 9 .9 10.5 10.8 17.9 20.5 20.7 24.2 27.6 
1990 7. 2 9.0 13.1 21.8 28.0 

'. 
~2.8 35.Q 44.9 50.4 

1991 14.2 2e.0 29. 0 34.0 60.0 64 . 2 65.0 65.0 65.3 
1992 6. 0 10.4 13.5 20 .4 28 .4 30.·3 32.3 42.9 46 .. 0 
1993 6 .7 7 . 5 8;3 12.i 17.6 24.6 42.3 43.8 46.-9 
1994 7.2 8.5 ·11. 5 14.3 18.3 24.4 50.4 74.6 86.9 
1996 7.6 11.1 14.1 25.7 30.8 34. 6 36.0 36 . 0 40.6 
1997 7. 6 9.6 12.3 15.5 17.6 23.2 45.8 54.2 58 !2 
1998 3.6 3.9 4, 4 5.5 7.1 10.5 18.2 26.2 46.5 
1999 9.4 14.1 16.6 20.7 22.2 29 . 7 38.5 45.0 4~.'2 ,. 

2000 6.8 7.4 7;4 8.3 8.5 13. 5 i4 .3 30.3 4t."0 
2005 7 . 0 9 . 6 11.6 18 .9 30.9 41.8 83.2 100.9 104.5 
2006 8.4 10.8 13. 7 22.2 29.6 31.2 33.4 44 .• 0 64; 5 
2007 10.4 16.8 18.8 25.5 ·28 . 2 28.2 28 . 4 -99.9 56 . 0 

--~ - - -- - -~ -- --~---------------------------- - -- -- -- -- ---- - ------- - ----
# Yrs; 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 37 38 
Annees 

Mean 8.1 11.4 13.9 19.3 24.9 29.7 38.2 46 ;6 53 . 3 
Moyen~e 

Std. Dev. 2 . 2 3 ,6 4 ;7 7.3 9.6 10.5 16.6 20.9 21.6 
Ecart-type 

Skew. 0.91 0.70 0.96 0.22 1.10 0.97 1.53 2.03 1.81 
Dissymetrie 

Kurtosis 4 .46 3.83 5 .32 2.40 6.69 5.12 5.02 7.16 6.52 

*-99.9 Indi~ates Missing Data/Donnees manquantes 

Warning: annual maximum amo~nt greater than 100-yr retu r n period amount 
Avertissement . la quant ite maximale annuelle excede la quantite . 

pour une periode de retour de 100 ans 
Year/Annee Duration/D.uree Data/Donnees 100-"yr./ans 

i979 12 h 116.4 112 .3 
1979 24 h 123 .0 121.1 
1991 15 min 29.0 ·28.6 
1991 1 h 60.0 55 . 0 
1991 2 h 64.2 62.7 

******************************************************************************** 

Table 2a : Return Period Rainfall Amounts (mm) 
Quantite de pluie (mm) par periode de retour 

******************************************************************************** 

Page 2 

253



idf _v2-3 - 2014_12_?1_613_0N _6136606_PORT_COLBORNE 
Durat ion/Duree 2 5 10 25 50 100 #Years 

yr/ans yr/ans yr/ans yr/ans yr/ans yr/ans Annees 
5 min 7.8 9.7 11 .0 12.6 13.7 14.9 38 

10 min 10.8 14.0 16.1 18.7 20.7 22.7 38 
15 min i3 . 1 17.3 20.0 23.5 26 .0 28 . 6 38 
30 min 18.1 24. 5 28.8 34.1 38.1 42.1 38 

1 h 23 . 3 31.8 37.4 44.5 49.8 55 . 0 38 
2 h 28.0 37.3 43.4 51.2 57.0 62.7 38 
6 h 35 . 4 50.1 59.8 72.0 81.1 90'. 1 38 

12 h 43.2 61.7 73.9 89.4 100 .9 112.3 37 
24 h 49.8 68 . 9 81.5 97.5 109.3 121 . 1 38 

******************************************************************************** 

Table 2b : 

Return Period Rainfall Rates (mm/h) - 95% Confidence limits 
Intensite de la pluie (mm/h) par periode de retour - Limites de confiance de 95% 

******************************************************************************** 

Duration/Duree 2 5 10 25 50 100 #Years 
yr/ans yr/ans yr/ans yr/ens yr/ans yr/ans 

5 min 93.4 116.3 131 . 5 150.7 164.9 179.0 
+/- 7 . 6 +/- 12.8 +/- 17.2 +/- 23 . 2 +/- 27.8 +/- 32.4 

10 min 65 . 0 84.0 96.6 112 . 4 124.2 135.9 
+/- 6 . 3 +/ - 10 . 6 +/- 14.3 +/- 19. 2 +/- 23 . 0 +/ - 26.8 

15 min 52 . 5 69.0 80.0 93 .9 104.2 114.4 
+! - 5.5 +/- 9.2 +/- 12.5 +/- 16.8 +/ - 20.1 +/- 23.4 

30 min 3&.2 49.1 57.6 68 . 3 76 . 2 84.1 
+/- 4.2 +/- 7.1 +/- 9.6 +/- 13.0 +/ - 15.5 +/ - 18 . 1 

1 h 23 -3' 31.8. 317 .4. 44. 5 49'.8 55--.0 
+/- 2.8 +/- 4.7 +/- 6.4 +/- 8 . 6 +/- 10.3 +/ - 12. 0 

2 h 14.0 18.6 21.7 25.6 28.5 31 .4 
+/- 1 . 5 +/- 2.6 +/- 3.5 +/- 4.7 +/- 5.6 +/ - 6.6 

6 h 5.9 8.3 10.0 12 . 0 13 . 5 15.0 
+/- 0 .8 +/- 1.4 +/- 1.8 +/- 2 . 5 +/- 3.0 +/ - 3.4 

12 h 3 .6 5.1 6.2 7.5 8.4 9.4 
+/- 0.5 +/- 0.9 +/- 1 . 2 +/- 1 . 6 +/- 1.9 +/- 2.2 

24 h 2.1 2.9 3.4 4.1 4 .6 5.0 
+/- 0.3 +/- 0.4 +/- 0.6 +/- 0.8 +/- 1.0 +/ - 1 . 1 

Annees 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
38 
37 
37 
38 
38 

***************************************************************************.***** 

Table 3 : Interpolation Equation I Equation d'interpolation: R = A*T"B 

R = Interpolated Rainfall rate (mm/h)/InteMsite interpolee de la pluie (mm/h) 
RR "" Rainfall rate (mm/h) / Intensite de la pluie (mm/h) 

Page 3 

254



idf _v2 -3_2014_12_21_613_0N_6136606_PORT_COLBORNE 
1 = Rainfal l du ration (h) I Duree de la pluie (h) 

******************************************************************************** 

Statistics/Statistiques 2 5 10 25 50 100 
yr/ans yr/ans yr/ans yr /ans yr/ans yr/ans 

Mean of RR/Moyenne de RR 32 . 9 42.8 49.4 57.7 63.8 69.9 
Std. Dev. /Ecart-type (RR) 31.8 39.9 45.3 52.2 57.2 62.3 

Std . Error/Erreur -type 6.6 9.6 11. 7 14. 3 16.3 18 . 2 
Coefficient (A) 20 . 2 27.1 31. 7 37.4 41.6 45.9 

Exponent/Exposant (B) -0 . 680 .;0 . 661 -0 .653 - 0 . 64~ -0.~41 - 0.638 
Mean % Error/% erreur moyenne 8 . 3 9 . 1 9.5 10.0 10 . 3 10.S 

Page 4 

255



ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL DRAIN CALIBRATION 

lavitz Catchment Aren 1 

SCS 011ston1 2 Yei!r I 5 Year I 10 Year I 25 Year I 50 Yoar I 100 Year I 
Storm Penk Flow I Time to Peok Runoff Vol, Pellk Flow Time. lo Peak• Runoff v .. ol. Peok Ftowjlme to P~Runoff Vol Peilk Flow:ime to Pea' Runoff. Vol Po;ik Flow"lme to Pcn'.Runoff Vol Pook Flow:tmo to Pea'Ru.no.ff Vol, 

(ems) (hrs) . Cmm) (ems) <tlrs) (mm) (ems) • (hn;) I (mm) (cm~) (hrs) (mml (ems) (hrs) (mm) (ems) . (hrs) (mm) 

6 Hour 1.608 3.333 11,804 2.873 3.167 20.602 3.825 3.167 ; 21.251 5.105 3.167 36,018 6.103 3.167 42.822 7.120 3.167 49.740 
I ' 12 I-tour 1.966 6.167 16.376 3.606 6.167 28.620 4.626 6.167 37.449 6.123 6.167 49.224 7.285 6.167 58.375 B.450 6.167 67.550 
i 

24 Hour 2.1 06 12.167 20.570 3.5(;5 1i.1s1 34.206 4.600 12.167 43.900 5.990 12.167 56,736 7.047 12.167 66.686 8.116 ' 12.167 76.!j30 

Hy~fQIQglc Are11 ;l (C11totiment Arllll' 1, 2 & 3) 
I SCS D11slpn 2 Ye!lr 5 Ye;ir 10 Yeftr 25 Year 50 Year I 100 Year 

s torm Pe111( Flow ' Time to Poak Runoff Vol, Ppak Flow Time to Peak '. Runoff Vol, Peiik Flow'Jme to Pea'RunoffVol Peak Flow'ime to Pea'Runoff Vol Po~k Ffow"lm!I to Pea'Runolf Vol Peok Flowrlma to Peo Runoff Vol, 
ems (l\(s) Cmm (ems) hrs mm ems) hrs j rrnm> ems hrs) mm> (ems) hT~) <mm> (ems hrs) (mm 

- - -

6 Hour 3.879 3 170 11.1110 6.955 3.170 20.700 9.260 3.170 27.260 12.331 3.170 36.020 14.731 3.170 42.830 17.117 3.170 49.750 

12 Hour 4.746 6.170 16.380 8.446 6.170 28,630 11.134 6.170 S7 460 14.722 6.170 49.230 17.505 6.170 68.380 20.295 6.170 67560 

24 Hour 5.068 12170 20.580 8.567 12.170 J+.210 11.064\ 12.170 <13.9l0 14.371 12.170 56.740 16.896 12.170 66.590 19.452 12.170 76.540 

Hycjrotogic Area 3 (Catchment Areas 1. 2, 3, 4 & 5) 
SCS Design I 2 Year 

Storm Peak Flow Th'no to Peak Runoff Vol, 
Ccms} Cllrsl {mm) 

5 Year I 10 Year I 25 Year ~ 50 Year t 100 Ye11r I 
Pe;ik F19W nme to Peak Runoff Vol, Pe(lk FloW' lme to.Pea'Runoff Vol Peak Flow"lma to PeaRunoff VQI Peak Flaw·tme to Pea Runoff Vol Pe. ak Flow' ime to Pea Runoff Vol, 

(ems) (hrs) (mm) {ems) (hfsl Cmml (ems) (hrs) (rnrnl . ems) (hTS) (mm) (ems) (hrs) (mm) 

6 Hour 5.846 3. 170 11,630 10.490 3.170 20,430 13.060 3.170 26.!l30 18.622 3.170 35.620 22.258 3.170 42.JBO 25.965 3.170 49.250 

12 Hour 7.140 6. 170 16.150 12.722 6.170 28.280 16.784 6.170 37.040 22.212 6.170 48,740 26.426 6.170 57.630 30.653 6.170 66.960 

24 Hour 7.615 12.170 2(1.300 12.892 12.170 :\3.820 16.66'1 12.170 43.450 21.667 12.170 56.200 25.492 12.170 66.000 29.361 12.170 75.900 

c I. tc...\\ Vltl':N ,- A.-ReFr :t ~-~ D~ J~-1~ /Je;/fowJ 
ARe-A-=-

Q:: L. l A-

Bz. Tu Ne.. 

t-=- o. ~ 

r --- .i ~.::, 

~-::. <f6 ';).. L 

'Row (rt:ips.. (o- sc:>~J 
2jtM.7 1 ~Oc.t.1\-

Q -:::. \. ~./ t~~. 

.:L'D F f:h t G,l born.re 

256



'ON PRODUCTS 

e an economical 

e result for the 

1nditlon desired. 

is the allowable. 
cadwater depth. 
corrugated steel 
), A smaller size 

1c economical to 
:e results. Check 

ctural Plate Pipe 
ted in Table 4-10 
r with the corre-
1rt of the Federal 
963. 

:ial inlet designs. 
:nsive data 2S on 
has not f:ieen as 
uentty is respon-

:Ing concrete head 

4. lIYDRAVLTCS 

w ... 
< 
..J 
0. 

_, 
< « 
::> 
I-
u 
::> « 
I-

"' 

&780. 
11470 
6'160 
$850 
$54'0 
5'230 

4·9·20 

4610 
4300 

3 9·90 

3670 

3380 

30SO 

2740 
2S90 
2430 

UBO 

2120 

1&70 

"810 

1880 

1500 

E 
E 

I 

3800 

3300 

3000 

270 0 

2400 

22 00 

2000 

1800 

1600 

1400 ... 
w 

1ZOO ~ 
vr "' I!) 

z 0 / tr. 
' 1000 ~.... < 

~ 7< :r 
0 /.'." " u 

900 ::> ~ 
« 0 
« 

800 0 
u 

4,00 

300 

LOSS COE FFICENT Ko ( 1 ) 
FOR VARIOUS ENTR ANCE 6 

TYPES 

¥- sc.1tt j Ell;~~~ce Jcoem c1EN! 

f 1 ) ~::u:·:~~·,::· ~~~~r~mq 
to h U • lope 

( 2: I Muwrff to eonro1m t-o 
slope 

(3) Pro j9(111'\l from 1111 

EXAMPLE 

DIA.(D)• 90 0 mm 

Qa 1.8 m3Jsec. 

----------
HW 

SCALE -D- HW 

(,, u 1'820 
(2) 2 .1 1890 

( 3) 2.2 19110 

( 2 ' s 

- -

181 

.7 

.6 

- -
,5 

8 
tNlET CONTROL 

HEADWATER DEPTH 

ROUN D CSP & SPCSP 

fTgute 4-291 Inlet control nomograpn for c:orrugated steel pipe culverts. The 
manufacturers. recommend keeplng HW O ta a m~imum o! 1.5 and preferably 
to no mare ttian 1.0. Data ls derived' from nomographs published by the Bureau 
of Publlc Ro.ads.8' 

257



186 STEEL DRAINAGE AND HIGHViA Y CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS 

50 
"' z 
.... 
CJ z 
z 

3100 ~ 
3300 ... 

3000 

270Q 

Z400 

2200 
zoao 
1100 

1100 

E 1400 

e 
1200 

! 
1000 

400 

300 

D• 700 mm 
U•0.9 
L•41m 
Q• 1m3 /sec 

FIN!) H•2.35m 

EXAM PL! 
HELICA L 

0 • 700 mm 
h•• 0 .9 
l.•41m 

1.• • 4 la .487 • 20m 
IQ• lmlltuc 

FINO H• 1.45 m 

8 OUTLET CONTROL 
FLOWING FULL 
HEAD FOR STANDARD CORRUGATED 
STE~L PIPE CULVERTS 
n•0 . 024 

.u 
.15 

.2 

4 

' 

Flg,ure 4-34 Outlet Control. Head for corrugated steel pipe culvert with sub
merged outlet and culvert flowing full. See note under sketch at top, Data is 
derived from nomographs published by the Bureau of Public Roads. 

Ta.ble 4-11 t.ength. AdJustrttent for- Improved Hydraullcs 

Pipe 
Diameter, 

mm 

300 
6CO 
900 

1200 

Roughness factor 
n' 

for Helical Corr.• 

0.011 
O.OL6 
0.019 
0.020 

Length Adjustment Factor 

(~') 2 

0.21 
0.44 
0.61 
0.70 

•atner values of rougliness, n, are appficablo to pa~ pipe, lined pipe and pfpe with 76 x 25 
cocrugatlons. See Table 4-9 .. To use the above chart for these types ol pipe and pirie-arches. use "ad
justed length factors.'' computed ~er equation 14. page 179. 

4. HYDRAULICS 

10 

• 

zt: 

16~ 

i 13! 

u 
Q: 

"' 115 
I ... 
~ 

~ 

Cl .s, 

.. . 4 

"' Q: 
< .s :z; eoo 
u 
Ill 

Ci 830 
• 2 .. 

N 

Ill 

560 

.1 0 0 

.ot 

.OI 

G • 05 

. 04 

.03 

.02 

F~ure 4--35 Outlet Conl 
su merged outlet and fie 
by the Bureau of Public I 

Figure 4--36 Pipe-arch cu 

258



ONSTRUCTION PRODUC TS 

n'I 

m 

~ 
;z 

z 
IX 
:> 
.... 

PTH 

A B 

3.11 

3,0 

0 2.0 
........ 
3:: 
:c 

VJ 
IX ... ... -
"' lE • 
< 
0 ' 

z 

u 

1.0 

.9-

•• 

.1 

.e 

.5 

3.0 

2.0 

1.5 

1.0 

• 9 

•• 

. 1 

... 

. 5 

H BEVELLED RING 

1lar pipe culverts with bevelet'l 
·the Bureau of Public Roarls 

4. HYDRAULICS 

1620 lC 42<f0 
7040 x 4080 

11250 JI 3910 

5890 )( 3710 
5490 )( 3~ 30 

SOSO JC 3330 

4720 x 3070 

4370 lt 2&70 

3890 lt 2690 

3730 lt 2290 

3400" 2010 
3100J11980 
2UO ll 2080 

2590 JI 1880 

24'40x 1750 

2240 x 100 

a100 x s.ao 

560 JI 420 

HO x 34>0 

150 

10 0 

80 !:!::!! SCAlE ENTRANCE 
60 R TYl>i 

.1 
• Off 

.08 

.05 

.04 

.03 

.02' 

. 015 

CJJ Ho adwn1 1 0 .5 

( 2 J Ml l ored l o 0 .7 
c onform 10 aJop• 

( 1 J Pro j ect i n g 0 .9 

To u so S<lll e (? ) 01 ( 3 ) proJ•cl 

~~;~·~~~ ·~r .. ~h~c r;!~, f •1~.1 
lino lhrounh R and 0 scalet, 
o r rovoreo u Illustrated, 

EXAMPLE 

SIZE• U90 lC 970 

Q"' 1.7 m3/s~c . 

SC.A LE 

H) 
(2) 

(3) 

1 .2 1'.1 f 
1.3 t.2d 

t.35 1.30 

INLET CONTROL 

HEADWATER DEPTH 

( t) 
4 

183 

. . __ l 2l __ -

.... 
0 

~ .9 
a:: ... ,_ .a 
z 

:r . 7 

li: 
"' c 
a:: , 6 ... ,_ 
~ 
c 
< ... :c . 5 

4 ( 3 ) 
4 

3 
3 

.9 

,9 

,8 

.a 

. 7 

.& 

.& , 5 

_ ,..,I ___ _ 

. 4 .4 

,35 .35 .35 

CORRUGATED' STEEL PIPE-ARCH CULVERT 

CSP & SPCSP 

'""!gure 4-31 Inlet control and headwat.er depths for corrugated steel plpe-1.11ch 
: ... erts. Headwater depth should tie kept low because pipe-arches generally are 
~~d where headroom Is limited. Data Is derived from nomOQraphs published by 
·-• Bureau of Public Roads. 

259



r CONSTRUCT/ON PRODUCTS 

~. 
~ 
• CUt.V!~T PLOWIHC t'ULL 
iHlt0-UJo 
,uJ;iimorri11f , compute HW by 

In the dol •Jt ptocadi,re 

E~:LT~;~ ' 150 

0 • 700 mm 
ua0.9 
L•41m 

L1 • 4h.49'7 =20m 

o ~ 1m"'••e 
FINO Hsl.45m 

L 

OARD CORRUGATED 
,VERTS 

.11 

ated steel pipe culvelit with 10. ::i· 
iote under sketch at top. Da'.:. ~ 
Jreau of Public Roads. 

• lmpro.ved Hydraulics 

length Adjustment Facto 

t~'). 
0.21 
0.44 
0.61 
0.70 

Jipe, Hoed pipe and pipe< with 76 ~ •~ 
e types of pip& and plpe.-arches, use ~ :-

-1 H YDRAULICS 

10 

~ 
" ' 

=: 

~.06 
f. os 

f. 04 
03 

t 
t Ol 

Ill 
N 

iii 

.., 
z 
z 
a: 
:> 
I-

Z1JOX 1100 

183h12ftO 

f3~0X 970 

800it 590 

o ·OK 500 

530. 420 

t!h34' 

SUB!.lllJIQIO oui;.,e.;H~~~~~~! FLOWIHO FULL 

f.'or 0~1 let crown qo1 • ubm,rgljtCI, co~.ihH• H'.'t by 
m•lhod:t doo,c,lbad I,, l hlf Cl l9'1gn •rot:Cdur• -.1 

lllAlllPU 
ANNULAR 

SIZE• 9101660 
Q • 0 .7 m3 tsec. 

kt= 0.9 
L• DO m 

FI ND H • 1.20 m 

EXAMPLE 
HE L.I CAL 

SJZE~910l660 

0•0.7m3 /nc. 
ll••0.9 
L•50m 

L 1 •50x.61•30,5m 

FINO H• o.B!l m 

OU'tLET CONTROL 

FLOWING FULL 

.: 

,3 

.4 

.5 

.I 

.u 

HEAD FOR STANDARD CORRUGATED 

STEEL Pl PE-ARCH CULVERTS 

187 

~ ~-35 Outlet Control. Head for cor rugated steel plp:e-arch culvert with 
r;;ad outlet and flowing full. Data Is derived from nomographs published 

~ E..1reau of Publlc Roads. 

?-36 Pipe-arch culvert under limited headroom conditions 

260



160 

0 

10 

• 
e 
5 

4 

3 

"' ... 
" D: 

~ .3 
(J 
f/) 

0 
.2 

. 1 

·°' 
.00 

. 05 

.u 

.02 

"' N 

ih 

STEEL DRAINAGE AND HIGHWAY CONcSTRUCTION PRODUCTS 

... 
z 
..J 

2130x1400 

1&30x 1'280 

900'x 580 

sao x soo 

UOxUO 

3§.~Sk~ 
SUBMlAO!D ounu CULYEJIT FLOWING FULL 

HW•H+h0·~S0 
For outlet raow11 not lvbmerged, compute HW b1 
m•lhoda d•acrlb•d fr\ i h• deai9n proc•dure , t 

EX AMPLE 
M-mULAR 

SIZE• 910~660 
Q • o. 7 m3 /sec. 

kt • 0 .9 
l • 50 m 

FIND H • 1.20 m 

EXAMPLE 
HELICAL 

SIZE:910x660 

0 = 0.7 m3 /sec. 
~··0.9 

L =50 m 
Ll •50x.61=30.5 m 

FINO H•0.8 5 m 

OUTLET CONTROL 
FLOWING FULL 
HEAD FOR STANDARD CORRUGATED 
STEEL PIPE-ARCH CULVERTS 
n:0 . 02'4 

.2 

. 3 

•• 
• 5 

•• 

1.5 

3 

Fi'gure 4.19 Head for corrugated steel pip-e-arch flowing full under outlet 
control. 

EWA Engineering Inc. 
84 Main Street, Unionville, Ontario 
L3R 2E7 
647.400.2824 www.ewaeng.com 261



HY-8 Culvert Analysis Report 

262



Crossing Discharge Data 

Discharge Selection Method: Specify Minimum, Design, and Maximum Flow 

Minimum Flow: 12.3601 cfs 

Design Flow: 35.3147 cfs 

Maximum Flow: 70.6293 cfs 

263



Table 1 - Summary of Culvert Flows at Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 2+200 

Headwater Elevation 
Damude Culvert -

Roadway Discharge 
Total Discharge (ems) existing Discharge Iterations 

(m) 
(ems) 

(ems) 

186.48 0.35 0.35 0.00 1 

186.77 0.51 0.42 0.09 6 

186.79 0.68 0.43 0.25 5 

186.81 0.84 0.43 0.41 4 

186.82 1.00 0.43 0.56 4 

186.84 1.17 0.44 0.74 4 

186.85 1.34 0.44 0.90 3 

186.86 1.50 0.44 1.06 3 

186.87 1.67 0.44 1.22 3 

186.88 1.83 0.45 1.39 3 

186.89 2.00 0.45 1.55 3 

186.75 0.42 0.42 0.00 Overtopping 

264



Rating Curve Plot for Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 2+200 

Total Rating Curve 

186.90 

186.85 

I 186.80 

c 
.2 186.75 ...... co 
> 
Q) 186.70 
w 
L.. 

~ 186.65 
$ 
~ 186.60 
Q) 

I 
186.55 

186.50 

Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colbome 2+200 

0.5 1.0 1.5 
Total Discharge (ems) 

2.0 

265



Table 2 - Culvert Summary Table: Damude Culvert - existing 

Total Culvert Headwater Intel Outlet Flow Normal Critical Outlet Tallwater 
Outlet Tallwater 

Discharge Discharge Elevation Control Control 
Type Depth (m) Depth (m) Depth (m) Depth (m) 

Velocity Velocity 
(ems) (ems) (m) Depth (m) Depth (m) {mis) (m/s) 

0.35 0.35 186.48 0.878 1.049 7-M2c 0.500 0.404 0.404 0.397 2.060 0.520 

0.51 0.42 186.77 1.131 1.355 7-M2t 0.500 0.437 0.481 0.481 2.176 0.576 

0.68 0.43 186.79 1.149 1.438 4-FFf 0.500 0.438 0.500 0.549 2.171 0.619 

0.84 0.43 186.81 1.164 1.513 4-FFf 0.500 0.440 0.500 0 .609 2.190 0.655 

1.00 0.43 186.8.2 1.175 1.575 4-FFf 0.500 0.441 0.500 0 ,659 2.205 0.684 

1.17 0.44 186.84 1.188 1.640 4-FFf 0.500 0.442 0.500 0 .710 2.220 0.713 

1.34 0.44 186.85 1.199 1.696 4-FFf 0.500 0.443 0.500 0.754 2.235 0.738 

1.50 0.44 186.86 1.209 1.747 4-FFI 0.500 0.444 0 .500 0.795 2.246 0.760 

1.67 0.44 186.87 1.219 1.797 4-FFI 0.500 0.445 0.500 0.834 2.260 0.780 

1.83 0.45 186.88 1.229 1.843 4-FFf 0.500 0.445 0 .500 0 .870 2.271 0.799 

2.00 0.45 186.89 1.238 1.886 4-FFI 0.500 0.446 0 .500 0.904 2.281 0.817 

Straight Culvert 

Inlet Elevation (invert): 185.43 rn, Outlet Elevation (invert): 185.42 m 

Culvert Length: 10.24 m, Culvert Slope: 0.0010 

...... "********'*** .. '***•***...,,,.._***••****'***"***•tt•••·•••·••·•••*tt****H* .. *H .. **""** * 

266



Culvert Performance Curve Plot: Damude Culvert - existing 

Pe1f onnance Curve 

186.65 

E' 186.60 
......... 
c 
-~ 186.55 ...., 
ro 
> 
~ 186.50 
1-
Q) 

10 186.45 
$ 
"O 
fil 186.40 
I 

186.35 

Culvert Damude Culvert - existing 

[£] rn 
Inlet Control Elev Outlet Control Elev 

0.5 1.0 1.5 
Total Discharge (ems) 

2.0 

267



Water Surface Profile Pl'ot for Culvert: Damude Culvert - existing 

Crossing - Zavitz Drain - Port Colbon1e 2+200, Design Discharge - 1 .00 ems 
Culvert - Damude Cut>.'ert - existing. Culvert Discharge - 0.43 ems 

186.8 

186.6 

186.4 
,,..-... 

5 
c 186.2 
0 

::;:::; 
ro 
iii 186.0 
UJ 

185.8 

185.6 

22.02 

l 

,/ 

I 
I 

2200 219-8 219& 21941 
Statfon(m) 

Site Data - Damude Cu~vert- existing 

Site Data Option: Culvert Invert Data 

Inlet Station: 2200.00 m 

Inlet Elevation: 185.43 m 

Outlet Station: 2189.76 m 

Outlet Elevation: 185.42 m 

Number of Barrels: 1 

Culvert Datai Summa1ry - Damude Culvert - exi1sUng 

Barrel Shape: Circular 

Barrel Diameter: 500.00 mm 

Barrel Material: Corrugated Steel 

Embedment: 0.00 mm 

Barrel Manning's n: 0.0240 

Culvert Type: Straight 

Inlet Configuration: Thin Edge Projecting 

Inlet Depression: None 

\ 
\ 

\ ---------x 

2192' 2190 2188 

268



Table 3 - Downstream Channel Rating Curve (Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 

Flow (ems) 
Water Surface 

Depth (m) Velocity (m/s) Shear (Pa) Elev (m) 

0.35 185.82 0.40 0.52 3.51 
0.51 185.90 0.48 0.58 4.24 
0.68 185.97 0.55 0.62 4.85 

0.84 186.03 0.61 0.66 5.37 
1.00 186.08 0.66 0.68 5.81 
1.17 186.13 0.71 0.71 6.26 

1.34 186.17 0.75 0.74 6.65 
1.50 186.22 0.80 0.76 7.02 
1.67 186.25 0.83 0.78 7.36 
1.83 186.29 0.87 0.80 7.67 
2.00 186.32 0.90 0.82 7.98 

2+200) 

Tailwater Channel Data - Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 2+200 

Tailwater Channel Option: Trapezoidal Channel 

Bottom Width: 0.90 m 

Side Slope (H:V): 2.00 (_:1) 

Channel Slope: 0.0009 

Channel Manning's n: 0.0230 

Channel Invert Elevation: 185.42 m 

Roadway Data for Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 2+200 

Roadway Profile Shape: Constant Roadway Elevation 

Crest Length: 20.00 m 

Crest Elevation: 186.75 m 

Roadway Surface: Gravel 

Roadway Top Width: 5.00 m 

Froude Number 

0.32 

0.33 
0.33 

0.34 

0.34 
0.34 

0.35 

0.35 
0.35 

0.35 
0.35 

269



270



Crossing Discharge Data 

Discharge Selection Method: Specify Minimum, Design, and Maximum Flow 

Minimum Flow: 12.3601 cfs 

Design Flow: 35.3147 cfs 

Maximum Flow: 70.6293 cfs 

271



Table 4 - Summary of Culvert Flows at Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne revised 

Headwater Elevation 
Damude Culvert -

Roadway Discharge 
Total Discharge (ems) alternate Discharge Iterations 

(m) 
(ems) 

(ems) 

185.98 0.35 0.35 0.00 1 

186.15 0.51 0.51 0.00 1 

186.37 0.68 0.68 0.00 1 

186.64 0.84 0.84 0.00 1 

186.77 1.00 0.92 0.08 16 

186.79 1.17 0.93 0.25 6 

186.81 1.34 0.94 0.40 4 

186.82 1.50 0.94 0.56 4 

186.84 1.67 0.95 0.72 4 

186.85 1.83 0.96 0.88 3 
186.86 2.00 0.96 1.04 3 

186.75 0.90 0.90 0.00 Overtopping 

272



Rating Curve Plot for Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne revised 

Total Rating Curve 
Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne revised 

186.9~------------------~ 

186.8 

--- 186.7 
E 
~ 186.6 
0 

~ 186.5 
Q) 

~ 186.4 
Q) 

~ 186.3 
u l 186.2 

186.1 

186.0 

0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 
Total Discharge (ems) 

273



Table 5 - Culvert Summary Table: Damude Culvert - alternate 

Total Culvert Headwater Inlet Outlet 
Flow Normal Critical Outlet Tallwater 

Outlet Tailwater 
Discharge Discharge Elevation Control Control Type Depth (m) Depth (m) Depth {m) Depth (m) 

Velocity Veloctty 
(ems) (ems) (m) Depth (m) Depth (m) (mis) (mis) 

0.35 0.35 185.98 0.473 0.546 3-M2t 0.610 0.283 0.397 0 .397 1.105 0.520 

0.51 0.51 186.15 0.621 0.716 3-M21 0.610 0.350 0.481 0.481 1.371 0.576 

0.68 0.68 186.37 0.798 0.942 7-M2t 0.610 0.411 0.549 0.549 1.644 0.619 

0.84 0.84 186.64 1.027 1.211 7-M2t 0.610 0.462 0.609 0.609 1.956 0.655 

1.00 0.92 185.n 1.144 1.367 4-FFf 0.610 0.482 0.610 0.659 2.119 0.684 

1.17 0.93 186.79 1.164 1.436 4-FFf 0.610 0.485 0.610 0.71 0 2.146 0.713 

1.34 0.94 186.81 1.178 1.494 4-FFf 0.610 0.487 0.610 0.754 2.165 0.738 

1.50 0.94 186.82 1.192 1.547 4-FFf 0.610 0.489 0 .610 0.795 2.182 0.760 

1.67 0.95 186.84 1.203 1.596 4-FFf 0.610 0.491 0.610 0.834 2.198 0.780 

1.83 0.96 186.85 1.214 1.642 4-FFI 0.610 0.492 0 .610 0.870 2.212 0.799 

2.00 0 .96 186.86 1.225 1.685 4-FFf 0.610 0.494 0 .610 0.904 2.225 0.817 

Straight Culvert 

Inlet Elevation (invert): 185.43 m, Outlet Elevation (invert): 185.42 m 

Culvert Length: 10.24 m, Culvert Slope: 0.0010 

•t11••••••• ••••••••• ···-.............................. .. .,,.. .............. , . ................................. . 

274



Culvert Performance Curve Plot: Damude Culvert - alternate 

186.6 

E' 186.5 .._, 
c 
.2 186 4 
~ . 
ro 
> 
~ 186.3 
._ 
Q) 

10 186.2 
~ 
-g 186.1 
Q) 

I 
186.0 

185.9 

Perfo1mance Curve 
Culvert: Damude Culvert - alternate 

[£J rn 
Inlet Control Elev Outlet Control Elev 

0.5 1.0 1.5 
Total Discharge (ems) 

2.0 

275



Water Surface Profile Plot for Culvert: Damude Culvert - a lternate 

Crossing - Zavitz Drain - Port Colbome revised, Design Discharge - l .00 ems 
Culvert - Damude Culvert - alternate, Culvert 015charge - 0.92 ems 

186.8 

186.6 , 

186.4 I ~ 

E 
~ 186.2 
0 

:;:::; 
ro 
ii) 186.0 

UJ 

185.8 

185.6 

185.4 

2202' 2200 2198 219& 2194 

Station(m) 

Site Data - Damude Culvert - alternate 

Site Data Option: Culvert Invert Data 

Inlet Station: 2200.00 m 

Inlet Elevation: 185.43 m 

Outlet Station: 2189.76 m 

Outlet Elevation: 185.42 m 

Number of Barrels: 1 

Culvert Data Summary - Damude Culvert - alternate 

Barrel Shape: Pipe Arch 

Barrel Span: 889.00 mm 

Barrel Rise: 609.60 mm 

Barrel Material: Steel or Aluminum 

Embedment: 0.00 mm 

Barrel Manning's n: 0.0250 

Culvert Type: Straight 

Inlet Configuration: Project ing 

Inlet Depression: None 

------------x 

2192 2190 2188 

276



Table 6 - Downstream Channel Rating Curve (Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 

Flow (ems) 
Water Surface 

Depth (m) Velocity (m/s) Shear (Pa) 
Elev (m) 

0.35 185.82 0.40 0.52 3.51 
0.51 185.90 0.48 0.58 4.24 
0.68 185.97 0.55 0.62 4.85 
0.84 186.03 0.61 0.66 5.37 
1.00 186.08 0.66 0.68 5.81 
1.17 186.13 0.71 0.71 6.26 
1.34 186.17 0.75 0.74 6.65 
1.50 186.22 0.80 0.76 7.02 
1.67 186.25 0.83 0.78 7.36 
1.83 186.29 0.87 0.80 7.67 
2.00 186.32 0.90 0.82 7.98 

revised) 

Tailwater Channel Data - Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne revised 

Tailwater Channel Option: Trapezoidal Channel 

Bottom Width: 0.90 m 

Side Slope (H:V): 2.00 (_: 1) 

Channel Slope: 0.0009 

Channel Manning's n: 0.0230 

Channel Invert Elevation: 185.42 m 

Roadway Data for Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne revised 

Roadway Profile Shape: Constant Roadway Elevation 

Crest Length: 20.00 m 

Crest Elevation: 186. 75 m 

Roadway Surface: Gravel 

Roadway Top Width: 5.00 m 

Froude Number 

0.32 
0.33 

0.33 

0.34 
0.34 

0.34 

0.35 
0.35 
0.35 
0.35 
0.35 

277



278



Crossing Discharge Data 

Discharge Selection Method: Specify Minimum, Design, and Maximum Flow 

Minimum Flow: 12.3601 cfs 

Design Flow: 35.3147 cfs 

Maximum Flow: 70.6293 cfs 

279



Table 7 - Summary of Culvert Flows at Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 2+600 

Headwater Elevation 
Total Discharge (ems) 

Clee Culvert - existing Roadway Discharge 
Iterations 

(m) Discharge (ems) (ems) 

186.51 0.35 0.30 0.05 13 

186.54 0.51 0.31 0.20 6 
186.55 0.68 0.31 0.36 5 

186.57 0.84 0.32 0.52 4 

186.58 1.00 0.32 0.67 4 

186.59 1.17 0.33 0.85 4 

186.61 1.34 0.33 1.01 4 

186.62 1.50 0.34 1.17 3 
186.63 1.67 0.34 1.33 4 

186.66 1.83 0.35 1.49 6 

186.69 2.00 0.36 1.65 4 

186.50 0.29 0.29 0.00 O vertopping 

280



Rating Curve Plot for Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 2+600 

186.70 

186.68 

,...... 186.66 
E 
~ 186.64 
0 

~ 186.62 
Q) 

w 
L.. 186.60 
Q) 

~ 186.58 
-0 
co 

:!E 186.56 

186.54 

186.52 

0.5 

Total Rating Curve 
Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colbome 2+600 

1.0 1.5 
Total Discharge (ems) 

2.0 

281



Table 8 - Culvert Summary Table: Clee Culvert· existing 

Total Culvert Headwater Inlet Outlet 
Flow Normal Critical Outlet Tallv1ater 

Outlet Tailwater 
Discharge Discharge Elevation Control Control 

Type Depth (m) Depth (m) Depth (m) Depth (m) 
Velocity Velocity 

(ems) (ems) (m) Depth (m) Depth (m) (mis) (m/s) 

0 .35 0 .30 186.51 0 .731 0 .724 7-H2t -0.305 0.374 0 .397 0.397 1.740 0.520 

0.51 0 .31 186.54 0 .754 0 .737 7-H2t -0.305 0.379 0.481 0.481 1.566 0.576 

0.68 0 .31 186.55 0.771 0 .936 4-FFI -0.305 0.383 0.500 0.549 1.597 0 .619 

0 .84 0 .32 186.57 0.786 1.008 4-FFf -0.305 0.386 0.500 0.609 1.624 0.655 

1.00 0.32 186.58 0.798 1.069 4-FFI -0.305 0.389 0.500 0.659 1.646 0.684 

1.17 0.33 186.59 0.811 1.132 4-FFI -0.305 0.392 0.500 0.710 1.669 0.713 

1.34 0.33 186.61 0 .823 1.186 4-FFI -0.305 0.394 0.500 0.754 1.689 0.738 

1.50 0.34 186.62 0.833 1.237 4-FFI -0.305 0.396 0.500 0.795 1.707 0.760 

1.67 0.34 186.63 0.851 1.291 4-FFI -0.305 0.399 0.500 0.834 1.737 0.780 

1.83 0.35 186.66 0 .879 1.352 4-FFI -0.305 0.404 0.500 0.870 1.784 0 .799 

2.00 0.36 186.69 0.911 1.415 4·FFf -0.305 0.409 0.500 0.904 1.835 0.817 

Straight Culvert 

Inlet Elevation (invert): 185.78 m, Outlet Elevation (invert}: 185.78 m 

Culvert Length: 6.00 m, Culvert Slope: 0.0002 

282



Culvert Performance Curve Plot: Glee Culvert - existing 

Perfo1mance Curve 
Culvert Clee Culvert - existing 

[I) [I] 
Inlet Control Elev Outlet Control Elev 

186.70 

186.68 

E' 186.66 
~ 

§ 186.64 
....... 
~ 186.62 
Q) 

~ 186.60 
Q) ....... 
~ 186.58 
-0 :g 186.56 

I 186.54 

186.52 

0.5 1.0 1.5 
Total Discharge (ems) 

2.0 

283



Water Surface Profile Plot for Culvert: Clee Culvert - existing 

Crossing - Zavitz Dran1 - Port Colbome 2+600, Design Discharge - 1.00 ems 
Culvert - d ee Cwver1 - existing. Culvert Discharge - C>-32 ems 

186.6 

186.5 

I 186.4 

I 1s6.3 

5 186.2 
:;:;:; 
co 
;:. 
(l) 186.1 
UJ 

186.0 

185.9 

185.8 

2605 2604 2602 
Stalio111 (m) 

Site Data - Clee Culvert - existing 

Site Data Option: Culvert Invert Data 

Inlet Station: 2606.00 m 

Inlet Elevation: 185.78 m 

Outlet Station: 2600.00 m 

Outlet Elevation: 185.78 m 

Number of Barrels: 1 

Culvert Data Summary - Clee Culvert - exi1sting 

Barrel Shape: Circu lar 

Barrel Diameter: 500.00 mm 

Barrel Material: Corrugated Steel 

Embedment: 0.00 mm 

Barrel Manning's n: 0.0240 

Culvert Type: Straight 

Inlet Configuration: Thin Edge Projecting 

Inlet Depression: None 

----x 

2600 

284



Table 9 - Downstream Channel Rating Curve (Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 

Flow (ems) 
Water Surface Depth (m) Velocity (m/s) Shear (Pa) 

Elev (m) 

0.35 186. 18 0.40 0.52 3.51 
0.51 186.26 0.48 0.58 4.24 

0.68 186.33 0.55 0.62 4.85 

0.84 186.39 0.61 0.66 5.37 
1.00 186.44 0.66 0.68 5.81 

1.17 186.49 0.71 0.71 6.26 
1.34 186.54 0.75 0.74 6.65 
1.50 186.58 0.80 0.76 7.02 

1.67 186.62 0.83 0.78 7.36 
1.83 186.65 0.87 0.80 7.67 

2.00 186.69 0.90 0.82 7.98 

2+600) 

Tailwater Channel Data - Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 2+600 

Tailwater Channel Option: Trapezoidal Channel 

Bottom Width: 0.90 m 

Side Slope (H:V): 2.00 (_:1) 

Channel Slope: 0.0009 

Channel Manning's n: 0.0230 

Channel Invert Elevation: 185. 78 m 

Roadway Data for Crossing: Zavitz Drain - Port Colborne 2+600 

Roadway Profile Shape: Constant Roadway Elevation 

Crest Length: 20.00 m 

Crest Elevation: 186.50 m 

Roadway Surface: Gravel 

Roadway Top Width: 5.00 m 

Froude Number 

0.32 

0.33 
0.33 
0.34 

0.34 
0.34 

0.35 

0.35 
0.35 

0.35 

0.35 

285



Prj 11 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Attachment D: Tree Restoration Plan 

286



Zavitz I 

188 

188 

·- ·-·-·-· --~--

Ge 

... 
,.,_ CD 
~ ...., 

0 ' "' . 

287



Prj It 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Attachment E: Revised Assessment 

288



z.a,1tz Mitntap1I or-

ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL ORMN 
TOWN OF FORT ER IE & CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 
Regionul Munlc!pallly of Nlogara 

AUOWANCE CALCULATIONS -ZAVl12 DRAIN 
Property Con. lot landowner I Property Ab\iltlno l.tncth Channel Lett 
Ro• No. NlllM V~e I l.rt Rlgru Existing PrgpoHd L•nglh 

IS/ha! frOMSta Toste FromSttl ToS1a I Top'Nfdlh!TooWldthl (ml I 
landowners In the Cllwot Port Colbome 
2711tM000119100 VORSTENBOSCH C.M. 
2711CMD00111700 HAYTER S. 
271104000119600 LUNOY. JOHN MARK 
2711CU000119502 MISKOLCZI A. & M. 
2711CM000111i50t FARKAS J. & C. 
27110.0001111500 CAPITAN RODtCA 
271104000105800 PIOSAONtCK. G. 
271104000106700 DIPLOCK 0. & C. 
271104000106600 KING M. & S. 
271 104 0001ot5SOO NEAL T, & L 
271 104000108400 HILMAYER 0. & PRIEBE T. 
271104000104700 BOWERMAN G. & C,A, 
2711G4000104600 MINOR, R. & J . 1s • T T 
271l04000104SOO SIDER L I -
271104000104400 ZJIJIMERMAN V, & I. 11 -
271104000104300 FIDLER, R. & 0 .M. s I 
2711CM000 122300 UNITED BRETHREN CEMETAR'll .$ - .l --.J.. 
271104000138800 SHERKSTON UNITED CHURCH 
271104000138700 FtRST UHITEO CHURCH 
V11040001311301 
271104000138500 
2711G400013HOO 
211104000131300 I 
271 1040001l8200 

I }SIX__B_@IHERS1NVESTMOOS 

271104000138000 
271 ICM000122200 
271104000122100 GERMAIN OEVON WILLIAM 
271104000120200 ELMER 0. I S . I 
271104000122000 CEl.UCH L • 271104000121900 BAIN JAY ARTHUR l• - .l 
271104000121400 t<ILTS 0. 
271104000121300 HORNING A. & W. 
2711G4000121302 HORNING A. & W • .. .,,, HORNING A. & W. 

1200 BUCK. T. 
271104000121405 VIUENEUVE J . & E. 
271104000121400 VILLENEUVE J. & E. 
271 HM000t21700 MITCHE c 
2711CMD00121600 RAMSEY MATIHEW 
271104000121501 LYONS R. 
271104000121500 STEVENS. A. & L 
271104000121401 MCPHERSON B. & T. • • T 
271104000105500 NEWBY ANTHONY TODO $ • I 
271104000105.400 COSBY 0 . $ 

~711o-4000105400 cosev.o r >Ooo I 
271 104000105600 LOCHHEAD A. & K. $ 
271104000105600 LOCHHEAO A. & K. $ 
27 1104000121210 BUGEJA U , & A. $ 

"27 1 t04000tl6AOO CL£E 0 $ 2000 
27110.000105300 uAMUOE. R. • 1 000 
271104000105200 LOBBEZOO J. & P, s 
271HM000105t00 BUCK. J. $ 
271 t<M000104000 VAN OUZEH. A. & S. s 
271104000104000 VAN OUZEN A. & S. • 
2711040001CM200 VAH DUZEN A. & S. 
271104000104200 VAN OUZEN A . & S. 
271104000104005 EBERLY TRUCKING LTD. 
271104000104005 EBERLY TRUCKING LTD. 
271104000138100 SMITH ANDREW CHRISTOPHE 

TOTAL : L.ndowners ln the Clrvor Port Colbome I 

:cuvof Pon Colbome Road AJlowancu 
Plouant Buch Road 

!Pleasant Buch Ro•d !10< 9tanch Drains! 

North~ 
MlltlCe flevitz Rdlbetween Roi #271104000138301 & 112711040001383( 

' . - . - - ..:Jtv Of Port Colborn• Ro.d AUow;mca 

Rc'Wi .... : EWA EaaiH•1 .. 1 lai;.. 
Amoe Fo11u Whet.Id 

I 

l 

1 

'"'261!1'5:21 

~82 
1967.0 

I 

1 T T l - -1 I 

I I I 
- - -1. .l .l l l l 

l ' ' l ' ' 
l .l .l l l _I 

T T 1 1 T T 
I I I I 

2111e 5J j j 2.0j ~ .. , 1 ~3.ll 

'2t17e 5 2Mft'1 1&185 2.2 2.> <4'7.0 
2268.2 1i67,0 2268.2 2.5 :i:a 301,2 

_[ l l L _l 111.fil_ 

201'-l l -lO 

Chonnel Rlaht Chann•I AUowanc:u Wondnn Spac• Worklnn Spoce Allow I Tolal Al ow.,,CllO 

Area I EmilnQ ,I Pr090Md
1

1 length I /Vu I Sec29 I See 30 l ltl'l l Right J lef\Aru lRightAteal See29 l 
fhal TooWldth TooWld1h Cml thal 100% 100% Wktth Width (l'I•) th•) 

Sec 30 l Sec 29 l S•t: 30 
100% ($) (SI 

I I I I I I - ll 
I I • . " • s 

• • .l .l .l .l .t • • J S 

' T ' T n -~ s s • • • ' • • 
I _i i i I ' - " • I I I I I S • I s • I s 

T T T 1 ,. - 1 s . 1 1 1 T T1 . T1 
I I I • • I s • I I I I I S . l l 

• • • • OJ!JOI I I j J S - J s .. , I I I _ti - i S- I s II ,. 

• 
0.0'3 2.1 .. , 010, 0024 .--- - s ,. ·10 .01 o.e 10 ! ' 1.2?1 ! > ,. .. 
0.003 2.5 2.8 301.2 0.003 ,- . l s •l l 10.'!J. .l 0.30!J. S . .l ' 3.G1 I S - ,, JUT 

• • s 
-- • 

0,02 51 l l 91 1.~ o.ozn • • I ' .. , I I L O.tt~ l • .t • ,,U l_l l - .l l 1,lj t 

B· I Filo! "-' 110120 / 1199'9fl 

289



Zo\•irzM1111iclpolOroii1 

ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL DRAIN 
TOWN OF FORT ERIE & CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 
Reglon.W MunkJpamy of Niagara 

ALLOWANCE CALCULATIONS - ZAVllZ CRAIN 
Property 

I 
Con. I Lot 

I 
Lundownar I Prop{!rty Abuttina Lanoth Channel Left 

Roll No. Name Value I Le tt I Ri hi I E11i11tina PropDliad Lenglh 
1$1tia1 From Sta To Sia From Sta To Sia Ton Width I Top Width I (m) I 

Provi ncial Road Allowances In Port Colbornc 
Hiahw<11 3 I 1942.71 Hl67,0 I 19-'12.71 1967.o l 24.l 
TOTAL: Provl nc:14' Road AUow<ine.es In P ott Colbotne 24,3 

of Pleasant Beach Road 
205m east of Pleas.ant Be11c:h Road 

Undowners In lhe Town o f Fort E.rle - --

20025033010000 GRIMES, DA. • 20oiso40000000 ANDY VEENSTRA FARMS L TO. $ 

20018339000000 SPIRONEUO A. • 2.DOO 1326.2 1756,0 1326.2 1905.7 3.0 3.1 42.9.8 
20018338000000 BEACH C.M. I 2,000 921.0 1326.2 921 .0 1326.2 2.9 3.0 405.2 
20025041000000 BARRON J. & M. • 20025040010000 CAMPBEL J & J.M. • 
20025035000000 VENTURINI J. & A. • 20025018000000 MCDONALD, J . • 20018337000000 GREEN K.R. • 2 000 639.3 900,5 639,3 900.5 3,0 3.1 261.2 
2001 8337010000 BEACH 0. & C. • 2 000 407.1 639.3 407.1 639.3 3.5 3.6 232.2 
20018335000000 CLARK, 0 .M. • 2 000 137.2 407.1 137.2 :107.1 2.2 2.4 269.9 
20018335000000 WORONCHAK, M. & N. • 2000 137 .2 137.2 3.1 3.2 137.2 

TOTAL: Landowners In the Town of fort Erle 1735.6 

Town o f fort Erle Road Allow.onces 
Hotlcwtrv BIN Road Suuth of Hlnhwav 3 1756,0 1!Jos.1T T T T T 149.7 
Ho-llowav Bav Road fNcrth of Hfahwav 31 I I I I I I I 
Math1ws Road l 900.Sl 921.'ll. 900.~ 921.'!J. l l 20.Sl 
Nl h Road 
Un.ooen•d Road Allowance between Concession 2 LE & 3 LE Lot '14 
TOTAL: Town of Fort Erle Road Allowances T T T T T T T 170-21 

~ Read Allow.mctts In Fort Erie 
1905.7 l942.7 1905.7 1942.7 37.0 

·ovlnclal Road AQow.illnc:es In Fort Erle 37,0 

lQlll-12-3() 

Channel Ri<>ht Channel AUowances WondnoSDllCI Wor1<1no Soace Allow Tela! A1IOWMCt!S 

7~:~ I T;:i~":lh I ;;:p~~~~ I l~:n I 7~:; \ ~~~~ I ~~~~o I ~:, I :~~ I L'~:U;aa \ RJ;~~:;rda j Sec 20 ! ~~~~o j s~~~e I See30 

"' 
24.J • • ' • s I 

I 24,31 I t . " . I I I I " . " • I I . " 

• s I • I • 
' ' ' ' I • 

0.004 3.0 3.1 579.5 0.006 ' 20 • 20 10,0 0,43{) I • R8Q • 20 i ... 
0.004 2.9 3.0 -405.2 0.004 $ I• • 16 10.0 0.405 I • R1D I 16 I m 

' • I I ' ' ' • I • I I 

' • ' • ' I 

• • • I I I 
0,003 3.0 3.1 261.2 0.003 ' 10 • 10 10.0 0.2SI • • 522 ' 10 ' "' 0.002 3.5 3.6 232.2 0.002 .. • • • 10.0 0.232 • • i464 s 9 I "' 0 .005 2 .3 2.3 269.9 • 11 I 11 10,0 0.270 • • 540 s "' 601 
0.001 3.2 3.3 137.2 0.001 ' •• • 10.0 0.137 • • '31.t I • • 700 
0.020 1815.2 U 16 I 72 • 72 1.m I I I.A?\ I ll I u o 

l ,--- 1--20:5 

T T T 20.5i 

J7.0 
37.0 

)SUB TOTAL: Umds and Roads In U1e Town of Fort Erle I I I ! I 19.t2.71 0.020! I l 19.tz.71 o.01a\ s 12 ! 1 12 ! I I 1.n sl l ' 1 1 ~.411 I I n I • l,10 I 

TOTAL: Zavitz Munlclpal DraJn 

Rc\iu..J· EWAEll.;f.1tt1irtJ lm:. 
Amee fo11cr Wbccln 

2! 711.!il 0.045' 2871U o.o.u\ s 

3-2 

7Z I s 17 2 1.7 ~1' A.Ul l l 72 5,lU 
Total Allow.inces G,J37 

Fili::. Nu. 11Dl20 1 lf.9998 

290



Znvh:t. Municipal Dr11in 

ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL DRAIN 
TOWN OF FORT ERIE & CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 
Regional Municipality of Niagara 

ASSESSMENT SCHEDULE BASED ON ESTIMATED COSTS -ZAVITZ DRAIN 

LANDOWNER ADDRESS 
NAME 

1 
Landowners In the Citv of Pon Colborn• 
VORSTENBOSCH. C.M. 
HAYTER. S. 
LUNDY, JOHN MARK 
MISKOLCZI A. & M. 
FARKAS, J. & C. 
CAPITAN, RODICA 
PIDSADNICK. G. 
DIPLOCK, D. & C. 
KING, M. & S. 
NEAL. T. & L 
HILMAYER. D. & PRIEBE, T. 
BOWERMAN, G. & C.A. 
MINOR R. &J. 
SIDER, I. 
ZIMMERMAN, V. & I. 
FIDLER, R. & D.M. 
UNITED BRETHREN CEMETARY 
SHERKSTON UNITED CHURCH 
FIRST UNITED CHURCH I 
VEENSTRA. D. I 
SMITH, T.M. I 
VEENSTRA, A. & D. I 
SIX BROTHERS INVESTMENTS INC. 
KENWORHTY, R. & P. 
FRASER, J. & C. 
PARISEE, T. & A. 
GERMAIN, DEVON WILLIAM 
ELMER, D. 
CELUCH. L 
BAIN JAY ARTHUR 
KILTS, 0. 
HORNING, A. & W. 
HORNING A. & W. 
HORNING A. & W. 
BUCK, T. 
VILLENEWE. J. & E. 
VILLENEWE. J. & E. 
MITCHELL C. 
RAMSEY, MATIHEW 
LYONS, R. 
STEVENS, A. & L. 
MCPHERSON, B. & T. 
NEWBY, ANTHONY TODD 
COSBY,D. 
COSBY, D. 
LOCHHEAD, A. & K. 
LOCHHEAD, A. & K. 
BUGEJA, M. & A. 
CLEE. G. 
DAMUDE R. 
LOBBEZOO, J. & P. 
BUCK, J. 
VAN DUZEN, A. & S. 
VAN DUZEN, A. & S. 

R.e\; sed: EWA Engineering Inc 
Aaucc Foster W11cclcr 

PROPERTY CON. 
ROLL NO. 

2 3 

271104000119800 
2711040001 19700 
271104000119600 
271104000119502 
271104000119501 
271104000119500 
271104000105800 
271104000106700 
271104000106600 
271104000106500 
271104000106400 
271104000104700 
271104000104600 
271104000104500 
271104000104400 
271104000104300 
271104000122300 
271104000138600 
271104000138700 
271104000136301 
271104000138500 
271104000136600 
271104000138300 
271104000138200 
271104000138000 
271104000122200 
271104000122100 
271104000120200 
271104000122000 
271104000121900 
2711 04000121400 
271 104000121300 
271104000121302 

MERGED WITH ABOVE 
271104000121200 
271104000121805 
271104000121800 
271104000121700 
271104000121800 
271104000121501 
271104000121500 
27110400012 1401 
271104000105500 
271104000105400 
271104000105400 
271104000105600 
271104000105600 
271104000121210 
271104000138400 
271104000105300 
271104000105200 
271104000105100 
271104000104000 
271104000104000 

LOT APPROX. APPROX. TOTAL 
AREA ABUT. ALLOW. 

AFFECT. LENGTH 
Iha\ (ml ISi 

4 5 6 

0.04 s -
0.56 s -
0.40 s -
0.43 $ -
0.47 $ -
0.63 s 
0.62 $ -
1.34 s -
0.48 s -
0.50 s -
0.83 $ -
0.50 $ -
1.11 s -
0.44 s 
0.43 s -
0.37 s -
0.12 $ 
0.33 $ 
0.39 s -
1.n s -
2.74 $ -
1.20 $ 
2 .34 $ 
6.15 $ -
4.15 s -
0.50 s -
0.35 $ -
7.29 $ -
4.52 $ 
0.14 s -
0.43 $ 
1.57 s -
1.56 $ 

s -
3,59 $ -
0.43 s -
0.40 $ -
0.48 $ 
0.57 s 
O.« $ 

1.32 $ -
0.44 s -
0.15 s -
0.45 $ -
8.60 193.3 $ 19 
0.10 s 
1.83 $ -
0.59 $ -

13.19 1027.3 $ 1,294 
4.59 602.4 $ 307 
6.12 $ 
4.86 s 
0.64 s -
0.38 s -

2018- 12-30 

TOTAL SPECIAL TOTAL TOTAL NET 
BENEFIT BENEFIT OUTLET ASSESS. ASSESS. 

ISi ISi ISi ISi ISi 
7 8 9 10 11 12 

s - s - s 27 $ 27 s 27 
$ - $ $ 410 s 4 10 $ 4 10 
s - s s 298 s 298 s 298 
$ - $ $ 317 s 317 $ 3 17 
s - $ s 344 s 344 s 344 
s s - s 465 $ 465 s 485 
$ - $ - $ 457 s 4 67 s 457 
$ - $ - s 990 s 990 $ 090 
s - $ - s 353 $ 353 s 353 
s - s - s 369 $ 389 s 369 
$ - s - s 810 $ 8 10 s 610 
$ - $ - $ 372 s 372 $ 372 
$ $ - $ 819 s 819 s 819 
s $ - s 323 s 323 s 323 
$ $ - $ 316 $ 316 s 3 18 
s - s - $ 270 $ 270 s 270 
$ - s - s 96 s 96 $ 96 
$ - s s 175 $ 175 s 175 
$ s - s 206 s 206 s 200 
s s - s 936 s 936 s 624 -
s s - $ 1.450 s 1.450 $ 986 -
s s - s 635 s 635 s 423 -
s $ - s 1,238 s 1,238 $ 1,238 
s $ - s 3.254 s 3 .254 s 2 .169 • 

s - $ - $ 2,196 $ 2 , 196 s 1,464 • 

s - s - $ 398 s 396 s 398 
$ - s - $ 279 s 279 s 279 
s - s - s 5 ,806 s 5.806 $ 3 ,871 • 

$ - $ $ 3,600 $ 3,600 s 2 ,400 • 

s s - $ 112 s 112 s 112 
$ s - s 342 $ 342 $ 342 
$ s - s 1,250 $ 1,250 $ 1,250 
$ - s - $ 1 243 s 1.243 s 1.243 

s - s $ - $ - s 
$ - s s 2 767 $ 2.767 $ 2 .767 
$ - s - s 342 s 342 $ 342 
s - s $ 319 $ 319 $ 3 19 
s s $ 382 s 382 $ 382 
$ - s $ 454 s 454 s 454 
s - s $ 350 $ 350 $ 350 

s s - $ 1,051 s 1,051 $ 1,051 
s - s s 350 s 350 s 350 
s s - $ 119 s 119 s 119 
s - $ $ 166 s 166 s 166 

s 387 s $ 4,886 $ s ,2n s 5.253 
s - s - s 37 $ 37 s 37 

s - s s 1,209 s 1.209 $ 1,209 

s - $ - s 470 $ 470 s 470 

s 2 ,055 $ 683 $ 5 357 $ 8 ,094 s 8,800 

s 1,205 s 663 s 1,510 $ 3 398 $ 3,090 
$ s s 1,716 $ 1.7 16 s 1,718 
s - s - s 1,746 s 1,746 s 1,746 
s s s 497 $ 497 s 497 
s - s s 206 $ 206 s 206 

C -1 File No. 110120 I 119991 

291



ZnYil~ Municipal Drllio 

ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL DRAIN 
TOWN OF FORT ERIE & CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 
Regional Municipality of Niagara 

ASSESSMENT SCHEDULE BASED ON ESTIMATED COSTS -ZAVITZ DRAIN 

LANDOWNER ADDRESS PROPERTY CON. 
NAME ROLL NO. 

1 2 3 
VAN DUZEN, A. & S. 271104000104200 
VAN DUZEN. A. & S. 271104000104200 
EBERLY TRUCKING LTD. 271104000104005 
EBERLY TRUCKING LTD. 271104000104005 
SMITH, ANDREW CHRISTOPHER 271104000138100 
TOTAL : Landowners in the C ity of Port Colbome 

Pleasanl Beach Road 
Pleasant Beach Road (for Branch Drains) 
Sherkston Road 
Holloway Bay Road (Soulh o( Highway 3) 
Holloway Bay Road {South of Highway 3) (for Branch Drains} 
Hollowav Bav Road <North of Hlohwav 3) 
Unopened Road Allowance (Zavitz Rd) between 
Ron #271104000135301 & #271104000138300 
TOTAL: Citv of Port Colbome Road Allowances 

Pl'Ovinciat Road AJ lowances in Port Colborne 
Highwa 3 
TOTAL: Provincial Road Allowances In Port Colborne 

Other L.nda: In Port Calborno 
Friendshl Trail - West of Pleasant Beacflioad --
Friendshi Trall - Pleasant Beach Road lo 205m east of Pleasant Beach Road 

LOT 

4 

Friendship Trall -145m west or Hollowa Ba Road to 205m east or Pleasant Beach Road 
TOTAL: Other Lands In Port Colbornc 

5Eecial Assessments to Port Colbome 
IV. CITY OF PORT COLBORNE !Pleasant Beach Rd) 
TOTAL - Special Assessments to Port Colborno 

APPROX. APPROX. TOTAL 
AREA ABUT. ALLOW. 

AFFECT. LENGTH 
Iha I lml !Sl 

5 6 
1.37 $ - $ 
1.68 $ - $ 
0.55 $ - $ 
0 .05 $ - $ 
0.40 $ - $ 

97.83 1823.0 s 1.621 $ 

1.22 $ $ 
0.26 $ - $ 
1.18 $ $ 
0.86 s s 
0.06 s s 
0.46 s s 

0.29 $ s 
4.32 s - $ 

5.09 48.6 $ $ 
5.09 48.GO $ $ 

0.56 $ $ 
0.39 s $ 
0.61 $ s 
1.56 $ $ 

TOTAL SPECIAL TOTAL TOTAL NET 
BENEFIT BENEFIT OUTLET ASSESS. ASSESS. 

!$) 1$1 ISi 1$1 ISl 
7 8 9 10 11 12 

s s 862 s 862 s 862 

- s s 795 s 795 s 795 

- s $ 331 s 331 s 331 

- s s 27 s 27 s 27 
- $ s 212 s 212 $ 212 

3,646 $ 1,365 $ SG,117 $ 61.128 s 53,548 

- s $ 3,844 s 3,844 s 3,844 
- s $ 767 s 767 s 767 
- s s 3,483 s 3,463 s 3,483 
- $ $ 1,851 s 1,85\ s 1,851 
- s s 174 s 17• $ 174 
- $ $ 973 s 973 s 973 

- $ s 153 s 153 s 153 

- s . s 11,246 s 11.240 s 11.246 

97 s $ 10,669 s 10.966 s 10,966 
97 $ $ 10,868 $ 10,966 $ 10,066 

s 1,653 5- 1.653 s 1.653 
$ 1,151 s 1.151 s 1,151 
$ 1,800 $ 1,800 s 1,800 
$ 4,604 $ 4,604 s 4,604 

$ 223 
$ 223 

I SUBTOTAL: Lands and Roads in th e City of Port Colbo rno I 108.791 1871.601 $ 1.621 I $ 3,743 I S 1,365 I S 82,836 I $ 88,168 I S 80,365 I I 

Landowners In the Town of Fort Erie 
GRIMES, D.A. 20025038010000 
ANDY VEENSTRA FARMS LTC 20025040000000 
SPIRONELLO, A. 20018339000000 
BEACH,C.M. 20018338000000 
BARRON, J . & M. 20025041000000 
CAMPBELL, J & J.M. 20025040010000 
VENTURINI, J . & A. 20025035000000 
MCDONALD, J, 20025018000000 
GREEN, K. R. 20018337000000 
BEACH, D. & C. 20018337010000 
CLARK, D.M. 20018336000000 
WORONCHAK, M. & N. 20018335000000 
TOTAL : Landowners in the Town of Fort Erie 

Town of Fort Erie Road Allowances 
Hollowav Bav Road (South of Hiahway 3) 
Hollowav Bav Road (North of Highwav 3} 
Mathews Road 
Nigh Road 
Unopened Road Allowance between Concession 2 LE & 3 LE, Lot 34 

Rc,·ised: EWA E.ngi11ecri11g Inc. 
Amee Foster Wheeler 

0.81 s s 
24.45 $ s 
23.47 1009.3 s 900 s 
25.48 810.4 $ 843 s 

1.69 s $ 
7.25 $ $ 
6.96 $ . $ 
2.22 $ $ 

16.81 522.4 s 543 $ 

18.37 464.4 $ 483 $ 
21.91 539.8 $ 551 $ 

8.79 274.4 $ 285 $ 

158.21 3620.7 s 3,616 $ 

0.46 149.7 $ $ 
0.46 $ $ 
2.72 41.0 $ $ 
1.47 $ $ 

1.25 $ - $ 

- $ . $ 901 s 901 $ 901 
- $ $ 24,626 s 24,626 $ 15,417 -

2,019 $ . s 21,9 t2 s 23,931 s 15,054 • 
1,621 $ . s 16,585 s 18,205 s 11 ,294 • 

s s 509 $ 509 s 509 

- s . s 2,761 s 2,781 $ 2,781 
. s - s 3,669 s 3,669 s 2,446 • 

- s - $ 577 s 577 s 385 • 
1,045 s - $ 6,727 s 7,771 s 4,638 -

929 s - s 6,784 s 7,713 $ 4,659 • 
1,080 s 2,275 $ 5,152 $ 8 ,507 s 5, 110 • 

549 $ 2,275 $ 697 s 3,521 s 2,062 • 
7,241 s 4,550 s 90,919 $ 102.711 $ 66,255 

299 s - $ 2,089 s 2.389 $ 2.389 
s s 2,046 s 2,046 s 2.046 

82 s - s 5,788 s 5 ,870 s 5.870 

- $ . s 3,128 s 3,128 s 3.128 
- s - s 2,660 s 2,660 s 2,660 

C-2 

2018-12-30 

Fdc No. 11 0120 / IX9998 

292



Zn\lilz Munldpul Drnin 

ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL DRAI N 
TOWN OF FORT ERIE & CITY OF PORT COLBORNE 
Regional Municipality or Niagara 

ASSESSMENT SCHEDULE BASED ON ESTIMATED COSTS - ZAVITZ DRAIN 

LANDOWNER ADDRESS PROPERTY CON. 
NAME ROLL NO. 

1 2 3 
TOTAL: Town or Fort Erie Road AJlowances 

Provincial Road Allowances in Fort Erie 
Highway 3 
TOTAL: Provincial Road Allowil.nccs In Fort Erie 

Special Assessments to Fort Erle 
L TOWN OF FORT ERIE (Ma1hews Road' 
II. TOWN OF FORT ERIE (Eas t Side or Holloway Bay Rdl 
TOTAL - Special Assessments 

Special Assassments to Others 
Ill. MINISTRY OF TRANSPORTATION ONTARIO !HIGHWAY 3 ROW' 
V. ENBRIDGE GAS !PLEASANT BEACH ROAD 
TOTAL · Special Assessments 

LOT APPROX. APPROX. TOTAL 
AREA ABUT. ALLOW. 

AFFECT. LENGTH 
lhal fml 1$1 

• 5 6 
6.36 190.H S -

6.02 74.0 s 
6.02 74.00 s 

0,43 s 
Q.43 s 

TOTAL SPECIAL TOTAL TOTAL NET 
BENEFIT BENEFIT OUTLET ASSESS. ASSESS. 

1$1 !$1 1$1 ISi IS\ 
7 a 9 10 11 12 

s 381 $ - I 15 712 s 18.0llA s 16,094 

s 14B s $ 27,022 s 27,170 s 27,170 
s 148 s $ 27.022 s 27170 s 27 170 

s $ $ 907 s 907 s 907 
s s s 907 s 907 s 907 

U4V 
1,663 
3,J!.12 

8a1 
2N 
3,439 

!SUBTOTAL: Lands and Road s In the Town or Fort Erle I 111.021 3885.401 S 3,616 I S 7,771 I S 4,550 I s 134,560 I S 153,332 I S 110,425 I I 

!TOTAL: Zavitz Municipa l Drain I 279.821 5757.00I $ 5,237 I S 11,514 I S 5.915 I S 217,397 I $ 241,500 I S 190,790-r=J 

Future Maintenance costs s hal l bo assessed In the same rela tive proportion as the outlet assessment ror each property. 

Description or Information con tained In the Assessment Sched ule 

Column 1 
Column 2 
Column 3 
Column4 
Column5 
Cofumn 6 

Column 7 
Column 8 
Column 9 
Column 10 
Column 11 
Column 12 

Rc,iscd: EWA Engineering Inc. 
Amee Foster W11cclcr-

Name of Landowner rrom Assessment Roll m1lnt1ined by MPAC. 
Property Roll Number from Assessment Roll maintained by MPAC. 
Township Concession where lands located. 
Township Lot where lands located. 
Approx. area of land, In hectares, to be drained by Zavitz Municipal Drain. 
In accordance with Sections 29 and 30 of tho Or.ainage Act, allowance to be paid to hmdowner bnsed on va lue of land lost due to: 

·construction or improvement of drainage works 
- dis posal ot excavated materia l 
• d amage to trees, lawns, fe nces, lends and crops 

In accordance with Sectio n 22 of the Drainage Act, increased value or land adjacent to tho Drain d ue to improvement to the Drain 
In a ccordance with Section 24 of the Oralnaga Act, additiona l work to the drain which has no effect on the functioning of the Drain 
In accordance Section 23 of the Drainage Act, Increased va lue of land d ue to improved outlet for lands to be d rained. 
Total Assessment Is the Sum of Column 7 (Be nefit}, Column 8 (Special Benefit), and Column 9 (Outlet) 
Net Assessment Is Column 10 (Total Assessment) less Col umn 6 (To1a l Allowance), 
• Indicates agricultural land which Is potentially e ligible for OMAFRA s ubsidy. 
Net Assessment can be calculated by s ubtracting the OMAFRA subsidy from the Net AssessmenL 

C-3 

234,826 

241,500 

2018-12-30 

File No. 110120 1 119991 

293



li l ,Q-

l Dli,0-

l!l.0-

d' i_ .5 

i • 10m WORK ZONE I 

CLEAR Sm FROM~ DRAIN TIS. PRESERVE 
TREES TO 10m 

111700 

Vv'HERE POSSIBLE 

" 
~ 

• '"' ·~ 'o 
\F 
\~ 
l~ l ,.. ,,.. .. I I ":/ -1 1 

RD. ) HIGHWAY 3 (GARRISON ) __ 
CLEAR All BRUS H 

ON ROW ADJ ACENT 
TO ~ FOR 10m 

FROMT/B 

EXIST. SPRUCE 
TOBE 

PRESERVED 

~"\~~"ffi'i--.. 
~ I 

""" 

""' 

\S • • I 

' ~ 

i • • • 

~ 

~~ '"""" ~\ l +oo:i ~ 
~\ 1E:: 
~I i j C 

==---~~----L~--l--l ~. 1~ ~. ~ 

17 1200 

121210 

~ ~~ "'~ 
~~ 

,,,... 
SEE TREE 
PLANTING PlAN 
L0-01 

"1§1 

~. 

8 • ~ ! ~ 
~ ~ 
~ ::0 

!:::l 
•OSlOO 

:<>: 

I I 

ST A 2+876 to 1 +900 

= 1 I ~II r -· . - " :; __ ~ -··- ·· . -·· ~ - ~\ - -~ ·- · 

~I• , ' - - - ·- - --~~- - -,- -~-- ---~.- - - - - - - -~'. -- ·~·- - .-~~~~--.,~: 

~r 

~ ...... ""' -- - -::..:._--,_- - - ·-· - :::.:-=..:. -'"=_ ':'.;._o~~-.,_ --" --::o-~=-;:-~r =f========-:==---~~~ - -· --·~·--·Co.si.urno-~·-'°"" ... ~ 2~1f ,.., . 

j i ,.... - . ,_...-~.::. •• - I ___::~~=-----,;,-~..;.·-,.- W-·" 1.I •. 1.. ..i... 
I I .loo .. 1.. ~-1 ··:1i... ,. !.., ,.;"' ,. \.,, , • ;?+IOD 1 

• ~~I m1 a~~ ~~~ rn1 I I m1 arl ..... I irn I I !~I !!I I . r~I l ~tt ~ f ; 9f; ~i; 9i ; iji~ - ~I mi 
1 I !!I ~id i i~ 

D/S Im' 
1186,0J 

( "lldl't Sl.llMY, .JUN( 10115 

U/ S iNV 
185 ,8 1 

D/S ltlV 
185,78 

U/S IJW 
18'.•J, 

D/ 5 ~w 
185 .4 2 

, 

U/ S HW 
18 !1.20 

t 

- 191 ,0 

- 1.0.0 

- 188.0 

- 187,0 

= 
1, 1ACJWDM1 • M Po lollllllSlll«.LHOl!tCJlllJl1.K1'0rtD 

1. fl(loNtlf lilWQ-" ni "' ~"'~ llO'OOlt. 
laoa•-. ~Ott ' 

)....SCQ<o'SlflUCltQ IWA~IJf C.-.C.S'.ffil\.Tl;Dwl'\.DUI 

~:11.a...a'OIJC IN"..l'O:"°"rolr•~l..:lltSOll-. 

~ 
on. o..n ,_ °""""""' ~CDHli""""-~rt 

• -flOlllH..C.0.~ 11Tlt liMl.J-c:!o'ISlOPC lltl 

• '<Ul1Colol. IWllll1 CIMl'Jl - tlltl 
• ~.asc...wri~ ... --..QlllUl. l'OlrnO-. 
~IC'iQf 1 a~ 

• t'~~ ~.1"" 

= r-: - -

.-lo4hlll!mi,,c!UIC~ 
-1~ .......... 1~~~tl[lolll.J 

=.it:'.,_,.._....,. 
~ I ~~·• 
~-... -..........,.._ ........ , 

I 
I I .. . ~ .. ..,, I ...... ~ .. 

IQ, ~!lll~Oll l'if'I( 

llC P'C1$11111Mor~UHU. CO!IOVlft. ••~1, SC'li00¥!0 
OlliDI UNO(~ Ml gl(~ llMiU AHO llMICUCS Iii 

~~=,.~=l:!"'a~~!: 
llUORtP.IMllGWOlll. Tit:CCHtPJraQll;sw.t.l~HlllmrOf 
lHC~ lllC.'l-OF .tO..l.. ~UTILJIJa- SlJJUt"TuaCS.. Al.111 
5t""'-L U Jl,tloOt IOU. l.Jofl&'.Lll'I' roM NII' ~ DDtC 10 !'KM, 

ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL DRAIN 
PLAN & PROFILES 

ZAvrrz. DRAIN 

-~ fORT.fRIE 
TOWN Of 
FORT ERIE 

~ ' . CllY OF 
• • PORT COLBORNE 

POIU COi BQRr-4E 

I 
rc ... 1c.~"'"·•"•· """"'""''e"'i-

~~=E~~ring Inc:. 

Automated Engineonng ~~ 

:~~.~-0~~~:'.~: ... _,_ ~m ... _ .... , ... __ ..._ .... ... ... ..... .... -·· ~-- ......... 
'"":..'" I -.,.n • I I ·-· I -" , -~ · ~'" -I ~. P1 ... -.. ~-··"' 

294



\ I 
\ 

IU.O· 

' I 

•• loo 

111 !• 

L llllf-------+---~ 

t 121100 

... ~ f-·-
~ I ~.BSSH 
Sff~~ 

I 
11 ..,.._..,...,. ,..._.. _, 

. - - - - - - _L''!?!"'-"'!~:""11_ ... -

t:tl 
f:2 
@ 
.,.. 

~ .. 
' j 
'• 

0+481 to 
B 

f I If l · 
. 3.S]H• I I 1 

~ . § § 1~ . 
11.__.!--.:. • !n~ _ 1 ... ,.. 

I ~-
5. 041 H • I ' I ' 

Sffe.RksroN I?. 
'lJ. 

- 0+304 

~A 
I 

~J ' 
.,.._~ 

I[ 

-1•10 

-1•.o 

~ 
0 

~ 
"<: 

X-SECTIONS: 
SCALE H•l;5tl,V•l:25 

SECTION A 

~
. . - ... 11 .. -, .......... 

SECTIONS 

0 -a.J.:> 
ss -1~ 
.... 100 

-....f--ll.1!!!..l.~11 
·-·---... 1·· •. 

OD 
lfl7.!11 

.. 1~ 

m ., 
-~1 

.. la. 

j{i 

~~~ 

•1111.2m 

ui,~~~~I J~t~&~ 

A 

t-----i'~ . 
~ ~ .... 

RIPRAP 1u1s JNV 
187.2!1 USG.54 

I ...... 
J!. 
if-"1 

I 
-OtJOD 

~~-.. 

..... 
SS -1,:io ........ 

SECTIONC 

/rllOC[:~AlllOllClff'CAI. 
~M(nlOWICl'OllCll~ 

....... 
ss-1$ ....... 

-- ...... ___ ......., .. 

JjQJts; 

I QiW04;0td"""Wll'llUWtU:Zllf\OW!KllOrt0 

a.~~1:-"'° ........ 't'~llOCIU. 
..... ~Oi"l4~1ttolll'C~-.OU 
.-C.•1it-tllf~l'dl•~cr- ...... ... a•• 

~ 
IJAIMI•,_..~"""'"""""~"""'°"'" 

•Gllll'OltfM. 11i1on.1W. 111\1 _,,__ me t"' ...iJllClrc,.Dol_,""",._",. 
~OlllOl.lillt~ ... -1'(Jlrc...~ 
~ll/l'IU.. 

Cot!'CC..-.-t1,.... 

J,[Jilljl! 

- - - -•-...oi ( 

.. ~ ... ( 
--"""'"""*""" --1 ........ i~llllS-"""1UWllOilol.I 
i!=:t';';_, ... -~ ____ , ______ _ 
--...--~ 

--
rte~ Clf "Ill.I:~ COICUn, w.ltll-il, UWOfrt lflD - ..._ ... ____.. ..... --..o UlllnU ~It~ 'Ii cm- ~ .... ~-- -- -· ·-· 

~ ••·~-~ .... •OIC 
~~~r~:i,.u::~·o(WO;~ -
~"!WallloQt~ 

.,_~-.nc~»""""..._llWSGIDf' 
MUCTUIC\l!DMClf~liUOl~-,~-
9W.1....-IW(.<rU ..-sn rem""' GIMolilll: ~JG new. -......... ZAVITZ MUNICIPAL UKAJ" 

PLAN & PROFlLES 

EAST & WEST TRAIL 
BRANCH DRAINS 

~ 
FORT..fRIE 

TOWN OF 
FORT ERIE 

CITY OF I -!IM!'- PORT COi.BORNE 
-. ,......-.. __ ..,. .. Ir 

..... c.....,,...,.,...~ 
EWA Engineering Inc . 

~==· ....... -
Automated Engineering 
Technolos ies Ltd 

- -· ·-· 

~ 
P2 

295



January 9, 2019 

Attention: Mr. Dave Maiden 
Drainage Superintendent 
Town of Fort Erie 
Town Hall, 1 Municipal Centre Drive 
Fort Erie, ON, l!.2.A 256 
905 871-1600 Ext. 2405 
<DMaiden@forterie.ca> 
Copy to : Ms. Alana Vander Veen, 

Dra inage Superintendent, City of Port Colborne 

Dear Mr. Malden: 

EWA Engineering Inc. 

Our File No. 189998 

Please find our report amending the origina l Zavitz Drain Report prepared by Amee Foster Wheeler and sealed 
by myself. These changes to the report were identified during constructions as follows: 

• Increase In culvert capacity for the Zavitz drain located on the Damude Property Identified as Roll No. 

271104000105300. 

• A revision In the Drain grade line on the West Trail Branen Drain adjacent to the Friendship Trail. 

• Change~ to the working easement and allowance calculations for the Clee and Cosby properties. 

These changes are located in the City of Port Col borne portion of the Zavitz Drain works and are brought 
forward for consideration under Section 58 (4) of the Drainage Act, which is to approve changes in the drainage 
design and drainage schedule before final drain commissioning into service and after the report adoption by 

Byla.w. 

For the execution of this work, I have attended the site, met with Mr. Clee and performed a technical review of 
the information available. The amended portions of the report follow this letter. 

Page 1of15 

1
84 Main Street, 
Unionville, ON L3R 2E7 

647.400.2824 
www.ewaeng.com 

296



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

1 Introduction 

The Town of Fort Erie appointed Mr. Paul Marsh, P.Eng. of EWA Engineering as drainage 
engineer for the Zavitz Drain by Council bylaw. 

1. l Background 

The Zavitz Drain Report was originally prepared by the appointed engineering firm, Amee 
Foster Wheeler and sealed by Paul Marsh, P.Eng. as part of the Drainage Tribunal hearings in 
2016. Construction commenced in 2018. 

From the original drain report, there have been three significant changes made to the original 
design. 

l. Mr. Damude requested that a larger culvert was required on his property than the 
design replacement culvert sized as SOOmm circular CSP. 

2. Port Col borne Acting Drainage Superintendent Ms. Alana Vander Veen revised the 
drain grade line for the West Trail Drain to prevent the drain from being too deep 
adjacent to the Friendship Trail. This affected the proposed relaying of the culvert 
crossing Pleasant Beach Road. 

3. After 140m of trees were cleared from the Clee property on the North side of the Zavitz 
Drain, from a total length of 193.3m, Mr. Clee requested that construction be ha lted. 
The drainage report provided an allowance to Mr. Clee (North side of the drain) under 
Section 30 but directed work to be done from the South side w here an allowance for 
work was not granted to Mr. Cosby. 

2 Study Approach 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Information relevant to the construction notes and changes was provided to EWA Engineering 
for review and consideration. 

A site visit was conducted on November 14, 2018 and the following activities were performed: 

l. A visual inspection of the works along the Friendship Trail was performed. 

2. A survey of drainage swale cross-section was collected in three locations. 

3. It was identified that GPS survey data of the West trail, East Trail was available and the 
City of Port Colborne would provide the information. 

4. A meeting with Mr. Clee was held and a walking tour of his property was performed 
along with a discussion of potential options to proceed. 

EWA reviewed the hydrologic modelling information prepared by Amee Foster Wheeler as part 
of the original design work completed for the Zavitz drain. Additional calculations and analysis 
were performed, which are included in the Appendix to this report. 

Page 2of15 

297



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

2.1 Previous Reports and Studies 

Original Computer Aided Design (CAD) files were not made available for the project by Amee 
Foster Wheeler (now the Wood Group). 

Data from NPCA was already in the possession of EWA Engineering for a related project that 
also covered the Port Colborne portion of the Zavitz Drain. 

Previous versions of reports and Assessment schedu les were provided by the Town of Fort Erie. 

Specific information, marked up plans, are included as Attachment A. 

3 Methodology 

Site data collection to verify construction work along with survey data and review of predictive 
runoff calculations to confirm design standards is considered a suitable methodology for 
resolving the changes made to design in the field. 

4 Analysis 

The following are the three aspects of change from the original design considered for review. 

4 .1 West Trail Grade Line Changes 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

The following is the red line Mark up from the Acting Drainage Superintendent Alana Vander 
Veen for the changes in design grade line. 

Figure 1 West Trail Design Revisions During Construction 

The affected changes shown above are as follows: 

1. A rip rap drop structure was introduced at the outlet of the West Trail and before the 
entrance to the 900mm culvert crossing the Friendship Trail. 

2. The proposed grade line of the West Trail was changed from 0.25 % to 0.1%. 

3. The culvert was not lowered but extended in place with an extension of the same size 
and material. 

Page 3or15 

298



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

4. No change in the grade line for East Trail were proposed or made. 

The concern for the changes are related to the potentia l for fai lures caused by the following: 

A. A lower grade will reduce the conveyance capacity of the drain without any additional 
compensatory change such as wider bottom or side slopes. 

B. The extension of the culvert wi ll reduce conveyance capacity and might be below the 
design standard. 

C. Increase in drain slope at the outlet might lead to erosion of the base grade. 

Cross section profiles were collected during the site visit at the following Cross-sections: 

4.1.1 West Trail Station 0+ 230 Section C 

The survey data collected shows the following channel cross section. 

SECTION C 

(0.0,0.0) TW•H (3.6,0.0) I --~----------)" 

'T .. ,, / ,, 

Figure 2 West Trail 0+230 Section C 

Top width bankfull flow at a depth of 0.9m is shown to be 3.6m. 

D =0.90 
SS =1 .50 
BW •0.80 

4.1 .2 West Trail Station O+ 1 70 Section B 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

The survey shows the following channel cross section. 

SECTION B 

D =0.90 
SS =1.50 

i.o BW =0.90 

Figure 3 West Trail Station 0+170 Section B 

Page 4of15 

299



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

4. l .3 West Trail Station 0 +030 Section A 

~ 

SECTION A 

(0.0,0.0} 

r 
d~0.35" 

l 

Figure 4 West Trail Station 0+030 Section A 

D =0.35 
SS =1.50 
BW =1.00 

For each cross-section an equ iva lent trapezoid was used to confirm the design capacity. It's 
recognized that a potentially slightly larger capacity may exist based on the specific 
measurements made but that a comparison against trapezoidal design as stated in the original 
design plan & profil e drawings is required for comparison. 

The Rational Method was used to pred ict the channel capacity for a 1:2 year flow of0.065 ems 
with a 1:5 year flow of 0.088 using a 1 hour intensity value. 

I - - - - -

'----- 19.01,1 I Oll 

Figure 5 West Trail Catchment Areas 

The capacity of the equiva lent trapezoidal channels was calculated to be as follows: 

Table 1 West Trail Channel Capacity 

Channel 
ID 

Sect-A 

Sect - B 

Sect - C 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Length Slope, 
{m) {m/m) 

0.0019 

0.0019 

0.0007 

Manning 
n coeff 

0.022 

0.022 

0.022 

Bottom Bank 
Width, Depth, Slope, Q, 

BW{m) D (m) (m) (m3/s) 

1 0.35 1.5 0.404 

0.8 1 1.5 2.955 

1.1 0.9 1.5 l!.687 

Page S of lS 

300



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

The slope was determined based on the GPS survey data, collected post construction by City of 
Port Col borne, for the crossing inverts and for the base grade points . The survey showed the 
base grade points are not graded correctly and wil l need to be revised to grade positively 
towards the outlet. 

The grade lines used in the ca lculation are shown in the following figure . 

. .. l . 
I I \ 

I - - -

I I 

I 
o+soo 

I 
0+400 

I 
0+300 

·- ·-·- .!!1.1.!!\Jt.Q,.!J!_,_ ,.,. ...... I\ -·-·-· * 
I ' I 

··-··- I PR. .. (;"'- .. - . 
RADE:UNE ":" 2(j9·- ·· - · ·- • 

I 
0+ 100 

m 0 0.2~- -J· 
' I 

Figure 6 West Trail Revised Design Grade Lines 

From this we can conclude that the drain as constructed has adequate capacity for the 
predicted runoff from the Rational method. However, the lower section of the West Trail East 
of the Pleasant Beach Road requires re-grading to match the design. During the site visit water 
was seen to be ponding in this section. This indicates that the bottom of the ditch should be 
regraded to better match the design shown in Figure 6 West Trail Revised Design Grade lines 
as the red arrow. 

Calculations are included as Attachment B. 

4.2 Zavitz Drai1n Cullven Si1ze Changes 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Original Report contained like for like culvert replacements with t wo SOOmm CSP culverts being 
required on two properties; Damude and Clee. 

Review of the previous SWMHymo modelling work completed for the Zavitz Drain shows that 
runoff computations for the 1:2 year storm were analyzed and reported as 6 hour SCS storm 
runoff of 1.608 ems (revised to 1.560). The CN value used was 75, perhaps slightly on the high 
side for such a flat area that is largely forested or scrub large rura l / urban fringe lot sizes with 
large lawn coverage. 

Time to peak reported as 12.16 hours but with a run-time warning that the time step value 
used was too large and may affect time to peak results. 

Page 6of15 

301



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

The SWMHYMO file; ZavFinal.out reported the following results: 

1.253 based on a CN of 73.50 (which is considered more appropriate) 

Time to peak of 12.33 hrs with the same warnings. 

Comparison with Rational Method ca lculations to benchmark runoff results resulted in a peak 
flow predicted value of 0.944 ems based on a runoff coefficient of 0.17, which is suitable for 
rural lot area with grades less than 2%. (local grades are actually less than 0.2%) 

Culvert design capacity of 1 ems is considered the design requirement for the two private 
crossings. The free flow capacity of the existing and design SOOmm CSP culverts is given as 0.3 
ems, too low in comparison with the design capacity. 

A comparison of upstream and downstream and downstream channel capacity shows that the 
channels as constructed through the land area upstream of the culverts are low in capacity. 

The ca lculation record is included in Attachment C. 

4.3 Zavitz Drain Work Zone Changes 

Prj 11189998 
EWA Engineering 

A review of the Allowances for the property shows that two allowances were considered: 

• A Section 29 allowance that is paid for permanent or long term negative impacts to 
land use. Typically associated with permanent easements in favour of maintenance or 
degradation of soil capabi lity from soil spreading. 

• A Section 30 allowance that is paid for construction impacts to use, such as crop 
disturbances or ornamenta l trees. This is a one time payment for negative impact of 
construction. 

From the original report, For the Zavitz Drain, page 43 Section 8.2. 

"No allowances have been granted under Chapter 0.17 Section 29 as the work 
anticipated does not meet the requirements as set out in Chapter 0 .17, Section 29." 

"The allowances paid under the Drainage Act, Chapter D.17, Section 30 (note changed 
from original text) are based on a value of $1,000 per hectare for wooded areas, $2,000 
per hectare for cultivated lands and $5,000 per hectare for the lands that are mostly 
residential and being in use." 

For the Sherkston North Branch, there were Section 29 allowances made but none were 
recorded for the Zavitz Drain. 

From the Assessment summary in the report, page 43. 

Page 7of 15 

302



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Roll No. 
Property Owner 

Name 

Zavitz Drain - Fort Erle 
20018339000000 Spironello. A. 
20016338000000 Beach, C.M. 
20118337000000 Green, K.R. 
2001833701.0000 Beach, D. & C. 
20018336000000 Clark. D.M. 
20018335000000 Woronchak, M. & N. 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Chapter D.17, Chapter D .. 17, 
Total 

Section 29 Section 30 

- $880 $880 
- $827 $827 
- $ 533 $ 533 
- $474 $ 474 
- $ 551 $ 551 
- $ 280 $280 

T ~tal All~wanc~s - .Fort Erle. $ 3,543 

Zavllz'Drain - Port Colborne 

271104000105400 Cosbv, D. - $406 $406 
·27110400.01384"00 Cfee, J. - $1,294 $ 1,294 
271104000105300 Damude, R. ~ $·307 $607 

Tot~I. Allowa1:u:~s -.Port C~ll=!onie $ 2,008 
Total Allowances- Zavitz Drain $ 5,551 

Project No: TP110120 /TPf10120A Page 43 

Figure 7 Original Report Assessment Allowances 

The section 30 allowance for Property 138400 was $1,294 and based on the following: 

• A calculated working space allowance of lOm Right Width and 610.3m Length for a 
total impacted area of 0.610 Ha and a ca lculated value of $1,221. 

• A channel allowance for the increase in drain top width from 2.lm to 2.Sm Right and 
2.Sm from 2.2m Left; Width and 610.3m length Right and 417.0m Left for a total 
impacted area of 0.024Ha and 0.013Ha with a va lue of $74. 

The Section 30 allowance for Property 105400 was $406 and based on the following: 

• A calculated working allowance of lOm Left Width for a distance of 193.3m for a total 
impacted area of 0.193 Ha and a calculated value of $387. 

• A channel allowance for the increase in top with from 2.0 to 2.5 for a distance of 
193.3m and an impacted area of 0.0.10 Ha with a value of $19. 

From page 32 of the Drain Report, 

STA 2+268.2 to STA 2+685.2 
Clean out approximately 417.0 m of existing channel to the design 

271104000138400 grade and dimensions as noted on the enclosed plans, including 
Clee, J . R. removal of debris and obstructions. Remove existing culvert and 
(both sides} replace with new 500mm CSP culvert at ST A 2+601 .8 to be Installed. 

Spoil to be levelled adjacent to the drain (see Section 6.5). 
Work to be undertaken from north and west side of drain. 

271104000138400 STA 2+685.2 to STA 2+878.5 
Clee, J. A. 

Clean out approximately 193.3 m of existing channel to the design (north side) and 
grade and dimensions as noted on the enclosed plans, including 

271104000105400 
removal of debris and obstructions. 

Cosby, D. 
Spoil to be levelled adjacent to the drain (see Section 6.5). 

(south side) 
Work to be undertaken from south side of drain 

- - -

Shows that the plan of work w as for the grade line restoration and spoil was to be removed 
from the South side of the drain for the last 193.3m of the drain East of the Pleasant Beach 
Road. 

Page 8of 15 

303



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Figure 8 Drain Length for Allowance Calculation 

This image from Google maps shows a measurement of the drain allowance for Section 30 
calculation for the Clee Property 138400 was calculated based on 610m of length, which is the 
entire length of property adjacent to the North, West and North of the drain as an allowance 
for clearing and cleaning. 

From the 1979 Report prepared by CJ Clarke Consulting Engineers, 

11 This drain was last cleaned out in conjunction with the repair the Baer Drain under the 
1957 report ... " 

"Allowances for damages to lands and crops (if any) under Section 30 of the Drainage 
Act are as follows: ... " 

ZAVITZ DRAI N: City of Port Colbor ne Allowances 

Con. 

Robert Jane 

Jos. Clee 

Lot or 
Pa rt 

2 

Allowan ce 

s 
s 

35.00 

85.00 

There were no allowances granted for work on the now Cosby property. 

From the 1947 Report, 

Page 9of15 

304



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

"We recommend that the Zavitz Drain be constructed at the location shown colored in 
red on the Flat Plan attached to and part of this report and that it be constructed to the 
bottom widths, side slopes and grade lines as shown on our Profile attached to and part 
of this report. 11 

"ALLOWANCE FOR DAMAGE TO LANDS & CROPS & DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL" (predates 
the revised Drainage Act of 1974). 

ALLOWANCE FOR D.AM..~GE TO LANDS & CROPS & DISPOSAL 
OF KATERIAL 

Elia Zavitz 
Geo. Beckstead 
w. A. Sehoenbur~ 

15.00 .. s.oo 
15.00 

35.00 

Note: the Clee property was formerly the Zavitz property. The Cosby property w as formerly the 
Mathes property, which did not receive an allowance. 

No assessment for damages were planned for work on the South side of the drain in either the 
1947 report or in the 1979 report. This establishes that historically the drain has always been 
cleaned from the North and West sides of the drain. 

From OMAFRA Publication 852, "A Guide for Engineers working under the Drainage Act in 
Ontario, published 20181 Queen's Printer for Ontario, Toronto, Ontario 

Page 55, 

"When a drain is constructed, the municipality acquires a right-of-way or easement 
along the drain. If property owners plant trees within this right-of-way without 
permission, allowances are typically not provided for Section 78 reports." 

Generally, this recognizes that a municipality reserves the access privilege t o perform future 
works from the easement without incurring undo costs that affect other ratepayers within the 
drain watershed. 

From the site visit that was conducted on November 141 2018, the stumps left behind by the 
cutting of trees on the North Side of the Drain appeared to show that the trees were planted 
into the spoil bank from the previous drain cleaning. This indicates, as per the Drain allowance, 
that work was undertaken from the North side of the Drain and the landowner subsequently 
planted trees adjacent to the Drain. 

Page 10 of 15 

305



Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Figure 9 View of South Bank Zavitz Drain looking East 

This image from Google Maps shows the extent of the drain already clea red on the North Side. 

Figure 10 140m of the North Side of Zavitz Drained Already Cleared 

The remaining drain to be cleared is 193.3m of origina l distance to be cleared minus the 
distance already cleared, 140m is 53.3m. This is the area adjacent to the existing house and the 
septic tank located at the North East Corner of the house. The view of the drain from the 
roadway shows the distance between the drain. the house and the septic tank. 

Page 11of15 

306



Drain CL I 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engineering 

Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

Figure 11 Zavitz Drain from Pleasant Beach Rood looking East 

Septic Tank, <4m 
from Drain CL 

~gm from Drain 
CL to House Edge 

I PL Marker (SIB) 

A tree restoration plan was presented to Mr. Clee on or about November 26, 2018 and the 
owner refused to accept the plan by email dated, December 21, 2018. 

Summary: 

1. The Spruce trees were planted by Mr. Clee into the spoil pile from the previous drain 
clearing and in the way of future drain cleaning efforts. 

2. The report incorrectly stated the drain was to be cleared from the South side when the 
allowance was calculated for the North side and South Side. 

3. The north side has already been cleared for a distance of approximately 140m of the 
allowed 193.3m. The remaining SOm is in conflict with the existing house and septic 
tank and tile bed. 

4. A proposal was presented to Mr. Clee to complete the remaining work to conduct drain 
maintenance from the North side preserving as many trees as possib le along with a 
tree restoration plan, showing trees to be planted outside of a lOm buffer distance 
from the drain, which he did not accept. 

Page l2 of lS 

307



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

4.4 Additional Zavitz Drain Changes not already noted 

The original design had a rock check dam (OPSD 219.210) shown on the plan & profile at 
Station 2+037.4. The details page included OPSD 219.211, which is a temporary Rock Flow 
Check dam for a flat bottom ditch. 

As the design called for a flat bottom ditch, the call out text should have referenced OPSD 
219.211. Since the temporary placement was intended to be during construction and removed 
later, it is no longer shown on the drawings composed as a record of construction. 

5 Recommendations 

5.1 West Trait Grade Line Changes 

Prj # 189998 
EWA Engi necri ng 

The revised grade line change along with constructed channels have adequate capacity to meet 
the predicted design flow. The actual Grade line constructed to the East of Pleasant Beach Rd . 
to date is not as per the revised design grade line and should be addressed through 
construction regrading. 

Revised drawings indicating the changes are included as Attachment E. A view of the 
constructed drain is presented in the following figure. 

Figure 12 Zavitz West Trail Branch Drain post construction looking East 

There are no changes indicated for the assessment schedule based on the construction changes 
to the grade line. 

Page 13 of 15 

308



Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

5.2 Zavitz Culvert Sizes 

It is recommended that the culvert located on the Damude property be upsized to the 
minimum Corrugated Steel Pipe Ard1 CSPA 910x660 

The benefit of upsizing the cufvert on the Clee property fs not as clear as the tipstream drain 
channel capacity is limited; however, the culvert may also be upsfzed to the CSPA 910x660. 

The actual culvert costs will be assessed using the same basis as the original assessment 
schedule. 

5.3 Zavitz Worf< Zone and Section 30 Alifowance for Property ARN 
2 711 104000 l 38400 

Replace the description on page 32 of the report with the following text. 

2711040001'38400 
Clee, J. R. STA 2+685.2 to STA 2+878.5 

Clean out approximately 193.3 m of existing channel to the design grade 
and dimensions as notedl on the enclosed plans, including removal of 
debris and1 obstructions. 

(north side) and 

271'1104000105400 
· Cosby, D. 

Spoil to be levelled adjacent to the drain (see Section 6.5). 
Work to be undertaken from North side of drain. 

(south side} 

Prj # 1·89998 
EWA Englm:eriog 

The Assessment schedule is changed to remove the allowance credit from Mr. Cosby. This 
change affects all the other calculated assessments by red istributing costs as shown in the 
followil"lgAssessment Schedule shown in Attachment E. 

The Revised Allowance will impact two property owners directly and al~ property owners 
indirectly. The removal of the allowance for work zone firom the Cosby property reduces the 
total allowance for that property. The a.llowance for the Clee property remains unchanged. 

Paul C. Marsh, P.Eng. 
fi'rincip:el Engineer 

EWA Engineering Inc. 
pcmarsh@ewaeng.com 

Engineer's Seal: 

Page 1-t of 15 

309



Attachments 
Town of Fort Erie 

Zavitz Drain Report Amendment 

List of Attachments: 

A. First Attachment: Documents related to request for Section 58 (4) to Tribunal. 

B. Calculations to assess West Trail Drain Capacity. 

C. Calculations to assess Zavitz Culvert Capacity 

D. Tree Restoration Plan presented to Mr. Clee. 

E. Revised Design Drawings and Assessment Schedule. 

EWA Engineering Page 15 of 15 

310



POR. T COLBOR.NE 

Report Number: 2019-13 

Ptanning & Development Department 
By-law Enforcement Divisron 

Date: February 11, 2019 

Subject: Encroachment request 104 Fraser Street 

1) PURPOSE 

This report was prepared by Sherry Hanson, Manager of By-law Services under the 
direction of Dan Aquilina, Director of Planning & Development. The purpose of this report 
is to present Council with an encroachment request from Yvon Mousseau new owner of 
104 Fraser Street for an existing carport, deck and stairs located on or overhanging the 
City's active rail line. 

2) HISTORY, BACKGROUND, COUNCIL POLICY, PRACTICES 

The Encroachment application fee has been temporarily waived as per Council directive 
at the August 8, 2016 Council Meeting. Legal is still working on a formalized policy and 
By-law and this office will be brought forward for Council approval once received . 

Encroachment requirements: 
• Complete application form and pay (payment temporarily waived); 
• Provide site plan of proposed encroachment; 
• Provide $5 million dollars, liability insurance, The Corporation of the City of Port 

Colborne as additional insured with a 30-day cancellation certificate; 
• Sign and abide by the Encroachment License Agreement; 
• $50 yearly renewal fee (fee temporarily waived) and current insurance. 
• Register Encroachment License Agreement on title. 

Mr. Mousseau purchased and applied for a building permit to renovate and establish 
commercial office space in this building. During the application process it was noted that 
some portions of the building extensions are encroaching on the adjacent active railway 
land. Therefore, before any building permit can be issued to renovate the building , all 
encroachment issues need to be addressed. 

lrt is not the practice of the municipality to allow permanent structures, buildings or houses 
to be erected on City property, however, the carport is a long standing encroachment and 
the stairs were erected prior without a permit. Mr. Mousseau is trying to obtain and 
renovate as per the regulations. 

The encroachments are minor and Mr. Mousseau has retained Lanthier and Gilmore to 
provide an accurate measurement and drawing of the encroachment which will be 
registered on title if Council approves this report. He has the ability to obtain commercial 
insurance naming the City as additional insured and has completed the requested 
application and survey of the property and further, a license agreement to reflect the 
conditions approved by Council and the appropriate parties can be prepared for 
signatures. 

311



3) STAFF COMMENTS AND DISCUSSIONS 

Planning Comments: 

The section of the building that encroaches on the City-owned railway right-of-way was 
constructed after a minor variance was granted in 1987 (File A 16/87). It appears that 
incorrect information was submitted with the minor variance application regarding the 
location of the rear lot line for 104 Fraser Street. The site plan that accompanied the 
application shows that there should be 2.4m (8ft) between the rear lot line at the north
eastern corner of the building. Evidently, this is incorrect and the north-east corner of the 
building now projects 2.26m (7.4ft) onto the railway right-of-way. Nevertheless, the minor 
variance was granted and the structure has been in place since the late 1980s. The 
Planning Division is supportive of this encroachment agreement as a way to recognize 
this zoning deficiency and provide a legal agreement for its continued existence. 

Building Comments: 

Building has received a Building Permit application for renovations to the encroaching 
structure. The application acknowledges that the existing building and stair landing 
encroaches over the northerly property boundary, though the extent of the 
encroachments is not clear. 
The owner was advised that a survey, prepared by an Ontario Land Surveyor (OLS), 
showing the extent of the encroachments must be provided, and an Encroachment 
Agreement with the City of Port Colborne executed, prior to issuance of the permit. 

Fire Comments: 

The Fire Department has no adverse comments regarding this proposed encroachment. 

Engineering Comments 

The Engineering Division will support this application if the following is adhered to: 
1. The land owner of 104 Fraser Street enters into a formalized encroachment 

agreement with the municipality; 
2. No additions to the building that will create any other encroachments; 
3. No extensions onto the existing encroachments; 
4. If the encroachments are ever removed, they will not be allowed to be 

reconstructed to encroach on City property. 

The By-law Enforcement Division is not opposed to the proposed encroachment 

4) OPTIONS AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

a) Do Nothing 

This is not a viable option as the existing condition would remain, without agreements 
and liability insurance coverage. 

Planning & Development Department, By-law Enforcement Division Report No.:2019-13 Page 2 of 3 

312



b) Other Opti'ons 

This section is not applicable. 

5) COMPLIANCE WITH STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVES 

This section is not applicable. 

6) ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix 1 - Aerial view of the area 
Appendix 2 - Encroachment Application; 

7) RECOMM1ENDATtON 

That Council approve the encroachment application and authorize entering into a License 
Agreement with the applicant and owner Yvon Mousseau for 104 Fraser Street. 

8) SIGNATURES 

Prepared on January 14, 2019 by: 

erry on, C.P.S.O. 
Manager of By-law Services 

~ n ~qui l ina, RPP, MCIP, CPT 
Director of PJanning and Development 

Reviewed and respectfully Reviewed by: 
submitted by: 

Chris Lee 

C. Scott Luey 
Chief Administrative Officer Director of Engineering & Operations 

Planning & Development Department, By-law Enforcement Division Report No.:2019-13 Page 3 of 3 

313



;, STAIRS 

ON 

l1 • ~·-

EXIT SIGN &: 
EMERGENCY LIGHT 

SMOKE & CO OEiECTOR 
& 110V INTERCONNECTED 

16'-3 1/2" 

:ice 5FACE 
HIGH CEILING 

ATED l'ilTI-1 
SEBOARD HEAT 

-t" 

4• - 0• 

' ' 
' 

; 

:q. 

~I 
I 

::c 
Qe> 
:CZ 
• ;;! 
C'l< ... a: 

I ~~ 
~ -... 

Ill 

~ 

tD 

~ 

w 
z 
:::J 
l
o 
....J 

t 
'5Tc...1 P... S f ..:>c. -:-o c:<.C...~ 1"10 ~ 

\..0 1-\oLS L.Gtv6-t\--.. ;}_ · · o· 

P-.o<.:>.,_, ~L-t b'f 
I I '& '' C) 

~ • • · t . , 

' '3 3-;_ 

,, ,~~r J 1'-.ot.,~q>VJA\~ i ~! 
I l51i~ e-p~..- ~ I I ~ Y.Q -1 ' <'-<-p 11111111111111 11">..""' I ~ (,";;, e~'""' ~~"' ~ · 

I r ''-1'< (.Q W e:._ {0 C ('O 

;.... 

EX ISTING 
TWO STOREY 
E3UILD ING; 

#104 

EXISTING 
CARPORT 

LOT LINE 66.0' 

FRASER STREET 

>/.o. 

28' 10" 

b 
N 

w 
z 

314



I 

1: 

'I 
l• .1 
11 
Ji 
1: 

Ii I 
I. 

f: 

11 

~ 
~ 
ll 
I., 

~I~ 

-&'-0" ~6' "-< 6" x 6" P.T. WOOD POST 

UPI I I 0. 

SMOKE & co DETECTOR r===' I I ti 
110V INTERCONNECTED 2'- 6" • 6'-B" 2'-6" )C 61-8" s I 

XISTING EXTERIOR WALLS TO ! SPACE IS HEATED 1'11TH 
ELECTRIC BASEBOARD HEAT 

AVE ONE LAYER OF 5/8" TYPE "X" 
YP. DRYWALL FDR BO MINUTES F.R.R. , 
8-2 TABLE 2.3.4.A 

OFFICE SPACE 
8'0" HIGH CEILING 

t 2.3.4 .. C (WOOD STUDS) i 
pi~n~Oq' WOOD I ~~l~Tl~oq· WOOD 
FLOOR JOISTS I FLOOR JOISTS 

CEILING IS REQUIRED TO BE A 
HORZ. FIRE SEP ARA TlON 
OF 60 MINUTES 

SB - 2 TAB LE 2.3.12 
DOUBLE 5/B" TYPE "X" 
GYP. DRYWALL 
CEILING = 60 MINUTES 

EXIT SIGN & 
EMERGENCY LIGHT 

~I PROTECT EXISTING COLUMN 1'11TH 
TWO LAYERS OF 5/8" TYPE "X" 

I GYP. DRYWALL 

~"'-PROTECT BEAM WITH 

I TWO LAYERS OF 5/8" TYPE "X" 
8 GYP. DRYWALL 

~· 
~1 
~. 22'-o" 

ON 10" Dia. POURED CONCRETE PIER 
MIN. 4'0" BELOW GRADE ON UNDISTURBED SOIL 

" 
ll 

PROTECT BEAM WITH : <.:> 
TWO LAYERS OF 5/B" TYPE "X" 1:;:;. 
GYP. DRYWALL ! 8; 

'• <( 

PROTECT EXISTING COLUMNS 1'11TH 1: u 
TWO LAYERS OF 5/B" TYPE "X" • :. 
GYP. DRYWALL~! 3 

I <( 

· ~~ 
""<( 

I W 

EXISTING I: ~: 
CARPORT •

1
: ~ t;; 
•of[ 

EXISTING ,! >-
2" x 10" WOOD ! u~ 
FLOOR JOISTS I· ~ 5 

.: ff~ 

I ~ 
CEILING IS REQUIRED TO BE A 
HORZ. FIRE SEPARATION 
OF 60 MINUTES 

PROTECT CEILING FROM 
'M:ATHER WITH ALUM. SOFFIT 

~ ,, 
' 

11 ' ' c::::il" IC LJ..J I I 11.. __ _______________ ________ ____ __ !ili 
.3'-s· x 3'- 6" J'-o" 1i1 6'-8" s'-a" x 5'-o" 

MAIN FLOOR PLAN 
FLOOR AREA = S2S SF 

315



ENCROACHMENT APPLICATION 

WHAT YOU NEED TO START 

0 Complete the below application 

0 $300 Application fee or ($150 if in the CIP area) $60 Register Encroachment on Title 

0 Apply for CIP Fund ing if available 
o Be able to obtain and provide $2 or $5 million dollars liabil ity insurance, naming the Cit y as 

additional insured with a 30 day cancellation certificate. (depends on the nature of the 
encroachment) 

0 Attached a sketch/ site plan of the proposed encroachment with accurate measurements 

O Specify the dates and times required for the encroachment 

1. APPLICATION 

. " ., : . ~ - -- ~ 

"<. ~ ~ 
-·:..;?.·. . . - ·-: ., 
:~-:.. ... . . . ..-.. :_ 

Phone Number 

Email Address 
~ I .; ' • 

Z: Owner · . ·· ,,. . .: 

Name: 

ddress: 

Phone Number: 

Email Address: 

2. THJ--fN CROACHMENT 

Aildress: . 
Roll Number 

P)N# .. 

Legal Descripti?n 

·:J Type of Encroachment 

-- Awning 

-- Sign 

-
- Bench 

-

• . .. 

I 

Tables and Chairs - No Alcohol 

Tables and Chairs - Alcohol is being served 

- / Encroachment located on St. Lawrence Management Corporation 
/ Property 

-·· .. ~ 
....... ·•· -. 

.. . . . ·~·. . :--. 

Ramp - Other • Speci~.-f- _ , _ _ ?J . _ -r 
j~) LQvJL<J c\- L C'J'. ~ ()-"' "'-/'- .fv.\~+if\Jc:\ 

~ T f< UC. l U (( £ 316



•• -'f-

::J Duration of _ ,_ 

g.rr~r.oa~Ji_n~ ~IJ! -~ 

.. . ,, 1· : • ;_ ·-· ;• • : 
;... . 

.-. -
.I- .;: •• ;·. • • /• - ; 

Other: 

3. s/e' PLAN 
' g1' . rg, ...---

II c ,O S ~E ft- -tt-(AC-h Site Plan Attached....- , 
~--
I I . - ./\ 
v I f Y' , 

I 

4. SIGNATURE 

Date: j CVV\. \ IP Qo \q 
Print Name: \f u 0 I\_) \ rn o o ~ g Q.a....l) 

Signature: />/,. - - ./J,,,A . ..A .A ... -

OFFICE USE oliL~ I 
5. 

0 Form Complete 0 Site Plan complete 0 $2 Miiiion Insurance 

t:J Owner of property .- Building Permit Required :J $5 Milllon Insurance 

:l Tenant of property ::J CIP Funding avallable :l Registered on Title Fee $60 

.-; 
Seaway Property -; Regional Property D New Application -

Fee paid $300 :J Fee Paid 5150 ..J Renewal 

- Reviewed By: _ _ Other: please specify 

317



This page intentionally left blank. 

318



Niagara' 

January 21, 2019 

LOCAL AREA MUNICIPALITIES 

SENT ELECTRON/CALLY 

Administration 
Office of the Regional Clerk FEB 0 ~ 2019 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box I 042~ ir.hweJ~r@~,.:*¢f?-~'k7 
Telephone: 905-685-4225 Tell-free: I -800-'25-3Vlf21 1r5,fffi?S~ 905'='087-4977 
www.niagararegion.ca 

Council Session, January 17, 2019 
Committee Session, January 9, 2019 

CSD 6-2019, January 9, 2019 

Approval of Interim Levy Dates and Amounts 
CSD 6-2019 

Regional Council , at its meeting held on January 17, 2019, passed the following 
recommendation of its Corporate Services Committee: 

That Report CSD 6-2019, dated January 9, 2019, respecting Approval of Interim 
Levy Dates and Amounts, BE RECEIVED and the following recommendations 
BE APPROVED: 

1. That the interim amounts for the Regional levy BE APPROVED by 
Regional Council in the amounts shown in Append ix I to Report CSD 6-
2019; 

2. That the Regional Clerk ensures that the appropriate by-law BE 
PREPARED for presentation to Regional Council for consideration and 
approval; and 

3. That Report CSD 6-2019 BE CIRCULATED to the Councils of the local 
area municipalities for information. 

A copy of CSD 6-2019 is enclosed for your reference. 

Yours truly, 

Ann-Marie Norio 
Regional Clerk 

:MJT 

319



CLK-C 2019-34 

Approval of Interim Levy Dates and Amounts 
January 21 , 2019 

Page 2 

cc: Helen Chamberlain Director, Financial Management and Planning I Deputy Treasurer 

320



Niagara91/ Region 

Subject: Approval of Interim Levy Dates and Amounts 

Report to: Corporate Services Committee 

Report date: Wednesday, January 9, 2019 

Recommendations 

CSD 6-2019 
January 9, 2019 

Page 1 

1. That the interim amounts for the Regional levy BE APPROVED by Regional Council 
in the amounts shown in Appendix I to Report CSD 6-2019; 

2. That the Regional Clerk ensures that the appropriate by-law BE PREPARED fo r 
presentation to Regional Council for consideration and approval; and 

3. That report CSD 6-2019 BE CIRCULATED to the Councils of the local area 
municipalities for information. 

Key Facts 

• The purpose of this report is to provide an interim levy equivalent to 50% of the prior 
year's approved estimates pursuant to Section 316 of the Municipal Act in order to 
continue core services prior to the adoption of budget estimates fo r the year. 

• The authority to incur expenditures by Regional departments, boards and agencies 
is granted by Regional Council through the annual approved budget as prescribed 
by the Municipal Act. 

• The Region's Budget Control Bylaw (2017-63, section 6.3 paragraph a.) provides 
that prior to Council's approval of the Operating Budget bylaw, a current year's 
expenditures may be incurred if a budget for a similar item existed in the previous 
year's operating budget and the expenditures is at the same service level as the 
prior year and does not exceed 50% if the amount appropriated in the previous 
year's operating budget. 

• The Region's Budget Control Bylaw (2017-63, section 6.3 paragraph b.) provides 
that prior to Council's approval of the Capital Budget Bylaw, expenditures for new 
capital projects may be permitted if an individual capital project is deemed a priority 
by Council and specifically approved by Council in advance of the general capital 
budget bylaw (section 6.3. paragraph b). 

Financial Considerations 

The interim levy amounts to be requisitioned from the local area municipalities totals 
$173,374, 138 (General Levy) and $17,301, 170 (Waste Management) for a total of 
$190,675,308 or 50% of the 2018 levied amounts. The interim levy will provide sufficient 

321



CSD 6-2019 
January 9, 2019 

Page 2 

cash flows for current year Region operations until approval of the 2019 operating 
budget and levy amounts. 

Analysis 

The authority to incur expenditures by Regional departments, boards and agencies is 
granted by Regional Council through the annual approved operating budget as 
prescribed by the Municipal Act. Prior to the an annual budget being adopted by 
Regional Council, bylaw 2017-63 as approved by Regional Council provides that 
regional departments, boards and agencies may incur expenses up to 50% of their prior 
year's operating budget in order to maintain business as usual for Regional services. 

Further to this, Section 316 of the Municipal Act authorizes Council through a bylaw to 
provide an interim levy equivalent to 50% of the prior year's approved estimates (subject 
to certain adjustments) before the adoption of budget estimates for the year. It has been 
the Region 's past practice to levy an interim levy in order to fund Regional services prior 
to the approval of the annual budget and final levy amounts. 

Expenditures for new capital projects prior to Council's approval of the 2019 
consolidated capital budget bylaw may be permitted if an individual capital project is 
deemed a priority by Council and specifically approved by Council in advance of the 
general capital budget bylaw (section 6.3. paragraph b). 

Alternatives Reviewed 

Alternative thresholds were not considered as the interim levy of 50% permitted by the 
Municipal Act will generally ensure cash inflows in the shorter term are able to 
accommodate the level of expenditures. The Municipal Act does not have a 
requirement to approve a spending limit in advance of the budget approval however the 
practice has been adopted by the Region through bylaw 2017-63. 

Interim levy dates are consistent with the prior years. The local area municipalities were 
consulted and no alternative dates are considered. 

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities 

Approval of the interim levy for 2019 will permit expenditures to be incurred in order to 
maintain business as usual for Regional services. 

Other Pertinent Reports 

N/A. 

322



Prepared by: 
Helen Chamberlain, CPA, CA 
Director, Financial Management & 
Planning/Deputy Treasurer 

Submitted by: 
Ron Tripp, P.Eng. 
Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

Recommended by: 

CSD 6-2019 
January 9, 2019 

Page 3 

Todd Harrison, CPA, CMA 
Commissioner/Treasurer 
Enterprise Resource Management 
Services 

This report was prepared in consultation with Rob Fleming, Senior Tax & Revenue Analyst and 
reviewed by Margaret Murphy, Associate Director, Budget Planning & Strategy. 

Appendices 

Appendix I Interim Levy Payments and Dates Page 4 

323



Appendix I - Interim Levy Payments and Dates 

General Levy 

Municipality I March 13, 2019 I May 15, 2019 

Fort Erie 5,481 ,277 5,481,277 
Grimsby 6,273,994 6,273,994 
Lincoln 5,043,903 5,043,903 
Niagara Falls 18,214,623 18,214,623 
Niagara-on-the-Lake 7,365,417 7,365,417 
Pelham 3,603,433 3,603,433 
Port Colborne 2,878,164 2,878,164 
St. Catharines 23,371 ,245 23,371,245 
Thorold 3,390,085 3,390,085 
Wainfleet 1,300,920 1,300,920 
Welland 7,128,946 7,128,946 
West Lincoln 2 635 064 2,635 064 
Total 86 687 069 86 687 069 

Waste Management Special Levy 

Municipality I March 13, 2019 I May 15, 2019 

Fort Erie ,. 656,840 656,840 
Grimsby 452,694 452,694 
Lincoln 393,664 393,664 
Niagara Falls 1,686,399 1,686,399 
Niaqara-on-the-Lake 369,902 369,902 
Pelham 292,632 292,632 
Port Colborne 437,090 437,090 
St. Catharines 2,678,457 2,678,457 
Thorold 357,948 357,948 
Wainfleet 135,227 135,227 
Welland 974,580 974,580 
West Lincoln 215 154 215 154 
Total 8 650 585 8 650 585 

I 

I 

CSD 6-2019 

Appendix I 

January 9, 2019 

Page4 

Total Interim Levy 

10,962,554 
12,547,988 
10,087,806 
36,429,245 

-
14, 730;-834 
7,206,867 
5;756,327 

46,742,490 
- &,780 , ~69 

2,601,841 
14,257,891 
5 270 128 

173 374 138 

Total Interim Levy 

~ - -· 1,313,680 
905,387 

-
787,327 

3,372,797 
739,,804 
585,264 

'· 874,180 . 
5,356,915 

.715,897 
270,453 

-· 
1,.949, 161 

430 307 
17.301.170 

Total General & Waste Management Interim Levy 

Municipality I March 13, 2019 I May 15, 2019 I Total Interim Levy 
Fort Erie -' 6,1 38, 1~7 6,138,117 12,276,234 
Grimsby 6,726,687 6,726,687 13,453,375 
Lincoln 5,437,567 5,437,567 10,875,133 
Niagara Falls 19,901,021 19,901 ,021 39,802,042 
Niagara-on-the-Lake 7,735,319 7,735,319 15,470,638 
Pelham 3,896,065 3,896,065 7,792, 131 
Port Colborne 3,315,254 3,315,254 - 6,630,507 
St. Catharines 26,049,702 26,049,702 52,099,404 
Thorold 3,748,033 3,748,033 ,7,496,0,66 
Wainfleet 1,436,147 1,436, 147 2,872,294 
Welland 8, 103,526 8,103,526 16,207,052 
West Lincoln 2 850 218 2,850 218 5 700 435 
Total 95 337 654 95 337 654 190 675 308 

324



Niagara · 
Admintstration 
Office of the Regional Clerk 

L ~'lk~~ : 
f · FEB 0 ' 2019 

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box I 042.fR}?~~.h!: ~'1iH=et 
Telephone: 905-685-4225 Toll-free: 1-6.00-26~~1',sql~S:i87-4977 
www.niagararegion.ca 

January 21, 2019 

LOCAL AREA MUNlCIPAL/!TlES 

SENT ELECTRON/CALLY 

CouncU Sessi,on, J'anuary 17, 2019 
Committee Session, January 9, 2019 

CSD 3-2019', January 9, 2019 

Vacancy Program Revisions to Ministry of Finance 
CSD 3-2019 

Regional Council, at its meeting held on January 17, 2019, passed the following 
recommendation of its Corporate Services Committee: 

That Report CSD 3-2019, dated January 9, 2019, respecting Vacancy Program 
Revisions to Ministry of Finance, BE RECEtVED and that the following 
recommendations BE APPROVED: 

1. That the proposed amendments to the existing Commercial/Industrial 
Vacant Unit Rebate and Vacant/Excess Land Subclass property tax rate 
reductions programs BE APPROVED as follows: 

a) Vacant Unit Tax Rebate 
i. Commercial Properties: Phase out the current program in its 

entirety, over three years, by reducing the eligible rebate 
percentage from the current rate of 30% in 2018, to 20% in 
2019, 10% in 2020, and 0% in 2021 and onwards. 

ii. Industrial Properties: Phase out the current program in its 
entirety, over three years, by reducing the eligible rebate 
percentage from the current rate of 30% in 2018, to 20% in 
2019, 10% in 2020, and 0% in 2021 and onwards. 

b) Vacant/Excess Land Tax Rate Reduction 
i. Commercial Properties: Phase out the current program in its 

entirety, over four years starting 2021, by reducing the eligible 
rebate percentage from the current rate of 30% in 2018, to 
22.5% in 2021, 15% in 2022, 7.5% in 2023 and 0% in 2024 and 
onwards. 

325



Vacancy Program Revisions to Ministry of Finance 
January 21, 2019 

Page 2 

ii. Industrial Properties: Phase out the current program in its 
entirety, over four years starting 2021 , by reducing the eligible 
rebate percentage from the current rate of 30% in 2018, to 
22.5% in 2021 , 15% in 2022, 7.5% in 2023 and 0% in 2024 and 
onwards; 

2. That the Province of Ontario BE REQUESTED to adopt regulations and 
make any other legislative amendments required to adjust Niagara 
Region 's Vacant Unit and Vacant/Excess Land Tax Programs as per 
Recommendation 1; 

3. That the Commissioner, Enterprise Resource Management 
Services/Treasurer BE DIRECTED to submit this report to the Ontario 
Minster of Finance, along with any other supporting documentation as 
required by the Ministry to enact the requested program changes; and 

4. That this report BE CIRCULATED to the Councils of the area 
municipalities for information . 

A copy of CSD 3-2019 is enclosed for your reference. 

Yours truly, 

Ann-Marie Norio 
Regional Clerk 
:MJT 

CLK-C 2019-33 

cc: Rob Fleming Senior Tax & Revenue Analyst 

326



Niagara91/ Region 

Subject: Vacancy Program Revisions to Ministry of Finance 

Report to: Corporate Services Committee 

Report date: Wednesday, January 9, 2019 

Recommendations 

CSD 3-201 9 
January 9, 2019 

Page 1 

1. That the proposed amendments to the existing Commercial/Industrial Vacant Unit 
Rebate and Vacant/Excess Land Subclass property tax rate reductions programs 
BE APPROVED as follows: 

a. Vacant Unit Tax Rebate 
i. Commercial Properties: Phase out the current program in its 

entirety, over three years, by reducing the eligible rebate 
percentage from the current rate of 30% in 2018, to 20% in 2019, 
10% in 2020, and 0% in 2021 and onwards. 

-
ii. Industrial Properties: Phase out the current program in its entirety, 

over three years, by reducing the eligible rebate percentage from 
the current rate of 30% in 2018, to 20% in 2019, 10% in 2020, and 
0% in 2021 and onwards. 

b. Vacant/Excess Land Tax Rate Reduction 
i. Commercial Properties: Phase out the current program in its 

entirety, over four years starting 2021, by reducing the eligible 
rebate percentage from the current rate of 30% in 2018, to 22.5% in 
2021 , 15% in 2022, 7.5% in 2023 and 0% in 2024 arid onwards. 

ii. Industrial Properties: Phase out the current program in its entirety, 
over four years starting 2021, by reducing the eligible rebate 
percentage from the current rate of 30% in 2018, to 22.5% in 2021, 
15% in 2022, 7.5% in 2023 and 0% in 2024 and onwards; 

2. That the Province of Ontario BE REQUESTED to adopt regulations and make any 
other legislative amendments require to adjust Niagara Region's Vacant Unit and 
Vacant/Excess Land Tax Programs as per Recommendation 1. 

3. That the Commissioner, Enterprise Resource Management Services/Treasurer BE 
DIRECTED to submit this report to the Ontario Minster of Finance, along with any 
other supporting documentation as required by the Ministry to enact the request 
program changes; and 

4. That this report BE CIRCULATED to the Councils of the area municipalities for 
information. 

327



Key Facts 

CSD 3-2019 
January 9, 2019 

Page 2 

• Commencing in 2017, the Province provided municipalities a greater range of 
options to modify or eliminate the Vacant Unit Property Tax Rebate and 
Commercial/Industrial Vacant/Excess Subclass property tax reduction programs. 

• Currently, Niagara Region has adopted property tax rebate/reduction for the above 
noted programs of 30%. 

• Report CSD 77-2017 Commercial and Industrial Sub Class Tax Rate Reduction and 
Rebates, dated November 29, 2019, Regional Council approved a public 
consultation process to be conducted in order to solicit opinions on program 
alterations. Both area municipal staff and business associations were consulted. 

• Report CSD 41-2018 dated July 18, 2018 presented the result of the public 
engagement to Council and based on the comments provided by local stakeholders, 
Regional staff proposed amendments to the existing rebate and reduction programs 
as outlined in the recommendations section of this report. 

• Council reviewed the proposed changes included in CSD 41-2018 and requested 
that additional public engagement occur in order to ensure communication of the 
proposed changes and input is achieved. 

• Three additional public engagement sessions were held and no changes to the 
previously presented program revisions as per CSD 41-2018 are being 
recommended as a result of no new information being obtained from the business 
community coupled with an increased desired from the non-commercial/industrial 
property owners for program elimination. 

Financial Considerations 

Vacant Unit Rebates - The Region's vacancy rebate program is an application based 
program that provides for a 30% rebate to both commercial and industrial property 
classes if vacancies are experienced in year. The rebate program policy is a decision of 
Regional Council that applies to all the Niagara municipalities. 

Unlike the subclass reduction program described below, the Region and each 
municipality budget for the cost of providing these vacancy rebates. The Region's 2018 
budget expense for providing this program was approximately $1 Million or 0.28% of the 
tax levy. The impact on the local area municipal levies would be of a similar dollar 
magnitude in aggregate. Elimination of this program could provide direct budget 
opportunities for both the Region and area municipality's budgets or could be used to 
provide mitigation against future budget increases. 

Subclass Rate Reduction -The Region's vacant and excess land discount factor for 
commercial and industrial properties is 30% for 2018 for properties that are vacant or 
have excess land. The subclass rate reductions are one of the tax policy decisions the 
Regional Council must make each year that apply to all the Niagara municipalities. 

328



CSD 3-2019 
January 9, 2019 

Page 3 

The subclass reductions provided to commercial and industrial vacant/excess lands 
amounts to approximately $1.6 million (Regional portion only). It is important to note, 
that any changes to this program would not provide direct budget relief to the tax levy. 
Any reduction of the subclass discount percentage would result in a tax shift away from 
all other classes (including the residential, farm, full commercial and industrial classes) 
onto the previously discounted commercial and industrial classes. Unlike the vacant unit 
rebates, discussed above, the property owners do not have to apply for the reduction. 
Eligibility for the subclasses is ultimately determined by MPAC and is reflected annually 
on the tax roll. 

The impact to the average residential household of eliminating the vacant unit rebate 
plus the benefit of the tax shift from eliminating the subclass discounts is estimated at 
$10.96 or 0.75% reduction for the average household (Region portion only). For 
commercial and industrial properties assessed at $1 million, the benefit of eliminating 
the discounts and rebates is $74 and $112, respectively. 

The savings of starting the phase-out in 2019 will result in a decrease in the Region's 
Vacant Unit Rebate budget by approximately $300 thousand which has been 
repurposed to other Regional priorities in the 2019 operating budget. As a result of the 
program change, a similar impact can be expected for the area municipalities in 

· aggregate. 

Analysis 

Additional Public Engagement 

At the direction of Corporate Services Committee, staff undertook additional 
consultation with local area municipalities and business associations above what was 
originally conducted. The Niagara Industrial Association, Greater Niagara Chambers of 
Commerce and previous users of the program were further engaged in order to ensure 
communication of the changes and input was achieved. 

Regional staff organized two additional engagement sessions open to both area 
municipal staff and business groups/residents. Notification was distributed to area 
municipal staff informing them of the upcoming meeting. In order to increase awareness 
of the engagement session with the business groups and residents, Regional staff 
coordinated press releases through both the Niagara Industrial Association and Greater 
Niagara Chamber of Commerce, undertook a social media campaign and provided 
further information on the Region's website. 

In order to ensure a comprehensive public engagement, Regional staff invited area 
municipal finance staff to complete direct mail outs to former recipients of the vacant 
unit rebate informing them of the intended program revisions and directing them to the 
Region's online survey. The direct mail out did yield a few verbal enquiries, however, 

329



CSD 3-2019 
January 9, 2019 

Page4 

staff believe that the increase in the number of surveys completed (in comparison to the 
May 2018 survey) can partially be attributed to the direct mail outs and the social media 
campaign. 

Region staff were also contacted by the Niagara Industrial and Commercial Brokers 
association with comments on the proposed program revisions. As a result, an 
additional meeting was arranged between the members of the association and Region 
staff to further discuss the existing program, the proposed program revisions and the 
impact of such changes. This meeting was attended by representatives of many 
commercial and industrial property owners across Niagara. 

Result of Additional Public Engagement 

The results of the additional municipal engagement were consistent with the previous 
sessions held with municipal staff. There was an interest in eliminating the programs 
and allocating the funds currently utilized by these program elsewhere (i.e., economic 
development activities or to the tax levy). 

The results of the additional public engagement session with the community were 
mixed. The representatives in attendance from one of Niagara Business Improvement 
Areas was in support of program alterations while those that identified as business 
owners were not in favour of the proposed changes. The discussion primarily focused 
on the vacant unit rebate instead of the vacant/excess land subclass reduction program. 
In general, comments received from those in attendance were in support of the vacant 
unit rebate program as it provides assistance to business owners during challenging 
periods and/or transition periods between tenants. 

Comments received from the Realtors association were similar to those received during 
the additional public consultation from the community as well. Those in attendance 
noted that the Region should not enact program changes for the sole purpose of being 
consistent with other municipalities across Southern Ontario. Those in attendance 
stressed the importance of a "made in Niagara" solution. This meeting also resulted in 9 
letters in support of the current program being submitted to the Region from business 
owners (included as Appendix I). 

From the time that report CSD 41-2018 was presented to Council an additional 157 
online surveys were completed by business owners and residents. The full summary of 
the results are included as Appendix II to this report. The survey was designed to 
separate those that are representatives or owners of commercial/industrial properties 
and those that are not. Approximately 38% of the survey respondents identified 
themselves as a representative or owner of a commercial or industrial property in 
Niagara while the remaining 62% did not. The responses from those that identified as 
representatives or owners of a business were for the most part, consistent with the 
verbal feedback received at all engagement sessions. Unlike the engagement sessions 

330



CSD 3-2019 
January 9 , 2019 

Page 5 

though, significant input was received from those that did not identify as representatives 
or owners of a business property. The majority of this group did not feel that the existing 
vacancy programs creates a positive impact on the local community and as a result, 
both programs should be discontinued. 

Recommendation Based on Public Engagement 

As discussed in CSD 41-2018, staff presented rationale for eliminating the programs 
which included: 

• Existing programs place strain on current municipal budgets ; 
• No limitation on the number of years a property can be considered vacant and 

eligible which can lead to lack of incentive to develop properties or fill vacancies; 
• Assessment practices have led to "double-dipping" as properties can receive 

reduced assessed values related to vacancies (as a result of built in assessment 
obsolescence factors by MPAC) in addition to a vacancy tax rebate during the 
same period. 

Based on discussions from all stakeholder engagements, staff are recommending that 
the below phase-out schedules for both programs be endorsed by Council. It should be 
noted that the recommended program revisions are a "made in Niagara" solution. Many 
Golden Horseshoe municipalities (as noted in Appendix Ill) have opted to eliminate the 
Vacant Unit program through a phase-out starting 201 7 or eliminate the program 
immediately without a phase-out. As noted in Table 1, the "made in Niagara" solution is 
to phase-out the Vacant Unit rebate starting 2019 and a delayed 4 year phase-out for 
the vacant/excess land subclass discount starting 2021. 

T bl 1 R d d p Ph tS h d I a e . ecommen e rogram ase-ou c e u e . 
Year Vacant Unit Rebate% 

VacanVExcessland 
Reduction% 

2018 30% 30% 
2019 20% 30% 
2020 10% 30% 
2021 0% 22.5% 
2022 0% 15% 
2023 0% 7.5% 

2024 and onwards 0% 0% 

As discussed in CSD 41-2018, the intent of the phase out starting 2019 for the vacant 
unit rebate program is to allow for business owners that would be effected by the 
program change to adjust their business plans (i.e. seek tenants, better utilize available 
building space, etc.). The intent of the four year phase-out starting 2021 for the vacant 
and excess land subclass reduction program is to provide t ime for commercial and 
industrial land owners to create productive land and to match MPAC's assessment 
phase-in cycles allowing for a "fresh start" in 2024. It should also be noted that the 

331



CSD 3-2019 
January 9, 2019 

Page 6 

Ontario Business Improvement Area Association is in support of eliminating the vacant 
unit rebate for similar reasons as noted above (press release included as Appendix IV). 

Provincial Requirements to Enact Requested Program Revisions 

As outlined in Appendix V, the Province established requirements that must be 
completed prior to submitting program changes for their consideration. Over the course 
of the review period conducted by Regional staff, all requirements have been completed 
save and except the final requirement of Council to pass a resolution indicating approval 
of the changes. If Council passes a resolution in accordance with the report 
recommendations as presented, staff will request the Province to enact the program 
revisions as outlined in Table 1 noted above. 

Alternatives Reviewed 

Continue both the commercial/industrial vacant unit and vacant/excess land subclass 
tax reduction programs as a status quo. This alternative is NOT RECOMMENDED as it 
does not respond to the concerns heard during the public consultation process. 

Eliminate both the vacant unit and vacant/excess land subclass rebate and reduction 
programs immediately without phase-out. This alternative is NOT RECOMMENDED as 
it would not provide sufficient time for local business owners to adjust their business 
plans accordingly. 

Continue the vacant unit program but limit the number of years that a property can be 
eligible for rebate. This alternative is NOT RECOMMENDED as it does not represent 
the majority of the input received during the public engagement sessions. It is also 
believed that this approach would create confusion with the program and increase 
administrative burden of having these programs. 

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities 

Options provided supports Council's priority of fostering an environment for economic 
prosperity. 

Other Pertinent Reports 

CSD 79-2016 Recommended Actions for Correspondence from the City of St. 
Catharines respecting Tax Policy Changes 
CSD 77-2017 Commercial and Industrial Sub Class Tax Rate Reductions and Rebates 
CWCD 142-2017 Response to enquires from March 22, 2017 Corporate services 
Committee meeting 
CSD 18-2018 Property Tax Policy, Ratios and Rates 
CSD 41-2018 Results of Stakeholder Engagement for Vacancy Rebate Program 
Revisions 

332



Prepared by: 
Rob Fleming, MBA 

Recommended by: 

CSD 3-2019 
January 9, 2019 

Page 7 

Senior Tax & Revenue Analyst 
Enterprise Resource Management 
Services 

Todd Harrison, CPA, CMA 
Commissionerffreasurer 
Enterprise Resource Management 
Services 

Submitted by: 
Ron Tripp, P.Eng. 
Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

This report was prepared in consultation with Margaret Murphy, Associate Director, Budget 
Planning & Strategy and Ken Scholtens, Manager, Business Development & Expedited 
Services, and reviewed by Helen Chamberlain, Director, Financial Management & Planning 
/Deputy Treasurer. 

Appendices 

Appendix I 
Appendix II 
Appendix Ill 

Appendix IV 
Appendix V 

Letters Re Vacancy Program Revisions 
Survey Outcomes 
Map of Neighbouring Municipalities with Council Approved Program 
Changes 
News Release - Ontario Business Improvement Area Association 
Letter from Ministry of Finance Re: Vacant Unit and Vacant/Excess 
Land Subclasses 

333



Rob Flemming 
Senor Tax & Revenue Analyst 
Financial Management and Planning 

Enterprise Resource Management Services 
Niagara Region 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

Appendix I 
January 9, 2019 

I'm the owner of the property located at 142 Cushman Road, St. Catharines, consisting 
of S3JQo sq. ft. 

I'm opposed to any removal of the Vacancy Tax Credit. 

Even though other regions have opted out of the Vacancy Tax Credit, I believe as with 
many of my colleagues that this should be a" Made in Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other Regions, I can assure you that this proposal will not work here. We are 
just coming into a healthy rental market with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
through to 2022. Other Regions have experienced strong market conditions and have 
expanded significantly. Whereas Niagara is just starting to fill their industrial, 
commercial is holding its own and office is looking bleak. How could you even consider 
implementing a measure such as this when we have had such a dismal past. 

Please remove this proposal from the Region and Municipalities. 

Sincerely, 

Collini Ferretti Holdings Inc 

334



Rob Flemming 
Senor Tax & Revenue Analyst 
Financial Management and Planning 

Enterprise Resource Management Services 
Niagara Region 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

Appendix I 
January 9, 2019 

I'm the owner of the property located at 1620 Dominion Road, Fort Erie, consisting of 
(tis~:>. sq. ft. 

I'm opposed to any removal of the Vacancy Tax Credit. 

Even though other regions have opted out of the Vacancy Tax Credit, I believe as with 
many of my colleagues that this should be a" Made in Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other Regions, I can assure you that this proposal will not work here. We are 
just coming into a healthy rental market with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
through to 2022. Other Regions have experienced strong market conditions and have 
expanded significantly. Whereas Niagara is just starting to fill their industrial, 
commercial is holding its own and office is looking bleak. How could you even consider 
implementing a measure such as this when we have had such a dismal past. 

Please remove this proposal from the Region and Municipalities. 

Sincerely, 

Larry Stewart 

335



Rob Flemming 
Senor Tax & Revenue Analyst 
Financial Management and Planning 

Enterprise Resource Management Services 
Niagara Region 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

Appendix I 
January 9, 2019 

I'm thy owner of the property located at 10 Dunlop St., St. Catharines, consisting of 
l±J q ') sq. ft . 

' 
I'm opposed to any removal of the Vacancy Tax Credit. 

Even though other regions have opted out of the Vacancy Tax Credit, I believe as with 
many of my colleagues that this should be a " Made in Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other Regions, I can assure you that this proposal will not work here. We are 
just coming into a healthy rental market with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
through to 2022. Other Regions have experienced strong market conditions and have 
expanded significantly. Whereas Niagara is just starting to fill their industrial, 
commercial is holding its own and office is looking bleak. How could you even consider 
implementing a measure such as this when we have had such a dismal past. 

Please remove this proposal from the Region and Municipalities. 

Sincerely, 

Larry Stewart 

336



Rob Flemming 
Senor Tax & Revenue Analyst 
Financial Management and Planning 

Enterprise Resource Management Services 
Niagara Region 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

Appendix I 
January 9, 2019 

3 m ~he owner of the property located at 543 Allanburg Road, Thorold, consisting of 
1.'0 sq. ft . 

I'm opposed to any removal of the Vacancy Tax Credit. 

Even though other regions have opted out of the Vacancy Tax Credit, I believe as with 
many of my colleagues that this should be a" Made in Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other Regions, I can assure you that this proposal will not work here. We are 
just coming into a healthy rental market with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
through to 2022. Other Regions have experienced strong market conditions and have 
expanded significantly. Whereas Niagara is just starting to fill their industrial, 
commercial is holding its own and office is looking bleak. How could you even consider 
implementing a measure such as this when we have had such a dismal past. 

Please remove this proposal from the Region and Municipalities. 

Sincerely, 

337



Rob Flemming 
Senor Tax & Revenue Analyst 
Financial Management and Planning 

Enterprise Resource Management Services 
Niagara Region 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

Appendix I 
January 9, 2019 

I'm the owner of the property located at 101 Hannover Drive, St. Catharines, consisting 
of ~'1 a.=\, sq. ft. 

I'm opposed to any removal of the Vacancy Tax Credit. 

Even though other regions have opted out of the Vacancy Tax Credit, I believe as with 
many of my colleagues that this should be a" Made in Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other Regions, I can assure you that this proposal will not work here. We are 
just coming into a healthy rental market with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
through to 2022. Other Regions have experienced strong market conditions and have 
expanded significantly. Whereas Niagara is just starting to fill their industrial, 
commercial is holding its own and office is looking bleak. How could you even consider 
implementing a measure such as this when we have had such a dismal past. 

Please remove this proposal from the Region and Municipalities. 

Sincerely, 

Larry Stewart 

338



CAUSEWAY PROPERTIES INC. 
Appendix I 

January 9, 2019 

242 Main Street East 
Hamilton, Ontario, l8N 1H5 

Nove,mber 15th, 20118 

Rob Flemming 
Senor Tax & Reve·nue Analyst 
Financial' Management and Planning 

Enterprise Resource Manag·ement Services 
N'iagara Regi,on 
181.5 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 41i7 

Phone: {905} 528-8956 
Fax: {905} 528-2165 

Causeway Properties Inc. i·s tine owner of tine property located at 113-1115 Cushman 
Road St. Catharines, Ontario, consisting. of 185,642 sq. frt. 

l1'm opposed to any removal of the Vacancy Tax Credit. 

Even though other reg'ions have opted out of the Vacancy Tax Credit, I bel ieve as with 
many of my coll'eag.ues that th is should be a " Made in Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other IR.egfons, I can assure you that this proposal wifil not work here. We arn 
just coming into a healthy rental rnarket with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
through to 2022. Other Regions have experienced! striong' market conditions and have 
expanded significantly. Wlnemas Niagarai is just starting to fill their induistrial1, 
commerciail 1 is !holding: its own andl office is l'ooking bleak. How could you even consider 
implementililg a measure such as this when we have had such a dismal past. 

Please remove this proposal! from the Regfon and Municipal1ities. 

Sincere·!~, 

CAUSfWA,Y PROPERTl'ES INC. 
Peli': 

339



Appendix I 

F.T.A. CO·NDOR HOLDINGS INC.Januaryg,zo19 

242 Main Street East 
Hamilton, Ontario, LBN 1H5 

November 1st\ 2018 

Rob Flemming 
Senor Tax & Revenue Analiyst 
Finam:i·al Manaigreme·nrt and Planni·ng 

Enterprise Resource Management Services 
Niagara Regiolill 
1a1,5 Sir l.saac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

Phone: (905) 528-8956 
Fax: (905) 528-2165 

F.T.A. Condor Holdi111gs Inc. is the owneri of U1e property located at 380 Vansickle Road, 
St. Catha.rines, Ontario, consisting. of 99·,762 sq. ft. 

I'm opposed to any removal of the Vacancy Tax Credit. 

Even thougih otheri reg.ions have opted out of the Vacancy Tax Credit, I IDelieve as with 
many of my coll'eagues that this should be a 11 Made i1n Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other Regions, I' can assUJre you that this proposal wil l not work hem. We are 
just coming into a healthy rental market with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
tlrlmug.lni to 2022. Other Regions have experieFlced stromg market colilditions and have 
expanded significantly. Whereas Niagara is just starting to fill! their industrial·, 
commercial is filoldi.ng, its own arnd' office is looking bleak. lrl!ow could you even consider 
implementing a measure such as this when we have had sucln a dismal past. 

Please remove ~his proposal from the Reg.ion and Municipal'ities. 

F.T.A. CO'NDOR: HOLDJN'.GS INC. 

340



Appendix I 

F.T.A. CONDOR HOLDINGS INC.January 9

,

2019 

242 Main Street East 
Hamilton, Ontario, LBN 1H5 

November 15th, 2018 

Rob Flemming: 
Sen.or Tax & Revenue Analyst 
Financial M·anagement and Planning 

Enterprise Resource Management Services 
Niagara Region 
1815 Sir Jsaac Brock Way 
Thorol'd, ON L2V 4T7 

Phone: (905) 528-8956 
Fax: {905} 528-2165 

F.T.A. Condor Hol1dings Inc. is the owner of the property located at 360 Yor~ Road, 
Niagara-on-the-Lake, Ontario, consisting of 66,458 sqi. ft. 

l1'm opposed to any mm ova.I of the Vacancy Tax Credit 

Even though other regions have opted out of the Vacar,icy Tax Credit, 11 believe as with 
many of my colleagues that tin is should be a" Made in Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other Regions, 1, can assure you that this proposal will not worl< here. We are 
just coming into a healthy rental market with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
through to 2022. Other Regions have experienced strong market conditions and have 
expanded significantly. Whereas Niagara is just starting to fill their industrial!, 
commercial is holding its own and oftiice is looking bleak. Mow cot.1ld you even consider 
implementing a measure such as thi·s when we have had such a dismal past. 

Please remove this proposa~ from the Region and Municiµalities. 

Sim:erelly, 

F.T.A. CONDOR fiOtDINGS INC. 
Per: 

341



Rob Flemming 
Senor Tax & Revenue Analyst 
Financial Management and Planning 

Enterprise Resource Management Services 
Niagara Region 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

~~ ...... .......... . ..., 
Appendix I 

January 9, 2019 

I'm the owner of the property located at 150 Bunting Road, St. Catharines consisting of 
4 )., o o o sq. ft. 

I'm opposed to any removal of the Vacancy Tax Credit. 

Even though other regions have opted out of the Vacancy Tax Credit, I believe as with 
many of my colleag·ues that this should be a" Made in Niagara Solution". What may 
work in other Regions, I can assure you that this proposal will not work here. We are 
just coming into a healthy rental market with a forecast of a downturn come late 2019 
through to 2022. Other Regions have experienced strong market conditions and have 
expanded significantly. Whereas Niagara is just starting to fill their industrial, 
commercial is holding its own and office is looking bleak. How could you even consider 
implementing a measure such as this when we have had such a dismal past. 

Please remove this proposal from the Region and Municipalities. 

Sine~~~ 

S & S PIEROG LIMITED 

342



Appendix II 
January 9, 2019 

Survey Response Summary / Introductory Questions. 

l. Summary/number of responses: 

Response Counts 

Completion Rate: 80.3% 

Compfete 
---·-------~- 126 

Partial - ----- 31 

Totals: 157 

2. Do you own, or represent an owner, of a commercial I industrial property in Niagara? 

Value Percent 

Yes 3'7.9% 

No 62..1% 

3. Do you understand these two programs and the differences between them? 

Value Percent 

Ye5 91.4% 

No •--~ 8.6% 

343



Appendix II 
January 9 , 2019 

Responses from Niagara Commercial/Industrial Property 

Owners/Representatives 

1. Did you know that for 2018 these programs cost commercia l and industrial property owners approximately 

$74 and $112 in Regional property taxes, respectively? (Based on a $1 million assessment) 

Value Percent 

Yes 52.8% 

No 47.2% 

2. Indicate if you currently, or have previously, benefitted from either of these programs: 

Va lue Percent 

Vacant Unit Reb.ate 80.6% 

Vacant/ Excess- Ltind Reduction 25.0% 

Neither 13.9% 

3. How important are the rebates and reductions in your business plan? 

Value Percent 

Not important I 5.6% 

Somewhat important I 19.4% 

lmport:mt 22.2% 

Very important 22.2% 

Extreme ly imp<>rta nt 30.6% 

4. Would a multi-year phase out of these programs allow you to prepare for the elimination of these 

programs? 

Value Percent 

Yes - - 55.6% 

No -~ 44.4% 

344



Appendix II 
January 9, 2019 

5. Do you believe that either the rebate or reduction creates a positive impact on the loca l community? 

Value Percent 

Yes -
No --~ 

6. Should the rebate or reduction continue? 

Value 

Yes, continue both 

Yes, continue the Vacant Unit Rebat~ 

No, discontinue !>nth 

.. 
I 

65.7% 

34.3% 

Percent 

69.4% 

22.2% 

8.3% 

7. Would you rather see these program expenditures allocated to other Economic Development incentives/ 
programs or reduce the tax levy? 

Value Percent 

Yes 25.7% 

No 74.3% 

8. Did you know that as a commercial I industrial property owner, a portion of your property taxes goes 

toward subsidizing these programs? 

Value Percent 

Yes . . ·' .. " ... 72.2% 

No 27.8% 

345



Appendix II 
January 9, 2019 

Responses from Non-Commercial/Industrial Property 

Owners/Representatives 

1. Did you know that the Region currently budgets $1 million each year in Vacant Unit Rebates for commercial 

and industrial properties? 

Value Percent 

Yes 20.2% 

No 79.8% 

2. Do you believe that either the rebate or reduction creates a positive impact on the local community? 

V alue Percent 

Ye~ t3.1% 

No 86.9% 

3. Should the rebate or reduction continue? 

Value Percent 

Yes, continue both - 7.1% 

Yes, continue the VaCl nt Unit R.elbat:e - 2.4% 

Yes, continue the V"2.c.ant/ Excess Land Reduction - 7.1% 

No, di$<:onti:r'lue both r n 83.3% 

4. Would you rath er see these program expenditures allocated to other Economic Development incentives/ 

programs or reduce the tax levy? 

Value Percent 

Yes 88.0% 

No 

346



Appendix Ill 
January 9, 2019 

Appendix I - Map of Neighbouring Municipalities with CouncH Approved Program Changes 

' 

OURt'fAM 

~* 
·. 

0 

* = Counci l Approval to Eliminate Vacant 
Unit Rebate 

347



/""\f.lf.IO:::l IUIA IV 

Janaury 9, 2019 

ONTARIO BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA ASSOCIATION 

Return on Investment of BIAs 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE - March 22, 2017 

Changing the Landscape by Changing the Vacant Unit Rebate 

The Ontarri.o Bl'A Assodation works with the Province, through the Planning, Environment, 
Resources and Land Deputi.es Committee (PERL) and the Ministry of Finance 

to help BFAs change the landscape through Munfoipat Act Chang·es. 

Ontario's BIAs have continued to raise the Vacant Unit Rebate (Municipal Act 364) as a deterrent from their 
beautification and revitalization efforts. Vacant and deteriorating buildings can and do result in a decrease in the 
marketable lease rates or the overall 'lease-ability' of a BIA area. 

At the recent meeting of the PERL Deputy Ministers and the Board of OBIAA, the board sited contradicting 
strategies between BIAs and the Province, stated "that BIAs build programs and invest funds to promote vacant 
property to prospective lessees and in order to achieve full occupancy, but, the board went on to state, "the 
provincial incentives assist property owners with remaining vacant. 11 

Through consultation with the province's BIAs, the Board informed the Deputy Ministers, "Once a property owner 
is accepted, to our knowledge, there is no mechanism in place to ensure that the property owner is actively 
seeking tenant occupancy. 11 Noting that "Property owners purchasing property for purely financial reasons (tax 
write offs) and not for positive investment." The OBIAA Board indicated that in the case of both large and small 
BIAs (Downtowns), those vacant and derelict buildings are a challenge. 

OBIAA applauds The Province's consultation with Municipalities to consider changing the wording to allow 
Municipalities to opt in or out of the Vacant Unit Rebate, and would like to suggest to BIAs and Municipalities that 
the Vacant Unit Rebate be renamed and used as an Economic Development Tool. The Board is suggesting a 
new business classification of "Main Street Business" that would assist BIAs and Property Owners around the 
province to apply for an "Attraction Rebate". The OBIAA Board is suggesting the following timelines and 
guidelines: 

Attraction Rebate for Main Street Class: 
(non-office towers) 
• Year One - 100% of the 30% or 35% 
• Year Two - 50 % of the 30% or 35% 
• Year Three - 25 % of the 30% or 35% 
• Year Four - 0% of the 30% or 35% 

.. 
Attraction Guidelines for Main Street Class: 
(non-office towers) 
• Property Standards as set by the Municipalities. 

Validation of state of the building(s) 
• Market Value Rental Value as set by the local 

marketplace 
• Education of local Economic Development Tools 

stimulus, as provided by the Municipalities (CIPs, 
Heritage etc.). 

• Pop Up vs Incubator - to allow a property owner to 
have either of these without losing the Vacant Unit 
Rebate. 

The Ministry of Finance is now moving forward with providing municipalities' broad flexibility for 2017 and in future 
years. This change was announced in November 2016 and is intended to allow municipalities to tailor the vacant 
rebate and reduction programs to reflect community needs and circumstances . Municipalities will be required to 
submit a response to a Ministry of Finance Checklist and a Council Resolution indicating how they wi ll be 
implementing the changes to the Vacant Rebate and Reduction Programs. 

OBIAA supports these changes and is encouraging BIAs and Municipalities to consider implementing the above 
noted "Attraction Rebate" as an Economic Development Tool that could make our Urban and Rural Communities 
stronger. 

348



Janaury 9, 2019 

ONTARIO BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA ASSOCIATION 

Return on Investment of BIAs 

-- 30-

OBIAA is the network that represents unique and vibrant BIAs across Ontario. The Association , incorporated in 
2001, supports and advocates on behalf of its members through the building and nurturing of strong relationships 
and partnerships. OBIAA is a leader in the development and sharing of information, tools, resources and best 
practices, and is the ONE voice on common issues. www.obiaa.com 

For more informa.tion, pfease contact: 
Kay Matthews, Executive Director 
OBFM 
info@obiaa.com 

349



('~ 

t?ontario 

Appendix V 
Janaury 9, 2019 

Ministry of Finance 

VACANT UNIT REBATE AND VACANT /EXCESS LAND SUBCLASSES 
January 2017 

Since 1998, the Vacant Unit Rebate and Vacant/Excess Land Subclasses have provided tax 
rebates and reductions to property owners who have vacancies in commercial and industrial 
buildings or land. 

• Vacant Unit Rebates: The Vacant Unit Rebate provides a tax rebate to property owners 
who have vacancies in commercial and industrial buildings. This application-based 
program is administered by municipalities. The current rebate is 30% of the property tax 
for vacant commercial space and 35% for vacant industrial space. 

• Vacant and Excess Land Property Tax Subclass: Commercial and industrial properties or 
portions of these properties in the Vacant and Excess Land Property Tax Subclasses are 
taxed at a fixed percentage rate below the tax rate of the broad class. These properties 
are discounted at 30% to 35% of the full Commercial and/or Industria l rate. 

Currently, upper- and single-tier municipalities may choose to apply the same percentage of 
relief (between 30% - 35%) to both the commercia l and industrial property classes. 

NEW MUNICIPAL FLEXIBILITY FOR 2017 AND FUTURE YEARS 

The Province has reviewed the Vacant Unit Rebate and the Vacant/Excess Land Subclasses in 
consultation with municipal and business stakeholders. 

In response to municipal and other stakeholders' requests, the Province is now moving forward 
with providing municipalities broad flexibility for 2017 and future years. This change, 
announced in November 2016, is intended to allow municipalities to tailor the vacant rebate 
and reduction programs to reflect community needs and circumstances, while considering the 

interests of local businesses. 

In order to provide the most flexibility for municipalities, changes to the rebate and reduction 
programs wil l be implemented through regulation. Upper- and single-tier municipalities that 
have decided to change the programs can notify the Minister of their intent to utilize this 
flexibility and provide details of the proposed changes along with a council resolution . 

To support implementation of changes to the vacant rebate and reduction programs, 
municipalities should review the attached checklist prior to submitting a request for changes to 

the Minister. 

350



IMPlEMENTATrON 

Appendix V 
Janaury 9, 2019 

Municipalities wishing to utilize the fl exibility available to them must submit details of proposed 
changes to the Minister along with a council resolution by one of the following dates to ensure 
amendments are included in a regulation as soon as possible. 

• March 1, 2017 

• April 1, 2017 
• July 1, 2017 

Municipalities will be notified when the regulation implementing the requested changes has 
been enacted . 

Note that in two-tiered municipalities, any program changes to be implemented will be an 
upper-tier municipal decision, consistent with the flexibility currently available to upper-tier 
municipalities, to determine the rebate and reduction percentage between 30% and 35%. 

The Province has an interest in continuing to ensure tax competitiveness and consistency for 
taxpayers and as such, the Minist er w ill consider proposed program changes within this 
context . 

HJRlf-IER INFORMATION 

For general information about the vacant rebate and reduction programs, please contact t he 
Ministry of Finance at info.propertytax@ontario.ca . 

351



f')h t > 
AppendixV 

Janaury 9, 2019 

//r. Ontario Ministry of Finance 

VACANCY REBATE AND REDUCTION PROGrRAM CHANGES 
CHECKLIST 
January 2017 

BUSINESS COMMUNltTY ENGAGEMENT 

./ Have you engaged the local business community? 

./ Can you provide details on how and when you have engaged the local business 

community? 
./ Have you considered the potential impacts the proposed changes may have on local 

businesses? 
./ Have you communicated potential impacts of proposed changes to the business 

community? 
./ Has Council been made aware of the potential impacts on the business community? 

P'R06'RAM DETAlilS 

./ Have you outlined details of program changes in your submission? 

./ For municipalities in a two-tiered system, have you discussed proposed changes with 
lower-tier municipalities? 

./ Have you considered how you will implement or administer any potential changes to 
the vacancy programs? 

./ Have you considered these changes as part of a multi-year strategy? 

./ Has Council passed a resolution indicating approval of these changes? 

fUiRTHER INF.ORMATfON 

If you have any questions about implementation of changes to the vacant rebate and reduction 
programs, please contact the Ministry of Finance at info.propertytax@ontario.ca. 

352



Town qi~ 
Linc.oln 
4800 SOUTH SERVICE RD 
BEAMSVILLE, ON LOR 181 

905-563-8205 

January 29, 2019 

Hon. Victor Fedeli 
Minister of Finance 
Frost Building South 7th Floor, 
7 Queen's Park Gres. 
Toronto, ON M7A 1Y7 

ci~or Port Colborri
0
11 

Rt=.CEIVE 

FEB C 4 2019 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT 

Sent Via Email: Minister.fin@britario.ca 

Re: Support for Ontario Wine and Beer in Retail Stores as Part of Modernizing 
Alcohol Sales 

Honourable Minister Fedeli: 

At its meeting held on January 28, 2019, Town of Lincoln Council approved the 
following motion: 

WHEREAS Ontario's grape and wine industry is an important and unique part of 
Lincoln's economy; and 

WHEREAS Lincoln has an emerging craft beer sector that continues to grow and 
expand; and 

WHEREAS Lincoln has over 50 wineries, breweries and distilleries contributing 
to both our local and provincial economy, creating jobs and investment across 
Lincoln; and 

WHEREAS the Government of Ontario has announced its plan to modernize 
alcohol sales by expanding the sale of beer and wine to corner stores, grocery 
stores and big-box stores, based on market demand, and has requested public 
input on its plan through an online survey until February 1, 2019; and 

WHEREAS this decision represents a significant opportunity to strengthen both 
Lincoln's and Niagara's economy by growing Ontario's wine, craft beer and 
spirits industry through increased consumer access; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Lincoln requests that the 
Provincial Government must include specific policies that support and expand the 

lincoln.ca In 'f1 @TownofLincolnON A place to grow, a place to prosper, a place to belong. 

353



growth of 100 per cent Ontario-grown-and-produced wines and Ontario-made 
craft beer and spirits in its retail channel regulations; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town of Lincoln submit this resolution to 
the Provincial Government and area MPPs as part of the public consultation on 
the Modernization of Alcohol Sales before February 1, 2019; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution be circulated to Niagara 
municipalities for consideration and support; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Town staff be directed to report back to 
Council on a government relations strategy that ensures the importance of 100 
per cent Niagara-grown-and-produced wines and Niagara-made craft beer and 
spirits is recognized at Queen's Park. 

If you have any questions, please contact Legislative Services, Town Clerk at extension 
225. 

Regards, 

Julie Kirkelos 
Town Clerk 
jkirkelos@linc~ln.ca 

cc: Niagara area municipalities and MPPs 

lincoln.ca IJ ii @TownoflincolnON A place to grow, a place to prosper, a place to belong. 

354



January 25, 2019 

City of St. Catharines 
50 Church Street 
P.O. Box 3012 
St. Catharines, Ontario 
L2R 7C2 

Pelham 
NIAGARA 

Vibrant · Creative . Caring 

Attention: Bonnie Nistico-Dunk, City Clerk 

Dear Ms. Nistico-Dunk: 

Gl~.or Port Colbeim,;'! ... 
RECEIVEu 

FEB 0 ~. 20'!3 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

i)')EPAfiTMENT 

City of St. Catharines - Support for Ontario Wine and Beer in Retail Stores 
as Part of Modernizing Alcohol Sales 

At their regular meeting of January 21st, 2019, Council of the Town of Pelham received your 
correspondence and endorsed the following: 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council receive correspondence from the City of St. 
Catharines dated, January 15, 2019 supporting Ontario wine and beer in retail 
stores as part of modernizing alcohol sales, for information. 

On behalf of Council, thank you for your correspondence. 

(Mrs.) ~ncy ,,J. Bozzato, Dipl.M.M., AMCT 
TownClel'K 

/hw 

cc: Niagara Area Municipalities 
Local MPPs 

From the Clerk's Department 

~Administrative 
, .., Services 

20 Pelham Town Square P.O Box 400 · Fonthill, ON LOS 1EO p: 905.892.2607 f: 905.892.5055 

pelham.ca 355



This page intentionally left blank. 

356



City of Port Colborne 
Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 

Minutes 

Date: January 28, 2019 

Time: 6:30 p.m. 

Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne 

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor 
E. Beauregard, Councillor 
R. Bodner, Councillor 
G. Bruno, Councillor 
F. Danch, Councillor 
A. Desmarais, Councillor 
D. Kalailieff, Councillor 
W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer) 
H. Wells, Councillor 

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning & Development 
T. Cartwright, Fire Chief 
A. Grigg, Director of Comm'unity and Economic Development 
A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk 
C. Lee, Director of Engineering and Operations 
S. Luey, Chief Administrative Officer 
L. Nelson, EAA to Director of Corporate Services (minutes) 
T. Rogers, Chief Building Official 
P. Senese, Director of Corporate Services 

Also in attendance were interested citizens, members of the news media and WeeStreem. 

1. Call to Order: 

Mayor Steele called the meeting to order. 
Mayor Steele requested a moment of silence for Former Councillor John Mayne. 

2. National Anthem: 

Those in attendance stood for 0 Canada. 

3. Introduction of Addendum Items: 

Nil. 

4. Confirmation of Agenda: 

357



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-1 9 

Moved by Councillor R. Bodner 
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

Page 2 of 9 

That the agenda dated January 28, 2019 be confirmed , as circulated or as 
amended. 

CARRIED. 

5. Disclosures of Interest: 

Nil. 

6. Adoption of Minutes: 

(a) Regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 01-19, held on January 14, 2019. 

Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

That the minutes of the regular meeting of Committee of the Whole 01 -19, held 
on January 14, 2019, be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 

7. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

The following items were identified for separate discussion: 

Items 1, 2 , 5 and 14 

8. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

Moved by Councillor A. Desmarais 
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

That Items 1 to 16 on the agenda be approved, with the exception of items that have 
been deferred, deleted or listed for separate discussion, and the recommendation 
contained therein adopted. 

Items: 

3. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, Report 2019-
10, Subject: Bill 66 - Proposed Amendment to the Growth 
Plan 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

358



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 Page 3 of 9 

That Council receive Planning and Development Department, Planning 
Division Report 2019-10 for information. 

4. Planning and Development Department, By-law Division, Report 2019-9, 
Subject: Parking and Traffic - Elgin Street 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

That the amendment to By-law 89-2000 being a By-law regulating 
traffic and parking on City roads be approved as follows: 

That Schedule 'E' Limited Parking Restrictions, to By-law 89-2000 
as amended, be amended by deleting therefrom the following: 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 

Highway Side From Times/ Maximum 
To Days 

Elgin St. South Steele St. Anytime 1 Hour 
Fielden Ave. 

6. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-6, Subject: 
Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of Realty Tax 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

That the applications pursuant to Section 357/358 of the Municipal Act, 
2001, as amended, 2018-04 (566 Pleasant Beach Road) and 2018-05 
(4443 Koabel Road) be approved to cancel or reduce taxes in the total 
amount of $244.60. 

7. National Eating Disorder Information Centre Re: Request for Proclamation 
of Eating Disorder Awareness Week (EDAW), February 1-7, 2019 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

That the week of February 1 - 7, 2019 be proclaimed as Eating Disorder 
Awareness Week in the City of Port Colborne in accordance with the 
request received from the National Eating Disorder Information Centre. 

8. Cathy Boyko and Peter Van Caulart, Co-Chairs, 2019 ARC Terminus 
Committee Re: Request for Proclamation of Air Race Week, June 19-24, 
2019 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

359



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 Page 4 of 9 

That the week of June 19 - 24, 2019 be proclaimed as "Air Race Week" 
in the City of Port Colborne in accordance with the request received from 
Cathy Boyko and Peter Van Caulart, Co-Chairs, 2019 ARC Terminus 
Committee. 

9. Municipal Property Assessment Corporation Re: 2018 Year-End 
Assessment Report 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

That the correspondence received from the Municipal Property 
Assessment Corporation (MPAC) Re: 2018 Year-End Assessment 
Report, be received for information. 

10. Memorandum from Vance Badawey, Member of Parliament, Niagara 
Centre Re: National Trade Corridors Fund - 3rd Call for 
Proposals 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

That the Memorandum from Vance Badawey, Member of Parliament, 
Niagara Centre Re: National Trade Corridors Fund - 3rd Call for 
Proposals, be received for information. 

11. Municipalities in the Niagara Region Re: Responses regarding their 
decision on retail cannabis whether to "Opt-In" or "Opt-Out" to allow 
retail cannabis in their Municipality 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

That the resolutions received from the municipalities within Niagara 
Region regarding retail cannabis, be received for information. 

12. City of St. Catharines Re: Support for Ontario Wine and Beer in Retail 
Stores as Part of Modernizing Alcohol Sales 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

That the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re: Support 
for Ontario Wine and Beer in Retail Stores as Part of Modernizing 
Alcohol Sales, be supported. 

13. Town of Niagara-on-the-Lake Re: Support for Locally grown and 
produced wine and craft beer 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

360



Minutes - Regu lar Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 Page 5 of 9 

That the resolution received from the Town of Niagara-on-the-Lake Re: 
Support for Locally grown and produced wine and craft beer, be received 
for information. 

15. Township of Georgina, Township of Wilmot, Town of Orangeville Re: Bill 
66 - "Restoring Ontario's Competitiveness Act" - Oppose Schedule 10 of 
Bill 66 "Open for Business" Planning By-law 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

That the resolutions received from the Town of Georgina, Township of 
Wilmot and the Town of Orangeville Re: Bill 66 "Restoring Ontario's 
Competitiveness Act" - Oppose Schedule 10 of Bill 66 "Open for 
Business" Planning By-law, be received for information. 

16. City of Welland Re: Transit Agreement approval with the City of Port 
Col borne 

Committee of the Whole Recommends: 

CARRIED. 

That the resolution received from the City of Welland Re: Transit 
Agreement with the City of Port Colborne, be received for information. 

9. Presentations: 

(a) Lynne Cunningham, Account Manager, Municipal Property Assessment 
Corporation (MPAC) 

Lynne Cunningham, Account Manager, Municipal Property Assessment 
Corporation provided information on MPAC and answered questions by 
Members of Council regarding MPAC and Ontario's Assessment System. Ms. 
Cunningham directed residents with inquiries regarding their property 
assessment to visit aboutmyproperty.ca. A copy of the presentation is attached. 

10. Delegations: 

(a) Michael Smith, President, Hometown Properties Inc., regarding a request 
to include 176 Elm Street within the Community Improvement Plan (CIP) 
Boundary 

Michael Smith requested to extend the Downtown CIP boundaries to include 
176 Elm Street. Mr. Smith noted that there is a shortfall in the downtown core to 
provide affordable housing for seniors and the former church is an opportunity 
to create affordable housing for seniors. 

361



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 

Moved by Councillor D. Kalailieff 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

Page 6 of 9 

That the Director of Planning and Development be directed to evaluate the 
request for 176 Elm Street to be included within the Downtown CIP boundary; 
and 

That staff review the Downtown CIP boundary as a whole; and 

That staff report back to Council with recommendations. 
CARRIED. 

11. Mayor's Report: 

Mayor Steele announced that the City has lost a great community supporter with the 
passing of former Ward One Councillor John Mayne. Mayor Steele noted that former 
Councillor Mayne was very passionate about Port Colborne with his many volunteer 
activities within the community, especially serving as a volunteer firefighter for 25 years, 
retiring as Captain in 2008. Mayor Steele noted that flags have been lowered in John's 
honour. Mayor Steele spoke regarding warming centres during the recent cold spell and 
the efforts made across all sectors to alleviate conditions that local residents are dealing 
with. Mayor Steele also reminded residents about Sportsfest, February 8-10. 

12. Regional Councillor's Report: 

Regional Councillor Butters provided Council with answers to questions raised by a 
resident regard ing garbage bi-weekly collection. Councillor Butters advised that if any 
Councillor receives feedback from the public, good and bad comments, please forward 
to her attention. Councillor Butters spoke regarding the water tower being taken down 
and noted that it is unfortunate that the City name wi ll not be displayed on water tower 
anymore. Councillor Butters suggested Council and staff think of other ways of creating 
signage near the harbor such as on the Grain Terminal. 

13. Councillors' Items: 

(a) South Crescent Street Lights (Bagu) 

In response to a concern Councillor Bagu received with respect to South 
Crescent street lighting, the Director of Engineering and Operations advised 
that he will touch base with staff on January 291h, and report back on the issue. 

(b) Warming Centre and Snowbuddies Volunteers (Desmarais) 

In response to an inquiry Councillor Desmarais received from a local business 
running the warming centre, Councillor Desmarais suggested contacting the 
City volunteers to work at the warming centre as well as for the Snowbuddies 

362



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 Page 7 of 9 

program which is currently in need of volunteers for the large population of 
seniors in the City. The Director of Community and Economic Development 
advised that she will speak to the volunteer coordinator. 

(c) Parking Lot Lighting at Vale Centre (Beauregard) 

Councillor Beauregard noted that he has heard parents mentioning the low 
lighting and dark parking lot at the Vale Centre. The Director of Engineering and 
Operations advised that facilities staff are looking into retrofitting current lighting 
at the Vale Health and Wellness Centre and replacing with LED lighting. 

(d) Parking Lot Lighting at Vale Centre (Wells) 

Councillor Wells thanked staff for the prompt replacement of mailboxes that had 
been knocked down by snow plowing. 

Staff responses to Councillors' enquiries: 

(a) Sound Deafening Measures Golden Puck Room (Grigg) 

The Director of Community and Economic Development provided an update 
regarding successful installation of baffles in the Golden Puck room to deafen 
the sound. 

(b) Pedestrian Crossover Update (Lee) 

The Director of Engineering and Operations provided an update that there will 
be a presentation at the next meeting of Council regarding the pedestrian 
crossover on Clarence Street. 

(c) Building a Disaster Resilient Niagara Conference (Cartwright) 

The Fire Chief provided an overview of the Building a Disaster Resilient 
Niagara conference on February 13th that the CAO, some staff and some 
members of Council attended. All in attendance enjoyed the day and the 
information provided. 

( d) Budget Meeting (Senese) 

The Director of Corporate Services advised Council and staff that the next 
scheduled budget meeting is February 4th at 530 p.m. 

14. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

1. Planning and Development Department, Building Division, Report 2019-8, 
Subject: Rates and Fees By-law - Building Division Fees 

363



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 

Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor F. Danch 

Page 8 of 9 

That the Council of the City of Port Colborne adopt the fees and 
charges in Schedule X of Appendix A to By-Law No. 6558/13/18 as 
provided in this report. 

CARRIED. 

2. Motion by Councillor Beauregard Re: Rezoning of Certain Lands within 
the East Waterfront Secondary Plan Area to Industrial/Employment 
Purposes 

Moved by Councillor E. Beauregard 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

That Planning and Development staff be directed to bring forward 
applications under the Planning Act to propose changes in land use for 
certain properties within the East Waterfront Secondary Plan Area that 
are federally and privately owned from Parks and Open Space to 
Industrial/Employment purposes. 

CARRIED. 

5. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-11 , 
Subject: Consolidated Fees and Charges By-law - 2019 

Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor R. Bodner 

That the Consolidated Fees and Charges By-law attached to Corporate 
Services Department, Finance Division report 2019-11 be approved; and 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the appropriate 
By-law. 

CARRIED. 

14. City of St. Catharines Re: Plastic Straw and Plastic Stir Stick Ban in City 
Facilities 

Moved by Councillor E. Beauregard 
Seconded by Councillor F. Danch 

364



Minutes - Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 Page 9 of 9 

That the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re: Plastic 
Straw and Plastic Stir Stick Ban in City Faci lities, be received for 
information. 

Moved in referral by Councillor E. Beauregard 
Seconded by Councillor F. Danch 

That the correspondence received from the City of St. Catharines be 
referred to the Director of Community and Economic Development and 
the Environmental Advisory Committee for recommendations for the City 
of Port Colborne. 

CARRIED. 

15. Notice of Motion: 

Councillor Kalailieff provided notice of her intention to introduce a motion at the 
February 11, 2019 Committee of the Whole meeting with respect to waiving the fire 
inspection fees on Bed and Breakfasts. 

16. Adjournment: 

Moved by Councillor F. Danch 
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard 

That the Committee of the Whole meeting be adjourned at approximately 
8:41 p.m. 

CARRIED. 

AL/In 

365



PORT COLBORNE 

MAYOR'S REPORT - JANUARY 28, 2019 

FORMER COUNCILLOR JOHN MAYNE 

On Friday, we lost a great community supporter with the 
passing of former Ward One Councillor John Mayne. 

John was very passionate about Port Colborne with his many 
volunteer activities within the community, especially serving 
as a volunteer firefighter for 25 years, retiring as Captain in 
2008. 

He represented the constituents of Ward One for 4 years and 
sat on the many committees including Accessibility, 
Committee of Adjustment, Economic Development, Heritage, 
Library, Operations Centre and Property Standards during his 
term. 

Never afraid to speak up or ask a question, you always knew 
where you stood with John. 

Our prayers go out to his wife Mickey and family. Our flags 
have been lowered in John's honour. 

366



WARMING CENTRES 

There is no question that the City of Port Colborne is a 
compassionate and caring community. 

We witness this 365 days a year and in particular this time of 
year with the harshness of winter. 

During this recent extreme cold spell there have been a 
number efforts made during this across all sectors - including 
community, organizational as well as municipal level to 
alleviate the difficult conditions that local residents who are 
living in rental units or homes without heat or hydro, or are 
couch surfing because they don't have a place of their own, or 
are on the brink of becoming homeless or are. 

Late last week the City announced that all local residents 
seeking warmth and shelter are welcomed and encouraged to 
go to all city owned buildings during operating hours
including the Vale Centre and library as well as here at city 
hall. 

Since becoming Mayor and being appointed to the police 
board, I am fully aware of the incredible work that goes on day 
in day out in this community by our frontline police and social 
service personnel working as an interdisciplinary team to 
reach out to Port Colborne residents who are at risk - many 
who face addiction and mental health issues and are in 
extremely difficult situations including living in inhabitable 
conditions. 

367



This team has been working hard seven days a week to make 
sure people are helped and properly housed. 

They are the eyes and ears of those most in need in our city. 

I have also learned an incredible amount about the work of 
Port Cares and its Reach Out Centre to help those in need
including what Port Cares can do to keep residents from 
becoming homeless because they don't have heat or hydro as 
result of not having enough money to pay their utility bills. 

I appreciate all the assets and resources that we have in Port 
Colborne to help those at risk and those at greatest risk during 
times like these. 

However, collectively we have to get beyond the stop-gap 
measures and knee jerk reactions. 

We need real, workable and impactful solutions to wrestle 
down the housing crisis - solutions that in one year, two 
years, five and ten years mean we don't have to rely on 
opening up buildings so our residents can have comfort for a 
few hours a day. 

As Canadians - we want more - we want everyone to have a 
safe home. 

We know full well that the availability of safe, affordable 
housing is increasingly shrinking - this is the case in Port 
Colborne along with nearly all municipalities in the region. 

368



However, we need to work TOGETHER - TRULY 
TOGETHER, not just as a municipality but as a COMMUNITY, 
to move far past the stop gap measures that deal in the 
moment of what's happening at this moment or today when 
the weather takes a bad turn to longer term strategies and 
solutions which will ultimately eliminate stop gap measures. 

While we know full well that the answer to the situation 
ultimately rests in increasing the stock of safe affordable 
housing - both rental and owned in our city. 

This won't happen overnight nor can the city alone address 
the issue. 

To this end, I am seeking the assistance of the Social 
Determinants of Health Committee, as well as our Planning 
and Economic Development Departments to work with me to 
deliver long-term effective strategies. 

369



SPORTSFEST 

A reminder to residents that the weekend of February 8-10 is 
SportsFest, a family-friendly Festival of Sports event, which 
attracts participants from across Niagara, with proceeds 
donated to various charities. 

The Mayor's Cup Invitational Hockey Tournament, indoor 
Volleyball Tournament, FREE Family Skating & Swimming, 
Music Trivia, Sno-Pitch & Outdoor Ball Hockey are just some 
of the events that are offered to the community. 

Providing a sense of community pride and greater awareness 
of each community group, SportsFest offers activities for all 
ages, promotes a healthy lifestyle, and an opportunity for 
organized fundraising within the City of Port Colborne. 

370



SNOW PLOW OPERATIONS AND PARKING ON CITY 
STREETS 

During a snow event, we remind the citizens of Port Colborne 
to refrain from parking on the street and NOT to park in a way 
that interferes with snow removal. 

A snow-clearing event is when our plows are dispatched, and 
they move the snow from the travelled portion of the roadway 
to the edge or sides of the road allowance. 

All vehicles that interfere with this process by causing the 
creation of windrows, parking on the road allowance and/or 
parking in removal areas for the snow to be displaced from 
the highway, will receive: 

• a $75 ticket. 
• a purple tow tag 
• have their vehicle towed 

All of these actions may take place within the hour, depending 
on the severity of the snow. 

Therefore, to avoid actions from our By-law Enforcement 
Division, please refrain from parking on the highway and allow 
our plow operators to clear the snow in a safe and timely 
fashion. 

371



This page intentionally left blank. 

372



POR. T COLBOR.NE 

City of Port Colborne 
Regular Meeting of Council 03-19 

Monday, February 11, 2019 
following Committee of the Whole Meeting 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 66 Charlotte Street 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order: Mayor William C. Steele 

2. Introduction of Addendum Items: 

3. Confirmation of Agenda: 

4. Disclosures of Interest: 

5. Adoption of Minutes: 
(a) Regular meeting of Council 02-19, held on January 28, 2019. 

6. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

7. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

8. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

9. Proclamations: 
Nil. 

10. Minutes of Boards, Commissions & Committees: 
(a) Minutes of the Port Colborne Public Library Board Meeting of December 11, 2018 

11. Consideration of By-laws: 

12. Council in Closed Session: 

(i) Motion to go into Closed Session 

That Council do now proceed into closed session in order to address the 
following matter(s): 

(a) Concerning Seaway Lands Divestiture, pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, 
Subsection 239(2)(c) a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by 
the municipality or local board. 

(ii) Disclosures of Interest (closed session agenda): 

373



Council Agenda 

(iii) Consideration of Closed Session Items: 

(iv) Motion to Rise With Report: 

13. Disclosures of Interest Arising From Closed Session: 

14. Report/Motions Arising From Closed Session: 

15. Adjournment: 

February 11 , 2019 

374



Council Agenda February 11, 2019 

Council Items: 

Notes Item Description I Recommendation 

wcs MB EB 1. Motion by Councillor Desmarais Re: Affordable Housing Strategy 

RB GB FD Whereas access to adequate housing is a fundamental human right 

AD DK HW 
(paragraph 25(1) of the United Nations Universal Declaration of Human 
Rights, and Ontario Human Rights Commission - Human Rights 
Perspective on Housing Supply, January 2019); and 

Whereas Port Colborne is fast approaching a housing crisis with 
alarming occupancy rates, soaring housing costs and stagnating 
incomes (Ontario Association of Food Banks, Quarterly Report, 
September 2018, Port Colborne Primary Rental Market Statistics, 
2016, Key Housing Indicators for Port Colborne, July 5, 2017 and 
Where Will We Live - Ontario's Rental Housing Crisis, May 2018); and 

Whereas the Senior Citizens Advisory Committee and the Social 
Determinants of Health Committee, both being committees of this 
council have each placed housing as a priority to their mandate; and 
Whereas designing and implementing a poverty reduction strategy has 
been included in the Port Colborne Strategic Plan (CAO Report 
No.:2015-47); and 

Whereas adequate and affordable housing has been directly linked to 
poverty reduction (Wellesley Institute, Poverty Is a Health Issue: It's 
time to address housing and homelessness, Oct 10, 2013) 

Therefore be it resolved that The Corporation of the City of Port 
Colborne does acknowledge that housing is a human right and that 
municipal government has a role to play in the gradual realization of 
this right for all residents of Port Colborne; and 

That staff be directed to engage with stakeholders to create a 
coordinated municipal affordable housing strategy for the city of Port 
Colborne with the goal to establish a definition for the term "affordable 
housing" and to create affordable housing options across the housing 
continuum, with a report due back to this council to include a high-level 
view of timelines and targets on or before May 27, 2019. 

Note: Notice of Motion was given at the Meeting of January 14, 
2019. 

375



Council Agenda February 11 , 2019 

wcs MB EB 2. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, 
Report 2019-15, Subject: Information Report on the Proposed 

RB GB FD Regional Niagara Waste Collection Services Contract 

AD DK HW That Council receive Engineering and Operations Department Report 
2019-15 for information. 

wcs MB EB 3. Engineering and Operations Department, Engineering Division, 
Report 2019-12, Subject: Amendment to the Zavitz Municipal 

RB GB FD Drain Sherkston North Branch East & West Trail Branch Drains 

AD DK HW 
Report 

That staff be directed to prepare a by-law appointing Paul Marsh P. 
Eng. of EWA Engineering Inc. to comply with Section 8, Chapter D. 17 
of the Drainage Act R.S.O. 1990, as such a by-law will allow us to fulfill 
the requirement of Section 58(4), Chapter D. 17 of the Drainage Act 
R.S.O. 1990, as recommended by the Tribunal Coordinator; and 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be directed to execute the appropriate 
by-law. 

wcs MB EB 4. Planning and Development Department, By-law Enforcement 

RB GB 
Division, Report 2019-13, Subject: Encroachment request 104 

FD Fraser Street 

AD DK HW That Council approve the encroachment application and authorize 
entering into a License Agreement with the applicant and owner Yvon 
Mousseau for 1 04 Fraser Street. 

Miscellaneous Correspondence 

wcs MB EB 5. Region of Niagara Re: Approval of Interim Levy Dates and 

RB GB FD 
Amounts {Report CSD 6-2019} 

AD DK HW 
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re: 
Approval of Interim Levy Dates and Amounts, be received for 
information. 

wcs MB EB 6. Region of Niagara Re: Vacancy Program Revisions to Ministry of 

RB GB FD 
Finance {Report CSD 3-2019} 

AD DK HW 
That the correspondence received from the Region of Niagara Re: 
Vacancy Program Revisions to Ministry of Finance, be received for 
information. 

376



Counci l Agenda February 11 , 2019 

Outside Resolutions - Requests for Endorsement 

wcs MB EB 7. Town of Lincoln, Town of Pelham Re: Support for Ontario Wine 

RB GB FD 
and Beer in Retail Stores as Part of Modernizing A lcohol Sales 

DK HW 
That the resolutions received from the Town of Lincoln and Town of 

AD Pelham Re: Support for Ontario Wine and Beer in Retail Stores as 
Part of Modern izing Alcohol Sales, be received for information . 

Responses to City of Port Colborne Resolutions 

Nil. 

377



Council Agenda 

By-law No. 

6641 /05/19 

6642/06/19 

6643/07/19 

6644/08/19 

6645/09/19 

Consideration of By-laws 
(Council Agenda Item 11) 

Title 

February 11 , 2019 

Being a By-law to Appoint Paul Marsh, P. Eng. of EWA Engineers Inc. 
for the Preparation of an Amended Engineers Report for the Zavitz 
Municipal Drain situated in the Town of Fort Erie and the City of Port 
Colborne and to Rescind By-law No. 5606/36/11 

Being a By-law to Establish a Committee of Adjustment and Repeal 
By-laws 3580/6/98, 3844/130/99 and 4479/10/04 

Being a By-law to Appoint Members of Council to the Committee of 
Adjustment 

Being a By-law to Authorize Entering into a Licence Agreement 
between The Corporation of the city of Port Col borne and Yvon 
Mousseau regarding 104 Fraser Street, Port Col borne 

Being a By-law to Adopt, Ratify and Confirm the Proceedings of the 
Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Col borne at its Regular 
Meeting of February 11 , 2019 

378



.J City of Port Colborne 
Regular Council Meeting 02-19 

Minutes 

Date: January 28, 2019 

Time: 8:41 p.m. 

Place: Council Chambers, Municipal Offices, 66 Charlotte Street, Port Colborne 

Members Present: M. Bagu, Councillor 
E. Beauregard , Councillor 
G. Bruno, Councillor 
R. Bodner, Councillor 
F. Danch, Councillor 
A. Desmarais, Councillor 
D. Kalailieff, Councillor 
W. Steele, Mayor (presiding officer) 
H. Wells, Councillor 

Staff Present: D. Aquilina, Director of Planning & Development 
T. Cartwright, Fire Chief 
A. Grigg, Director of Community and Economic Development 
A. LaPointe, Manager of Legislative Services/City Clerk 
C. Lee, Director of Engineering and Operations 
S. Luey, Chief Administrative Officer 
L. Nelson, EAA to Director of Corporate Services (minutes) 
T. Rogers, Chief Building Official 
P. Senese, Director of Corporate Services 

Also in attendance were interested citizens, members of the news media and WeeStreem. 

1. Call to Order: 

Mayor Steele called the meeting to order. 

2. Introduction of Addendum Items: 

Nil. 

3. Confirmation of Agenda: 

No. 11 Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor H. Wells 

379



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 02-19 Page 2 of 8 

That the agenda dated January 28, 2019 be confirmed, as 
circulated or as amended. 

CARRIED. . 

4. Disclosures of Interest: 

Nil. 

5. Adoption of Minutes: 

No. 12 Moved by Councillor H. Wells 
Seconded by Councillor E. Beauregard 

That the minutes of the regular meeting of Council 01-19, held 
on January 14, 2019, be approved as presented . 

CARRIED. 

6. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

Nil. 

7. Approval of Items Not Requiring Separate Discussion: 

No.13 

Item: 

Moved by Councillor A. Desmarais 
Seconded by Councillor D. Kalailieff 

That Items 1 to 16 on the agenda be approved, with the 
exception of items that have been deferred, deleted or listed 
for separate discussion, and the recommendation contained 
therein adopted. 

1. Planning and Development Department, Building Division, Report 
2019-8, Subject: Rates and Fees By-law - Building Division Fees 

Council resolved : 

That the Council of the City of Port Col borne adopt the fees and 
charges in Schedule X of Appendix A to By-Law No. 6558/13/18 
as provided in this report. 

2. Motion by Councillor Beauregard Re: Rezoning of Certain Lands within 
the East Waterfront Secondary Plan Area to Industrial/Employment 
Purposes 

380



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 02-19 Page 3 of 8 

Council resolved: 

That Planning and Development staff be directed to bring forward 
applications under the Planning Act to propose changes in land use 
for certain properties within the East Waterfront Secondary Plan 
Area that are federally and privately owned from Parks and Open 
Space to Industrial/Employment purposes. 

3. Planning and Development Department, Planning Division, Report 2019-
10, Subject: Bill 66 - Proposed Amendment to the Growth Plan 

Council resolved: 

That Council receive Planning and Development Department, 
Planning Division Report 2019-10 for information. 

4. Planning and Development Department, By-law Division, Report 2019-9, 
Subject: Parking and Traffic - Elgin Street 

Council resolved: 

That the amendment to By-law 89-2000 being a By-law 
regulating traffic and parking on City roads be approved as 
follows: 

That Schedule 'E' Limited Parking Restrictions, to By-law 89-
2000 as amended, be amended by deleting therefrom the 
following: 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 

Highway Side From Times/ Maximum 
To Days 

Elgin St. South Steele St. Anytime 1 Hour 
Fielden Ave. 

5. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-11, 
Subject: Consolidated Fees and Charges By-law - 2019 

Council resolved : 

That the Consolidated Fees and Charges By-law attached to 
Corporate Services Department, Finance Division report 2019-11 
be approved; and 

381



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 02-19 Page 4 of 8 

That the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the 
appropriate By-law. 

6. Corporate Services Department, Finance Division, Report 2019-6, 
Subject: Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of Realty Tax 

Council resolved : 

That the applications pursuant to Section 357/358 of the Municipal 
Act, 2001 , as amended, 2018-04 (566 Pleasant Beach Road) and 
2018-05 (4443 Koabel Road) be approved to cancel or reduce 
taxes in the tota l amount of $244.60. 

7. National Eating Disorder Information Centre Re: Request for 
Proclamation of Eating Disorder Awareness Week (EDAW), February 
1 - 7 2019 

Council resolved : 

That the week of February 1 - 7, 2019 be proclaimed as Eating 
Disorder Awareness Week in the City of Port Colborne in 
accordance with the request received from the National Eating 
Disorder Information Centre. 

8. Cathy Boyko and Peter Van Caulart, Co-Chairs, 2019 ARC Terminus 
Committee Re: Request for Proclamation of Air Race Week, June 19-
24 2019 

Council resolved: 

That the week of June 19 - 24, 2019 be proclaimed as "Air Race 
Week" in the City of Port Colborne in accordance with the request 
received from Cathy Boyko and Peter Van Caulart, Co-Chairs, 2019 
ARC Terminus Committee. 

9. Municipal Property Assessment Corporation Re: 2018 Year-End 
Assessment Report 

Council resolved: 

That the correspondence received from the Municipal Property 
Assessment Corporation (MPAC) Re: 2018 Year-End Assessment 
Report, be received for information. 

10. Memorandum from Vance Badawey, Member of Parliament, Niagara 
Centre Re: National Trade Corridors Fund - 3rd Call for 

382



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 02-19 Page 5 of 8 

Proposals 

Council resolved: 

That the Memorandum from Vance Badawey, Member of 
Parliament, Niagara Centre Re: National Trade Corridors Fund -
3 rd Call for Proposals, be received for information. 

11. Municipalities in the Niagara Region Re: Responses regarding their 
decision on retail cannabis whether to "Opt-In" or "Opt-Out" to allow 
retail cannabis in their Municipality 

Council resolved: 

That the resolutions received from the municipalities within Niagara 
Region regarding retail cannabis, be received for information. 

12. City of St. Catharines Re: Support for Ontario Wine and Beer in 
Retail Stores as Part of Modernizing Alcohol Sales 

Council resolved: 

That the resolution received from the City of St. Catharines Re: 
Support for Ontario Wine and Beer in Retail Stores as Part of 
Modernizing Alcohol Sales, be supported. 

13. Town of Niagara-on-the-Lake Re: Support for Locally grown and 
produced wine and craft beer 

Council resolved: 

That the resolution received from the Town of Niagara-on-the-Lake 
Re: Support for Locally grown and produced wine and craft beer, 
be received for information. 

14. City of St. Catharines Re: Plastic Straw and Plastic Stir Stick Ban in 
City Facilities 

Council resolved: 

That the correspondence received from the City of St. Catharines 
be referred to the Director of Community and Economic 
Development and the Environmental Advisory Committee for 
recommendations for the City of Port Colborne. 

383



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 02-19 Page 6 of 8 

15. Township of Georgina, Township of Wilmot, Town of Orangeville Re: 
Bill 66 - "Restoring Ontario's Competitiveness Act" - Oppose 
Schedule 10 of Bill 66 "Open for Business" Planning By-law 

Council resolved: 

That the resolutions received from the Town of Georgina, Township 
of Wilmot and the Town of Orangeville Re: Bill 66 "Restoring 
Ontario's Competitiveness Act" - Oppose Schedule 10 of Bill 66 
"Open for Business" Planning By-law, be received for information. 

16. City of Welland Re: Transit Agreement approval with the City of Port 
Col borne 

Council resolved: 

That the resolution rece ived from the City of Welland Re: Transit 
Agreement with the City of Port Colborne, be received for 
information. 

CARRIED. 

8. Consideration of Items Requiring Separate Discussion: 

Nil. 

9. Proclamations: 

(a) Eating Disorder Awareness Week, February 1 - 7, 2019 

No. 14 Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

Whereas Eating Disorder Awa reness Week will be from February 1 - 7, 
2019;and 

Whereas eating disorders have the highest mortality rate among all 
psychiatric illnesses and can develop in anyone, regardless of age, ethno
racial background, socioeconomic status, gender or ability; and 

Whereas stigma, secrecy and stereotypes still surround eating disorders, 
causing many people who are suffering to refrain from seeking help; and 

Whereas open supportive dialogue can help break the shame and silence 
that affect nearly 1 million Canadians living with diagnosable eating 
disorders and the mil lions of others who are struggling with food and 
weight preoccupation; and 

384



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 02-19 Page 7 of 8 

Whereas Eating Disorder Awareness Week (EDAW) seeks to raise 
awareness of eating disorders, shed light on dangerous and pervasive 
myths, and promote prevention. It is also a time of year for Canadians to 
learn about available resources and appropriate services for themselves 
and/or loved ones; and 

Whereas Eating Disorder Awareness Week aims to teach Canadians that 
eating disorders are not a choice, and that eating disorders are a serious 
and dangerous mental illness; 

Now therefore, I, Mayor, William C. Steele, proclaim February 1st - 7th, 
2019 as "Eating Disorder Awareness Week" in the City of Port Colborne. 

CARRIED. 

(b) Air Race Week, June 19 -24, 2019 

No.15 Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

Whereas the Air Race Classic (ARC) is the world 's pre-eminent longest 
running air race for women. Its mission is to emphasize the 
acknowledgement of female pilots through aviation based education and 
outreach programs; and 

Whereas participant racers come from throughout the global community to 
enhance their experience by sharing skills and to provide opportunity and 
mentor support for those seeking aviation based careers; and 

Whereas youth aviation careers or life choices are directly influenced by 
exposure to positive role models and f lying experiences obtained at local 
general aviation airports; and 

Whereas Port Colborne's shared general aviation asset, the Niagara 
Central Dorothy Rungeling Airport (NCDRA) is named for such a role 
model and offers multiple ways for the public to experience aviation at a 
world class facility; and 

Whereas the Air Race Classic has selected NCDRA to be the 2019 
Terminus finish for the 43rd annual running of its 2,400 mile air race; and 

Now therefore, Mayor, William C. Steele, proclaim June 19 - 24, 2019 as 
"Air Race Week" in the City of Port Colborne. 

CARRIED. 

10. Minutes of Boards, Commissions & Committees: 

385



Minutes - Regular Council Meeting 02-19 Page 8 of 8 

Nil. 

11 . Consideration of By-laws: 

No.16 

CARRIED. 

Moved by Councillor G. Bruno 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

That the following by-laws be enacted and passed: 

6638/02/1 9 Being a By-law to Establish Fees and Charges for Various 
Services and to Repeal by-law 6658/13/18 

6639/03/1 9 Being a By-law to Amend By-law No. 89-2000, Being a By
law Regulating Traffic and Parking on City Roads 

6640/04/1 9 Being a By-law to Adopt, Ratify and Confirm the 
Proceedings of the Council of The Corporation of the City of 
Port Colborne at its Regular Meeting of January 28, 201 9 

12. Adjournment: 

AL/In 

No.17 

CARRIED. 

Moved by Councillor F. Danch 
Seconded by Councillor A. Desmarais 

That the Council meeting be adjourned at approximately 8:43 p.m. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

386



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law No. 6641 /05/19 

Being a by-law to appoint Paul Marsh P. Eng. of EWA Engineers 
Inc. for the preparation of an Amended Engineer's Report fo r the 

Zavitz Municipal Drain situated in the Town of Fort Erie and the City 
of Port Colborne and to rescind By-law No. 5606/36/11 

Whereas, on the 11 th day of April , 2011 , C ounci l adopted By-law 5606/36/1 1 to appoint 
Paul Smeltzer P. Eng. of AMEC for the preparation of a new engineer's report for the repair 
and improvement of the Zavitz Municipal Drain situated in the City of Port Colborne; and 

Whereas, AMEC Earth and Environmental Limited is unable to provide the services 
required; and 

Whereas, on the 11 th day of February, 2019, that Council approved Department of 
Engineering & Operations, Engineering Division, Report No. 2019-12 Amendment to the Zavitz 
Municipal Drain Sherkston North Branch East & West Trail Branch Drains to prepare revisions 
to the original Zavitz Drain report for repairs and improvements. 

Now therefore the Council of the Corporat ion of the City of Port Colborne enacts as 
follows: 

1. That Paul Marsh, P. Eng. EWA Engineers Inc. be appointed as the Drainage Engineer 
for the preparation of an Amended Engineer's Report for the Zavitz Municipal Drain 
under Section 58(4) of the Drainage R.S.O . 1990, to undertake a revision of the current 
Engineer's Report, for the repair and improvement of the Zavitz Municipal Drain, 
situated in the City of Port Colborne. 

2. That By-law 5606/36/11 be repealed. 

3. T hat the Town of Fort Erie be so advised. 

Enacted and passed this 11 th day of February, 2019. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

387



The Corporation of the City Of Port Colborne 

By-Law No. 6642/06/19 

Being a by-law to establish a committee of adjustment and repeal by-laws 3580/6/98, 
3844/130/99 and 44 79/10/04 

Whereas pursuant to Chapter P.13 of The Planning Act, RSO 1990, Section 44, if 
a municipality has passed a by-law under Section 34 or a predecessor of such section, 
the Council of the municipality may by by-law constitute and appoint a Committee of 
Adjustment for the municipality composed of such persons, not fewer than three, as the 
Council considers advisable. 

Now therefore the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enacts as 
follows: 

1. That the Committee known as the "Committee of Adjustment" be hereby established. 

2. That the Terms of Reference for the "Committee of Adjustment", attached hereto as 
Schedule "A" be and they are hereby authorized and approved as adopted. 

3. That this By-law shall come into force and take effect on the date of passing. 

4. That By-laws 3580/6/98, 3844/130/99 and 4479/10/04 are hereby repealed. 

Enacted and passed this 11 1h day of February, 2019. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

388



SCHEDULE "A" 

COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT TERMS OF REFERENCE 

1. The Committee of Adjustment is formed with regard to Section 44 of The 
Planning Act. 

2. The Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne assigns the 
Committee of Adjustment the authority to: 

a. Grant minor variances pursuant to Subsection 45 (1) of The Planning Act; 
b. Grant applications pursuant to Subsections 45 (2) and 45 (3) of The 

Planning Act; 
c. Grant consents pursuant to Section 53 of The Planning Act, which is 

deemed to include the giving of approval to the foreclosures or of exercise 
of a power of sale in a mortgage or charge, pursuant to Subsection 50 
(18) of The Planning Act and the issuing of certificates of val idation 
pursuant to Section 57 of the Planning Act. 

3. The Committee of Adjustment shall consist of five voting members made up of 
the following: 

a. At least one member of the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port 
Colborne. Members of Council must be appointed to the Committee 
annually by by-law; and, 

b. At least one member of the public. Members of public shall serve a term 
that ends with the term of Council that appoints them. 

4. The Director of Planning and Development shall designate a member of staff to 
serve as a non-voting Secretary-Treasurer to the Committee of Adjustment. 

5. Voting Members of the Committee of Adjustment shall be paid by the Corporation 
of the City of Port Colborne for each meeting they attend at a rate set in the 
annual Councillor appointment by-law. 

389



The Corporation of the City Of Port Colborne 

By-Law No. 6643/07/19 

Being a By-Law to appoint members of council to the 
committee of adjustment 

Whereas pursuant to Subsection 44 (3) of The Planning Act, members of council 
that serve on a Committee of Adjustment must be appointed by by-law annually; and 

Whereas at its meeting on January 14t11 2019 Council resolved to appoint four 
members of Council to the Committee of Adjustment for a term ending November 30th 
2022. 

Now therefore the Council of the Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enacts as 
follows: 

1. That Councillors Angie Desmarais, Eric Beauregard, Donna Kalailieff, and 
Gary Bruno be appointed as the Council representatives to the Committee of 
Adjustment for a period ending January 30, 2020. 

2. That members of the Committee of Adjustment receive a payment of $75.00 
per meeting they attend with the chair of each meeting receiving an additional 
$5.00. 

Enacted and passed this 11th day of February, 2019. 

William C. Steele 
MAYOR 

Amber LaPointe 
CLERK 

390



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-law No. 6644/08/19 

Being a By-law to authorize entering into a Licence Agreement 
between The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne and Yvon Mousseau 

regarding 104 Fraser Street, Port Colborne 

Whereas at its meeting of February 11 1h, 2019 the Council of The Corporation of 
the City of Port Colborne approved the recommendation of Planning and Development 
Department, By-law Enforcement Division, Report 2019-13, Subject: Encroachment 
request 104 Fraser Street; and 

Whereas Council is desirous of entering into a licence agreement with Yvon 
Mousseau (owner) regarding 104 Fraser Street, Port Colborne. 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enacts 
as follows: 

1 . That The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne enter into a licence agreement 
with Yvon Mousseau (owner) regarding 104 Fraser Street, Port Colborne for an 
existing carport, deck and stairs located on or overhanging the City's active rail 
line. 

2. That the Mayor and Clerk be and they are hereby authorized and directed to sign 
said Agreement and the Clerk is hereby authorized to affix the Corporate Seal 
thereto. 

Enacted a passed this 11 lh day of February, 2019. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

391



The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 

By-Law no. 6645/09/19 

Being a by-law to adopt, ratify and confirm 
the proceedings of the Council of The 

Corporation of the City of Port Colborne at 
its Regular Meeting of February 11 , 2019 

Whereas Section 5(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that the powers of 
a municipality shall be exercised by its council; and 

Whereas Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, provides that a municipal 
power, including a municipality's capacity rights, powers and privileges under section 
9, shall be exercised by by-law unless the municipality is specifically authorized to do 
otherwise; and 

Whereas it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Council of The 
Corporation of the City of Port Col borne be confirmed and adopted by by-law; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
enacts as follows: 

1. Every action of the Council of The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne 
taken at its Regular Meeting of February 11, 2019 upon which a vote was 
taken and passed whether a resolution, recommendations, adoption by 
reference, or other means, is hereby enacted as a by-law of the City to take 
effect upon the passing hereof; and further 

2. That the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to execute any documents required 
on behalf of the City and affix the corporate seal of the City and the Mayor and 
Clerk, and such other persons as the action directs, are authorized and 
directed to take the necessary steps to implement the action. 

Enacted and passed this 11th day of February, 2019. 

William C. Steele 
Mayor 

Amber LaPointe 
City Clerk 

392



PORT COLBORNE 
P UBLIC L IBRARY 

Port Colborne Public Library Board 

MINUTES of the 10th Regular Board Meeting of 2018 
Held Tuesday, December 11, 2018, 6:00 p.m . 

Port Colborne Public Library, Auditorium 
310 King St., Port Colborne, ON 

c 1rL.i;il£'orl Colbomci 
R~c;EtVED 

FEB C ~ 2019 
co A PD RA rE SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT 

Present: Michael Cooper (Chair), Valerie Catton (Vice Chair), Harmony Cooper, Cheryl 

MacMillan, 
Staff: Susan Therrien (Director of Library Services/Board Secretary) 

Regrets: Scott Luey (CEO), Peter Senese (Treasurer), Jeanette Frenet te, Bryan Ingram, Ann 
Kennerly 

1. Call to Order: 

Michael Cooper, Chair, called the meeting to order. 

2. Invocation: 

The invocation was read. 

3. Chairperson's Remarks: 

Mr. Cooper welcomed the Board. 

4. Approval of the Agenda: 

Moved by H. Cooper 

Seconded by C. MacMillan 

18:071 
CARRIED. 

That the agenda be adopted as circulated . 

5. Declaration of Conflict of Interest: 

Nii. 

6. Delegations: 

Nil. 

MINUTES of the December 11, 2018 Port Colborne Public Library Board meeting Page 1 

393



I 

-·-PORT CoLBORNE 
PUBLIC LIBRARY 

Port Colborne Public Library Board 

7. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Tuesday, November 13, 2018: 

Moved by H. Cooper 
Seconded by C. MacMillan 

18:072 Thatthe minutes of the November 13, 2018 meeting be adopted. 

CARRIED. 

8. Business Arising from the Minutes: 

Nil. 

9. Agenda Items: 

i. Legacy Document 

Moved by C. MacMillan 

Seconded by H. Cooper 

18:073 That the Port Colborne Public Library Board Legacy Document be accepted as 

presented. 

CARRIED. 

ii. Strategic Plan Implementation 

The Director reported on work accomplished to date regarding implementing the goals 

of the Strategic Plan. 

iii. Capital Projects: Progress Report 

a. Cultural Block Security 

No updates to report. 

b. Risk Assessment Security Upgrades 

No updates to report. 

MINUTES of the December 11, 2018 Port Col borne Public Library Board meeting Page 2 

394



. ~ 

PORT COLBORNE 
Pusuc L mRARY 

Port Colborne Public Library Board 

c. Shelving, Furniture, and Flooring 

An Open House was held at the library on December 1, 2018, with 343 people visiting 
the library t o view the new shelving and furniture. 

d. Accessible Public Washroom: Updates 

No updates to report. 

e. King Street Entrance Accessibility 

No updates to report. 

iv. Governance and Policy Review 

B. Ingram, H. Cooper and S. Therrien were not able to meet and will reschedule the 
policy working session. 

v. Committee Reports: 

Accessibility Committee (B. Ingram, V. Catton): 

Nil. 

Cultural Block Sub-Committee (M. Cooper, V. Catton): 

Nil. 

10. Administrative Business: 

i. Correspondence: 

Nil. 

ii. Public Relations Report: 

Librarian R. Tkachuk submitted a report on Pop-Up Library outreach activities and PD 
Day activities. 

MINUTES of the December 11, 2018 Port Colborne Public Library Board meeting Page 3 

395



PORT COLBORNE 
Pusuc LIBRARY 

Port Colborne Public Library Board 

Moved by H. Cooper 
Seconded by C. MacMillan 

18:074 
CARRIED 

That the Public Relation's report be received for information purposes. 

Chief Executive Officer's Report: 

Nil. 

iii. Treasurer's Report : 

Nil. 

iv. Director's Report: 

a. Mayor Maloney's Staff Appreciation Reception, November 30, 2018 

Attended by the Director and Assistant Librarian C. Cooke. The Director presented a 
card of appreciation to Mayor Maloney on behalf of the Board and staff. 

b. Mayor Steele's Meeting with Library and Museum Staff, December 5, 2018 

The Mayor visited the library for a meet-and-greet with library and museum staff. He 
also received a tour of the library to view the recent renovations. 

c. Counci l Orientation, Open House and Tour 

i. The Director attended an orientation for the new Council on December 10, 
2018, and made a formal presentation to Council on behalf of the Board. 

ii. The Director and Librarian R. Tkachuk will attend an Open House at City Hall on 
December 12, 2018, to showcase the library and answer questions for the 
Mayor and councillors. 

iii. Mayor Steele and Council will visit the library on December 15, 2018, as part of a 
City-wide tour of facilities. 

MINUTES of the December 11, 2018 Port Col borne Public Library Board meeting Page 4 

396



PORT COLBORNE 
PUBUC LIBRARY 

Port Colborne Public Library Board 

d. Youth Job Connection Placement 

The Library hosted a young job-seeker for a one-week (2 hours/ day) placement as part 
of the Youth Job Connection program. 

e. Report on Meetings and Workshops 

i. Staff Development Day, November 19, 2018 

During the Library closure on Monday, November 19, 2018, library staff participated in a 

staff development day held at the LR. Wilson Heritage Research Archives. Human 

Resources Coordinator, T. Morden and Health & Safety Coordinator, I. Reeves presented 

the mental health and wellness educational program "The Working Mind." In the 

afternoon, staff participated in a "Mindfulness Workshop" led by Heidi Dotchin . 

ii. Dewey Divas and Dudes, Niagara Falls Public Library, November 20, 2018 

Librarian R. Tkachuk, Assistant Librarian J. Sider and Assistant Librarian S. Hol attended a 

Dewey Divas and Dudes session hosted by the Niagara Falls Public Library. Four 

Canadian-based publishers presented noteworthy fiction and non-fiction titles from the 

current season. 

Moved by H. Cooper 

Seconded by C. MacMillan 

18:075 
CARRIED 

That the Director's report be received for information purposes. 

Circulation Report 

Nil. 

11. Board Members' Items: 

Nil. 

12. Notices of Motion: 

Nil. 

MINUTES of the December 11, 2018 Port Colborne Public Library Board meeting Page 5 

397



PORT CoLBORNE 
PUBLIC LIBRARY 

Port Colborne Public Library Board 

13. Date of the Next Meeting: 

Tuesday, January 8, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 

Port Colborne Public Library, Auditorium 

310 King St., Port Colborne, ON 

14. Adjournment: 

Moved by H. Cooper 

Seconded by V. Catton 

18:076 That the meeting be adjourned. 

CARRIED. 

January 22, 2018 

MINUTES of the December 11, 2018 Port Colborne Public Library Board meeting Page 6 

398


	Committee of the Whole Meeting Agenda
	Committee Items
	Presentation - Nick Rosati and Petar Vujic Re PXOs in Niagara
	Presentation - Brad Whitelaw Re  Proposed Waste Collection Options
	Delegations
	Item 1 - Councillor Desmarais Re Affordable Housing Strategy
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Regular Committee of the Whole Meeting 04-19 Minutes
	Regular Council Meeting Agenda
	Council Items
	By-laws Council Agenda
	Regular Council Meeting 02-19 Minutes
	By-laws Council Agenda
	PC Public Library Board Meeting Minutes



